About the Cover:

VALUES @ work
In our 2010 report, the color wheel represents the seven core values of EDC. While each color corresponds to a single
value, as a wheel it shows the importance of these values coming together. As one, they serve as our guiding light now
that we walk down the road to our vision of becoming the number one geothermal company in the world. By spinning the
color wheel and revealing each core value, we symbolize how we create ripples of action that flow beyond the confines
of our work areas to a broader community that is the Philippines. Through our sustainable day-to-day operations, we
make a spectrum of difference in the lives of our stakeholders and the state of our environment. Making values work
institutionalizes sustainability at EDC.
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Our Vision

Our Mission
We are committed to provide the present and future generations
a better life with clean and renewable energy.

We will become the global leader in geothermal energy as
we strengthen our leadership in the Philippine renewable
energy industry.

We are committed to promote customer and investor interests,
employee development, community welfare and environmental
stewardship at all times.

Our Core Values
We believe in and practice the essential values that motivate us to persevere and aim for excellence.
BIAS FOR ACTION

Ensuring immediate action, working with a sense

of urgency.
PURSUIT OF EXCELLENCE

Achieving the highest standards of performance

in everything we do.
INTEGRITY

Doing the right thing and doing them right. Being accountable.

ENTREPRENEURIAL SPIRIT

Having a pioneering and innovative attitude,

taking intelligent risks, and being mindful of opportunities and seizing them.
STEWARDSHIP

Caring for and exacting judicious use of resources and

treating the business as if it were your own.
FAIRNESS Treating each person with respect regardless of individual
differences.
RESULTS-DRIVEN TEAMWORK

Working harmoniously with colleagues and

partners towards a common goal.

photo by Marisol Pedregosa-Hospodarsky
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Management Approach to Our Core Business
Our expertise spans the entire geothermal value chain—from geothermal exploration and reservoir management,
engineering and construction, power plant operations to environmental management. Our vertically integrated
operation primes us for global geothermal leadership as we work to be the preferred supplier of clean, reliable, and
affordable power to our Philippine customers.
Our policy to increase the production of power from renewable energy sources lets us expand and diversify our
portfolio of renewable-generating assets. We will increase our hydropower and wind power generation capacities
while we maintain our position as the Philippines’ leader in geothermal energy. To secure our fiscal viability and to
improve power availability throughout the Luzon, Visayas, and Mindanao grids, we have long-standing partnerships
with customers and assure them of value-added services in a reliable, systematic manner.
Throughout our entire production and distribution cycle, we make sure to support the global reduction of emissions
that intensify climate change. Our reforestation program goes beyond restoration of forest cover as we aim to
preserve and enhance biodiversity in areas where we operate. Our fluid collection and recycling system injects
water back to the surface of the earth to recharge the reservoir and ensure that no harmful waste is disposed to the
environment.

VALUES @ work
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(in MILLIONS OF PHP)

2010

2009

2008

Revenues

24,901.6

22,066.9

20,526.9

Operating Expenses

18,447.9

13,317.0

9,343.4

Income Before Income Tax

5,172.3

7,267.5

2,652.9

Net Income

4,395.1

3,357.0

1,345.3

4,115.8

3,311.4

1,308.0

279.3

45.6

37.3

13,747.9

10,711.9

10,758.7

7,237.8

7,276.1

5,835.1

6,837.9

7,155.5

5,473.2

399.9

120.6

361.9

current assets

14,778.7

19,530.8

13,724.2

Total Assets

81,303.6

84,763.6

69,345.6

total liabilities

49,064.6

54,443.0

40,610.3

Attributable to:
Equity Holders of the parent company
MINORITy interests
EBITDA
Recurring Net Income
Attributable to:
Equity Holders of the parent company
MINORITy interests

VALUES @ work

7

SOCIAL PERFORMANCE

8

EDC 2010 Integrated Annual and Sustainability Report

Poised for

Broader Horizons
Message from the Chairman

Dear shareholders and stakeholders,
In 2011, Energy Development Corporation
(EDC) will celebrate its 35th anniversary.
At this point, EDC has already become
the largest integrated steam and power
producer in the world where we manage
the reservoir, steam field assets and
power plants in what is now an integrated
business model. The attractiveness of our
integrated geothermal model is that for
every megawatt we develop, we are in effect
capturing revenue streams from both steam
production and power generation. And
since we have control over our fuel sources,
we are less vulnerable to international price
volatility and supply shocks that we have
been experiencing of late. Our investments
in hydro power, and very soon in wind
power, will help fortify our leadership in
providing clean, indigenous, and renewable
energy to the country.
Amidst an international Independent
Power Producer arena that is crowded
with rivals that have scale and financing
advantages, EDC’s 35-year head start in
geothermal power development allows

us to offer this unique expertise to new
markets abroad that are clearly in search
for more indigenous, low-carbon energy
alternatives. I attribute EDC’s unique value
proposition to its pioneering scientists
and engineers who pursued and further
pushed geothermal technology to bring
it to the level that it is today. EDC was
awarded a new patent last year for its online
steam purity monitoring system and more
patents have been filed. It is this spirit of
innovation and entrepreneurship that will
propel EDC to become an international
geothermal company. Our acquisitions
of the Palinpinon, Tongonan and BaconManito power plants in the last two years
have made us the world’s largest integrated
geothermal power producer, but with
assets only in the Philippines. It is our
clear objective to take geothermal expertise
overseas. In 2010, we began to plant the
seeds for global expansion in countries like
Chile, Kenya, and Indonesia and we hope
to see these initiatives bear fruit in the next
few years.

VALUES @ work
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EDC chose to sharpen its vision and redefined its core values. These are:
Bias for Action, Pursuit of Excellence, Integrity, Entrepreneurial Spirit,
Stewardship, Fairness, and Results-Driven Teamwork. As we pursue
our aspirations to strengthen our local leadership and plant the seeds for
global expansion in 2011 and in the years to come, these values shall be
our guide.

CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

The domestic landscape is not without
challenge. Many major conglomerates
in the country have jumped on the
bandwagon, entering the power
generation industry like the great gold
rush. Much of them are because of
perceptions of an impending shortage
and the promise of stellar returns.
However, the Philippine economy
continues to be principally driven
by a non-energy intensive services
sector. As such, growth in power
demand will not be rapid and power
shortages will be short lived. Having
experienced these cycles in the past,
I believe we are much more prepared
and very well positioned to weather
a sudden turn towards an extended
period of overcapacity. We have a
very price-competitive portfolio and
asset base that is difficult to replicate
overnight, given that many of the larger
geothermal resources in the country
are already with EDC. Close to 90%
of our power is sold under long-term
contracts, providing us with stable
cash flows that will put the wind in our
growth sails.
Another key element in the way we
manage our power portfolio is that
we have environmentalism and
sustainability built into our business
model. A most significant step is
our decision to modify the massive
reforestation efforts we do at EDC
in ways that more closely mimic the
natural growth of local indigenous
forests. This ensures that we are able
to protect the forests’ biodiversity as
well and we have contracted local
experts to help us monitor and craft
the appropriate strategy for this. As
of 2010, EDC has planted 7.7 million
trees, reforesting 9,713 hectares.
A more detailed account of EDC’s
adherence to the Global Reporting
Initiatives (GRI) is found in this
Integrated Annual and Sustainability
Report.
In the last few years, we have seen
major changes in the Lopez Group
portfolio, most significant of which
was our decision to sell our controlling
stakes in Meralco and Manila North
Tollways Corporation. At the same
time, First Gen Corporation (First
Gen) won the bid for a controlling
stake in EDC (then PNOC EDC).
These events signaled the shift in
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Our 900-ha reforestation in Mount Apo is the highest-altitude greening program in the country

Employees are primed for global competition

portfolio from power distribution to
power generation at First Philippine
Holdings Corporation (FPH), the
parent company to First Gen and
EDC. Today, after the many crises and
pressures we have had to overcome,
we emerge with an enviably stronger
platform of businesses and the
financial muscle to carry us forward.
In 2011, FPH will likewise celebrate
its 50th year. And while we look back
with pride to our contributions to
nation-building in those last 50 years,
we are eager and raring to conquer
new horizons. At the forefront is our
power businesses, where our sights
are no longer just set on growing
domestically but also now positioned
to compete internationally. EDC’s
35-year head start and experience will
be our contribution to markets abroad
that are clearly in need for clean and
renewable energy.
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Education is the core of our CSR program

Our theme for this year’s annual
report is “Values at Work.” In 2010,
EDC chose to sharpen its vision and
redefined its core values. These are:
Bias for Action, Pursuit of Excellence,
Integrity, Entrepreneurial Spirit,
Stewardship, Fairness, and ResultsDriven Teamwork. As we pursue our
aspirations to strengthen our local
leadership and plant the seeds for
global expansion this year and in the
years to come, these values shall be
our guide.

Federico R. Lopez

Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer

CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE
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EDC acquired the 150MW Bacon-Manito Geothermal Power Plants in 2010
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In Transition
Message from the President

To our shareholders and stakeholders,
EDC is in transition as our business
evolves to something stronger and leaner,
and prepares to go global. In the course
of 2009 and 2010, we have become
the largest integrated geothermal power
producer in the world—owning and
prudently managing both our steam
resources as well as all the power plants
that produce electricity from our steam. In
2010, we focused our efforts on execution
by managing the rehabilitation of the
Tongonan and Palinpinon Geothermal
Power Plants and acquiring the BaconManito (BacMan) Geothermal Power
Plants. We also strengthened our balance
sheet by further reducing our yen exposure
and extending our loan maturities. Finally,
we continued to plant the seeds for both
our domestic and international growth.
As such, 2010 and 2011 are clearly
transition years for us, a time to invest
in rehabilitation and upgrade capital

expenditures and to manage our significant
short-term revenue losses. We made the
decision to take one step backward in
preparation to slingshot several strides
forward. We are confident that the
deliberate choice to endure short-term
setbacks in exchange for long-term gains
will pay off.
What we have become. In September
2010, we successfully acquired the 150MW
BacMan plants in the Bicol region. Under
government control and operations, the
BacMan plants had been barely operating
in the past five years and had been in very
poor condition. One plant in the complex,
the 20MW Botong unit, was completely
inundated by a mudslide while another
unit, the 20MW Cawayan, exploded in 2005
following the failure of standard protection
equipment.

VALUES @ work
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2009 and 2010 were years where companies in the Philippines operated
with stable, if not favorable, robust winds in their sails. EDC used this
time to consolidate and integrate our operations through acquisitions,
to strengthen our balance sheet and cash flow and to ‘trim our sails’
by pushing as hard as we can to operate efficiently and manage costs.

PRESIDENT’S MESSAGE

We acquired the 150MW BacMan
complex at a fair valuation of US$0.19
million/MW and, when we are done
with the rehabilitation works, will
restore the plant to an initial 130MW.
The acquisition came at a significant
opportunity cost—the temporary loss
of PhP1.8 billion a year in take-or-pay
steam revenues from the government
for as long as the rehabilitation works
are ongoing. At the time we won the
bid for BacMan, we believed that it
would take 24 months to bring 130MW
back on line. However, by December
2010, we had cut that timetable to 11
months by managing 25 contractors
on site to do concurrent work and
deploying our best team on the job.
Together with the acquisitions of
Palinpinon and Tongonan by our
wholly owned subsidiary, Green
Core Geothermal Inc. (GCGI), from
government in 2009, we have grown
our power generation portfolio by
57%. All three power plant complexes
require significant capital expenditure
to upgrade the units and make them
reliable and safe to operate once
again. Our investments are paying off.
At the end of 2010, Palinpinon and
Tongonan’s reliable capacities are
178.5MW and 98.5MW, respectively,
or an increase of 4% and 30% from
end-2009. These will increase further
in 2011.
GCGI’s energy was actively marketed
and successfully contracted to 14
customers in the Visayas region over 11
months of negotiations and discussions.
Against a backdrop of significant
competition from new coal plants,
customers opted to contract with us
given our competitive offer. We intend
to keep our majority contracted posture
to maintain stable and predictable
revenue and earning streams.
We temporarily stopped the suboptimal operation of our 49MW
Northern Negros Geothermal Power
Plant (NNGP) to conduct geophysical
surveys in an unexplored quadrant
of the low producing field. These
state-of-the art data gathering and 3D
modeling techniques were aligned with
the independent international experts
who conducted a thorough peer
review on our data. Given NNGP’s
limited output and uncertainty of
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Our prudent fiscal management strengthens our credibility to lending institutions

EDC completed its acquisition targets when it won the bidding for the BacMan plants

supplementing the existing resource,
we decided to provision for a PhP3.4
billion impairment charge for 2010.
We are confident that the NNGP
asset will continue to deliver power
to the Visayas grid and we will focus
our efforts in 2011 to right-sizing the
power asset with the resource for
improved efficiency.
We deliberately put on hold the rapid
development of the Unified Leyte (UL)
steamfield and, at the same time,
commissioned a team to update the
complex reservoir model with the
aim of allowing the UL steamfield
to deliver sustainably for decades
to come. For the past two years, we
had been playing catch up to meet
the steam requirements of the power
plants, following many years of under
investment. The updated reservoir
model will allow us to better arrest the
natural decline of our reservoir through
the formulation of improved drilling
and reinjection strategies. While this

EDC 2010 Integrated Annual and Sustainability Report

decision has cost us PhP1 billion
in forgone revenues in 2010, it will
pave the way to a more sustainable
operation of the Leyte reservoir in the
long run.
We continued to implement major
maintenance works across all
generating assets to improve reliability
and efficiency. In Leyte, we overhauled
Malitbog Power Plant’s steam turbine
and generator rotor, rewound one of
the generator rotors of Upper Mahiao
Power Plant, and re-bladed the
turbine rotors of our Mahanagdong
Power Plant. In Mt. Apo, we had
replaced back-up power systems of
the Mindanao power plants to ensure
safe shutdown and readiness-to-start
in case of total plant trip and grid
blackout.
Our hydropower subsidiary First
Gen Hydro Power Corporation also
completed its first upgrade in its 34
years of operation. By December

PRESIDENT’S MESSAGE

2010, the Pantabangan-Masiway
hydro complex increased its capacity
to 132MW, from the original 112MW.
How we work. We have made
significant progress in our drilling
operations by increasing our average
rate of penetration by 29% versus the
previous year’s performance. This
has led to a 16% reduction in the
cost per well, despite the fact that
we are now drilling deeper. On an
absolute basis, the cost per well went
down by PhP45 million or a total of
PhP630 million for the year. This was
helped by the delivery and service
of our newest rig, a state-of-the-art
NOV Ideal 2000-horsepower rig that
completed three wells in the last five
months of the year.
We are in the midst of strengthening
our human resources in preparation
for our growth aspirations and, as
such, hired 89 new employees
in 2010, 60% of whom perform
technical, scientific or business
development work. With the
acquisition of Palinpinon and
Tongonan power plants, we welcomed
a total of 195 new co-employees at our
wholly owned subsidiary GCGI. We
also implemented an early retirement
program, which resulted in a reduction
of 211 employees, or about 8%
of our manpower, and a one-time
charge of PhP550 million for the
year. Despite the aggressive hiring in
key functions and the addition of our
GCGI colleagues, our total headcount
remained flat.
As part of our efforts to sustain
industrial peace, we successfully
concluded 11 of our Collective
Bargaining Agreements (CBA) across
all project sites. This is a significant
achievement considering that we
concluded only one CBA in 2009.
We also focused on establishing an
Employee Council, which will function
as the venue for consultations outside
the Labor Management Council,
thereby bringing management and
rank and file even closer together.
In December 2010, the board of
directors had approved the closure of
our Well Construction Group effective
February 28, 2011. Upon closing of
our drilling operations unit, we secured

the services of globally-competitive
drilling service provider, ThermaPrime.
We believe that outsourcing our drilling
services is consistent with global best
practices of oil, gas, and geothermal
companies. To control our steam
strategy and eliminate price volatility in
rig rentals, we will continue to own our
fleet of drilling rigs.
We focused on debt redenomination
and tenor management in 2010. As a
result, we reduced our remaining yen
exposure to 12% from 38% the year
before and increased our average loan
life from three years to eight years. We
settled our JPY22 billion Miyazawa II
debt in June, which we partially funded
with the proceeds of a US$175 million
facility from a syndicate of relationship
banks. In spreading out our maturities,
we have matched more closely our cash
flow to our growth capital expenditure
program.

We have continued to roll out key
management and operational
excellence processes. We instituted
a robust risk management system
and the Balanced Scorecard System
across our operations. Our initial
Environmental Management Systems
ISO 14001:2004 certification for
our Mindanao Geothermal Field is
proceeding as planned and other
sites will follow. We are putting in
place a comprehensive Computerized
Maintenance Management System
for our steamfield and power plant
operations and expect this to be on
line by July 2011.
Sustainability is integral to our
business. In the absence of lush
forest cover and systematic planting,
the ability of our project areas to
capture rainfall that contributes to

We strive to become the Philippines’ preferred supplier of clean power

BINHI continues to set the pace in corporate greening
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the recharge of our reservoirs would
be compromised. We are on year two
of our 10-year BINHI program, our
landmark reforestation project that
focused on vanishing premium native
tree species. BINHI has allowed us
to implement our own Payments to
Environmental Services (PES) on a
broader scale through environmentrelated jobs created for our host
communities. In 2010, we protected
and planted over 772,591 BINHI trees
within a total combined area of 1,071
hectares across our project sites.
We believe that education is a viable
and potent mode of alleviating poverty
and that the economic prosperity of
the company must come hand in
hand with the development of the
communities in which we operate.
Our model technical and vocational
school, the Kananga-EDC Institute of
Technology (KEITECH), successfully
graduated all 117 scholars. Each of
our students finished the program
with an impressive five TESDA
certifications, when students typically
earn only one. KEITECH set the
record as the only technical-vocational
training institution in the country
to ever achieve this mark. We are
proud of this feat, especially since the
institution was only a year old then.
We have decided to report our social
and environmental progress in an even
more transparent way by increasing
the parameters under which we will
report and will be audited by the
Global Reporting Initiative or GRI
organization in Amsterdam. We have
moved from 13 parameters last
year to 70 this year, including labor,
environment, and safety performance
indicators. I am particularly proud
of the fact that EDC is the first
Philippine company to use the more
stringent GRI’s Electric Utilities Sector
standards. I encourage you to look
through the GRI report, which is
integrated in this annual report, as it
will provide you a detailed preview into
our sustainability roadmap.
Where we are headed. In 2010, we
worked on planting the seeds of future
growth.
Within the Philippines, we have started
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to drill for our expansion projects in
our existing geothermal concession
areas. We have also been granted two
Geothermal Renewable Energy Service
Contracts (GRESCs) and filed for seven
more with the Philippine government.
The two GRESCs are for Mount Labo
in the boundary of Camarines Norte—
Quezon and Camarines Sur, and
Mount Mainit in Surigao del Norte. We
will look into the remaining NPC assets
for privatization, including the bid for
the Unified Leyte IPPA.
Overseas, we have applied for 13
concession areas and submitted
bids for five other concession
areas in Chile. We expect positive
news on some of these in 2011. In
Indonesia, progress has been slower
as we continue to explore areas and
consider joint venture with holders of
concession areas. In parallel, we are
applying for greenfield concession
areas. Given our 35-year headstart
and knowledge base with the largest
“wet steam field laboratory in the
world,” we are continuously being
approached by potential joint-venture
partners in Chile, Indonesia, and
other countries. Here, we will tread
carefully and prudently, and work only
in jurisdictions with attractive resource
and favorable investment environment.
In terms of wind power, we obtained
six Wind Renewable Energy Service
Contracts (WRESCs) for Burgos and
Pagudpud in Ilocos Norte, Dinagat
Island in Surigao del Norte, Taytay in
Palawan, Siargao in Surigao del Norte,
and Mahinog in Camiguin. We are now
in the advanced stages of the tender
for the wind farm construction contract
of the 86MW Burgos Wind Project. On
the remaining five, we are conducting
exploration activities in line with work
program set in the WRESCs. We have
also filed applications for six additional
areas with attractive wind potential.
The regulators are expected to finalize
the technical and regulatory framework
for injecting wind power into the grid
as well as the economic limits for the
power price from wind, or the Feed-InTariff, sometime in 2011.
2009 and 2010 were years where
companies in the Philippines operated
with stable, if not favorable robust
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winds in their sails. EDC used this
time to consolidate and integrate our
operations through acquisitions, to
strengthen our balance sheet and
cash flow and to “trim our sails” by
pushing as hard as we can to operate
efficiently and manage costs. The
fact remains though that we are in
transition and in investment mode
even as take-or-pay revenues are
temporarily reduced and competition
intensifies. Our planning and
execution horizon for new projects is
six years and as we grow the business
domestically in the next five years,
we are already patiently planting the
seeds for international growth today.
There are significant growth
opportunities in our geothermal
industry and EDC is poised to seize
them because of our skilled and
productive workforce. I wish to
personally thank each and every
employee for making EDC the
company that it is today. I would also
want to thank you, our shareholders,
for your continued confidence in the
vision and business of EDC.

Richard B. Tantoco
President and
Chief Operating Officer

PRESIDENT’S MESSAGE
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Back up power systems were replaced in all our Mindanao power plants to ensure readiness to start in case of total plant and grid blackout
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EDC successfully redenominated its loan-currency mix by cutting its
JPY22 billion loan significantly down to only 12%. Our debt portfolio as
a result is now predominantly in Philippine Pesos. From this point on,
our revenue sheets will be more attractive to investors, as we are no longer
subjected to large and unpredictable swings in foreign exchange rates.

On Target:

Our Financial Strategy
@ Work in 2010
Report of the Chief Financial Officer

To EDC shareholders and stakeholders,
In 2010, EDC took solid and deliberate
strides to further strengthen our financial
capability and posture. We continued
redenominating our debt away from the
Yen exposure that has long plagued our
balance sheet and caused volatility in our
income. The Yen component of our loan
portfolio stood at 12% by the end of the
year, down significantly from 38% the
year before. Our debt mix by currency
now more closely aligns with the intrinsic
hedge provided under our power purchase
agreements, thereby substantially
mitigating the company’s vulnerability to
foreign currency fluctuations.
We also secured long-term funding that
better matched the contracted profile of
our assets. From an average of three years
maturity across our debt facilities, we have

extended the average tenor to eight years.
This is critical given the depth of our growth
opportunities over the next five to six years.
The calculated and deliberate moves to
borrow in peso and dollars with longer
tenors have been made possible by the
strong liquidity and favorable developments
both on the international financial front
as well as within the Philippine capital
markets. Of equal importance, the change
in the complexion of our borrowings
resulted only to a moderate increase on
our average interest rate. The additional
borrowings that we arranged in 2010
combined with the offsetting effect of the
retirement of certain Yen-denominated
loans resulted in a significant net decrease
of PhP9 billion in our loans to PhP37
billion at end-2010, as our Financial
Debt to EBITDA ratio was maintained at a

VALUES @ work
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REPORT OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

manageable level of 2.28x.We have
also improved our insurance program
by increasing and expanding coverage
from an excellent mix of local and
international insurance companies.
Premiums paid were maintained at the
same rate despite the improvement
in our deductibles and the substantial
increase in our insurance cover that
now includes our recently-acquired
assets.
Following the establishment of a
risk management committee at
the Board of Directors level, the
company established project teams
and institutionalized a system of
executing appropriate interventions
and mitigating measures to ensure
unhampered implementation of
major projects such as business
development initiatives, power
plant rehabilitation, and IT system
enhancements.
Impressive yields from a deliberate
growth agenda. EDC posted revenues
of PhP24.9 billion, up by 13% from
last year’s PhP22.1 billion. The
company’s power generation business
showed marked improvements both
in terms of our average tariff and sales
volume, which increased by 13.5%
and 21%, respectively. The increase
in our average tariff was due to the
combined effect of the inflationary
escalation factors in our contracts and
the favorable Wholesale Electricity Spot
Market (WESM) prices that benefited
our hydro plant. Revenues from
energy sales also improved mainly on
account of the shift in our revenue
model from purely sale of steam to
sale of electricity of the PalinpinonTongonan assets.
Apart from a 27% reduction in
purchased services, total operations
and maintenance expense registered
a 48% increase to PhP8.9 billion
mainly on account of the PhP3.4
billion additional non-cash impairment
provision taken on the Northern
Negros Power Project largely driven
by the reduction in the plant’s output
and the uncertainty of the results
of ongoing surveys to establish the
availability of additional resource.
General and administrative expenses
went up by 29.5% to PhP4.5
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Major risk exposures are closely monitored and mitigated

billion mainly due to the increase in
personnel costs with the payment
of separation benefits following the
implementation of the Company’s early
retirement program in 2010 combined
with the operating costs associated
with the first full year of operation of
our Palinpinon-Tongonan project.
Net Financial Expenses increased by
35% to PhP3.4 billion with the full
year’s interest charging of the PhP12
billion Peso Bond that was issued in
December 2009, additional US$175
million club loan raised in June 2010,
and partly offset by the elimination of
our previous year’s interest cost on the
Company’s Miyazawa loans that we
retired during the year.
Other income also increased by
PhP1.1 billion or 108% from 2009 on
account of the company’s successful
claim for refund of its excess input
value added tax amounting to PhP1.6
billion and derivative gains of about
PhP600 million from the settlement of
the Company’s Miyazawa II loan.
Finally, provision for income tax
improved in 2010 by 80% with the
passing of a one-time write-down of
deferred income taxes of PhP 2.9
billion in 2009 consistent with the
passage of the Renewable Energy Act
of 2008.
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Reaping the rewards of vertical
integration. As a result of the
complete vertical integration of the
plants we acquired in the past two
years, we have transformed our
business model from part-steam and
part-electricity supplier into pure
electricity producer. We also expanded
our customer base from having
National Power Corporation (NPC)
as our lone customer to now include
private utilities, electric cooperatives,
and large industrial users.
The Company was able to successfully
sign 14 contracts in 2010 with
contract tenors ranging from 5 to
10 years and improved our price to
PhP4.70/kWh while at the same time
providing our customers with a solid
value proposition superior to all other
offers from competition. A provisional
approval from the Energy Regulatory
Commission on the first of the 14
contracts had been obtained and
we are currently awaiting approval
on the rest. With the full integration
of acquired power assets into our
business model, our product mix
shifted in favor of electricity sales.
Our steam sales has dropped by 74%,
while our electricity sales improved by
21%. Effectively, this has increased
our revenues by PhP2.6 billion.
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The acquisition of the 150MW
BacMan plant temporarily caused a
significant reduction in cash flows
of PhP150 million per month in
accordance with government bid
conditions that the winning bidder
takes over the steam take-or-pay
obligations.
Given that BacMan is wholly owned
through a subsidiary and is incapable
of operations without extensive
rehabilitation, the take-or-pay revenues
ceased until the rehabilitation works
are completed. We expect a 130MW
BacMan plant to start contributing
as an integrated steam and power
facility within the 3Q of 2011, about
11 months ahead of schedule. The
Company is currently in discussions
with potential customers for possible
medium to long-term contracts.
Strong contribution from electricity
sales of our hydro plants. The
Company’s hydro plant also had a good
year. Pantabangan-Masiway’s output for
2010 was effectively sold to WESM at
PhP10.07/kWh, almost double its 2009
average selling price of PhP5.22/kWh.
Energy sold also went up by 31% to 93
GWh in 2010. Total contribution to the
Company’s revenues and net earnings
is PhP2.1 billion and PhP0.7 billion,
respectively.
Following the completion of the
rehabilitation and upgrade program
in December 2010 that increased
the plants’ capacity by 20MW, we
expect the hydro plant to continue
contributing steadily to our revenues in
the coming years.
It is worth noting that at the end of
2010, the company’s energy sales
were 96% contracted, while the
balance, mainly from our hydro asset,
sold in the spot market. Given the
prudent levels of debt on our balance
sheet and an enviable slate of growth
projects, we have taken the deliberate
decision to maintain a profile of
predictable and stable revenues from
our predominantly contracted energy
sales as opposed to subjecting our
assets to the boom and bust price
volatilities of the WESM.

Our GCGI plants supply the power needs of our customers in the Visayas

Our next bold steps. Moving forward
to 2011, EDC is armed with an even
stronger balance sheet and a positive
expectation that our rehabilitation
works on the acquired units, once
completed, will transform into robust
cash flow. The BacMan geothermal
complex was successfully turned over
by PSALM to our subsidiary, BacMan
Geothermal, Inc., and its early recommissioning is set for the third
quarter of 2011. By fourth quarter of
2011, we expect an additional capacity
of 130MW that will deliver meaningful
revenues to the company beginning in
the next reporting year.
Geothermal energy is fast becoming
a much sought-after energy resource,
particularly for countries located in
the Pacific Ring of Fire. With this in
mind, EDC expects to maintain the
confidence of our investors and attract
more funds as well as new partners as
we expand to two countries, Chile and
Indonesia, both of which have proven
geothermal reserves.

We have a very bright year ahead
and our goals are visibly within
reach. In 2011 and the next years,
we will expand our fundraising
initiatives, strengthen our governance
procedures, and tighten our fiscal hold
on our growing operations to equal the
bold steps that our company is taking
in growing the business and going
beyond sustainability.

Nestor H. Vasay
Chief Financial Officer

As EDC completes the rehabilitation
of the Palinpinon, Tongonan, and
BacMan plants that will further improve
our operating revenues, we will
continue to strengthen our financial
risk management activities from the
standpoint of exploring more ways to
fix interest rates, taking advantage of
the low interest rate–environment and
actively pursuing long-term contracts
with our customers.
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ABOUT THE REPORT

OUR 2010 REPORT:

HOW IS IT DIFFERENT?
The strong adherence to the triple bottom line (economic, environmental, and social) has been ingrained in the business
practices of EDC long before sustainability became a buzz word. We know that to become the global leader in geothermal
energy production, our financial viability must be connected with our environmental goals and social investments.
On July 30, 2010, we released our first Integrated Annual and Sustainability Report. There, we expressed our commitment
to finally make the triple bottom line reporting an annual activity and to improve our reporting standards. This activity is
important because it allows us to truly assess the impact of our operations not only on our revenues but also on our broader
base of stakeholders and the environment. The year 2010 was a big stride in this direction.
We are proud to say that this year’s report, covering January to December 2010 has moved from last year’s Global
Reporting Initiative (GRI) G3 self-declared C-level application to the B+ application level. We are reporting based on the
protocols of the Electric Utility Sector Supplement for increased relevance, which is especially useful when evaluating our
efforts and benchmarking ourselves against global standards.
We have increased the number of our key performance indicators (KPIs) from 13 to 70. Our report is also GRI-checked and
assured by an External Review Committee (ERC), with the EDC Board’s CSR Committee endorsing the B+ level contents of
this report. This improvement was the result of a consensus-seeking process led by our company’s Sustainability Technical
Working Group (STWG) and as sanctioned by the Steering Committee (SC), composed of the President and COO and two
Senior Vice Presidents and five Vice Presidents. The STWG was established to lay down the preparatory process of EDC’s
Sustainability Initiative with the objective of installing a reporting system that is compatible with existing and to-be-installed
strategic management systems.
We provide baseline data for our 57 new KPIs and compare our 2010 performance vis-à-vis our 13 indicators in the
2009 report across our Philippine operations: a) our corporate headquarters in Taguig, Metro Manila; b) Bacon-Manito
Geothermal Production Field in Bicol; c) Leyte Geothermal Production Field in Leyte; d) Mindanao Geothermal Production
Field in North Cotabato; e) Northern Negros Geothermal Production Field in Negros Occidental; f) Southern Negros
Geothermal Production Field in Negros Oriental; and our g) Pantabangan-Masiway Hydro Electric Power Complex in Nueva
Ecija, which was not included in last year’s report. Information on our partially owned hydroelectric power facility represent
our best effort given our limited controlling stake and management control in the data gathering undertaken at the First Gen
Hydro Power Corporation, which operates the plant.
The depth of our coverage in this report, while working within the same sustainability context as last year’s, reflects two
differences. First, the improved alignment of our company’s KPIs to GRI’s indicators and their protocols. We conducted
the materiality testing and workshop across all key business units, which were further divided into six groups for better
assessment of available data and improved consolidation and representation of varied and some potentially unique KPIs
that have significant impact on the business. Second, we now include KPIs that our stakeholders consider important
and which our company considers reasonable and legitimate interests. A series of engagements with our 12 identified
stakeholder groups was also conducted and most of their inputs were gathered through surveys and interviews, subjecting
interests and expectations that surfaced to GRI’s principles of materiality, inclusiveness, and completeness over a period of
several months in the latter half of 2010. We adhered to the GRI protocols throughout the period in terms of determining
report content and gathering data. The Steering Committee then selected and approved the final list of 70 KPIs that it felt
the company could discuss competently and completely for the current reporting year. This is an ongoing process we are
committed to. It allows us to better assess and manage the impact of our operations not only on our revenues but, just as
important, on our diverse communities and the environment that host our operations.
Our three-member ERC was composed of experts in economics, the environment, social development, and the GRI process
itself. To ensure impartiality, EDC commissioned the University of Asia and the Pacific’s Center for Social Responsibility
(UA&P–CSR) to set up the ERC in January 2011, at the same time that EDC was in the final data gathering stage so that
the committee could provide initial guidelines on data presentation and application in the report. UA&P–CSR was tasked
with overseeing the external review process and coordination with the members on matters pertaining to: data verification,
interviews with various stakeholders, recommendations to improve the process for future reporting, and the sustainability
management system of the company. Members of the review committee also had the opportunity to provide feedback
on the written draft of the report to further improve on its quality, based on GRI’s principles of balance, comparability,
accuracy, timeliness, and reliability. The official statement produced by the ERC was then used by the GRI head
organization in Amsterdam as basis for checking our report.
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Lastly, the year has proven to be a great learning opportunity for EDC so we can progress to the A+ application level of GRI,
which is the company’s goal. The STWG has been monitoring sustainability management activities and recording relevant
progress for reported KPIs since 2009. We continue to do the same for the 57 additional KPIs and the remainder that
needs to be reported on to comply with A+ level. Additional systems, such as a centralized database among others, will be
put in place in the coming year for more efficient data gathering. Continuous road shows in EDC’s geothermal facilities will
be set up to further institutionalize the depth and breadth of the GRI sustainability reporting initiative in the entire workforce.
We hope all these efforts will improve our data gathering methods and enhance buy-in among internal and external
stakeholders. All these we do to begin to truly measure the impact of the business.
A more detailed discussion of our performance and plans, our engagements with the various groups, and the external
assurance activities may be found in the succeeding pages. This report was issued on July 13, 2011, and distributed at the
annual stockholders’ meeting. An electronic copy is also available in EDC’s website (www.energy.com.ph).

AN ENGAGED BUSINESS
Our stakeholders are our partners in progress. Constant engagement with them helps us improve the way we do business
as we become more aware of our impact on their lives, their communities, and the environment. They keep us focused
on our goal of providing clean, reliable power and ensuring full compliance with all laws and regulations that govern us. In
2010, we have strengthened further our process of stakeholder engagement by particularly improving on the way we report
on our sustainability efforts. Through a series of workshops and discussions, EDC’s key business units actively pursued
stakeholder inputs in the identification of key performance indicators to report on as well as instituted mechanisms to better
identify key stakeholder groups that could provide effective feedback and communication channels.
Based on the series of stakeholder consultations, the following groups represented our top partners in sustainability:

Creditors and Banks

Contractors and Suppliers

Legislators

Local Communities
Employees

Electric Cooperatives

Host Local Government Units
EDC Board of Directors
and Management
Residential and Industrial Clients
or Consumers
NGOs and Foundations
Regulatory Agencies

Media

Through the written surveys and interviews that we conducted, we were able to identify details of our operations that they
want us to report on.
As we move forward, we will continue to engage and give urgent importance to our stakeholders’ concerns and priorities.
All signs point to their precious contribution in helping EDC demonstrate that business growth and sustainable economic,
social, and environmental practices are compatible.

VALUES @ work
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SOCIAL PERFORMANCE
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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

ENTREPRENEURIAL
SPIRIT @ work
Having a pioneering and innovative attitude, taking intelligent risks, and being
mindful of opportunities and seizing them.
EDC is a known trailblazer in the global renewable energy industry. We
embrace dynamism and approach challenges as opportunities for growth and
innovation. Our business success is built on our well-executed performance
in the market.

VALUES @ work
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Profitability
with a Purpose
To EDC, being a global leader in this age of accountability
means increasing the boundaries of profitability to include
economic growth for our various stakeholders and a better
ecosystem in areas where we operate.
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Our net income for 2010 testifies to our company’s ability to satisfy shareholder
expectations while making sound investments that respond to society’s calls
for greater accountability. This strong performance is built on our core value of
entrepreneurial spirit. Our pioneering and innovative attitude towards complex
challenges protects our viability despite radical uncertainties in the marketplace
that mark the 21st century. We ensure our economic success by intelligently
thinking out of the box, boldly seizing opportunities that arise. By sharing
benefits with our stakeholders, we help foster economic progress and social
good for the greater majority.
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Net
Income

PhP4.4B

PhP24.2B
7,548.6 GWh

Core Business
Gross Revenues

Total Economic
Value Distributed

PhP21.9B
*per GRI Framework

Our vision is to become the world’s premier energy producer.
This we will achieve as we strengthen our leadership in the Philippine renewable energy industry. We build on our
foundation of technical expertise, operational excellence, and strong financial position. Part of our growth platform is to
generate value by increasing our total geothermal capacity to 1,500MW and wind power capacity to 200MW in the next
three to five years. We painstakingly optimize the availability, reliability, and efficiency of all our operating steamfields and
power-generating assets as we maintain a competitive cost structure. Research and development strengthen our operational
excellence. Through these, we shall achieve superior long standing relationships with our customers and become the
preferred supplier of clean power in the country.
Our relationship with our stakeholders is crucial to our economic growth. We strive to ensure that the company’s progress is
in pace with the host communities’ prosperity. Thus, we directly award the procurement of goods and services to qualified
locally based suppliers, continuously build the capabilities of community organizations and cooperatives for manpower
deployment, and prioritize competent applicants for local employment from our host communities. Our Community
Partnerships program empowers our stakeholders and partner communities to become agents of their own development.
Ultimately, we recognize that our stakeholders provide insights on how best to
responsibly improve on our service, efficiency, productivity, and innovation.
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EDC reports a 31% increase in
2010 in net income
EDC posted a net income of PhP4.4
billion, up by 31% from the PhP3.4
billion reported in 2009. This is
primarily attributable to the PhP5.1
billion increase in EDC’s consolidated
steam and electricity gross revenues,
equivalent to a sales volume of
7,548.6GWh.
The increase in income was boosted
by the full-year electricity revenues
from EDC’s power generation
subsidiary Green Core Geothermal Inc.
(GCGI), which operates the 112.5MW
Tongonan and 192.5MW Palinpinon
geothermal power plants in Leyte and
Negros Oriental, respectively.
EDC’s hydroelectric power plants in
Pantabangan, Nueva Ecija contributed
PhP2.1 billion in electricity revenues
from the 348.5GWh sold. This is
71.6% better than the PhP1.2 billion
revenues from the previous year due to
the completion of refurbishment and
upgrade of Unit 1 of the hydroelectric
power plant that also increased the
power generation capacity by 10MW.
The company’s robust balance sheet
also resulted from the successful
overhauling of its loan portfolio mix
with the settlement of the JPY22
billion Miyazawa II loan. The Miyazawa
II loan was among the legacy loans
which PNOC EDC carried over into
the present-day fully private EDC. It
was used to fund the investment and
working capital requirements of PNOC
EDC’S operating projects shortly after
the Asian Financial Crisis.
EDC’s investors have singled out the
predominance of JPY-denominated
debt as a major concern because it
rendered the company vulnerable
to forex translation losses. With the
redenomination of the Miyazawa debt,
EDC’s debt stock is now predominantly
peso, or 70% of total loans, with the
JPY loans now accounting for only
12% from the 79% and 38% reported

2010 FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
(IN MILLIONS OF PHP)

Revenues

Operating Expenses

24,901.6

18,447.8

22,066.9

13,317.0

20,526.9

9,343.4

Income Before Tax

Net Income

5,172.3

4,395.1

7,267.5

3,357.0

2,652.9

1,345.3

Recurring Net Icome

Total Assets

7,237.8

81,303.6

7,276.1

84,763.6

5,835.1

69,345.6

Earnings Per Share
0.219
0.176

2010
2009
2008

0.070

in 2008 and 2009, respectively. EDC
also completed its acquisition targets
last year, with our wholly owned
subsidiary BacMan Geothermal,
Inc. (BGI) closing the sale on the
150MW BacMan geothermal power
plant. EDC remitted the sum of
PhP1,279,725,000 to PSALM on

September 3, 2010. The amount
represented full payment of the
purchase price for the power facilities.
Located in the towns of Bacon,
Sorsogon, and Manito in Albay, the
BacMan plant package consists of two
steam plant complexes. The BacMan
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I geothermal facility comprises two
55MW turbines, which were both
commissioned in 1993. BacMan II, on
the other hand, consists of two 20MW
units namely, Cawayan located in
Barangay Basud and Botong in Osiao,
Sorsogon City. The Cawayan unit was
commissioned in 1994 and the Botong

unit in 1998. EDC supplies the steam
that powers these plants.
The Tongonan, Palinpinon, and
BacMan plants boost EDC’s current
portfolio of geothermal power
generation assets to 1,199MW. The
turnover of the BacMan power plant

represented EDC’s full integration across
the geothermal value chain, which will
result in a seamless and more efficient
operations for EDC. The completion of
these acquisition targets sets the stage
for EDC’s growth platforms.

Sales revenue posts 26.9% increase in 2010
A consolidated sales volume of 7,548.6GWh amounting to PhP24,152.9 million in gross sales revenues from our core
business in the Philippines marked 2010, which is a 26.9% increase from 2009 even as sales volume decreased slightly by
665.6GWh or 8% from 8,214.2GWh. Majority of our revenues were derived from our core business of steam and electricity
sales at 4.9% and 92.1% of the total (or at PhP1,208.7 million and PhP22,944.2 million, respectively).

Steam generation
For 2010, steam revenues from
the sale of 665.6GWh amounted
to PhP1,208.7 million which is
PhP2,572.7 million, or 68%, lower
than 2009’s PhP3,781.4 million
revenues from a sales volume of
2,520.8GWh. The decrease was
primarily due to the shift to electricity
sales from steam sales of the reported
revenues of Tongonan I and Palinpinon
during the last quarter of 2009.
The sales volume was solely
contributed by BacMan I and II and
was lower by 15.2GWh or 1.5% from
the 988.2GWh take-or-pay volume
due to the waiver of billings starting
September 3, 2010 after BGI’s
acquisition of the BacMan power
plants, which are undergoing major
rehabilitation.

Electricity generation
Electricity revenues from the
6,883GWh sold amounted to
PhP22,944.2 million. The increase,
worth PhP7,698.2 million or 50.5%
from 2009 revenues of PhP15,246
million, was brought about primarily
by a number of reasons: GCGI’s
revenue contribution following the
acquisition of the Palinpinon I and
II and Tongonan I geothermal power
plants in October 2009; higher average
price due to increased inflation factor;
and Northern Negros’s higher sales
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volume with the 11-month duration
of its operations in 2010 compared
to 2009’s duration of less than seven
months.
Also contributing to the increase was
the full-year recognition in 2010 of
electricity billings as revenues due
to the scoping out of International
Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee (IFRIC) 12 effective
October 2009.

Success and shortfalls
The increases were partially offset by
a shortfall in power generation and
lower average price of electricity sold
from our Unified Leyte (UL) plants.
Of the total sales volume, 55.1% or
3,794.8GWh was generated by UL in
2010 as compared to 4,244.3GWh in
2009. Gross revenues for 2010 from
UL amounted to PhP11,478.6 million
as compared to the PhP10,872.9
million in 2009.
Mindanao I and II generated a total
sales volume of 784.4GWh, lower by
3.6GWh than its minimum energy
off-take volume of 788GWh. For 2010,
revenues from the Mindanao I and
II reached PhP2,236.7 million as
compared to the PhP1,841.8 million
in 2009. Northern Negros generated
a total sales volume of 121.8GWh
amounting to PhP534.0 million as
compared to PhP238.4 million from
the 53.3GWh sold in 2009.

EDC 2010 Integrated Annual and Sustainability Report

In 2010, electricity revenues
recognized for FG Hydro amounted
to PhP2,139.5 million from the
348.5GWh sold. This is higher by
71.5% or PhP892.3 million when
compared to the PhP1,247.2 million
from the 319.9GWh sold in 2009,
because of the completion of the
refurbishment and upgrade of Unit
1 of the hydroelectric power plant
on January 29, 2010, increasing the
power generation capacity by 10MW
coupled with the increase in average
electricity price.
Third Party Drilling contributed PhP748.7
million in 2010 as compared to the
PhP847.9 million in 2009 primarily due
to lower agreed contract extension price
and lower average exchange rate of peso
against the US dollar.
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EDC eyes global leadership, increases capacity for growth
World geothermal energy production (MW)

Installed geothermal capacity per company (MW)

The Philippines is the second largest geothermal producer
in the world.

EDC is the second largest geothermal company in the world
based on installed capacity.
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Current EDC portfolio
EDC currently has 1,199MW of geothermal and 132MW of
hydro installed capacity.

Hydro
132MW

Geothermal
1,199MW

EDC has a portfolio of renewable energy generating assets
that rely on indigenous fuels and are difficult to replicate.
In addition to expanding its geothermal and hydro portfolio,
EDC is developing an 86MW wind farm in Northern Luzon.
EDC has obtained additional concessions consisting of three
geothermal and five wind sites for future development.

Increasing our total energy capacity is a key strategy for
strengthening our leadership in the renewable energy market
both here and abroad. In 2010, our company increased its
power generation portfolio by 88% and we achieved 100%
vertical integration in all areas where we operate, improving
on our savings and allowing us to offer competitive rates. Our
acquisition of the 150MW BacMan plant package, located
in the towns of Bacon, Sorsogon and Manito, Albay in the
Bicol region, boosts our current portfolio of geothermal power
generation assets to 1,199MW, that include the Tongonan,
Palinpinon, Mindanao, Northern Negros, and Unified Leyte
plants. These geothermal power plants serve as major
platforms for future growth.
We have, over the last few years, been laying down an
extensive capital expenditure program for the optimum
availability and reliability of all our operating steamfields
and power generating assets. Complementing this is the
diversification of our portfolio to include other indigenous
renewable energy sources notably wind, hydro, and solar
energy sources.
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Installed capacity in the Philippines (MW* and GWh**)
Geothermal energy accounts for 13% of total installed
capacity in the Philippines, with EDC accounting for 61%
of the Philippine geothermal market with a total installed
capacity of 1,199MW.

Total
15,609*

Geothermal energy accounts for 17.6% of generated energy
in the Philippines.

Total
61,934**
10,324**
(17.6%)

1,953*
(13%)

EDC
1,199* (61%)

EDC
66%
Total
10,324**

Total
1,953*

Others
33%

Others
39%

Geothermal Energy

Hydro, Natural Gas, Coal, Oil and others

Source: Department of Energy

EDC’s portfolio consisting of geothermal and hydro plants and future wind capacities

Leyte
125.0MW Upper Mahiao
232.5MW Malitbog
180.0MW Mahanagdong
50.9MW Optimization

Northern Negros

Burgos
86.0MW Burgos*

Pantabangan
120.0MW Pantabangan

49.4MW N. Negros

Mindanao
52.0MW Mindanao I
54.0MW Mindanao II

Leyte
112.5MW Tongonan

BacMan
110.0MW BacMan I
40.0MW BacMan II

Southern Negros
112.5MW Palinpinon I
80.0MW Palinpinon II

Masiway
12.0MW Masiway

Integrated geothermal
steamfield and power plant
Steamfield (EDC) and
power plant (EDC subsidary)
Wind (*under development)
Hydroelectric power plant
(EDC subsidary)
New geothermal concessions
New wind concessions
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Apart from our increased capacity, we are now fully integrated across the geothermal value chain, and we see this vertical
integration resulting in seamless, more efficient operations. We do all these because we consider it part of our responsibility
as a business to assure our customers of clean, reliable, and affordable power source, which in turn supports the growth of
society.
Philippine power supply and demand profile (MW)
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Faced by the country’s goal of achieving energy security through renewable and alternative energy sources, EDC, as a
responsible corporate citizen, responds by an aggressive capital expenditure program to increase our total energy capacity;
research and development to improve availability, reliability, and efficiency targets; and the signing of long-term contracts
with various power distributors that incorporate our niche of providing “green energy” at very competitive cost structure for
a more equitable, inclusive access to power.

Increase in demand, increase in
capacity. Indicative requirements of
the entire country, according to the
2009 Power Development Plan, is
3,950MW, with committed projects
pegged at only 1,338MW as of 2009.
To help address the forecasted
demand-and-supply situation in
the Luzon, Visayas, and Mindanao
grids, we leverage on our company’s
interests in geothermal energy and
hydropower, specifically our long-term
exclusive rights to explore, develop,
and utilize geothermal steam resources

under the company‘s Geothermal
Renewable Energy Service Contracts.
Our hydropower generation via the
120MW Pantabangan and 12MW
Masiway Hydroelectric Power Plants,
located in Pantabangan, Nueva Ecija
Province, Central Luzon, supply
electricity into the Luzon grid to service
the consumption of its customers,
which include the Wholesale Electricity
Spot Market (WESM) and distribution
utilities clients covered by energy
supply contracts.

In 2010, we have begun to address
the supply shortage in the Visayas
grid by signing contracts with 12
electric cooperatives and two industrial
customers.
Combined customers of EDC serve the
power supply requirements of a total of
157 cities and municipalities in
Visayas. EDC customers serve 28 cities
and municipalities in Leyte, eight cities
and municipalities in Cebu, 50 cities
and municipalities in Negros, and 71
cities and municipalities in Panay.
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Power will come from the 112.5MW
Tongonan 1 in Leyte and 192.5MW
Palinpinon plants in Negros Oriental.
Research, reliability, and availability
set EDC apart. Crucial to meeting
our goal of energy security is our
operational excellence, thus we
closely monitor our reliability and
availability targets. We have set the
target reliability factor of 99% across
all power plants and target availability
factors of 94-96%. We have set a
99.9% reliability target for our internal
transmission lines. If required, EDC
constructs dedicated transmission
lines from its power plant projects to
the nearest National Grid Corporation
of the Philippines (NGCP) substation.
Plant rehabilitation is also undertaken
every 12 to 15 years to extend the
useful life of the equipment.
Last year, we refurbished the
Pantabangan plant and upgraded
two units from 100MW to 120MW.
To further ensure efficiency, we also
closely monitored possible transmission

losses. Transmission losses for the
Leyte plant at the sub-transmission
level is at 0.005% while the Northern
Negros plant posted transmission
losses of 3.97% and we seek to lower
these figures.
To ensure that our plants and
equipment will last throughout their
design lives, we control degradation
to an acceptable level by practicing
both time-based and conditionbased preventive maintenance
on our power plants. Time-based
maintenance adheres to original
equipment manufacturer (OEM)
recommendations and inspections
whereas condition-based maintenance
is applied using the latest technology
appropriate for the equipment. To
manage our predictive, preventive,
and corrective maintenance activities,
we are implementing a companywide Computerized Maintenance
Management System (CMMS).
We also make considerable
investments in research and

development, which are primarily
aimed at solving or addressing
technical, geoscientific and resourcerelated operational requirements, and/
or to enhance work processes and
methodologies. They generally serve
to improve the energy conversion
efficiency of power plants, recover
waste heat energy for productive use,
and mitigate other energy losses to
improve efficiency, reliability, and
availability of power.
Throughout the year, our Technical
Services Sector (TSS) continued to
ensure that our various production
fields meet their steam supply
requirements. Specifically, in
Tongonan 1, we increased our steam
availability from 70MW to 95MW
and in Upper Mahiao, we note the
successful development of Pad
4RD generating a level of reinjection
capacity from two wells instead of
three.
In 2010, we undertook five R&D
initiatives to increase efficiency. We

2010 power sales customers
DESCRIPTION

POWER
REQUIREMENT

NO. of
YEARS

Iloilo I Electric Cooperative, Inc.

3MW (2010–2012);
18MW (2012– 2022)

12

Aklan Electric Cooperative, Inc.

18MW (2010);
10MW (2011–2020)

10

12MW

10

Iloilo II Electric Cooperative, Inc.

2MW

10

Dumaguete Coconut Mills, Inc.

1MW

10

33MW

10

Negros Oriental II Electric Cooperative, Inc.

25MW

10

Visayan Electric Company

60MW

5

5MW

5

Capiz Electric Cooperative, Inc

Negros Oriental I Electric Cooperative, Inc.; Negros Occidental Electric Cooperative;
VMC Rural Electric Service Cooperative, Inc.
Don Orestes Romualdez Electric Cooperative, Inc.; Leyte II Electric Cooperative, Inc.;
Leyte V Electric Cooperative, Inc.

Balamban Enerzone Corporation
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had a gas cooling system–retrofit to
improve the cooling capability and
enhancement of the existing air-cooled
condenser as well as to optimize the
power generation output of the plants.
A thorough inspection and testing of
heat-exchanger tubes was conducted
to distinguish and verify the heatexchanging reliability and usefulness
of the existing tubes in accordance
to plant safety and power output
improvement. To increase output from
11MW to 14MW, we commissioned the
testing and retrofitting of the Malitbog
Bottoming Cycle Plant. Two studies
were also conducted last year to
determine the appropriate means and
proper equipment to reduce the cooling
tower down time period required during
Preventive Maintenance Schedule and
to determine which binary power plant
system is the most suitable and viable
one for utilization in EDC’s production
fields to have sufficient low enthalpy
geothermal resources.
To further enhance our functional
capability and expertise, TSS tracked
and ensured the completion of
graduate degrees of our key personnel
in their respective technical fields. To
date, eight employees have obtained
their doctoral degrees, 16 their master’s
degrees, and four their diploma-course
certificates. Our technical expertise
is recognized in the industry. Fortytwo technical staff out of the total 78
participants from the company played
an active role in the World Geothermal
Congress held in Bali, Indonesia last
year, where we presented over 20
authored (or authored with international
technical experts) technical papers
and chaired several of the technical
sessions.

BGPF’s Versatile Tapping Machine declogs pressurized steam
and reinjection lines without shutting down the system

Our scientists and engineers showcased their geothermal expertise
at the 2010 World Geothermal Congress

As part of TSS’s thrust and focus
on process improvements, regular
laboratory audits, proficiency testing,
inter-lab comparison, and work
manual review and revision were also
carried out in 2010.
Our environmental and geoscientific laboratories are all ISO/IEC 17025-certified
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Efficiency of EDC geothermal power plants
In geothermal power plants, there
is no fuel being expended through
combustion to release heat energy that
is used to generate steam for driving
the turbines. Instead, geothermal
fluids are extracted from geothermal
production wells and processed to
meet the required specifications of the
geothermal power plant. There is no
actual combustion process and the
geothermal fluids are heated by the
“earth” or the geothermal reservoir,
which are managed through a balance
between the extracted and reinjected
fluids to ensure long-term resource
sustainability.
Aside from the conventional thermal
efficiency and heat-rate calculations,
EDC uses a quick efficiency indicator

in its geothermal power plants which is
the steam rate, defined as the amount
of geothermal steam needed (in kg/
sec) to generate 1MW of electricity.
The higher the steam rate, the less
efficient is the energy conversion
efficiency. The design steam rates of
Power Plant

Steam Rate
(kg/sec-MW)

a. Malitbog
b. Mahanagdong A/B

various geothermal power plant cycles
vary depending on the technology
available at the time of construction.

Power Plant

Steam Rate
(kg/sec-MW)

2.08

g. Mindanao 1

2.09

2.42/2.48

h. Mindanao 2

2.00

i. Tongonan

2.90

j. Palinpinon 1

2.75

k. Palinpinon 2

2.33

c. Upper Mahiao

2.45

d. Mahanagdong B
Topping

0
(Standby)

e. Mahanagdong A
Topping

20.96

f. Tongonan Topping
Cycle

18.25

l. Malitbog Bottoming

2.07

GREENING the
As a major player in the global
and national renewables stage,
EDC has the inherent capacity
to make profound contributions
to the mitigation of the effects of
climate change. We do this by
updating our approach to our
financial bottom line to one that is
responsive to developments ushered
in by a growing consciousness for
environmental responsibility.
While the Philippines, as NonAnnex 1 country under the Kyoto
Protocol, has no binding emission
targets or allowances, EDC has taken
more concrete steps to measuring
our impact to gain a better
understanding of the carbon market
and to institutionalize the greening of
our operation.
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BOTTOM LINE
In 2010, the 6,201.74GWh’s worth
of clean electricity that we supplied
to the power grid translated to 10.34
million barrels of fuel oil equivalent or
a foreign exchange savings of $821.54
million for the national economy (at
the cost of $79.48 per barrel). Our
1,071 hectare reforestation efforts also
meant an equivalent 137,000 tons of
carbon sequestered. Our contribution
to fighting climate change through our
carbon sequestration is higher than
2009’s figure of 120,000 tons. We
seek to improve on these figures as we
enhance our business processes.
We plan to install a Greenhouse Gas
(GHG) accounting system across all
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our production sites to better measure
and manage our carbon footprint.
In the meantime, training for GHG
accounting, methodologies for carbon
credits and carbon sequestration, and
green procurement have begun.

NEXT >
Steady and Responsible
Growth

CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

VALUES @ work
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We upgraded two of our units in the Pantabangan hydroelectric power plant from 100MW to 120MW

ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE

Steady and responsible growth
Value generated by source*
3%

Value generated by business line*

1.4%

95.6%

4.9%

3%

Revenue from Interest
(PhP347.7 million)

Drilling
(PhP748.7 million)

Revenue from International
Sales (PhP748.7 million)

Steam Sales
(PhP1,208.7 million)

Revenue from National
Sales (PhP24,152.9 million)

Electricity Sales
(PhP22,944.2 million)

Total: PhP25,249.3 million

92.1%

Total: PhP24,901.6 million /
7,548.6GWh

*Per GRI Framework

Year-on-year growth (in millions of PhP)
Gross value generated from core and
non-core business over the last year
was PhP25,249.3 million, with an
average growth rate of 8.7% over the
last three years. Majority of our revenue
was derived from our core business of
steam and electricity sales at 4.9% and
92.1% of the total, or at PhP1,208.7
million and PhP22,944.2 million,
respectively. (See illustrations on value
generated by business line)
No business is complete in and
of itself. EDC’s economic value
is connected with the economic
progress of our country, and we are
able to achieve the highest standards
of economic performance when
we contribute to the broader social
context to which we belong. Thus,
our company is conscientious about
the integrity and timeliness of our
economic contributions to various
sectors. Eighty-two percent of our
revenue was distributed back to the
company in terms of operating costs
and to our various stakeholders, with
the company retaining 18% with our
net income of PhP4.4 billion.
Our company fulfilled shareholder
expectations: a fourth of our total
economic value generated, at
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Economic Value Retained*
(PhP3,306.1 million)
Economic Value Distributed*
(PhP21,943.2 million)

Economic Value Generated*
PhP25,249.3 million

*Per GRI Framework

PhP6,204.8 million, was paid as
dividends and interests to our capital
providers in the Philippines. We
paid our regular and contractual
employees, in terms of salaries and
wages, a total of PhP3,426.3 million
or 15.6% of the economic value
distributed. Contributions in terms of
taxes paid amounted to PhP1,892.4
million, 94.9% of which was made to
the Philippine national government
at PhP1,796.3 million or 8.2% of our
total economic value distributed for

EDC 2010 Integrated Annual and Sustainability Report

the year. Being a private corporation,
we neither required nor received
significant financial assistance
from the Philippine government.
Forty-six percent or an equivalent
PhP10,117.4 milllion was spent on
our operating costs. (This excludes
cost of operations that we classify
as community investments, which
amounts to an additional PhP302.3
million and brings the total to
PhP10,419.7 million.)

Economic Value Distributed*

CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

PhP21,943.2 million

8.6%
Taxes

46.1%
Operating Costs**

PhP1,892.4 million
94.9%

PhP10,117.4 million

94.4%

5.1%

National
(PhP1,796.3 million)
International
(PhP96.1 million)

Production Fields
(PhP9,554.4 million)

1.4%

Headquarters
(PhP140.1 million)

4.2%

International
(PhP422.9 million)

**Includes capital expenditures

15.6%

Salaries and Wages
PhP3,426.3 million

28.3%

Capital Providers
PhP6,204.8 million

59.8%

Interests
(PhP3,708.5 million)

40.2%

Dividends
(PhP2,496.3 million)

1.4%

1% 15%
6%
9%

Community Investments
PhP302.3 million
Others - 6%
(PhP18.6 million)

69%

Livelihood - 69%
(PhP207.9 million)

Education - 15%
(PhP44.4 million)

Environment - 9%
(PhP26.8 million)

Health - 1%
(PhP4.6 million)

*Per GRI Framework
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Going global, doing local.
Economic values that endure are
built on the values shared by both
company and community. While we
set our sights on international shores,
we know that a meaningful indicator
of our economic value has to do with
our contributions to local economic
development. We see to it that the
company creates opportunities for our
host communities to participate in their
economic development, one that is in
pace with EDC’s economic prosperity.
Ninety-six percent of our total
operating costs (or the equivalent
PhP9,694.5 million out of
PhP10,117.4) were spent on the
operational requirements across our
production fields and our corporate
headquarters, and only the remaining
4% at PhP422.9 million were invested
in international operations. Almost half
of our operating cost, at 45%, was
spent on the purchase of local goods
and services. We are able to contribute
aggressively to local economies
because we have a procurement policy
that allows us to purchase goods and
services from locally based suppliers
and work with capable community
organizations and cooperatives in
awarding these contracts.
We have an important role in
upgrading the capabilities of our host
communities and have invested more
than PhP302.3 million in programs on
livelihood, health, environment, and
education. Last year, 1,885 smallscale labor contracts worth PhP113.7
million were awarded to capable local
commercial contractors across our five
project sites. Large-scale contracts
consisting of routine security and
general services worth PhP64.8 million
were awarded to local bidders from
our partner communities in Leyte and
North Cotabato. A total of PhP54.5
million or 18% of our community
investments was generated as financial
benefits to host communities pursuant
to Energy Regulation (ER) 1-94.

Because of our CSR efforts on
education and capacity building,
we help the residents upgrade their
knowledge and skills, and we are
able to hire members of our local
communities for numerous projects.
We prioritize qualified applicants
for local employment from our host
communities, and support their
economic wellbeing. Standard entrylevel wage at our areas of operation is
higher than the local minimum wage.
Five out of the 20 members of our
senior management team are from
the local community in our areas of
operation, and 74% of our regular
employees are local hires.

We seek to continuously improve on
both direct and indirect economic
impacts on our communities so that our
stakeholders and partners can become
agents of their own development. In
fact, an informal study of the multiplier
effect of every peso we invest on
the local economy—through local
hiring, local sourcing of supplies and
services, relocation packages and the
like—showed encouraging results
and we hope to better measure this in
the future to enhance our economic
impacts on our communities.

Value distributed: EDC’s total purchases

Total Purchases
(PhP10,419.7 million)

45%

“Local” means BGPF (BacMan Geothermal Production Field), LGPF (Leyte Geothermal
Production Field), SNGPF (Southern Negros Geothermal Production Field), NNGPF (Northern
Negros Geothermal Production Field), MGPF (Mindanao Geothermal Production Field) and FB
(Fort Bonifacio) sites in the Philippines where EDC is operating including its Head Office.
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Total Local Purchases
(PhP4,705.4 million)

Other Purchases

NEXT >
How Do We Deliver on
Our Promise of Clean
and Reliable Power?

PROFITABILITY WITH A PURPOSE

VALUES @ work
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We increased the steam availability of our Tongonan power plant from 70MW to 95MW

ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE

How do we deliver on our promise of

CLEAN & RELIABLE POWER?

EDC is at the forefront of the global
demand for clean and renewable
power. We operate in the Philippines,
and our business covers geothermal
energy, from steam production to
power generation, and hydro and wind
power. We are known for our expertise
in the entire geothermal energy value
chain including exploration and
development, reservoir engineering
and management, engineering design
and construction, steamfield operation,
power generation, environmental
management, social aspects
management, and energy research
and development.
Since we started commercial
operations in 1983, EDC has been
responsible for making the Philippines
the world’s second largest producer
of geothermal energy. Geothermal
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energy accounts for 13% of the total
installed capacity in the Philippines,
and EDC accounts for 61.3% of the
Philippine geothermal market.
EDC has 2,390 regular employees who
are distributed across five geothermal
production fields, specifically in Leyte,
Bicol, North Cotabato, Northern
Negros, Southern Negros, and our
headquarters in Metro Manila; and 60
regular employees in our hydropower
complex in Nueva Ecija. We were a
former subsidiary of the Philippine
National Oil Company (PNOC) until
December 2006, when EDC became
a publicly listed corporation in the
Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE)
through an Initial Public Offering (IPO)
of 6 billion common shares each via
primary and secondary offerings.
In November 2007, the government
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sold its remaining interests in EDC,
paving the way for our full privatization
as a subsidiary of Red Vulcan Holdings
Corporation, a 100% subsidiary of
First Gen Corporation. The ultimate
parent is First Philippine Holdings
Corporation. EDC has 60% controlling
stake in First Gen Hydro Power
Corporation (FG Hydro) that operates
the 132.8MW Pantabangan–Masiway
Hydro Electric Power Complex
(PAMAHEP) in Nueva Ecija. Our
subsidiary, Green Core Geothermal,
Inc. (GCGI), operates the 112.5MW
Tongonan Geothermal Power Plant in
Leyte and the 192.5MW Palinpinon
1 and 2 Geothermal Power Plants
in Southern Negros, which were
acquired in 2009 from the Philippine
government.

PROFITABILITY WITH A PURPOSE

The 150MW BacMan geothermal
power complex is our latest
acquisition, which completes the
company’s acquisition targets as it
ramps up capacity to become the
global leader in geothermal energy.
Subsequently, we formed BacMan
Geothermal, Incorporated (BGI) to
operate this facility. We now have a
total installed geothermal capacity of
1,199MW and a hydroelectric power
plant capacity of 132.8MW. We are
likewise poised to develop our first
wind farm in Burgos, Ilocos Norte with
a capacity of at least 86MW.
We supply electric power across the
major islands of the country: Luzon,
Visayas, and Mindanao. The plants
connect to the nationwide grid of
the National Grid Corporation of the
Philippines (NGCP), a high-voltage
backbone system that uses 138 kV
and 230 kV transmission lines, and
350 kV High Voltage Direct Current
transmission lines. The Leyte power
plants transmit generated electrical
power to Luzon and Cebu through
NGCP’s 380MW Leyte-Cebu and
400MW Leyte-Luzon interconnection
projects. The Negros Island power
plants supply electricity to Panay and
Cebu via NGCP’s transmission network
that has interconnected Negros with
the islands since 1990 and 1993,
respectively. Generated electricity from

the Mindanao power plants is sold
to National Power Corporation (NPC)
that, in turn, provides the electricity
to the Mindanao Grid. The BacMan
geothermal power plants are expected
to provide additional electricity to
Luzon in 2011.

serve to interconnect power plants and
switchyard facilities within the Unified
Leyte, Palinpinon and Mindanao
complexes. The company also connects
to the grid substations through its 69
kV and 115 kV transmission lines.
PAMAHEP connects to transmission
lines owned by NGCP.

As part of our commitment to making
power available, we maintain a total of
49.29 kilometers of transmission lines.
One line is a dedicated point-to-point
transmission line from our Northern
Negros power plant to the NGCP
substation in Bacolod City, while the
balance are transmission lines that

VALUES @ work

43

ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE

Installed capacity by primary energy source
1

Contract Area

Leyte Geothermal
Production Field

Northern Negros
Geothermal
Production Field
Southern Negros
Geothermal
Production Field

BacMan Geothermal
Production Field

Mindanao
Geothermal
Production Field
TOTAL

GRESC
Period

Project

3

1976-2031

1994-2026

1976-2031

1981-2031

Installed
Capacity
(in MWe)

Product

Expiration
of offtake
agreement

Minimum
take-or-pay
2
capacity
(in GWh/year)

Tongonan

112.5

Steam and
Electricity

2031 (GRSC)4

Upper Mahiao

125.0

Steam and
Electricity

2022 (PPA)5

Malitbog

232.5

Steam and
Electricity

2022 (PPA)5

Mahanagdong

180.0

Steam and
Electricity

2022 (PPA)5

Optimization

51.0

Steam and
Electricity

2022 (PPA)5

Northern
Negros

49.4

Steam and
Electricity

2012 (ESA)

Palinpinon I

112.5

Steam and
Electricity

2031 (GRSC)

Palinpinon II

80.0

Steam and
Electricity

2031 (GRSC)

BacMan I

110.0

Steam and
Electricity

2018 (SSA)

722.7

BacMan II

40.0

Steam and
Electricity

2019 / 2023
(SSA)

262.8

Mindanao I

52.0

Steam and
Electricity

2022 (PPA)

390.0

Mindanao II

54.0

Steam and
Electricity

2024 (PPA)

398.0

3

3

1992-2022

1,199.0

4,250.0

8,065.3

(1) Geothermal Renewable Energy Service Contract
(2) Refers to one-year period, ending in July 2011. Minimum take-or-pay capacity varies from year to year
(3) Includes a 20-year extension period to Geothermal Service Contract
(4) Unified Leyte Power Purchase Agreement
(5) Geothermal Resources Service Contract
(6) Installed capacity for Unified Leyte & Mindanao power plants based on BOT contracts

Allocation of CO2e emissions allowances or equivalent, broken down by carbon trading framework
The Philippines is a Non-Annex 1 country and has no binding emission reduction targets or allowances under the Kyoto
Protocol.						
						
EDC is participating in the existing mechanism to generate value from emerging carbon markets. As such, participation in
Clean Development Mechanism (CDM) has been included in the early stages of development efforts for greenfield projects.
The company has centralized its activities in this respect with the objective of gaining a better understanding of the process
institutionally, developing efficient and effective procedures, and establishing networks.					
				
EDC has signed an agreement with the Dutch government for the 20MW Nasulo Geothermal Project through the World
Bank Prototype Carbon Fund. The company is also venturing into wind energy projects, which also provide opportunities
for the generation of carbon credits from CDM and other carbon markets.						
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Net energy output broken down by primary energy source and by regulatory regime
Power Plants
Unified Leyte

Rated capacity
(in MW)

2008

2009

2010

609.2

Available Energy (MWh)

4,282,013.0

4,117,033.0

3,814,578.0

Gross Generation (MWh)

349,400.0

418,284.0

410,198.0

Net Generation (MWh)

330,017.0

393,220.0

384,961.0

Gross Generation (MWh)

444,227.0

404,642.0

423,431.0

Net Generation (MWh)

419,746.0

382,184.0

399,081.0

Gross Generation (MWh)

24,197.0

50,267.0

58,602.0

Net Generation (MWh)

16,228.0

35,394.0

38,160.0

Gross Generation (MWh)

717,134.0

697,752.0

727,560.0

Net Generation (MWh)

672,143.0

653,509.0

684,897.0

Gross Generation (MWh)

625,453.0

608,006.0

624,584.0

Net Generation (MWh)

589,585.0

574,534.0

590,843.0

Gross Generation (MWh)

580,676.0

505,964.0

672,725.0

Net Generation (MWh)

544,876.0

469,281.0

633,688.0

Mindanao I*

Mindanao II*

Northern Negros**

Palinpinon I

Palinpinon II

Tongonan

52.3

50.9

49.4

112.5

80.0

112.5

(*) Mindanao power plants 2007 to 2009 data are based on December 25 (0000H) billing cycle.
(**) Northern Negros commercial contract with VECO started on May 26, 2007 at 0001H; the unit was put on preservation from
May 28, 2008 to May 13, 2009.
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Number of residential, industrial, institutional, and commercial customer accounts

POWER PLANT

NATURE OF
BUSINESS OF
CUSTOMER

CUSTOMER

BUSINESS
TYPE

Energy Development Corporation
Unified Leyte

National Power Corporation

NPC

Generation of
Electricity

Generator

Mindanao Geothermal Power
Plant 1

National Power Corporation

NPC

Generation of
Electricity

Generator

Mindanao Geothermal Power
Plant 2

National Power Corporation

NPC

Generation of
Electricity

Generator

Aklan Electric Cooperative, Inc.

AKELCO

Distribution of
Electricity

Electric
Cooperative

Balamban Enerzone Corporation

BEZ

Manufacturing

Industry

Capiz Electric Cooperative, Inc.

CAPELCO

Distribution of
Electricity

Electric
Cooperative

Central Negros Electric Cooperative, Inc.

CENECO

Distribution of
Electricity

Electric
Cooperative

Doosan Heavy Industries and Construction
(For the account of SIPC)

DoosanFAO
SIPC

Generation of
Electricity

Generator

Dynasty Management and Development
Corporation

DMDC

Retail/Wholesale
Trading

Industry

Don Orestes Romualdez Electric Cooperative,
Inc.

DORELCO

Distribution of
Electricity

Electric
Cooperative

Dumaguete Coconut Mills, Inc.

DUCOM

Manufacturing

Industry

East Asia Utilities Corporation

EAUC

Generation/
Distribution of
Electricity

Generator/
Distribution
Utility

Guimaras Electric Cooperative, Inc.

GUIMELCO

Distribution of
Electricity

Electric
Cooperative

Iloilo I Electric Cooperative, Inc.

ILECO I

Distribution of
Electricity

Electric
Cooperative

Iloilo II Electric Cooperative, Inc.

ILECO II

Distribution of
Electricity

Electric
Cooperative

Iloilo Provincial Government

IPG

Public Service

Government

Leyte II Electric Cooperative, Inc.

LEYECO II

Distribution of
Electricity

Electric
Cooperative

Leyte V Electric Cooperative, Inc.

LEYECO V

Distribution of
Electricity

Electric
Cooperative

Negros Occidental Electric Cooperative, Inc

NOCECO

Distribution of
Electricity

Electric
Cooperative

Negros Oriental I Electric Cooperative, Inc

NORECO I

Distribution of
Electricity

Electric
Cooperative

Negros Oriental II Electric Cooperative, Inc

NORECO II

Distribution of
Electricity

Electric
Cooperative

Philippine Associated Smelting and Refining
Corporation

PASAR

Manufacturing

Industry

Panay Electric Company, Inc.

PECO

Distribution of
Electricity

Private
Distribution
Utility

Philippine Foremost Milling Corporation

PFMC

Manufacturing

Industry

Philippine Phosphate Fertilizer Corporation

PHILPHOS

Manufacturing

Industry

Visayan Electric Company

VECO

Distribution of
Electricity

Private
Distribution
Utility

VMC Rural Electric Service Cooperative, Inc.

VRESCO

Distribution of
Electricity

Electric
Cooperative

Green Core Geothermal, Inc.
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Length of above and underground transmission and distribution lines by regulatory regime
All EDC power plants connect to their respective customers via NGCP’s 138kV or 230kV transmission lines at a frequency
of 60Hz.
Low Voltage

refers to a voltage level up to 600 volts

Medium Voltage

refers to a voltage level from 2,400 volts to 69,000 volts

High Voltage

refers to a voltage level from 115,000 volts to 230,000 volts

Ultra High Voltage

refers to a voltage level from 345,000 volts to 1,100,000 volts

Circuit length starts and ends at the gantry of the switchyard.
From

To

Voltage (kV)

Length (km)

Upper Mahiao

Tongonan

230

2.6

Tongonan Topping

Central Switching

230

3.2

Upper Mahiao

Malitbog

230

4.1

Malitbog

Central Switching

230

1.6

Central Switching

Mahanagdong A

230

9.0

Mahanagdong A

Mahanagdong B

230

2.0

Mahanagdong A

Mahanagdong A Topping

230

0.2

Northern Negros

Bacolod Substation

138

25.0

Okoy 5 MPP

Nasuji MPP

138

1.0

Sogongon I & II MPP

Nasuji MPP

138

1.0

Mt. Apo Unit 2 Switchyard

NGCP Switchyard

138

0.1

TOTAL

49.8

EDC’s 2010 consolidated sales volume from its steam and electricity business is equivalent to 7,548.6 GWh. Steam produced
by EDC is sold to the NPC through a Steam Sales Agreement (SSA). Generated electricity is sold to the NPC through a
Power Purchase Agreement (PPA), and is transmitted to NPC’s customers i.e., distribution utilities, electric cooperatives,
or bulk power customers by the NGCP. In 2010, EDC continued operations with long-term PPAs for the Unified Leyte and
Mindanao power plants from NPC and has entered into 14 additional power supply contracts with industrial and distribution
utility customers. Out of EDC’s seven Geothermal Renewable Energy Service Contracts, two are 2010
agreements: in Mount Labo in Camarines Norte and Mount Mainit in Surigao del Norte. Also secured
in 2010 are six Wind Renewable Energy Service Contracts with Burgos and Pagudpud in Ilocos Norte,
NEXT >
Dinagat Island in Surigao del Norte, Taytay in Palawan, Siargao in Surigao del Norte, and Mahinog in
Generating our Power
Camiguin. EDC continues to have drilling activities in Papua New Guinea.
Position from Excellence
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Generating our POWER POSITION
from

EXCELLENCE

With excellence as the only benchmark in the business, we uphold the highest standards in the pursuit of truth, scientific
accuracy, and integrity in all our undertakings to protect the interests and expectations of our numerous internal and
external stakeholders.
In 2010, we received our first Gold Award and third consecutive recognition from the Institute of Corporate Directors (ICD)
for our excellent corporate governance practices with an overall rating of 95.4%.
We ensure the compliance and accreditation of our laboratories. Last year, EDC maintained the ISO/IEC 17025
accreditations for six environmental laboratories (head office, LGPF, MGPF, SNGPF, BGPF, NNGPF) and five geo-scientific
laboratories (head office, LGPF, MGPF, SNGPF, BGPF). Likewise, our environmental laboratories maintained the recognition
of environmental laboratories of head office, LGPF, MGPF, and SNGPF in conformance with the Department of Environment
and Natural Resources (DENR) requirement on the accreditation of laboratories performing environmental analyses. The
leadership position of EDC is built on this solid foundation of scientific excellence.
Other awards and recognitions that our environment initiatives received from the DENR in 2010 are:
• Certificate of Commendation from DENR–Environmental Management Bureau Region 8 for LGPF’s environmental
initiatives;
• Certificate of Commendation from DENR–Forest Management Bureau Region 8 for LGPF’s watershed management
activities; and
• Acknowledgment from DENR–Central Office for LGPF’s Lake Danao BINHI Reforestation Program as a model for
Public-Private Partnership.
Doing business beyond compliance protects our employees and contractors in our areas of operation. EDC received
numerous labor and safety awards from the Department of Labor and Employment (DOLE) and the Safety and Health
Association of the Philippines (SHAPES). These are:
• DOLE’s Gawad Kaligtasan at Kalusugan Award (Labor Secretary’s Award–Establishment Category) to the Leyte
power plants and Gawad Kaligtasan at Kalusugan Award (Institutional Award to the BacMan Geothermal Production
Field); and
• SHAPES’ Certificate of Recognition (for “No Lost Time” or an equivalent minimum accumulation of two million
safe man-hours) to the following geothermal production fields: LGPF, SNGPF, BGPF, and MGPF; the following
geothermal power plants: Upper Mahiao Power Plant, Mahanagdong Geothermal Power Plant, and Northern
Negros Geothermal Power Plant; Rigs 3, 4, and 5 for drilling operation; and PAMAHEP.

EDC’s PR and CSR programs consistently merit awards from prestigious bodies
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We are proud of the results of our strong commitment to excellence and accountability. We communicate our achievements
regularly to our stakeholders and the general public so that they can better monitor our efforts and set for us more
ambitious goals. Doing so, we make sure all our information materials, whether in advertising, promotions, or public
relations, are in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Advertising Board of the Philippines.
Because we seek to continuously better ourselves, communications training and awareness programs are available to
tackle public relations, strategic communication plans, and company publication projects; crisis communication, crisis
management, issues management; and public disclosures to make sure we abide by the standards of the regulating
agencies. To anticipate and manage crisis, we have news monitoring and climate-sensing mechanisms and we maintain
open communication lines with both media and non-media networks.
Last year, we received the following awards for public relations:
From the Public Relations Society of the Philippines:
• Anvil Award of Excellence for the Master of Green Power communication program
• Anvil Award of Merit for the 2009 Integrated Annual and Sustainability Report “Sustain via Renew”
From the International Association of Business Communicators:
• Quill Award of Excellence for the 2009 Integrated Annual and Sustainability Report “Sustain via Renew”
• Quill Award of Excellence for EDC’s services videos
• Quill Award of Merit for EDC corporate videos
Other recognitions include the Lopez Achievement Awards for BGPF’s “The Labor Management Council as a Tool for Lasting
Industrial Peace in the Workplace” and the “Fast-Track Restoration of the Mahanagdong-2 Geothermal Power Plant Exciter.”
We also received the Technical Education and Skills Development Authority’s Region 8 Kabalikat Award for our Kananga-EDC
Institute of Technology.

NEXT >
How do we uphold
Excellent Performance
At All Times?

The innovations of EDC’s Power Generation Sector bested entries in the Lopez Achievement Awards
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How do we uphold

Excellent Performance
We go beyond
compliance
As EDC matures into the practice
of sustainability—setting for every
employee more ambitious goals—our
new set of corporate vision, mission,
and core values guides our actions.
Thus, we are always able to serve the
best interests of both our company and
our various stakeholders and to uphold
transparency, fairness, and objectivity
while pursuing our objectives.
Our goal is to conduct our business
beyond compliance, and we are
considered an industry benchmark in
this aspect. Information dissemination
and discussions on regulatory
observance are conducted weekly
during management committee
meetings. We attend seminars to
understand new regulations. We
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also ensure timely submission of all
reportorial requirements covering
financial, technical, environmental,
and social aspects of our business
to pertinent agencies such as the
Securities and Exchange Commission,
Philippine Stock Exchange, Department
of Environment and Natural Resources
and the Department of Energy, among
others. Our actions are regularly
subjected to third party audits and
monitored by external agencies using
various local, national, and international
laws, regulations, conventions, and
declarations such as the Environmental
Impact Statement, Forestry Code,
Philippine Clean Air Act, Philippine
Clean Water Act, and Hazardous Waste
Act, to name a few. A multi-sectoral
monitoring team composed of members
of our various stakeholder groups
regularly evaluates our environmental
performance and compliance in our
areas of operation. This third party
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at all times?
monitoring was installed in 1993 in
accordance with Agenda 21 after the
country signed the Rio Declaration
during the Earth Summit in 1992. The
International Finance Corporation
(IFC) also evaluates our social and
environmental performance every year in
accordance with their own performance
standards, which are being aligned with
our key performance indicators for the
first time this year.
We subscribe and conform to national
laws pertaining to our triple bottom line
performance such as laws on protected
areas, watershed management,
biodiversity conservation, and the
protection of the rights of Indigenous
Peoples. Last year, we were not
subjected to any monetary fines for
non-compliance with any regulation.

PROFITABILITY WITH A PURPOSE

We uphold
transparency in
our public position
We seek to comply fully with regulations
and ensure integrity and transparency
when it comes to our public position
and our sustainability strategy and
activities. Our expertise in policy
advocacy has been recognized by
numerous local and international
agencies, thus we extend technical
inputs and provide expert opinion for
public interest and assist executive and
legislative policymakers by contributing
actual data and experience when
needed. We participate in legislative
hearings and keep ourselves abreast
of evolving policies and legislative
proposals on energy, environment,
natural resources, finance, society, and
local government.
In 2010, we participated in 16
committee meetings on public policy
development, specifically on energy,
natural resources, and climate change.
We also submitted position papers for
deliberations on National Land Use Act
and Sustainable Forest Management
Act. There is no existing policy on
these extension services we provide.
We conduct regular inventories of
evolving regulations and legislative
proposals, which we disseminate to
internal stakeholders, and we monitor
and keep records of conduct of policy
hearings. To protect the interests of the
company, we made no contributions to
any political parties last year.

We know how to
manage risks
A significant change in the risk
management process is the recognition
of four levels of risk assessments in
the organization: project, operational,
executive, and strategic.
Project level risk assessments involve
the identification and evaluation of
risks concerning major projects. This
is to ensure that these projects are
completed within scope, on schedule,

and within the approved budget. The
identified project risks enable project
teams to determine the best courses
of action so that the tactical objectives
are met.
At the operational level, risk
assessments are conducted as
part of the company’s strategy
execution process. This begins with
the formulation of the company’s
short-term strategies, based on the
company’s vision and mission, which
are converted into the plans and
programs of each sector/department.
The plans and programs for the
year are captured by the Balanced
Scorecard (BSC) system. Risk
assessments are conducted together
with the BSC preparation so that the
identified initiatives are meant to cover
potential risks to the execution of the
company’s strategies. Budgets are
then allocated based on the BSC and
risk assessments. Risk identification
and evaluation are conducted by
the different business units of the
organization to ensure that all critical
risks to the company, the environment,
and the stakeholders will be mitigated
and managed.
At the executive level, represented
by the Management Committee,
another round of risk assessments is
conducted. The risks identified here
usually come from the operational risk
reviews. However, the Management
Committee may also include external
risks such as market uncertainties and
competition. Through the executive

level risk assessments, risk owners
are identified for enterprise-wide risk
management.
At the Board level, through the Risk
Management Committee, strategic risk
reviews are conducted to identify the
“big ticket” risks to the organization, its
long term goals, and its stakeholders.
This exercise is done on an annual
basis so that the company strategies
can be adjusted to emerging strategic
risks that are significant enough to
change the business dynamics.

We aim for the
best in corporate
governance
Never one to rest on our laurels, we
continued implementing programs
based on the outcome of the Corporate
Governance Improvement Project in
partnership with the Asian Institute of
Management’s Center for Corporate
Governance. We had periodic training
sessions on risk management for all
supervisors and managers to ensure
a continuing high level of competence
and commitment, an integrated and
extensive skills and competencebuilding program, and an aggressive
continuing program to inculcate the
principles underlying good corporate
governance in EDC’s employees at all
levels.
To increase effectiveness of leadership
and improve accountability, we
restructured the organization at our

VALUES @ work

51

ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE

geothermal sites. We have more
efficient resource planning and a
more timely and accurate exchange
of information across sites and
offices with the implementation of a
comprehensive modern Enterprise
Resource Planning system throughout
the company, integrating different
data and systems into one platform.
All these were done on top of our full
and on-time compliance with the SEC
reportorial requirements on corporate
governance and financial reports. All
sectors of our business have also been
analyzed through our Enterprise Risk
Management system for risks related to
corruption with no incidents reported.

We protect the
integrity of our
governance
structure
The EDC Board of Directors, the
highest governance body of the
company, is composed of 11 directors
as provided for by the company
By-Laws. Of the 11 directors for
2010, three are independent and
non-executive, three are regular and
executive, and five are regular and
non-executive directors.

judgment. The number of independent
directors elected to the EDC Board
in 2010 more than complies with
the legal requirement of at least two
persons serving as independent
directors or 20% of the total number
of the Board. The number also meets
the maximum number of independent
directors provided for in the company
By-Laws. Further, the election of the
independent directors in the Board
concurrently complies with the best
practice of having non-executive
directors in the Board. (The only
executive members of the Board
are the Chairman who is also the
CEO, the President who is also the
COO, and one regular director as
Executive Vice President.) For the
Board Committees, EDC is more than
compliant with the legal requirement
for independent directors thereat.
Independent directors are required
in the Corporate Governance Manual
and their respective charters in the
following committees: the Audit
and Governance Committee, and
the Nomination and Compensation
Committee. Also, without any
regulation or provision in the By-Laws
requiring independent directors, an
independent director is likewise made

The Chairman of the Board of
Directors is an executive officer of
EDC and serves as its Chief Executive
Officer. The dual function of EDC’s
Chairman of the Board and CEO is
balanced by the specific functions
and duties in the company By-Laws,
and does not present any conflict. The
company has a standing conflict of
interest policy in addition to the laws
prescribing conflicts of interest, all of
which are available in EDC’s Personnel
Manual. There are additional checks
and balances in view of the presence
of the independent directors in the
Board, as well as the strong presence
of these independent directors in the
Audit and Governance Committee.
The company strictly adheres to the
definition of “independent director”
and goes beyond the definition when
issues taken up by the Board require
outside experience and independent
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a member of the company’s Corporate
Social Responsibility Committee.
Information on the manual, the
structure of the committees, their
respective charters, and the profiles
and tasks of each committee are
available in the EDC website.

We raise
standards of
qualifications and
evaluations
Apart from those provided by the law,
EDC’s Articles of Incorporation, its
By-Laws, the Corporate Governance
Manual, and the Committee
Charters all set the standards for the
qualifications and disqualifications
of the members of the highest
governance body of the company.
Regular monthly meetings of the
Board and the Committees are
conducted to monitor the triple bottom
line performance of the company,
with special board meetings set
up as required by the exigencies

PROFITABILITY WITH A PURPOSE

of the operations. Several Board
Committees have been created to
handle different areas of concern:
Audit and Governance, Nomination
and Compensation, Risk Management,
Corporate Social Responsibility, and
Operations.
In terms of reviews, the Board has
a Self-assessment Evaluation and
a President’s Evaluation, which it
has been conducting annually since
2008, a year after EDC became
fully privatized. Last year, majority
of the Board provided their inputs
and insights on the Board’s overall
performance, and assessed the
President’s performance, leadership,
operational management, working
relationship with the Board,
and financial management. A
Board Strategy Retreat was also
undertaken to provide the Board
with the opportunity to identify,
manage, and assess the company’s
economic, environmental, and social
performance, and to enhance strategic
directions based on the assessment. At
present, the company has an incentive
mechanism that ties compensation to
the company’s economic performance.

We communicate
regularly with our
stakeholders
The Board welcomes
recommendations and directions
from its shareholders and employees.
It sees shareholder and employee
feedback as opportunities for
meaningful and effective dialogue
to deepen their appreciation of
and engagement in the practice of
sustainability. And while corporate
governance ensures the strong
and beneficial working relationship
between the Board and Management,
its principles must be cascaded to and
observed by each and every employee.
Employee feedback and dialogue
allow the Board to better instill in
the employees the core values as
they grow with the company. Only
through concerted efforts with our
stakeholders are we able to execute
our directions strategically and with
excellence and integrity.

Shareholders are able to provide their
recommendations and directions for
the Board’s review and consideration
through various mechanisms. Our
Corporate Governance Manual
recognizes the following stockholders’
rights: voting right, pre-emptive right,
inspection right, right to information,
right to dividends, and appraisal right.
During the stockholders’ meetings,
shareholder comments and questions
are encouraged, properly addressed,
and duly recorded and included in the
minutes of the meeting. Consultations
with investors and shareholders
in investors’ media briefing on the
company’s financial performance are
also venues for dialogue.

The following are additional feedback
mechanisms utilized in EDC: regular
suggestion box and letter from
employees; shareholder comments
during open discussion on proposed
resolutions during annual or special
Stockholders’ Meetings; the conduct
of a semi-annual Management
Assembly and an annual Supervisor’s
Assembly; information dissemination
and consultations of employees and
members of the management in Board
Committee Meetings, especially in the
weekly Management Committee and
Operations Committee meetings.

NEXT >

We are also very proactive in protecting
the rights of our shareholders,
particularly our minority stockholders.
Section 9, Subject 5 of our Corporate
Governance Manual, in particular,
discusses the “Right to Information”,
to wit: “Subject to the provisions of
the Corporation Code, the rules and
regulations issued by the Commission
in the implementation thereof and the
By-Laws, the minority stockholders
shall be granted the right to propose
the holding of a meeting and to
propose items in the agenda of such
meeting, provided that such items are
for legitimate business purposes.”

Beyond Compliance as
Best Practice

VALUES @ work

53

INTEGRITY @ work
Doing the right thing and doing them right. Being accountable.
EDC has been consistently recognized for its best-in-class corporate governance.
Our policies ensure that our employees are able to conduct themselves and do
their work ethically and with a greater sense of accountability.

BEYOND COMPLIANCE as

BEST PRACTICE

In 2010, the Energy Development Corporation continued its corporate
governance activities with the aim of becoming the benchmark for
good corporate governance in the industry and in the country.

56

EDC 2010 Integrated Annual and Sustainability Report

BEYOND COMPLIANCE AS BEST PRACTICE

EDC GETS A GOLD AWARD FOR ITS EXEMPLARY
GOVERNANCE PERFORMANCE IN 2010
In 2010, EDC won a Gold Award from the Institute of Corporate Directors (ICD) for its exemplary
corporate governance practices in the Philippines, obtaining an overall Corporate Governance
rating of 95.4%, where the company achieved excellent scores in all categories (Rights of
Shareholders-100%, Equitable Treatment of Shareholders-92%, Role of Stakeholders-91%,
Disclosure and Transparency-96%, and Board Responsibility-96%). This is EDC’s first Gold Award
and its third consecutive recognition from the ICD. Since the company was fully privatized in 2007,
it has been consistently cited each year for its excellent governance practices among publicly listed
Philippine companies.

COMPLIANCE WITH POLICIES, RULES AND
REGULATIONS ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Pursuant to the governance principles of transparency
and disclosure, EDC fully complied with the Securities
and Exchange Commission (SEC) and Philippine Stock
Exchange’s (PSE) reportorial requirements on Corporate
Governance, such as: the Compliance Officer’s certification
of compliance to the company’s Corporate Governance
(CG) Manual, certification on Board Attendance, and
numerous structured reports involving, among others,
public ownership report and financial statements, not to
mention the various and timely disclosure of unstructured
reports, such as material information and important events
in the company.

The company also made sure that the compliance
requirements under its Manual on CG have been faithfully
observed, such as, but not limited to, training requirements
for the members of the board and key officials.
Likewise, other reports required from the company by other
regulators are constantly monitored and prepared for their
timely submission and compliance.
THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MANUAL
The company’s CG Manual was originally adopted and
approved by the Board of Directors on November 15, 2006
in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code of the
SEC under SEC Memorandum Circular No. 2, series of
2002 dated April 5, 2002.
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Since its adoption, the CG Manual has undergone several
revisions in order to include best practices on corporate
governance as well as to comply with the changes in the
regulatory requirements of the SEC.
In 2010, the Manual underwent two revisions: in March,
in compliance with the requirements of the SEC’s Revised
CG Code pursuant to SEC Memorandum No. 6, series of
2009, and in September, for the amendments to the Board
Committee provisions.
EDC’S CORPORATE GOVERNANCE-RELATED POLICIES
The importance given by EDC to corporate governance
is strengthened by various governance-related policies
which ensure that the principles of ethical conduct,
fairness, accountability, and transparency are observed by
all directors, officers and employees. At present, EDC’s
corporate governance-related policies include the Code of
Conduct and Business Ethics, the Conflict of Interest Policy,
the Guidelines on Trading Rules and Restrictions, Fraud
Policy, and Whistleblower Policy, among others.
a. Code of Conduct and Business Ethics
EDC’s Code of Conduct and Business Ethics was
launched on September 13, 2004 when EDC
was still a government-owned and controlled
corporation. Even then, EDC constantly keeps itself
agile and flexible, striving to be on a par – or even
better than – the world’s best, in the face of rapidly
changing rules of business engagement brought
about by globalization, the impact of information
technology, the increased demand for accountability
and transparency by the company’s stakeholders
and stockholders alike.
The Code provides the policy guidelines and key
principles to help EDC and its employees and
officers re-align their personal values, actions and
concepts of business behavior, and governance
based on enduring moral values. The Code likewise
encourages the right actions through sometimes
difficult choices and to act with unflinching integrity
when faced with situations involving ethical issues.
The Code states the values that motivate the
company and its workforce to persevere and aim
for excellence while maintaining favorable relations
with co-workers as well as with other stakeholders.
We believe and practice teamwork, trust, respect/
courtesy, integrity, and social responsibility.
Likewise, the Code lays down the key principles
which guide in dealing with investors, principal
stakeholders, and critical issues and concerns
facing the company, such as the government,
employees, EDC’s business partners, environment,
communities around the company, company books
and records, confidential information, a healthy and
safe workplace, and media, among others.
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As a commitment to the company’s Code of Conduct
and Business ethics, all employees and officers
immediately signed the Code after its 2004 launch.
In 2010, the company’s Code of Conduct and
Business Ethics was put under review for purposes
of updating the provisions and customizing the
same to EDC’s present private corporation status.
b. Conflict of Interest Policy
EDC’s Conflict of Interest Policy is generally covered
under EDC’s Personnel Manual and as such serves
as a guide to all EDC personnel in the conduct
of their day-to-day transactions in EDC. Recently
revised in order to address the ever-changing needs
of a private corporation, the policy provides the
guidelines and directives for all directors, officers
and all other employees, as well as their relatives
within a certain degree of affinity or consanguinity,
in order to avoid any conflict of interest between
their personal interest and that of the company
when dealing with suppliers, customers, and all
other organizations or individuals doing or seeking to
do business with the company.
Instances identified under Conflict of Interest
include, but are not limited to, the following: (a)
interest in any group or organization which has, or
is seeking to have, business or financial dealings
with the company or where there is an opportunity
for preferential treatment to be given or received;
(b) sale or lease any kind of property, facilities, or
equipment to the company; (c) participation or
involvement, direct or indirect, in any transaction
involving any person, firm, corporation or any
business enterprise with which the company,
directly or indirectly, has a commercial relationship,
where such participation or involvement is improper
or undesirable in the interest of the company; (d)
accepting commissions, share in profits, gifts in
cash, gift certificates, etc. from an organization, firm
or individual doing or seeking to do business with
the company; (e) accepting appointments in the
national or local government in any capacity, run
for elective office, or actively engaged in partisan
political activities, when it may tend to prejudice the
company.
In addition to the instances covered by the definition
of “Conflict of Interest”, the policy provides the
accepted exceptions thereto, as well as the
guidelines on the procedure for actions against
involved personalities charged with having conflicts
of interest, emphasizing the need for due process.
c. Guidelines on Trading Rules and Restrictions
Since EDC’s listing in the Philippine Stock Exchange
on December 13, 2006, the company has continued
to observe strict compliance with the Exchange’s

BEYOND COMPLIANCE AS BEST PRACTICE

Trading Rules and Restrictions, emphasizing
the need for transparency and fairness in its
transactions in order to fully apprise its investors of
its current activities.
One of the matters which were given much
importance is the principle of transparency, wherein
directors and officers are required to disclose their
stock transactions involving company security, using
SEC Forms 23-A and 23-B whenever necessary.
Another matter given much importance is the
manner by which the company, its directors and
officers treat material information which they may
come by in the company. Management has advised
time and again that material information should be
treated delicately so as to comply with the PSE and
SEC Rules on Disclosure.
d. Fraud Policy
The corporate fraud policy is established to facilitate
the development of controls which will aid in the
detection and prevention of fraud against the
company and promotion of consistent organizational
behavior by providing guidelines and assigning
responsibility for the development of controls.
The policy defines fraud and enumerates the
instances wherein fraud is committed, and
designates the office primarily responsible for
investigating corporate fraud cases. It emphasizes
that in the process of investigating corporate fraud
cases, the company shall, at all times, accord
all individuals concerned with all the rights and
privileges emanating from due process.
e. Whistleblower Policy
EDC’s whistleblower policy is intended to
encourage and enable employees and others to
raise serious concerns within the company prior
to seeking resolution outside the company. The
EDC whistleblower policy is a guarantee that no
person who reports a violation of company policies
shall suffer harassment, retaliation, or adverse
employment consequence.
The EDC whistleblower policy identifies who
could be whistleblowers, laying down the matters
which are reportable thereunder, the procedures
for whistleblowing, as well as their rights and
responsibilities under the said policy.
In furtherance of EDC’s good governance initiatives
and in consonance with its internal fraud policy
and the Code of Conduct and Business Ethics,
the company’s Internal Audit Department (IAD)
made available a hotline to enable and encourage
employees to report serious concerns of irregularities
and wrongdoings. All reports will be acted upon and
treated with strict confidentiality in accordance with
the provisions of EDC’s Protected Disclosure Policy.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Election of the Board of Directors and Composition
In July 29, 2010, the stockholders elected 11 highly
qualified and very experienced professionals from the
field of business, local and international finance, and
power generation to the Board of Directors of EDC. Of
the 11 directors in the Board, eight are regular directors,
comprising of a good combination of executive and nonexecutive directors.
EDC also more than complied with the corporate
governance requirement on the number of Independent
Directors in the board with the election of three
Independent Directors, namely: Atty. Francis Ed. Lim, Mr.
Edgar O. Chua, and Mr. John A. Prasetio*.
All EDC Directors, most specially its Independent Directors,
are active participants during Board and Committee
meetings and in major corporate undertakings.
*On February 1, 2011, Independent Director Mr. John A.
Prasetio resigned from the EDC Board of Directors due
to the demands of his position as Commissioner of the
PermataBank in Indonesia. A disclosure was made on
the same day with the Philippine Stock Exchange.
Definition of Independent Directors
More than going beyond the required number of
independent directors, EDC fully adheres to the definition of
an Independent Director.
An independent director is one who is independent
of Management and who (apart from his fees and
shareholdings) is free from any business or other
relationship with the company which could, or could
reasonably be perceived to, materially interfere with
the exercise of his independent judgment in carrying
out his responsibilities as a director of the company. An
independent director is also one who possesses all the
qualifications and none of the disqualifications for an
independent director under existing laws, government
issuances, rules or regulations. And more importantly,
an independent director should provide indispensable
independent judgment and objectivity on all issues
presented to the Board.
The Board Committees and their Composition
The Board of Directors of EDC has created five Committees
to handle specific oversight functions on matters which
would require careful study and deliberation prior to
elevating the same to the Board of Directors for final
decision or approval.
EDC’s Board Committees are the Audit and Governance,
Nomination and Compensation, Risk Management,
Corporate Social Responsibility and Operations.
Beyond compliance with the governance regulations and
issuances, independent directors figure prominently in the
following Committees:
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• In the Audit and Governance Committee, 100% of
the independent directors comprises the majority of
the committee membership, with the chairmanship
being held by an independent director;
• In the Nomination and Compensation Committee,
one of the committee members is an independent
director and he is likewise eligible for chairmanship in
the committee;
• In the CSR Committee, an independent director is
among the committee members.
Further, as a sign of commitment to governance, the
Chairman of the Board is an active member of several
Board committees, and even sits as Chairman of the
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee.
Annual Committee Reports
For 2010, all the Board Committees submitted their Annual
Committee Reports, enumerating therein their significant
accomplishments for the year ending December 31, 2010.
a. Audit and Governance Committee
• Financial Reporting - the committee reviewed
with management and the external auditor
the annual audited financial statements and
endorsed the same for Board approval. It
also reviewed with management the quarterly
unaudited financial statements and endorsed
the same for Board approval.

implementation of recommendations to improve
corporate governance as contained in the study
made by the Asian Institute of Management;
ensuring that all directors and senior executives
comply with the corporate governance training
requirements; endorsing the conduct of the
annual evaluation of the Board and President’s
performance; and providing continued support
to the company’s participation in the Corporate
Governance Scorecard Project which won
for the company the ‘Gold Awardee’ rank as
recognized by ICD/SEC/PSE in May 2010.
b. Nomination and Compensation Committee
• The committee studied and proposed
improvements in the company’s Stock Option
Plan.
• The committee likewise reviewed the
qualifications of nominees for Independent
Director, as well as regular Director, and
endorsed the same candidates for approval
and election in the 2010 Annual Stockholders
Meeting.
• Announced the resignation of key executives of
the company, and reviewed and screened the
nominees to fill the vacated positions.
c. Risk Management Committee (RMC)

• Internal Control Environment - the committee
monitored the effectiveness of the internal control
environment through various measures such as
the review of external audit’s results; exercising
functional responsibility over Internal Audit and
Compliance Office and receiving reports on
work done in assessing key control components;
discussion with management on major control
issues and recommendations to improve policies
and processes; and promoting a culture of
integrity and ethical values in the company.
• External and Internal Audit - the committee
evaluated the overall scope of external auditor’s
audit plan, as well as the management
evaluation on the external auditor’s
performance, approved Internal Audit’s
annual plan, ensured that independence was
maintained, the scope of work was sufficient,
and resources were adequate.
• Compliance - the committee monitored the
company’s compliance to laws, regulations
and policies, approved Compliance Office’s
annual plans and programs, and took steps
to strengthen the governance framework such
as endorsement of changes to the Corporate
Governance Manual to align it with regulatory
requirements, corporate policies and best
practices; ensuring smooth monitoring and
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• Risk Management System Enhancement –
As an integral part of EDC’s strategic pillars
and long-term objective, RMC focused on
enhancing the Enterprise Risk Management
(ERM) system of the company wherein it
was aligned with ISO 31000:2009 (Risk
Management – Principles and Guidelines) and
risk management reviews in all levels of the
organization with the Board of Directors has
been conducted as part of its enhancement.
•

Risk Administration – The committee
monitored the company’s exposure to
foreign exchange risk, conducted study
on the company’s ICT (Information and
Communications Technology) capabilities,
conducted project risk review, and identified
the company’s key strategic risks for 2011
which will be continuously monitored to ensure
that they are properly managed.

•

ERM Awareness – Various ERM seminars,
workshops, and discussions were conducted
in 2010 to re-introduce to the line and senior
management the concept of enterprise risk
management and the enhanced ERM system.

•

RMC Charter Changes – The RMC conducted
a year-end review of the risk management
activities and the enhancements made to

BEYOND COMPLIANCE AS BEST PRACTICE

the company’s ERM system and decided to
implement certain changes in its composition
requirements.
d. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
• Reviewed and monitored the following:
i. Financial and operational performance
and approval of operational matters of the
priority CSR projects;
ii. Global Reporting Initiative (GRI)
performance indicators for EDC’s 2009 and
2010 Sustainability Reports;
iii. Implementation status of the four modules
of BINHI: Greening Legacy Project
iv. Sustainability measures and exit plan for
key reforestation projects;
v. Status of resettlement projects for
communities in EDC project sites;
•

Approval of revisions in the EDC Board CSR
Committee Charter; and

•

Reviewed other CSR projects, such as
the progress of education and enterprise
development modules, participation in the
2010 CSR Expo of the League of Corporate
Foundation (LCF), and support for the Alliance
for Mindanao Off-Grid Renewable Energy
(AMORE) Project.

e. Operations Committee
• The Operations Committee approved/endorsed
approval of 87 high valued procurement items,
26 items of authority for expenditures, 21
operational support items and 19 matters on
policy guidelines, for a total of 153 items.

NEXT >
Directors’ Attendance in
Board and Committee
Meetings
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Directors’ Attendance in Board Meetings
For the year ended December 31, 2010, below are the tables showing the frequency of meetings and the respective
attendance of the EDC Board of Directors:
The summary of the directors’ attendance in board meetings is shown in the table below.

DIRECTOR

DATE OF BOARD MEETING
1/20

2/16

3/10

3/25

4/23

5/25

6/15

6/23

7/19

7/29

9/15

11/8

Oscar M. Lopez

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

Paul A. Aquino

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

NA

NA

NA

Richard B. Tantoco

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

Francis G. Estrada

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

NA

NA

NA

Peter D. Garrucho, Jr.

•

•

•

•

•

x

•

•

•

•

•

•

Federico R. Lopez

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

Ernesto B. Pantangco

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

Vicente S. Perez, Jr.

•

•

•

x

•

•

•

•

•

NA

NA

NA

Francis Giles B. Puno

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

Cesar V. Purisima

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

x

•

NA

NA

NA

Jonathan C. Russell

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

John A. Prasetio

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

•

•

•

Francis Ed. Lim

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

•

•

•

Edgar O. Chua

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

•

•

•

Elpidio L. Ibañez

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

•

•

•

Legend: Present (•)

Absent (x)

Not Applicable (NA)

At the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting held on July 29, 2010, seven directors were re-elected; also, four new directors were elected to the
EDC Board, namely: Elpidio L. Ibanez, Francis Ed. Lim (Independent), Edgar O. Chua (Independent), and John A. Prasetio (Independent).
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Directors’ Attendance in Committee Meetings
Below are tables showing the frequency of meetings and the respective attendance of the members of EDC’s Board
Committees before and after the 2010 Annual Stockholders’ Meeting held last July 29, 2010:
Committee Attendance of Directors before the 2010 Annual Stockholders’ Meeting
Audit &
Governance
(5 meetings)

DIRECTOR

Nomination &
Compensation
(2 meetings)

Risk Management
(2 meetings)

Corporate Social
Responsibility
(2 meetings)

Operations
(17 meetings)

Paul A. Aquino

NM

2 (M)

Oscar M. Lopez

NM

NM

Federico R. Lopez

NM

2 (M)

1 (M)

Richard B. Tantoco

NM

2 (M)

1 (M)

Ernesto B. Pantangco

5 (M)

1 (M)

1 (M)

Francis Giles B. Puno

5 (M)

1 (M)

2 (C)

NM

9 (M)

Jonathan C. Russell

NM

2 (M)

2 (M)

NM

9 (M)

Peter D. Garrucho, Jr.

NM

2 (M)

2 (M)

NM

8 (M)

Vicente S. Perez, Jr.
(Independent Director)

5 (M)

NM

2 (M)

NM

Francis G. Estrada
(Independent Director)

1 (M)

2 (C)

NM

NM

Cesar V. Purisima
(Independent Director)

4 (C)

1 (M)

NM

NM

Risk Management
(4 meetings)

Corporate Social
Responsibility
(1 meeting)

Operations
(12 meetings)

NM

NM

NM

Legend:

C = Chairman

M = Member

1 (M)
NM

NM
1 (M)
NM

NM

16 (M)

NM

NM

2 (C)

4 (M)
17 (M)

NM
2 (M)

14 (M)

NM = Non-Member

Committee Attendance of Directors after the 2010 Annual Stockholders’ Meeting
Audit &
Governance
(1 meeting)

DIRECTOR

Nomination &
Compensation
(1 meeting)

Oscar M. Lopez

NM

1 (M)

Federico R. Lopez

NM

1 (C)

2 (M)

Richard B. Tantoco

NM

1 (M)

3 (M)

Ernesto B. Pantangco

1 (M)

1 (M)

2 (M)

Francis Giles B. Puno

NM

1 (M)

4 (C)

NM

5 (M)

Jonathan C. Russell

NM

1 (M)

4 (M)

NM

10 (M)

Peter D. Garrucho, Jr.

NM

1 (M)

3 (M)

NM

10 (M)

Elpidio L. Ibañez

2 (M)

NM

8 (M)

1 (C)
NM
1 (M)

4 (M)
11 (M)
11 (M)

NM

1 (M)

Francis Ed. Lim
(Independent Director)

1 (M)

1 (M)

NM

NM

NM

Edgar O. Chua
(Independent Director)

1 (C)
Aug.10 to present

1 (M)

NM

NM

NM

John A. Prasetio
(Independent Director)

1 (M)

1 (M)

NM

NM

NM

Legend:

C = Chairman

M = Member

NM = Non-Member

Directors who are non-members of Committees are allowed pursuant to a Board Resolution to attend and participate in the discussion.
Their presence in committee meetings were counted in their attendance record.
For the Operations Committee, there is no Chairman, pursuant to its Charter.
Data Source: Committee Secretariats and Director Relations Office Records.
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THE CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
*In compliance with the PSE CG Disclosure requirements
In 2010, the positions of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer (CEO) have been vested upon one person. In addition
to existing checks and balances provided by the company
By-Laws and Corporate Governance Manual, the Board
also took steps to lay down proper checks and balances to
ensure that the Board gets the benefit of independent views
and perspectives.

Its commitment to provide present and future generations
clean and renewable energy is likewise guided by the
company’s core values of bias for action, excellence,
integrity, entrepreneurial spirit, stewardship, fairness, and
results-driven teamwork.
The company is fully committed to effectively implement
these values by institutionalizing and identifying the
President and all the company’s Vice Presidents to model
and monitor the values espoused.
DISCLOSURE AND TRANSPARENCY

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE EVALUATION
Since 2008, the company has adopted an annual Board
Self-Assessment Evaluation and President’s Evaluation, with
majority of the Board providing their inputs and insights on
the Board’s overall performance as well as their assessment
of the President’s performance, leadership, operational
management, working relationship with the Board, and
financial management.
For 2010, in addition to the Board’s Self-Assessment, the
Board of Directors conducted two President’s Evaluation to
cover the performance of both the outgoing and incoming
Presidents. With the conduct of the annual governance
evaluations, the Board of Directors and the President were
afforded insights on their expected roles in governing the
company which was evidenced by marked improvements
in the ratings for every year the governance evaluations
were undertaken.
BOARD STRATEGIC RETREAT
In compliance with the provisions of the Corporate
Governance Manual, the Board began the institutionalization
of a Strategic Retreat Workshop where the directions set in
2009 became more refined and concrete.
RISK MANAGEMENT
Beyond Enterprise-wide Risk Management (ERM)
awareness, EDC has adopted a system in its budget and
work planning activities which incorporate risk management
and risk treatment. The treatment and measures to address
the various identified risks have also been made as integral
parts of the process of preparing the company’s 2011 plans,
programs, and budget.
VISION, MISSION, AND VALUES
In 2010, the company launched its reenergized vision,
mission, and core values, emphasizing its objective of
becoming a global leader in geothermal energy while
strengthening its leadership in the Philippine renewable
energy industry.
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The company, through its Investor Relations Office, fully
complied with the requirement of full, fair, and accurate
disclosures to the investing public via immediate disclosures
to the PSE and SEC.
Further, the company’s website (www.energy.com.ph) is
kept updated at all times to comply with the requirement
of providing accurate and timely disclosures, as well as full
information and disclosure on the company’s corporate
governance activities.
PLANS TO IMPROVE
EDC, through the Board of Directors, recognizes the
stockholders and other stakeholders’ expectations of high
standards of behavior and accountability from directors
and officers, and firmly requires strict adherence to
the governance principles of fairness, accountability,
transparency, and integrity. All directors, officers, and
employees of EDC are required and expected to carry out
their respective duties and responsibilities effectively and in
compliance with these governance principles.
DEVIATIONS
There are no known significant deviations from the
company’s Manual of Corporate Governance. EDC is
continually reviewing its policies and processes for further
improvements in corporate governance practices within
the company and to address the changes in government
legislation, administrative regulations, and international
best practices.
To this end, EDC has likewise strengthened its
partnership with regulatory government agencies and
SEC-accredited corporate governance institutions.
Through the Compliance Office, EDC has likewise
affiliated itself with good corporate governance
advocates and practitioners in the country composed
of representatives from publicly listed corporations with
known good corporate governance practices.
*On March 2010, EDC Senior Vice President Agnes C. de
Jesus has been appointed as the company’s Compliance
Officer, in accordance with the SEC directive for compliance
officers to have the rank of at least a vice president.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

PURSUIT OF
EXCELLENCE @ work
Achieving the highest standards of performance in everything we do.
Our corporate leaders serve as models of excellence. We have the
brightest minds driving our company to new and challenging growth
frontiers. Our leaders inspire us and motivate us to become paragons of
top-level performance.
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SUSTAINABILITY

TRAILBLAZERS

From left to right:
Oscar M. Lopez Chairman Emeritus, Federico R. Lopez Chairman and CEO,
Peter D. Garrucho, Jr. Director, Ernesto B. Pantangco Director, Elpidio L. Ibañez Director
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Our Board of Directors

From left to right:
Richard B. Tantoco President and COO, Francis Giles B. Puno Director,
Jonathan C. Russell Director, Edgar O. Chua Independent Director, Francis Ed. Lim Independent Director
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OSCAR M. LOPEZ

Richard B. Tantoco

Mr. Lopez, Filipino, is the Chairman Emeritus of EDC. Prior to his
election as Chairman Emeritus, he was the company‘s Chairman
since its full privatization in 2007. He is also the Chairman
Emeritus of both the Lopez Holdings Corporation (formerly
Benpres Holdings Corporation), the holding company for major
investments in broadcast, telecoms and cable, power generation
and distribution, and road infrastructure; and First Philippine
Holdings Corporation (FPHC), the specific associate holding
company for power generation and distribution. In addition, he
is the Chairman of First Balfour, Inc., First Philippine Electric
Corp., First Philippine Industrial Corp., First Philippine Industrial
Park, Inc., First Sumiden Circuits, Inc., First Philec Solar Corp.,
and all member-companies of the First Gen and First Gas groups
of companies.

Mr. Tantoco, Filipino, is the President and Chief Operating
Officer (COO) of EDC and has been a Director of the company
since November 2007. He is also an Executive Vice President
of First Gen Corp. He is Senior Vice President of FPHC, and
President and CEO of First Gas Pipeline Corp. He is a Director,
Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of FG
Bukidnon Power Corp., First Gen Hydro Power Corp., First
Gen Energy Solutions, Inc., Red Vulcan Holdings Corp., Prime
Terracota Holdings Corp., First Gas Holdings Corp., First Gas
Power Corp., FGP Corp., Unified Holdings Corp., First NatGas
Power Corp., and FGLand Corp. Mr. Tantoco worked previously
with management consulting firm Booz, Allen and Hamilton, Inc.
in New York and London where he specialized in mergers and
acquisition advisory, turnaround strategy advisory, and growth
strategy formulation for media and manufacturing companies.

Mr. Lopez is one of the most respected and admired business
leaders in Asia. He was Management Association of the
Philippines‘ Management Man of the Year in 2000 and one
of the top 20 finalists for CNBC and TNT International‘s Asia
Business Leader Awards in 2004. He was the first Filipino
businessman to be awarded the most prestigious Officer‘s
Cross of the Order of Merit of the Federal Republic of Germany
in 2005. In 2006, he was honored in Monaco with the IMDLombard Odier Hentsch Distinguished Family Award for “an
outstanding commitment on philanthropy for the family‘s
achievement in excellence such as the clarity and sustainability
of their social endeavors, exemplary corporate governance,
a focus on family values, and the involvement of multiple
generations.” He is a recipient of The Outstanding Filipino
(TOFIL) Award in the field of business for the year 2009. Named
by Forbes Magazine as among the “Heroes of Philanthropy”
in Asia, he is involved in several social and environmental
concerns, among them the Eugenio Lopez Foundation, Lopez
Group Foundation, Philippine Business for Social Progress, and
Conservation International.
Mr. Lopez has a master‘s degree in public administration from
the Littauer School of Public Administration in Harvard University
(1955), where he also earned his bachelor of arts degree, cum
laude (1951).

Mr. Tantoco has an MBA in Finance from the Wharton School of
Business of the University of Pennsylvania (1993) and a bachelor
of science degree in business management from the Ateneo de
Manila University where he graduated with honors (1988).
Francis Giles B. Puno
Mr. Puno, Filipino, has been a Director of EDC since November
2007. He is the President and COO of First Gen, and Senior
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of FPHC. He is
Director, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of
FG Bukidnon Power Corp., First Gen Hydro Power Corp., First
Gen Energy Solutions, Inc., Red Vulcan Holdings Corp., Prime
Terracota Holdings Corp., First Gas Holdings Corp., First Gas
Power Corp., FGP Corp., Unified Holdings Corp., and First Gas
Pipeline Corp. He is also a member of the board of First Gen
Renewables, Inc., First Private Power Corp., Bauang Private
Power Corp., FL Geothermal, GCGI, and EWHI. He worked
previously with the Global Power and Environmental Group of
The Chase Manhattan Bank based in Singapore.
Mr. Puno has a master of management degree from the
Kellogg Graduate School of Management of Northwestern
University (1990) and a bachelor of science degree in business
management from the Ateneo de Manila University (1985).

Federico R. Lopez
Mr. Lopez, Filipino, is the incumbent Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer (CEO) of EDC and has been a member of
its Board of Directors since the company‘s full privatization
in 2007. He is also the Chairman and CEO of First Gen Corp.
and FPHC. He is a director of ABS-CBN, First Private Power
Corp., and Bauang Private Power Corp. He also serves as
Director, President and CEO of FG Bukidnon Power Corp., First
Gen Hydro Power Corp., First Gen Energy Solutions, Inc., Red
Vulcan Holdings Corp., Prime Terracota Holdings Corp., First
Gas Holdings Corp., First Gas Power Corp., FGP Corp., Unified
Holdings Corp., First NatGas Power Corp., and First Gas Pipeline
Corp. Mr. Lopez is also a member of FPHC‘s Energy Task Force
since 1993, where he is involved not only in project development
but also in efforts to introduce market reforms in the power
industry. A staunch environmentalist, he is president of First
Philippine Conservation, Inc. and a director of Conservation
International. He is also a member and Chapter Officer of the
Young President‘s Organization.
Mr. Lopez is a graduate of the University of Pennsylvania with a
bachelor of arts degree in economics and international relations,
cum laude (1983).
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Peter D. Garrucho, Jr.
Mr. Garrucho, Filipino, has been a Director of EDC since
November 2007. He also sits in the Board of First Gen Corp.
Until his retirement in January 2008 as Managing Director for
Energy of FPHC, he held the positions of Vice Chairman and
CEO of First Gen. He is Vice Chairman of Franklin Baker Corp.,
and sits in the boards of FPHC, First Private Power Corp., FG
Bukidnon Power Corp., First Gen Hydro Power Corp., First
Gen Energy Solutions, Inc., Red Vulcan Holdings Corp., Prime
Terracota Holdings Corp., First Gas Holdings Corp., First Gas
Power Corp., FGP Corp., Unified Holdings Corp., First Gas
Pipeline Corp. and FL Geothermal. He served in the government
as Secretary of the Department of Tourism and the Department of
Trade & Industry during the administration of President Corazon
C. Aquino. He was also Executive Secretary and Presidential
Adviser on Energy Affairs under President Fidel V. Ramos. In
2000, he was given the award of an Honorary Officer of the Order
of the British Empire by Her Majesty, Queen Elizabeth.

SUSTAINABILITY TRAILBLAZERS

Mr. Garrucho earned his master’s degree in business
administration from Stanford University (1971) and his AB-BSBA
degree from the De La Salle University (1966).
Ernesto B. Pantangco
Mr. Pantangco, Filipino, has been a Director of EDC since
November 2007 and is also the company’s Executive Vice
President (EVP). He is an EVP of First Gen, and President and
CEO of FPPC and BPPC. He also sits in the boards of FG Luzon,
GCGI, EWEHI, FG Bukidnon, FGHPC, First Gen Geothermal
Power Corp., First Gen Visayas Hydro Power Corp., and First
Gen Mindanao Hydro Power Corp. He is Senior Vice President
of FGHPC and First Gen Northern Energy Corp., and Executive
Vice President of First Gen Geothermal Power Corp., First Gen
Visayas Hydro Power Corp., First Gen Mindanao Hydro Power
Corp., FG Luzon, and Red Vulcan. He is also the President of the
Philippine Independent Power Producers Association (PIPPA)
for the last eight years.
Mr. Pantangco has a bachelor of science in mechanical
engineering from the De La Salle University (1973) and a master
of business administration degree from the Asian Institute of
Management, dean‘s list (1976). He is a registered mechanical
engineer and placed 6th in the 1973 board exams.
Elpidio L. Ibañez
Mr. Ibañez, Filipino, has been a Director of EDC since July
2010. He is also the President and Chief Operating Officer of
FPHC. He is a member of the boards of First Gen Renewables
Inc., FG Bukidnon Power Corp., Bauang Private Power Corp.,
First Private Power Corp., First Gas Holdings Corp., First Gas
Power Corp., FGP Corp., Unified Holdings Corp., First Gas
Pipeline Corp., FL Geothermal, and GCGI. He is Chairman
of the board of First Batangas Hotel Corp. and President of
First Philippine Utilities Corp. He is also a director of various
FPHC subsidiaries and affiliates such as First Balfour, Inc.,
First Philippine Electric Corp., First Philippine Industrial Corp.,
First Philippine Industrial Park, Philippine Electric Corp., and
Securities Transfer Services, Inc.
Mr. Ibañez obtained a master’s degree in business
administration from the University of the Philippines (1975) and
a bachelor of arts degree in economics from Ateneo de Manila
University (1972).
Jonathan C. Russell
Mr. Russell, British, has been a Director of EDC since November
2007. He is also an Executive Vice President of First Gen and
director of GCGI. He was previously Vice President of Generation
Ventures Associates (GVA), an international developer of
independent power projects based in Boston, USA, responsible
for the development of 1,720MW of IPP projects in Asia. Prior to
joining GVA, he worked for BG plc based in London and Boston,
responsible for the development of power and natural gas
distribution projects.
Mr. Russell has an MBA with Distinction in International
Business and Export Management from the City University
Business School, London, England (1989) and a bachelor
of science degree with honours in chemical & administrative
sciences from the City University, London, England (1987).

Edgar O. Chua
Mr. Chua, Filipino, is an Independent Director of EDC since July
2010. He is also the Country Chairman of the Shell Companies
in the Philippines, Guam, Palau and Saipan. He has corporate
responsibility for the various Shell companies in the exploration,
manufacturing, and marketing sector of the petroleum business.
Likewise, he oversees the Chemicals businesses and Shared
Services. He is currently the Chairman of the Philippine
Business for the Environment, President of Pilipinas Shell
Foundation, Inc., and Chairman of the Philippine Institute of
Petroleum, Inc.
He has more than 30 years of experience in the fields of
chemicals, auditing, supply planning and trading, marketing and
sales, lubricants, corporate affairs, and general management. He
held senior positions outside the Philippines as transport analyst
in Group Planning in the UK and as General Manager of the
Shell company of Cambodia. From July 1999 to August 2003,
he held various regional positions in Shell Oil Products East
including GM for Consumer Lubricants covering all countries
East of Suez Canal including Saudi Arabia, China, India, Korea,
ASEAN, Australia, New Zealand and the Pacific Islands.
Mr. Chua earned his bachelor of science degree in chemical
engineering from De La Salle University (1978) and attended
various international seminars and courses including the senior
management course in INSEAD in Fontainebleau, France.
Francisco Ed. Lim
Mr. Lim, Filipino, is an Independent Director of EDC since July
2010. He is also a Senior Partner of Angara Abello Concepcion
Regala & Cruz Law Offices (ACCRALAW) and a member of
the Financial Executives of the Philippines (FINEX). He is a
law professor at the College of Law of the Ateneo de Manila
University and the Graduate School of Law of San Beda College,
and Professorial Lecturer of the Philippine Judicial Academy. He
is a member of both the Philippine Bar and New York State Bar.
He served as past President and CEO and Director of the
Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc., President and CEO of
Securities Clearing Corporation of the Philippines, Chairman
of the Philippine Stock Exchange Foundation, Inc. and Capital
Market Development Center, Inc., Director of the Philippine
Dealing & Exchange Corporation, Trustee of the Securities
Investors Protection Fund, and member of Capital Market
Development Council from September 15, 2004 to February
15, 2010. He successfully worked for the passage by Congress
of several capital market development related laws, namely,
Personal Equity Retirement Account Act, Credit Investment
System Act, Real Estate Investment Trust Act, Documentary
Stamp Duty Exemption for secondary trading of listed stocks,
and Financial Rehabilitation and Insolvency Act. He was
Chairman of the Technical Work Group on the Collective
Investment Schemes Law and Chairman of the Technical Work
Group on Real Estate Investments Trusts in the 14th Congress
of the Senate of the Republic of the Philippines.
Mr. Lim graduated with a bachelor’s degree of philosophy and
a bachelor of arts degree from the University of Santo Tomas.
He completed with honors his bachelor of laws degree (second
honors) from the Ateneo de Manila University and his master of
laws degree from the University of Pennsylvania, USA.
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CHAMPIONS

From left to right:
Dwight A. Maxino VP for Northern and Southern Negros Geothermal Production Fields, Nestor H. Vasay SVP & Chief
Financial Officer, Ernesto G. Espinosa VP for Human Resource Management, Danilo C. Catigtig SVP for Power
Generation, Ernesto B. Pantangco Director & EVP, Marcelino M. Tongco SVP for Steamfield Operations,
Manuel S. Ogena SVP for Technical Services
Noel D. Salonga, Assistant Vice President, Resource Management
Alejandro V. Catacutan, Assistant Vice President, Mindanao Geothermal Production Field
Martin Jude V. Lacambra, Assistant Vice President, Engineering and Construction
*Not in photo: Glenn I. Funk, VP for Supply Chain Management

72

EDC 2010 Integrated Annual and Sustainability Report

Our Key Executives

From left to right:
Manuel C. Paete VP for Leyte Geothermal Production Field, Vincent Martin C. Villegas VP for Business Development,
Ellsworth R. Lucero VP for Leyte Power Plant Operations, Richard B. Tantoco President & COO, Agnes C. de Jesus SVP for
Environment & External Relations & Compliance Officer, Liberato S. Virata VP for BacMan Geothermal Production Field

Teodorico Jose R. Delfin, Corporate Secretary
Ana Maria A. Katigbak-Lim, Assistant Corporate Secretary
Erudito S. Recio, Senior Manager, Investor Relations
Glenn L. Tee, Senior Manager, Internal Audit & Chief Audit Executive
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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

STEWARDSHIP @ work
Caring for and exacting judicious use of resources and treating the business
as if it were your own.
As a steward of the environment, EDC protects the complex web of life found
in our areas of operation. We are guided by the fundamental belief that we
are only custodians of these resources. Everything we derive from the planet
is borrowed from future generations and must be given back abundantly.
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Sustaining

GREEN GROWTH
CLIMATE CHANGE

BINHI

BIODIVERSITY

ROBUST ECOSYSTEM

Sustainability is about making a pact with our stakeholders to achieve
a solid and synchronized growth for them and the environment.
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More than three decades of geothermal leadership has enabled us to institutionalize the protection and enhancement
of the environment in our business. Going beyond compliance and maintaining a healthy environment are essential
aspects of EDC’s deep commitment to environmental stewardship that sustains our geothermal reservoir. We aim
to safeguard the environment and enhance biodiversity in areas where we operate. This commitment serves as our
guide and foundation as we go beyond isolating individual triumphs and progress to seeing how they complement
and interconnect to form a larger blueprint.

Our programs on the conservation and protection of the
environment are inherent aspects of the business. Long
before climate change and biodiversity loss turned into
marquee issues in a host of green events and campaigns by
governments and private companies, EDC’s operations have
already been moving silently but systematically to prevent the
adverse effects of these negative developments. Our green way
of life reinforces our core values of integrity and stewardship
for all of EDC’s resources. These values espouse the need
to be accountable for our actions, to do the right thing at all
times. These also include caring for our natural resources and
exacting their judicious use.

As we look forward to our next year of sustainability reporting,
our goal now is for these values to grow stronger and to enrich
each other so that our positive environmental impacts are
enhanced. Expanding to international markets, we remind
ourselves that profit generation for EDC is anchored on sound
sustainability principles and practices. For our company, going
global means pioneering and setting the trend here in the
Philippines to contribute to global best practices.
By operating and growing our business in the most efficient
and environment-friendly way possible, we are already making
significant inroads on a daily basis to worldwide efforts in
mitigating climate change. As well, we contribute to curbing
alarming speeds in biodiversity loss, reversing deforestation
rates, and managing watersheds and wastes.
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CO2
Sequestration

137,000

tons

*Estimated annual rate per year since 1989

BINHI
Reforestation
on

772,591
1,071

trees

hectares

We shall enhance biodiversity and the ecosystem services in areas where we operate.
Beyond compliance is our deep commitment to environmental stewardship, which finds its concrete expression in our
Corporate Environmental Policy and Code of Conduct and Business Ethics. By protecting and enhancing the forest cover
in our work sites, we ensure the delivery of optimum forest goods and services that help in the recharge of the geothermal
and hydropower reservoirs and serve the various publics and industries that are dependent on the watersheds around our
work areas. Our social forestry program since 1986 has transformed slash-and-burn farmers into profitable environmental
guardians and proactive partners long before ecosystem jobs have been conceptualized.
We seek to reduce risks in the workplace by implementing safe operating procedures, employing clean technologies and
waste-minimization strategies, promoting scientific investigations and sound management programs, and guaranteeing
emergency preparedness at all times. While we take pride in our zero discharge system and strive to comply with all
environmental laws and standards, we aspire to further lower our carbon footprint by enhancing our waste management
protocols, by avoiding the use and release of hazardous materials directly into the environment and by increasing
our tree stock for carbon sequestration.
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Our Role in
Fighting Climate
Change
At the heart of our mission to provide
the present and future generations
a better life is the conviction that
as a socially responsible business,
EDC must protect the planet and
the people by providing clean and
renewable energy. Climate change is
the biggest challenge to our mission
and the most urgent issue of our time.
We are determined to act quickly and
immediately to allay the potentially

harsh and catastrophic consequences
of climate change to our employees,
assets, and host communities.
Drastic changes in global temperatures
and their resulting impacts on our
forest ecosystems and bodies of
water, among other natural resources,
are also bound to worsen if climate
change is not mitigated. Ours is
clearly a race against time to stop

and reverse the global growth in
greenhouse gas emissions. If we fail to
respond, unimaginable changes in our
environment may become extremely
difficult or even impossible to reverse.
Clearly, we at EDC cannot take this
phenomenon and global problem
lightly. We believe that our continuous
growth as a clean energy company
is both our best advocacy and
strategy for fighting climate change.
Geothermal, wind, and hydropower
are the cleanest sources of energy
because they have minimal or no

‘We believe that our
continuous growth as a
clean energy company is
both our best advocacy
and strategy for fighting
climate change.’
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carbon emissions, making them the
best alternatives for today’s increasing
energy demand. Thus, the promotion
and expansion of our product and
service portfolio are at the core of our
climate change strategy.
As producer of sustainable energy,
we require our various project sites to
contribute to offsetting our fuel usage
in some aspects of their operation.
We see this as crucial to managing
our carbon footprint even as the
business continues to grow. Through
Executive Order (EO) 223 and our
deputized role in administering
and managing watersheds in our
geothermal reservations, we have
continued to improve land and forest
covers through reforestation, allowing
us to further expand the sink of CO2
to mitigate our fuel usage. In fact, this
year we posted an improvement of
137,000 tons or an additional 17,000
tons of sequestered carbon from last
year’s 120,000 tons because of our
massive reforestation initiative.
Our continued livelihood investments
and environmental partnerships with
various upland communities have
further strengthened our campaign
towards greater forest protection. We
organized 21 Barangay Emergency
Response Teams (BERTs) with
242 members in five geothermal
sites and trained them on various
emergency response techniques as
a climate change adaptation strategy.

In addition, we faithfully comply
with national statutes on energy
conservation, such as Batasang
Pambansa (BP) Blg. 73, as well as
with the Department of Energy’s biofuel percentage and the Department of
Environment and Natural Resources’
emission standards and the
prescriptions of the Climate Change
Commission.
As we aim to move beyond
sustainability, we will use the figures
and measurements on carbon and
greenhouse gas emissions that
we have gathered for this report
to systematize our efforts towards
stricter reduction targets in the next
years. We will continue to actively
pursue our reforestation drives (see
discussion on BINHI) and campaign
for greater climate change awareness
in the Philippines by working with the
government, civil society, and other
pertinent groups in exploring more
viable ways to mitigate and adapt to
global warming.
In 2010, we have partnered
with various institutions for tree
planting and clean-up drives. In our
headquarters at Bonifacio Global
City, we continued to implement
our El Tejado Verde or the Greening
the Rooftop project, which can
be replicated for innovative and
sustainable corporate green programs
in other business districts and
urbanized areas.

Mountaineers and local communities are able to experience the beauty of Mount Apo,
thanks to EDC’s efforts to restore it from denudation
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‘By expanding our
operations overseas, we
envision to create markets
that sustain economies
and combat climate
change at the same time.’
Our goal in the long run is to further
integrate a coherent climate change
response into our daily practices while
we manage our global footprint and
maintain the natural integrity of our
valuable geothermal resource. We craft
policies and undertake, to the best of
our ability, measures and programs
that protect our company, the public,
and the environment from the potential
risks from climate change.
Ultimately, EDC believes that
addressing climate change as
an environmental crisis requires
accompanying economic solutions.
We are aware of how our business
and its continued growth present
viable economic pathways that can
contribute to achieving the global
emission targets. By expanding our
operations overseas, we envision to
create markets that sustain economies
and combat climate change at the
same time.

SUSTAINING GREEN GROWTH

BINHI

Harnessing the power of partnership through
premium and indigenous trees
The tree is a cherished symbol of life
and the living world. Over the centuries,
trees have come to represent nature,
health, spirituality, and community or
kinship for many. In the Philippines,
trees figure prominently in our folktales
and songs. They continue to be
landmarks and gathering points for
community affairs. And their mysteries
and enigmatic force have given birth to
myths and legends.
At the root of EDC’s BINHI program is
an understanding of this power and
soulful influence of trees on our sense
of history and community. Setting this
initiative apart is that BINHI is the
country’s first comprehensive private
sector-led reforestation program to put
focus on biodiversity restoration and
conservation, carbon sequestration,
socio-economic upliftment, and
ecotourism in one program instead
of the fast growing but exotic
species that do not really enhance
Philippine biodiversity. BINHI in the
local language means “germling” or
“embryo” of plants.

BINHI took inspiration from a
premium endangered Tindalo
tree (planted in 1938 by former
President Manuel L. Quezon in
a Bacolod City park) which now
serves as a mother tree, with its
seeds used as among the species
raised in the EDC nursery for
reforestation in the Mount Kanlaon
Natural Park.

This unique characteristic of the
program offers abundant rewards.
Not only is the value of our trees
undeniable in mitigating the impacts
of global warming and protecting our
communities from natural calamities,
our premium and indigenous tree
species also provide a host of other
priceless benefits. Many of the trees
listed in the BINHI program possess
medicinal properties. All play crucial
roles in maintaining the balance of our
ecosystem and Philippine biodiversity.
And many still are integral to the way
we appreciate our socio-cultural norms.
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Starting with the few remaining
seedlings of these vanishing trees,
EDC kicked off the program by
planting them in sites where they
could be best nurtured and protected.
The nurturing of indigenous seedlings
has proven to be tedious, but our EDC
foresters patiently germinate these
valuable seeds, learning best practices
and sharing new and effective
methods in the process. In support of
this program, various forest nurseries
have been established and are being
maintained in our geothermal project
sites. Each site has its own central
nursery, where most of the seedlings
are reared. All the nurseries managed
by the company have an aggregate
capacity of more than one million
wildings seedlings. In 2010, we
planted over 770,000 indigenous
seedlings within a total combined area
of 1,071 hectares across our project
sites.

Incentivizing
environmental
protection
By interconnecting the positive
features of this pioneering
reforestation program in the social
and environmental aspects of our
operations, EDC aims to further

EDC uses a mist irrigation system in its nurseries for
seedling production of indigenous tree species

expand the reach of BINHI and to
inspire more spirited partnerships and
greater community participation for
this very important cause.
Chairman Emeritus Oscar M. Lopez
committed the program to the Clinton
Global Initiative in 2008, and since
then, BINHI has already planted
over 1.5 million seedlings in over
2,000 hectares of land all over the
country. This was achieved through
partnerships with various groups,
including government agencies,
property developers, cooperatives,
and farmers associations in our host
communities. This is yet another
aspect that makes BINHI a model
project for the environment: the
support it has generated from
members of community because of

the economic rewards that come with
protection and conservation.
The members of our farmers
associations, some of whom used to
be slash-and-burn farmers, have been
able to transform their ranks over the
years into environmental stewards,
earning income at the same time from
protecting and preserving the forests.
EDC has been implementing its social
forestry program in the management
of our forests and watersheds, and
creating ecosystem jobs for our
communities. We organize and
train upland communities and tap
them as contractors in seedling
production, plantation establishment,
and plantation maintenance and
protection. While an emerging

Estimated income for the communities from BINHI project
2009
ACTUAL PLANTED
(hectares)

BGPF

2010
AMOUNT (PhP)

ACTUAL PLANTED
(hectares)

AMOUNT (PhP)

280.0

949,456.0

190.0

5,698,967.2

LGPF

163.0

2,804,702.0

104.0

6,967,672.0

MGPF

100.0

1,867,685.2

77.0

3,459,026.7

NNGP

200.0

3,600,000.0

200.0

4,172,153.8

SNGPF

226.0

2,025,443.2

150.0

3,135,843.4

-

-

200.0

1,957,075.2

50.0

1,720,981.5

150.0

1,548,617.0

1,019.0

12,968,267.9

1,071.0

26,939,355.3

PROJECT SITE

NSMNP
PAMAHEP
TOTAL

2010 figures include maintenance and protection of previously planted plantations, (2009)
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trend today in developed countries,
incentivizing environmentally
responsible actions through livelihood
programs and direct ecosystem
jobs, also known as Payments for
Environmental Services (PES), has
been in practice at EDC since it started
its watershed management program
in the early 1990s. Now, the same
principle is in action through BINHI
and our environmental programs.
We have shown our host communities
that one need not pit community
versus conservation, and that
there are in fact economic rewards
rather than harsh trade-offs to
biodiversity protection and watershed
management. Other PES types
that we also engage in are carbon
sequestration and storage and the
development of ecotourism sites, the
latter of which we are developing in
our BacMan and Southern Negros
geothermal sites. We are also planning
ecotourism projects for the rest of the
EDC areas.

Creating forest
havens in urban
jungles
We reached another high point when
we partnered with the Quezon City
Science High School (QCSHS) to
tap the power of BINHI in promoting
greater environmental interest and
education among some of the country‘s
youngest and brightest scientific
minds. By reviving the 600m2–garden
in QCSHS using BINHI species, EDC
seeks to create more arboretums or
‘living’ classrooms that can teach
our youth the wealth of values these
species of plants possess.
The BINHI program at QCSHS, which
is under BINHI’s “Tree for the Future”
module (see discussion on the Four
Modules of BINHI) now has eight
species of endangered premium
Philippine trees that are expected to
grow into mother trees and serve as

We partnered with the Quezon City Science High School
to revive its 600m2 garden using BINHI species

‘EDC will continue to promote and expand this landmark
program and pave the way for more protected
community areas where our trees can thrive and enjoy a
higher survival rate.’
future sources of seedlings. These
species are almaciga, gisok-gisok,
igem, ipil, molave, tindalo, yakalsaplungan, and kamagong. Each of
the 28 seedlings of these premium
trees has been labeled to indicate their
scientific and local names, ecological
and economic status, wood strength
and quality, and fruiting season.
Apart from contributing directly to
the improved study of trees by the
students, we provide information on
the trees’ uses because we believe
knowledge is the foundation of
deeper appreciation. Knowing the
various properties of the species,
the community is able to better
understand, protect, and value them.
Also, BINHI planted 26 species
of medicinal plants in the QCSHS
arboretum, including banaba, lagundi,
sambong, serpentina, and tsaang
gubat. These have been tagged with
corresponding information on their
medicinal uses and healing attributes
for the use of the students, as well as
the school’s visitors, which we expect
to increase in the next years, especially
when the saplings start to grow bigger
and to bloom.

Through the partnership with the
school, EDC has transformed the
grounds into the QCSHS BINHI
park, which is now becoming a truly
living green classroom. Teachers
see the growing collection as an
invaluable learning resource during
environmental and science classes.
The park is only one of the safe havens
that BINHI seeks to further develop
in the coming years. We have already
established similar joint ventures with
the Philippine Science High School in
Tacloban, Leyte and nine other schools
in Northern Negros, two private parks
in Bonifacio Global City and NUVALI in
Laguna in association with their private
developers.
Through more BINHI partnerships,
EDC will continue to promote and
expand this landmark program and
pave the way for more protected
community areas where our trees can
thrive and enjoy a higher survival rate.
In due course, we seek to inspire and
empower the Filipino people through
BINHI, so they in turn will take it upon
themselves to revive and restore these
Philippine saplings that we now run
the risk of losing forever.
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FOUR
MODULES of
the

BINHI

The Tree for Food module speeds up reforestation rates and provides livelihood
sources to farmers living within the geothermal reservations where we operate. It
aims to establish 5,000 hectares of forest plantations and agro-forestry farms over a
period of 10 years in denuded forest lands, open lands or grasslands, inadequately
stocked areas, and areas covered by Community-Based Forest Management
Agreements (CBFMA) issued by the DENR to people’s organizations (POs)
organized by EDC.
EDC hires the members of POs as ecosystem workers in all aspects of the project,
from seedling production, plantation establishment, maintenance and protection,
and harvesting. A benefit sharing scheme between EDC and the PO is reached
before the start of each project. In selected areas where there are no POs, EDC
conducts community organizing work until new POs are fully established and
accredited. In the course of implementing Tree for Food in all of the chosen project
sites, the local groups benefit by receiving payment for their work. When the trees are harvested, they also have a share in
the proceeds from the sales of fruits and wood products. They also allocate funds for replanting after the harvest. In 2010,
about 85,000 seedlings of pili, bagras, falcata, mango, and rambutan were planted for this module.

BINHI Tree for Food module
PROJECT SITE
BGPF

MODULE

SPECIES

Pili Plantation

Pili

Agroforestry

Bagras (interplanted
with fruit trees)

NUMBER OF TREES

140

21,868

38

10,701

Falcata

70

43,750

Mango

50

4,000

Indigenous
(interplanted with
fruit trees/Bagras)

LGPF

TOTAL AREA (ha)

Fruit Trees
SNGPF
PAMAHEP
TOTAL

Pure Tree Plantation

Rambutan

4,000
298
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SNGPF employees plant indigenous species

EDC rears seedlings in its central nursery

The Tree for Life module directly addresses ecological problems by establishing
protection forests through assisted natural regeneration or “rainforestation” farming
in the uplands. Through this module, EDC is bridging forest gaps within important
mountain systems to avoid the breakup of habitats and ecosystems. Using only
indigenous species, Tree for Life seeks to enhance and conserve biodiversity in the
selected sites.
This module was started in the critical areas within EDC’s five geothermal sites and
in its hydropower plant site. In 2010, this module expanded to the Northern Sierra
Madre Natural Park (NSMNP) in coordination with the Provincial Government of
Isabela. The partnership plans to restore 200 hectares of deforested portion of the
park. At the same time, it employs members of local communities to keep them from
making a living out of destructive forest practices. In 2010 alone, Tree for Life planted
637,000 seedlings in over 630 hectares of denuded forestland and mangrove areas.
We are scheduled to turn over the mega nursery and the 200-hectare reforestation
stand to the local government and the Protected Area Management Board in 2012.

BINHI Tree for Life module
PROJECT SITE

MODULE

SPECIES

TOTAL
AREA (ha)

NUMBER
OF TREES

BGPF

Mangrove

Bakauan

50.0

125,000

LGPF

Indigenous Species

White Lauan, Nato

65.5

26,200

MGPF

Endemic Species

Agoho

Mixed Endemic
Species

Tinikaran / Igem / Malatambis

77.0

192,500

Indigenous Species

Tuai, Taluto, Lambunao, Kalolot, Kalingag,
Nato

200.0

80,000

Indigenous Species

Kalingag, Baguilomboy, Nato, Malatambis,
Bayog, Sambulawan, White Lauan,
Kalanyan, Tuai, Bakan, Guisok, Antsoan
Dilao

80.0

124,000

Mangrove

Bakauan Lalake, Bakauan Babae
Narra, Bignay, Kalumpit, Alibangbang,
Banaba, Molave

100.0

62,500

Narra, Bitaog, Balakat, Kalumpit, Tuai

200.0

26,800

772.5

637,000

NNGPF

SNGPF

PAMAHEP
NSMNP
(Northern Sierra
Madre)

Mixed Indigenous
Species

TOTAL
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Chile and EDC’s joint BINHI garden project in UST

BINHI project in QCSHS

The Tree for the Future module is at the core of our greening legacy. It seeks to
propagate vanishing indigenous trees such as mangkono (or Philippine ironwood),
known as the Philippines’ hardest wood, and other fine timber such as yakal,
guijo, tindalo, and narek by preserving and enriching their genetic pool. Through
partnerships with the Department of Education, local governments and other groups,
this module aims to rescue and secure these premium endangered native tree
species in safe havens such as school grounds, government or public parks, and
leisure estates all over the Philippines. The intent here is to establish mother trees that
will provide future seed stock to proliferate and bring back these vanishing species.
Depending on the site, various important and threatened forest species are planted
based on their suitability with the prevailing site conditions. Each tree planted is
marked with individual signboards indicating the tree’s unique features and history.
In partnership with schools, religious groups, and foundations, 329 seeds of 29
premium and endangered trees have been planted in 2010 in various parks in
Quezon City, Muntinlupa, Laguna, and Batangas. Future mother trees were already
planted in Philippine Science High School in Palo, Leyte and nine other schools in
Murcia and Bago City in Negros Occidental, Bonifacio Global City in Taguig, and
NUVALI in Laguna. Eventually, half of the seeds harvested from the mother trees will
be given back to EDC to be stored in a seed bank for future forests.

BINHI Tree for the Future module
PROJECT AREAS

DESCRIPTION

PARTNERS

Calauan, Laguna

80 trees planted / 14 species in Oscar M.
Lopez’ BINHI Tree Park

ABS-CBN Foundation,
FPIC, Bayanijuan

Quezon City Science
High School
Campus Garden
Park

Bago Bantay,
Quezon City

Tree park enhancement:
• Park re-development of hardscape and
softscape;
• 22 native trees / 7 species planted;
• 26 species of ornamental / medicinal
plants

Quezon City Science
High School

St. Benedict
Monastery

Pinagtung-ulan, Lipa
City, Batangas

77 native trees / 14 species planted

St. Benedict
Monastery

St. Francis de Sales
Theology Seminary

Marawoy, Lipa City,
Batangas

100 native trees / 10 species planted

St. Francis de Sales
Theology Seminary

Muntinlupa National
High School

NBP Reservation
Area, Muntinlupa

50 native trees / 10 species planted

Muntinlupa National
High School, Rotary
Club of Paranaque

Bayanijuan
Resettlement Area,
Southville 7

LOCATION

329 trees and 28 species planted in five areas; continuous plantation maintenance and protection, nursery
operations and seedlings production / procurement
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BINHI Tree for the Future species
TREE SPECIES /
COMMON NAME

SCIENTIFIC NAME

FAMILY NAME

CONSERVATION STATUS
(per DENR DAO, unless
otherwise stated)

1

Malabayabas

Tristaniopsis decorticota

Myrtaceae

Critically Endangered

2

Mindanao Narek

Hopea brachyptera

Dipterocarpaceae

Critically Endangered

3

Guijo

Shorea guiso

Dipterocarpaceae

Critically Endangered *

4

Yakal

Shorea astylosa

Dipterocarpaceae

Critically Endangered

5

Philippine Teak

Tectona philippinensis

Lamiaceae

Critically Endangered

6

Narek

Hopea cagayanensis

Dipterocarpaceae

Critically Endangered

7

Kamagong

Diospyros blancoi

Ebenaceae

Critically Endangered

8

Manggachapui

Hopea acuminata

Dipterocarpaceae

Critically Endangered

9

Thick-leaf Narig

Vatica pachyphylla

Dipterocarpaceae

Critically Endangered

10 Dalingdingan

Hopea foxworthyii

Dipterocarpaceae

Critically Endangered

11 Makaasim

Syzigium nitidum

Myrtaceae

Critically Endangered

12 Yakal-kaliot

Hopea malibato

Dipterocarpaceae

Critically Endangered

13 Samar Gisok

Hopea samarensis

Dipterocarpaceae

Critically Endangered

14 Gisok-gisok

Hopea philippinensis

Dipterocarpaceae

Critically Endangered

15 Malapanau

Dipterocarpus kerii

Dipterocarpaceae

Critically Endangered *

16 Broad-Winged Apitong

Dipterocarpus kunstlerii

Dipterocarpaceae

Vulnerable

17 Bagtikan

Parashorea malaanonan

Dipterocarpaceae

Critically Endangered *

18 Mangkono

Xanthostemon verdugonianus

Myrtaceae

Endangered

19 Tindalo

Afzelia rhomboidea

Fabaceae

Endangered

20 Yakal-saplungan

Hopea plagata

Dipterocarpaceae

Endangered

*Based on International Union for Conservation of Nature ver. 2.3

The Tree for Leisure module seeks to develop EDC’s geothermal project sites into
areas for ecotourism. Geothermal sites carry vast ecotourism potential, so through
this module, the BINHI program aims to provide recreation, leisure, and study
camps for visitors, students, and ecotourism enthusiasts. In line with the thrust of
ecotourism to preserve and enhance the natural beauty of the project site, the Tree
for Leisure module provides amenities and activities such as arboretums with paths
and canopy walks, outdoor activity areas, and wildlife sanctuaries. For 2010, EDC,
in coordination with LGUs, DENR, and POs, endeavored in the development of an
ecotourism plan for each project site.
EDC’s BacMan site, for instance, has already been ecotourism-certified by the DOT,
the first ever geothermal facility in the country to be cited as such. The site is home
to one of the world’s largest fruit bats, the endangered Golden-crowned Flying Fox
(Acerodon jubatus), which can only be found in the Philippines, as well as to the
Large Flying Fox (Pteropus vampyrus).
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Harmonizing with
our

Ecosystem

We, at EDC, are well aware that premium flora and fauna exist in areas where we operate. We take full responsibility for
harmonizing our operations with the ecosystem by producing clean and green power and implementing measures that seek to
conserve biodiversity and maintain the lushness of the forests around us.
All geothermal project sites are key biodiversity areas (KBAs) and two are adjacent to declared protected areas. Leyte has Lake
Danao Natural Park and Mahagnao Volcano Natural Park and Southern Negros has Balinsasayao Twin Lakes Natural Park. The
Leyte development block overlaps with Anonang Lobi Range KBA. The development blocks of SNGPF and BGPF are adjacent
to Cuernos de Negros KBA and BacMan KBA, respectively (see discussion on Tree for Leisure module of BINHI).

New Prospects

Renewable Energy Service Contracts Awarded in 2010
- Geothermal Exploration

our

- Wind Exploration

Pagudpud 1,215.0 hectares
Mount Labo 9,324.3 hectares

Taytay 1,539.0 hectares
Dinagat 891.0 hectares
Siargao 6,804.0 hectares
Mainit 37,690.9 hectares
Camiguin 729.0 hectares

DEVELOPMENT AREAS VS. GEOTHERMAL RESERVATIONS (2010) (in km2)
GEOTHERMAL
RESERVATION

DEVELOPMENT
BLOCK

Leyte

1,076.3

77.3

1.9

Southern Negros

1,330.0

16.4

0.2

250.0

43.4

1.8

7.0

7.0

0.4

-

2.8

0.5

2,663.3

146.9

4.8

SITE

Bacon-Manito
North Cotabato
Northern Negros*
TOTAL

ACTUAL
DEVELOPMENT AREA

* has no geothermal reservation but has been awarded a Geothermal Service Contract
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In 2008, we started implementing a Biodiversity Conservation and Monitoring Program (BCMP) in our five geothermal
production fields in partnership with the Institute of Biology of the College of Science of the University of the Philippines
in Diliman, Quezon City. We recognize that our advances in this study and the data we have already gathered help us
significantly in developing measures to slow down biodiversity loss rates, aside from duplicating and sharing practices that
point to positive results in biodiversity enhancement.

Renewable Energy Service Contracts awarded
PROJECT SITE

PROTECTED AREA / CATEGORY

DECLARATION

REFERENCE*

Mount Labo

Coincides with the Abasig-Matogdon-Mananap
Watershed Reserve, water reserve and with the
Mount Labo KBA under Philippine National
Integrated Protected Areas System Law

Proclamation 318
(May 31, 2000)

Siargao

Coincides with the Siargao Island Protected
Landscape and Seascape KBA

Proclamation 902
(October 10, 1996)

Lake Danao Natural Park (within the Tongonan
geothermal reservation, but outside development
block)

Proclamation 1155
(February 3, 1998)

1

Mahagnao Volcano Natural Park (within the
Tongonan geothermal reservation but outside
development block)

Proclamation 1157
(February 3, 1998)

1

Leyte

Anonang Lobi-Range KBA-Important Bird Area
(within the Tongonan geothermal reservation
intersects with existing development block)

Southern Negros

Bacon-Manito

Balinsasayao Twin Lakes Natural Park (within
the Palinpinon geothermal reservation but outside
development block)

2

Proclamation 414
(November 21, 2000)

2

BacMan KBA-Important Bird Area (within the
BacMan geothermal reservation and adjacent to
existing development block)

2

Republic Act 9237
(February 3, 2004)

MANP is also identified and delineated as KBA /
Important Bird Area

Northern Negros

1

Cuernos de Negros KBA (within the Palinpinon
geothermal reservation adjacent to existing
development block)

Mount Apo Natural Park (MANP) (adjacent to
project site and a portion is within allocated energy
support zone of the park)

Mount Apo

1

Mount Kanlaon Natural Park (MKNP) (adjacent to
Northern Negros Geothermal Project and a portion
is within the buffer zone of the park);
MKNP is also delineated/identified as a KBA /
Important Bird Area

1

2

Republic Act 9154
(August 11, 2001)

1

2

* 1 - Under Philippine National Integrated Protected Areas System Law or RA 7586 of 1992
* 2 - Conservation International Philippines, Dept. of Environment and Natural Resources, and Haribon Foundation 2006. Priority sites for
conservation in the Philippines: Key Biodiversity Areas
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Enriching our
forests
For over three decades, EDC has
prudently developed its geothermal
contract areas, minimizing land use
disturbance and safeguarding the
forests in the process.
Since 1978, we have established an
environmental department to aid in
mitigating the impacts of accelerated
geothermal development and actively
upheld our deputized role in protecting
the forests around our sites to maintain
the recharge of our steam reservoirs.
Since 2003, we have partnered with
NGOs like the World Wildlife Fund,
Conservation International, and
Coalition for Advocates of Renewable
Energy for a healthy environment.
In 2010, we continued to pursue our
Environmental Monitoring Program,
which keeps a careful watch on the
quality of water and air in our sites
through periodic checks. We also
carry out community consultations to
ascertain the social and environmental
acceptability of our projects and
products. In addition, we continued
to conduct third party reviews to
objectively evaluate the impact of our
operations on the environment and we
actively participate in multi-sectoral
monitoring in various aspects of our
operations to promote transparency in
our decision-making and daily work.
To offset the impact of our business
on biodiversity and protected areas in
2010, we also continued to pursue our
biodiversity program with University of
the Philippines Institute of Biology
(UP-IB) alongside our active promotion
of BINHI. Analyzing the program’s
findings together with data from our
operations, we measured EDC’s impact
on our ecosystems in areas where we
needed to expand.
For instance, the conversion of selected
areas in our Bicol and Leyte geothermal
sites into roads and pads has led to the
transfer of some species. Portions of

We are fully compliant with the Clean Water Act in our areas of operation

We also assessed how to best reroute
the new roads to reduce the number
of important species to be disturbed.
We patrolled access to the forests
to prevent the entry of poachers
and we conducted an information
and education drive among nearby
communities, supplemented by the
installation of environmental signs in
key spots.

disturbed habitats and the resulting
soil movement may potentially
silt rivers or affect forest-dwelling
species. Also, we have foreseen prior
to expansion that the newly opened
roads may attract tree poachers. To
fight these adverse effects, we have
documented the affected species
and volume of vegetation that were
removed, balled the affected saplings,
and assessed the importance of flora
that would be affected relative to their
population and threatened status.

We only used indigenous species
in replanting to prevent the entry of
invasive species in the affected areas.

EDC Reforestation 1989-2010 (in hectares)
1989-2009

2010

TOTAL AS OF 2010

LEYTE

3,125

104

3,425

SOUTHERN NEGROS

1,956

150

2,189

NORTHERN NEGROS

696

200

896

MOUNT APO

815

77

892

1,720

190

1,910

50

150

200

-

200

200

8,642

1,071

9,713

BacMan
PAMAHEP
NSNMP
TOTAL
BINHI TOTAL (2009-2010)

2,090
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Managing
environmental
risks
To further safeguard the environment
and ensure the well being of our
business and its communities, we
are guided by the precautionary
principle in managing and averting
natural threats and risks. In 2010,
EDC enhanced its Enterprise Risk
Management system by aligning it
with the risk management principles
and guidelines of ISO 31000:2009. To
date, we are recognizing four levels of
risk assessment: project, operational,
executive, and strategic.
For environmental risks, specific
initiatives are implemented by our
different business units. For instance, we
have identified the need to implement
landslide-mitigating measures, such
as barrier construction, tree planting
or reforestation drives with our host
communities, and the placement of
coco-fiber nets on landslide-prone areas.
The cogon mats that we have installed
in our areas of operation in Northern
Negros have been one of the Success
Story Awardees of the Pollution Control
Association of the Philippines, Inc. in
2006. It won the award for being an
exemplary innovation that effectively
controls siltation and soil erosion
as it generates income for Murcia’s
Landingan Farmers Association.
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We aligned the new roads along stable
paths in terms of slope and ecology
and used proper road surfacing and
drainage design to keep erosion at a
minimum. As a supplemental measure,
we also identified nearby habitats for
displaced animals to disperse into, and
provided enhancement mechanisms for
these sites.

make use of banned ozone-depleting
substances to further lower our carbon
footprint.

Moreover, we started a policy study
on standards setting for our forest
rehabilitation program. The program
specifically intends to develop a
proposed national set of procedures
and standards for the measurement,
reporting, and verification of
rehabilitation efforts that may be used
for forestland management policy
guidance and planning. Our new set
of findings will be used by EDC in
evaluating the successes and failures
of its reforestation projects in 2011
and the following years.

During well testing, we limit our
vertical discharges to a maximum
of 30 minutes. These brine sprays,
which contain naturally high
concentrations of salts, can cause
temporary defoliation. Using the
Vertical Discharge Diffuser (VDD) that
EDC developed, the brine sprays are
now diverted into the VDD silencer
to prevent the damage of nearby
vegetation and forest stands. This
innovation was first used in the buffer
zone well testing for our Northern
Negros steam augmentation program.
The innovation is being applied for
patent by the company.

Throughout the course of
implementing these preventive
measures, the maintenance of the
overall diversity and balance of the
affected areas is a fundamental
principle we have upheld.

Controlling
emissions,
effluents, and
waste
Our performance in 2010 points to
very positive results. We continue to
achieve zero incident of significant
spills and zero notice of violations.
We also do not allow the transport
or treatment of waste considered
hazardous under the terms of the
Basel Convention. EDC complies
with applicable pollution control
laws, regulations, and standards,
and continues to enhance waste
management protocols. We do not
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To maintain our outstanding record,
we have engaged a third party
contractor accredited by the DENR for
the transport, treatment, and offsite
disposal of hazardous waste.

As an additional measure, sumps
and thermal ponds are fully lined to
prevent leaks. We also regularly train
community emergency response

SUSTAINING GREEN GROWTH

teams in our sites. To date, EDC has
established 13 teams in five of our
sites, where potential geo-hazards are
identified at various phases of this
community program.
In support of these activities and
goals, we continue to fully implement
our Zero Discharge System (ZDS)
policy by separating the fluids
from the steam that we extract
and injecting them back into the
geothermal reservoir.
We secure applicable pollution control
permits and equip our personnel
and subcontractors with protective
equipment and training. Hazardous
waste transporters are strictly checked
for accreditation, permits to treat or
transport waste, and spill and other
applicable emergency response tools
and procedures. Chemicals delivered,
meanwhile, are checked for their
material safety data sheets, standard
hazard labeling on containers, and
personal protective equipment and
spill kits.
We also regularly monitor air and noise
quality in all our sites to ensure that
the ambient quality is maintained. We
intend to improve on the monitoring
of our water usage in our geothermal
facilities. We have maintained air and
water quality at normal levels and we
are fully compliant with the Clean Air
Act and Clean Water Act in our areas
of operation to safeguard the health
and safety of our personnel and host
communities. At present, the bases
of presented data on water usages
and discharges are from the permits
that we submitted to the DENR and
the National Water Resources Board
(NWRB). We also employ clean
technologies, reliable international
engineering practices, and wasteminimization strategies.

EDC developed the Vertical Discharge Diffuser to prevent defoliation during well testing

EDC’s Green Policy @ Work
At EDC, our mandate is not only to conform to laws and regulations
relevant to the environmental aspects of our operations. We must invest
in strategic environmental mechanisms that improve the use of valuable
and scarce resources and pursue innovative solutions to the challenges
of renewable energy development. We are proud of our innovation
that is the Vertical Discharge Diffuser, which prevents the damage of
nearby vegetation and forest stands during brine sprays, and of the
2010 patent of our online steam purity monitoring system. We fulfill our
mandate by continuously committing to standards that are on a par
with international best practices. Our environmental laboratories are all
ISO-certified.
EDC’s organizational setup allows us to easily uphold this commitment.
A senior vice president heads the Environment and External Relations
Sector of EDC. A risk management committee, moreover, was recently
reconstituted for a more rigorous review of enterprise-wide risks
including environmental aspects. An Environmental Management
System–organization was established in 2010, as part of our ISO
14001–preparation and training program. EDC’s Human Resource
Organization Development Department assists in identifying and
facilitating environment-related training across the organization and
makes sure that our employees undergo these continuing capability
enhancement programs. To involve our stakeholders and promote costewardship of the environment, we continue to conduct information
and education campaigns on forest and environmental protection in our
host communities.

VALUES @ work
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Total water discharge by quality and destination*
LOCATION

DISCHARGE 1
3,368.9 m3/yr

DISCHARGE 2

DISCHARGE 3

3,6822.9 m3/yr

3,182.8 m3/yr

BGPF

Palayan Control Center
= 365 m3/yr
Pt of discharge:
Pigsabangan Creek

Cawayan Control Center
= 146 m3/yr
Pt of discharge: Dalipay
Creek

Botong Control Center =
292 m3/yr
Pt of discharge: Labog
Creek

BGI

Gayong River = 6,205
m3/yr

Osiao River = 4,380
m3/yr

SNGPF

pH = 6.8-6.9; BOD
= 3-10 mg/L; TSS =
4-8 mg/L (3rd quarter
sampling lab result)

GCGI - Pal 1 and 2

PGPP-1 Domestic
effluent: pH = 7.7; BOD
= 3 mg/L; TSS = 11
mg/l, DO = 5.5 mg/L

LGPP

DISCHARGE 4

Domestic water
discharge = 48,642.8
m3/year
pH = 7.94

GCGI-TGP

BOD = 11.99 mg/L;
Destination =
Sambaloran River

NNGPF

Administration Building
= 584 m3/yr
Pt of discharge: Ubasubas Creek

8,2678.3 m3/yr

PGPP-2, Okoy 5 MPP
Domestic Effluent: pH
= 7.7; BOD = 4 mg/L;
TSS = 2 mg/L;
DO = 8.2 mg/L

PGPP-2, Nasuji MPP
Domestic Effluent: pH
= 7.6; BOD = 3 mg/L;
TSS = 4 mg/L; DO =
8.2 mg/L

PGPP-2, Sogongon
MPP Domestic Effluent:
pH = 7.8; BOD = <0.10
mg/l; TSS = 4 mg/L; DO
= 8.2 mg/L

Pula River = 2,920.0
m3/yr

NNGPP

11 m3/day per GPP x 2

MGPP

*Based on permits submitted to DENR and NWRB

Total direct and indirect greenhouse gas emissions by weight (in tons)
CO2e emissions from power plant related operations, company-owned vehicles (service vehicles and heavy equipment), diesel generator sets
LEYTE

BICOL

SOUTHERN NEGROS

NORTHERN NEGROS

MINDANAO

430,498.0

64,865.2

127,363.6

44,400.5

35,234.4

Emission Factor: 2.357862kg CO2/L (Based on emission factor of 74,100 kgCO2/TJ fuel and net calorific value of 43 TJ/1000 tons of fuel (in kg CO2))

Emissions of ozone-depleting substances by weight (in kilograms)
LEYTE

BICOL

ODS 1
Freon R22 = 330.3

Freon R22 = 20.0

SOUTHERN NEGROS
HCFC123 = 35,
R22= 342.0,
Freon 134A= 25.0

ODS 2

northern negros
R134A= 1.0

MINDANAO
Freon R22= 537.1

Freon R22= 4.0

NOX, SOX, and other significant air emissions by type and weight (in tons)
Emissions from company-owned diesel generator sets (except rig generator sets).
LEYTE

BICOL

SOUTHERN NEGROS

northern negros

MINDANAO

NOX =117.8, SOX = 1.8
CO=15.0, PM=180.5

NOX = 56.1, SOX = 4.5,
CO = 12.1, PM=1.3

NOX =2.6, SOX = 0.2,
CO = 0.6, PM = 0.1

NOX = 3.0, SOX = 0.2,
CO = 0.6, PM = 0.1

NOX = 1.2, SOX = 0.1,
CO = 0.2, PM = 0.03
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Direct and indirect energy consumption by primary energy source (in gigajoules)

Direct Energy Consumption
Diesel Fuel
Electricity (Steam and Water)

fort
bonifacio

palinpinon

northern
negros

8,023

370,684

1,384,046

84,691

8,023

95,630

318,572

11,100

leyte

BacMan

total

mindanao

pantabangan

exploration

38,840

204,549

1,774

25,432

2,118,039

38,840

26,036

-

25,432

523,632

-

275,054

1,065,747

73,591

-

178,513

1,774

-

1,594,406

Steam

-

275,054

1,065,747

73,591

-

178,513

-

-

1,592,633

Water

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,774

-

1,774

12,424

-

-

854

3,727

-

-

-

17,005

12,424

-

-

854

3,727

-

-

-

17,005

20,446

370,684

1,384,046

85,545

42,567

204,549

1,774

25,432

2,135,044

Indirect Energy Consumption
Electricity
TOTAL

Total weight of waste by type and disposal method (in tons)
LEYTE

BICOL

SOUTHERN NEGROS

northern negros

MINDANAO

A. Non-hazardous Wastes
Composting

-

-

-

-

3.6

Reuse

-

-

-

-

-

Landfill

-

132.0

-

10.8

6.6

On-site Storage

-

-

3.6

-

6.2

Used oil - 155.5

Used oil - 46.3
Used battery - 226 pcs.

Used oil - 1.9

-

Used oil - 7.9

B. Hazardous Wastes*
Recycling
On-site Storage

CT Sludge - 83.2

Used oil - 183.7
Used battery - 1,027 pcs
BFL - 9,436 pcs

CT sludge - 33.5
Laboratory Waste - 0.56
BFL - 2,242 pcs

CT sludge - 5
Used oil – 5.04
Used Battery – 3 pcs
BFL – 500 pcs

CT Sludge – 13.4
Used oil - 21

Used oil - 121.7

Used Battery - 6 pcs

Used battery - 36 pcs

Laboratory waste – 0.16
BFL - 995 pcs

*Hazardous waste (cooling tower sludge, busted flourescent lamps, materials containing asbestos) are treated and disposed through Clean Way
ACM – Asbestos containing material. ACM were removed, hauled and contained by third party
CT – cooling tower
Unless otherwise specified, values indicated above are in tons

Total water withdrawal by source (in cubic meters)
LEYTE
Surface and ground
water

685,791.5

BICOL
841,953.40

SOUTHERN NEGROS

northern negros

828,783

175,200.0

MINDANAO
380,223.6

*Includes steamfield and power plant operations

Fifty-seven percent of EDC’s total approved investment cost of PhP335 million for 2010’s social and environmental
management went to watershed management initiatives and other environment-related expenditures at PhP192.4 million,
a slight increase from 2009’s approved investment of PhP188.8 million. Expenditures directly related to environmental
protection covered such activities as solid waste management, emission testing, repair, treatment and disposal of power plant
sludge, repairs and improvement of sumps and thermal ponds, and third party study and analyses.
The maturity of the programs under the environment and watershed management aspects of our business,
specifically their improved state after decades of vigilant monitoring, contributed to the significant 17%
decrease in 2010’s actual operating cost at PhP160.4 million. Improved figures in terms of company
savings are proof positive of the strong business case for continuous investments on protecting and
enhancing the environment. At the same time, EDC commits to allocating the appropriate budget for the
better integration of environment-friendly technologies and sustainable practices in our operations.

VALUES @ work

NEXT >
Biodiversity Monitoring
and Conservation
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Biodiversity monitoring and conservation
Over the next years, we will complete the geographical plotting, measurement, and tagging of trees in our two-hectare
Permanent Forest Dynamic Plots in all of EDC’s project sites. On top of that, we will continue to pursue our various
watershed programs related to biodiversity to complement our energy development objectives while improving the ecology
of the areas where we operate.
Based on our voucher specimens, we have taxonomically identified more than 190 morpho-species of trees and recorded
94 species of birds in Northern Negros, the pilot location of our conservation and monitoring program. In managing our
impact on aquatic life in our pilot site, we have established limnological sampling sites along our primary impact areas and
major bodies of water, which we monitor on a quarterly basis. In 2010, we replicated the biodiversity monitoring program
in our four other sites in Leyte, Bicol, North Cotabato, and Southern Negros. Monitoring plots for flora, fauna, as well as
limnology were completed during the first half of 2011.
Fieldwork and continued monitoring and assessment of our impacts will continue to take place in 2011. With the
successful completion of our pilot activities in Northern Negros, we hope to facilitate and fully replicate the introduction of
the same procedures and studies in our sites in Leyte, Bicol, North Cotabato, and Southern Negros.
In addition, EDC has completed the monitoring of endangered and threatened species of wildlife in its geothermal sites.
Using the insights and findings of our biodiversity monitoring program, we will in the next years strengthen our conservation
efforts to save these vanishing breeds which, together with our trees, are essential to preserving the variety and richness of
the ecosystems in our project sites.

Spotted Wood Kingfisher
Actinoides linsayi
photo by Marisol Pedregosa-Hospodarsky

Ninox philippensis centralis
photo by Carla C. Monoy

Ficus magnolifolia
photo by Sandra L. Yap

Dagger-toothed Fruit Bat
Macroglossus minimus
photo by Marisol Pedregosa-Hospodarsky

Hoya sp.
photo by Carla C. Monoy

Philippine Pygmy Fruit Bat
Haplonycteris fischeri
photo by Marisol Pedregosa-Hospodarsky

96

Osprey
Pandeon haliaetus
photo by George Tapan
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Tarsier
Tarsius syrichta

Cuculus saturatus

photo by Marisol Pedregosa-Hospodarsky

photo by Marisol Pedregosa-Hospodarsky

Philippine Duck
Anas luzonica

Black-chinned Fruit Dove
Ptilinopus leclancheri

photo by George Tapan

photo by Pavel Hospodarsky

Reddish Cuckoo-dove
Macropygia phasianella
photo by Marisol Pedregosa-Hospodarsky

Aeschynanthus sp.
photo by Carla C. Monoy

Tree Frog
Rhacophorus sp.

Citrine Canary Flycatcher
Culicicapa helianthea

photo by Marisol Pedregosa-Hospodarsky

photo by Marisol Pedregosa-Hospodarsky

Clerodendron sp.
photo by Pat Malabrigo

Anglehead Lizard
Gonocephalus sophiae
photo by Marisol Pedregosa-Hospodarsky
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Dog-faced Fruit Bat
Cynopterus brachyotis
photo by Marisol Pedregosa-Hospodarsky

Writhed Billed Hornbill
Aceros waldeni

Praravinia sp.

photo by Pavel Hospodarsky

photo by Sandra L. Yap

Paphiopedilum sp.
photo by Carla C. Monoy

Nepenthes sp.
photo by Carla C. Monoy
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Elegant Tit
Parus elegans
photo by Marisol Pedregosa-Hospodarsky

Tarictic Hornbill
Penelopides panini

Saurauia leytensis

photo by Pavel Hospodarsky

photo by Sandra L. Yap
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Saurauia sp.
photo by Carla C. Monoy

Sulfur-billed Nuthatch

Madhuca burkiana

photo by Marisol Pedregosa-Hospodarsky

photo by Sandra L. Yap

Blue Crowned Racquet Tail
Prioniturus discurus
photo by Pavel Hospodarsky

Alpinia sp.
photo by Pat Malabrigo

Philippine Tube-nosed Fruit Bat
Nyctimene rabori
photo by Marisol Pedregosa-Hospodarsky

Visayan Spotted Deer
Rusa alfredi
photo by Pavel Hospodarsky

Nepenthes sp.
photo by Carla C. Monoy
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List of threatened species observed in the five geothermal project sites of EDC in the Philippines
IUCN STATUS
(as of January 31,
2011)

POPULATION TREND

LOCATION / PROJECT SITE

Aceros waldeni
(Rufous-headed Hornbill)

Critically Endangered

Decreasing

SNGPF

Actenoides hombroni
(Blue-capped Kingfisher)

Vulnerable

Decreasing

LGPF and MGPF

Alcedo argentata
(Silvery Kingfisher)

Vulnerable

Decreasing

NNGPF and SNGPF

Anas luzonica
(Philippine Duck)

Vulnerable

Decreasing

NNGPF and SNGPF

Coracina ostenta
(White-winged Cuckooshrike)

Vulnerable

Decreasing

NNGPF

Dasycrotapha speciosa
(Flame-tempered Babbler)

Endangered

Decreasing

NNGPF

Dicaeum haematostictum
(Visayan Flowerpecker)

Vulnerable

Decreasing

NNGPF and SNGPF

Gallicolumba keayi
(Negros Bleeding-heart)

Critically Endangered

Decreasing

MGPF

Nisaetus philippensis
(Philippine Hawk-eagle)

Vulnerable

Decreasing

SNGPF

Endangered

Decreasing

SNGPF

Critically Endangered

Decreasing

LGPF

Endangered

Decreasing

NNGPF and SNGPF

IUCN STATUS
(as of January 31,
2011)

POPULATION TREND

LOCATION / PROJECT SITE

Acerodon jubatus
(Golden-capped Fruit Bat)

Endangered

Decreasing

LGPF

Rusa alfredi
(Philippine Spotted Deer)

Endangered

Decreasing

NNGPF, SNGPF, BMGPF,
LGPF and MGPF

Vulnerable

Decreasing

NNGPF and SNGPF

Critically Endangered

Decreasing

LGPF and MGPF

Vulnerable

Decreasing

LGPF

BIRDS

Penelopides panini
(Visayan Hornbill)
Pithecophaga jefferyi
(Philippine Eagle)
Rhinomyias albigularis
(White-throated Jungleflycatcher)

MAMMALS

Rusa marianna
(Philippine Deer )
Sus cebifrons
(Visayan Warty Pig)
Sus philippensis
(Philippine Warty Pig)
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photo by Manny Ferrer

VALUES
@ work Flying
BGPF is a home to one of the world’s largest fruit bats, the endangered
Golden-crowned
Fox ( Acerodon jubatus)
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BIAS FOR ACTION @ work
Ensuring immediate action, working with a sense of urgency.
Business can flourish in a community that works. We place equal
emphasis on the needs of our communities for their own advancement.
Their overall development must keep in pace with our company’s
economic success.

VALUES @ work
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A Climate of

POSITIVECHANGE
By developing the capabilities
of our host communities, the
chance for a better life is in the
air and in their own hands.

Remote rural areas in the Philippines are often some of the
poorest in the country. Disenfranchised and debilitated by a lack of
information and options, the Philippine rural population is unable
to catalyze any real positive change. As one is mired deeper into
poverty and taken for granted, basic human rights including that
of the dignity of existence become alien concepts. Operating our
geothermal plants in some of these remote, mountainous areas, we
see an opportunity to facilitate development and create meaningful
change among the least of our fellowmen.
Our Community Partnerships programs at EDC are driven by the
conviction that each person, regardless of differences in ability
and circumstance, must be treated fairly and accorded the same
opportunities available to others.
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A CLIMATE OF POSITIVE CHANGE

Total Beneficiaries
Livelihood

111

8,484

individuals

groups

Socio-Cultural/
External Relations/
Resettlements

328

groups

Doing good business by doing good.
This is EDC’s guiding principle in the pursuit of corporate excellence that goes beyond the financial bottom line. We commit
to uplifting the lives of our host communities and employees and to protecting and enhancing the rights and opportunities
of our stakeholders throughout our supply chain. Our core value of results-driven teamwork underscores the importance
of partnership in achieving the goals of creating safe environments and hospitable social climates, and of harmonious
relationships with stakeholders in areas where we operate.

At the heart of our community engagements is people empowerment.
Our CSR initiatives are geared towards sustainability. We catalyze change in communities so that they can ultimately bring
about their own development and break their cycle of poverty. Our Community Partnerships programs on health, education,
livelihood, and environment help raise the standard of living of our host communities and promote self-empowering actions.
We strengthen the capabilities of host communities by preparing them for emergency situations or displacements due
to climate change and geologic changes if and when it cannot be avoided. In all our dealings, we are guided by a strong
emphasis on integrity, transparency, accountability, and fairness. Our Manual on Corporate Governance reiterates this
long-standing culture of “beyond compliance,” while our Code of Conduct and Business Ethics and Personnel Manual
have explicit policies concerning compliance, anti-competitive behavior, corruption, and public policy.
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Change is in the air
From a distance, one sees a group of farmers talking animatedly in front of a blackboard filled with numbers and names
of produce. While a typical sight these days, it is almost hard to imagine years ago, when productivity was low and income
was erratic. If there were gatherings among them, it was mostly to kill time. To support themselves during periods of low
productivity, some of the farmers and other members of the communities engaged in slash-and-burn farming, unwittingly
destroying the environment on which their livelihoods depended.
This alarmed us. The health of the watershed, our company, and our communities are all tied together intimately, and
this is reflected in our policy on corporate social responsibility (CSR). Thus, when the farmers and the communities were
first organized in our areas of operation more than three decades ago it was to solicit their help in the protection and
preservation of the watersheds.
It was a definite but difficult change for them to work with nature rather than against it, but we knew that the old finesand-fences approach would not work where the people’s livelihood depended on the environment. A paradigm shift and
an attitude of symbiosis and harmony with the forest needed to replace the old practice of subjugation, of slash-and-burn.
Often, new initiatives are regarded with indifference when they do not promise free benefits that has characterized old
interventions. At the same time, we also knew that we had to step up and show our new partners that EDC can be trusted.
To a large extent, they have seen a lot of other well-intentioned assistance programs come and go, and heard promises that
were never fulfilled.

Monitoring and
managing our
impacts
Social prosperity and environmental
stewardship are at the heart of the
livelihood modules of our Community
Partnerships Program, which is our
own brand of CSR. To protect our
resources, we saw environmentalism
as the foundation of our economic
success. As a responsible business,
we saw our prosperity as integral to our
host communities’ overall progress.
Over the years, our Community
Partnerships Programs have become
more robust, and we do our best to
make sure our presence contributes
to an improvement in the quality of
life of our beneficiaries, which consist
of 44 primary partner communities,
17,680 households, 111 community
associations, 151 schools, and 47
health centers.
We made sure that we did not
criminalize the behavior of people who
were doing slash-and-burn farming
because it was the only method
they knew that put food on the table
instantly. Rather, we saw them as
potential partners. By initiating our
social forestry programs in 1985, we
were able to re-equip the farmers and
turn them into forest stewards. We are
gratified to note that this pioneering
program anticipated the concept of
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Payment for Environmental Services
(PES) and the particular scheme of
creating ecosystem jobs, which now
prove crucial given the impacts of
industrialization and global warming.
EDC’s continuing investment in social
forestry is our way of implementing
PES according to the local context.
Members of our host communities
achieve financial stability as we
employ them in jobs related to
the conservation, protection, and
enhancement of the forest watersheds
on which our business depends.
We are proud of the fact that we
have been able to transform a lot of
slash-and-burn farmers into profitable
environmental champions throughout
our more than three decades of
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operations. No longer passive victims
killing time, the residents are now
equipped with skills to upgrade their
standard of living and to respond to
disasters and calamities so that they
become their own motors of change
and recovery.
To manage our impacts, we conduct
social acceptability monitoring every
two years, which measures and
helps us manage our social and
environmental performance across our
five geothermal project areas.
Social acceptability monitoring
allows us to monitor and analyze
the community’s perception of EDC
and our CSR projects; determine the
level of awareness and appreciation
of our programs; identify strengths
and areas of improvement in both
our operations and Community
Partnerships Program; measure
our impacts on the socio-cultural,
political, and economic development
of the communities; and implement
feasible solutions to enhance the
company’s overall social performance.
Complementing these are information,
education and communication (IEC)
campaigns implemented regularly
throughout the project cycle. The
IEC campaigns seek to inform and
familiarize host communities about our
operations; increase their awareness,
consciousness, and participation in
community building; establish stronger
linkages with the various stakeholders;
and generate feedback for planning
and process improvement.

Initial results of our 2010 study,
conducted by an independent third
party, showed a continuing trend of
positive improvement in terms of the
communities’ awareness, appreciation,
and willingness to support our
geothermal projects and our programs.
These initial results, covering the
Leyte Geothermal Production Field
and the Southern Negros Geothermal
Production Field communities,
showed that in terms of community
empowerment, 72% believe that they
received the needed preparations
for them to be successful while 84%
find the livelihood programs fit their
individual needs. Eighty-eight percent
agree that EDC is leaving a legacy to
the community through its initiatives
in addressing livelihood issues while
76% provided a high rating to our
company in terms of sustainability of
its livelihood initiatives for the future
generation.
With our entry into new geothermal
and wind energy concessions, we
conducted IEC campaigns for more
than 50 local government units
(LGUs) in various parts of Ilocos
Norte, Palawan, Camiguin, Surigao
del Norte, Dinagat Islands, and in
Mount Labo and Mount Mainit in
Luzon and Mindanao, respectively.
Our Community Partnerships projects,
social acceptability monitoring, and
IEC campaigns are part of a continuing
effort to create and validate awareness
of our operation.

Demo farms were established in our host areas
to further enhance our farmers’ entrepreneurial skills

A successful
working
relationship
Because of the climate of goodwill
and positive change in our host
communities, we are proud to say
that they have truly flourished and
grown in terms of exhibiting various
levels of self-sufficiency. We continue
to invest in community development
and livelihood programs to improve
their productivity. Among our
beneficiaries, there is now a growing
maturity and sophistication in the
paradigm equating social prosperity
with environmental protection and
conservation. The farmers’ and
community associations (FA / CAs)
we organized and empowered to help
in the protection and preservation
of watersheds have become
themselves proactive in developing
and sustaining their local economies.
With the creation of ecosystemrelated livelihoods, we drive home
the important message that there are
direct economic opportunities in caring
for the environment.
In 2010, we invested PhP207.8
million on ecosystem-related
livelihood and other enterprise
development programs in our fenceline communities. Of this total amount,
1,953 small / large-scale labor
contracts with a combined amount
of PhP178.5 million, from PhP173
million in 2009, were invested in the
federations consisting of 111 EDCorganized FAs/CAs, giving additional
income sources to its 8,484 memberbeneficiaries. These contracts consist
of maintenance and support work
for the continued operation of our
geothermal facilities.
Livelihood projects worth PhP22.6
million also benefitted farmers and
fishermen in particular, providing
them with alternative and viable
income options while assisting them
with helpful agri- and aquaculture
technologies. To further enhance their
entrepreneurial skills, we established
22.8 hectares of demo farms planted
with sweet corn, rice, banana,
vegetables, and other high value
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humble collective of farmers. MinoyanMailum Farmers’ Federation Inc.
(MIMAFFI), the federation in charge
of the trading, recently completed a
survey to expand their market and
consequently, their production to
provide more income to its members.
Some livelihood projects in our host
communities have also matured so
that they no longer required direct
funding from our company. In Negros
Oriental and Leyte, the federations now
source their funds from the income
they would generate, which last year
amounted to PhP2.7 million.

crops using new technologies in our
Sorsogon, Leyte, Negros Occidental,
and Negros Oriental project sites.
There, we showcase the appropriate
development and management of
income generating projects.
What our communities have done
with these numbers tell the more
important story. Our livelihood projects
have generated a combined gross
income of PhP42.9 million, a leap
from 2009’s PhP28.26 million. In
Negros Oriental and Leyte, there has
been a 103% increase in households
employed since 2005, from 110 to
223, and average annual income also
grew by 84% over the same period,
from PhP40,554 to PhP74,422 per
household. Because of their improved
income, 74% of the households were
able to send their children to high
school and college, which to them
helps ensure their children a future
brighter than what had been available
to them when they were young.

The Federation of Bacon-Manito Host
Communities (FEDBAHC), comprising
of nine community associations
representing the barangays that
host BGPF, was also able to avail of
a credit facility from Land Bank of
the Philippines (LBP) in the amount
of PhP8 million. While our CSR and
Community Partnerships departments
negotiated the loan for FEDBAHC,
it is the improved capability of the
federation that made the loan possible.
Created only three years ago, the
federation has been the recipient of
more than a hundred small-scale
projects from our company, including
civil works, slope stabilization, and
plantation establishment. This loan
from LBP improves the economic
opportunities available to its members
while teaching self-reliance and
limiting resource capital exposure for
our company.

We are very conscientious about
complying with mandated financial
benefits that are due to our host LGUs.
Through Energy Regulations (ER)
1-94, EDC sets aside one centavo
per kilowatt-hour of power generated
from the geothermal plants to fund
electrification, development and
livelihood, reforestation and watershed
management, health, and environment
enhancement projects proposed
by the LGUs. Similarly, EDC paid
PhP43.1 million in national wealth
taxes or royalties in compliance with
the Renewable Energy Act of 2008
and the Local Government Code of
1991. Our Mindanao geothermal plant
has the indigenous group Manobo
as members of its host communities,
and proceeds from ER1-94 go to the
Environmental and Tribal Welfare Trust
Fund (see sidebar on page 108 for
detailed discussion).

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Investments

6% 1%
9%
69%

The sweet corn production and trading
project of the host communities of
our Northern Negros geothermal site
which produces 5,000 cobs of sweet
corn per week for an entire year,
became the supplier of a well-known
corn distribution company in the
province, a feat for what began as a
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Encouraged by these positive results,
we embarked on other capabilitybuilding initiatives in 2010. They
include a technical, financial, and
skills training that benefitted 3,351
members of associations across five
project sites and a financial evaluation
of 11 livelihood projects in these sites.
We also facilitated another PhP5.5
million loan from LBP to support
small-scale contracting and livelihood
projects, and a PhP1.9 million grant
from Fiber Industry Development
Authority (FIDA) for abaca postharvest facilities.
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Livelihood (including small
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Others (Socio-cultural and
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Health
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Strength in
numbers
Our Community Partnerships
Programs are a testament to the scale
of the good that we can accomplish
and facilitate when done in partnership
with our communities.
We seek to create a climate of
positive change and possibility in
our host communities. We know
we can catalyze change by treating
everyone we work with as equals and
by working harmoniously with all our
partners towards the fulfillment of a
common goal. As we continue with our
partnerships, we keep in mind that our
company has an equal responsibility
to deliver on our promise of positive
impact. According to MIMAFFI
president, Edmund Cantanilla, “There
is a great difference in the lives of the
sweet corn farmers and other members
of their federation because EDC honors
its part of the commitment.” FEDBAHC

president Reynaldo Sesbreno adds,
“With EDC’s guidance, you can be
assured that we will continue to provide
quality service.”
Now, our capable local suppliers
contribute greatly to the ease and
efficiency of our operations. Our
successful livelihood programs with
the farmers, fishermen, and partnerbeneficiaries drive the local economy,
strengthening social services,
infrastructure, and other industries
that increase productivity. In turn,
our presence provides employment
and other opportunities to uplift the
economic status of the residents and
improve their standard of living.
With partnerships, success begets
success.

Partnering for

POTENT CHANGE
We believe in the capacity of public and private sector–
cooperation to effect widespread and potent change in the
Philippines, especially given the magnitude of the social
problems. The success of our Community Partnerships
Program on health, education, livelihood, and environment
is due in part to the policies and frameworks of our partner
local government units (LGUs) and government agencies
such as the Department of Education (DepEd), Department
of Labor and Employment (DOLE), Department of
Environment and Natural Resources (DENR), Department
of Agriculture (DA), Department of Trade and Industry
(DTI), Bureau of Fisheries and Aquatic Resources (BFAR),

Commission on Audit (COA), Technical Education and
Skills Development Authority (TESDA), Fiber Industry
Development Authority (FIDA), National Disaster Risk
Reduction and Management Council (NDRRMC), and
Philippine Science High School–Eastern Visayas. Other
private sector and civic group partners include Gawad
Kalinga, Philippine Emerging Startups Open, Ateneo de
Manila University, Silliman University, Cotabato Tribal
Consultative Council for Development, and OBO-Manobo
Active Language Resource and Community Development,
among others.
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Livelihood / entrepreneurial development
DESCRIPTION

LOCATIONS

OUTCOMES

PARTNERS

Negros Oriental, Negros
Occidental, Sorsogon,
Albay, Leyte, North
Cotabato

8,484 members of 111 FAs / CAs;
2 federations; 3 cooperatives

5 Project Sites

13 primary / major and 12 secondary / minor
livelihood projects implemented; PhP40,137,976
gross income generated

5 Project Sites

13 primary / major livelihood projects;
PhP37,888,612 gross income generated by the
associations

a. Rice Production

Sorsogon, Albay, Leyte,
Negros Oriental

11 associations; 104 hectares established /
maintained; PhP4,689,938 gross income generated

b. Banana Plantation / Production

North Cotabato

41 associations; 26.6 hectares established; 247
hectares maintained; PhP12,284,225 gross income

c. Banana Commercial Project

Negros Oriental

1 association; 1 hectare established (nursery
operations & land preparations)

d. Vegetable and Corn Production
using Drip Irrigation

Negros Oriental,
Negros Occidental

9 associations; 0.5 hectare established;
PhP564,482.90 gross income generated

e. Vegetable Production
conventional

Negros Oriental

11 associations; 5.13 hectares established /
maintained; PhP544,706 gross income generated

f. Abaca Plantation

Leyte, Negros Oriental

24 associations; 261.83 hectares established /
maintained; PhP1,124,802 gross income generated

g. Coffee Plantation

Negros Oriental

11 associations; 74.91 hectares established /
maintained; PhP1,040,608 gross income generated

h. Fruit Trees

Negros Oriental

7 associations; 30.72 hectares established /
maintained; PhP152,957 gross income generated

i. Palay Trading

Albay

25 farmers; PhP137,597.50 gross income
generated; (Income generated for federation Proceeds from sale - PhP1,480.50)

j. Lambaklad Project

Sorsogon

1 association; 60 HH benefited; PhP206,183.50
gross sales; PhP159,632.24 net income / payback;
PhP30,961.31 allocated for maintenance and repair
/ insurance

k. Rattan Plantation

Leyte

9 associations benefited; 1,826 hectares established
/ maintained; PhP215,813.35 income generated

l. Agco Mahomanoy Mountain
Swimming Resort

North Cotabato

1 federation; constructed jacuzzi, renovated steam
bath and bedrooms; PhP16,927,299 gross income
generated

m. Forage Production

Ilocos Norte

15 community members; 1 hectare pilot forage
production established; 7 species of grass planted

5 Project Sites

12 secondary / minor projects; PhP1,707,245
gross income generated

a. Coco Coir and Geotextile

Sorsogon

1 association; 65 HH benefited; PhP117,712.00
income generated; PhP30,000.00 pay back;
PhP13,000.00 net income

COCOBIND

b. Aquasilviculture

Sorsogon

1 association; 35 HH benefited; PhP24,000.00
income generated (previous year of operation)

BFAR/LGU

c. High Value Vegetable Production

Sorsogon, Leyte

8 associations; 0.5 hectare established/maintained;
PhP244,040 gross income generated

d. Food Processing

Sorsogon

2 associations; 42 HH benefited; PhP48,408 income
generated (previous years of operation included)

e. Cutflower Production

Leyte, Negros Oriental

4 associations; 0.5 hectare established/maintained;
PhP297,250 gross income generated

f. Vermi Culture

Negros Oriental

1 association; 6 bins constructed;
PhP9,650 gross income generated

g. Ilang Ilang Tree Plantation

Leyte

2 associations benefited;
10 has established / maintained

h. Citronella

Leyte

3 associations benefited;
On-going project evaluation

i. Farm Implements and Equipment
Assistance

Leyte

13 associations benefited;
PhP100,379.00 gross income generated

A. Farmers Associations (FA) /
Community Associations (CA)
supported
B. Implementation of livelihood
projects (EDC funded projects)
PhP22,596,720.86
1. Primary / Major Projects

2. Secondary / Minor Projects
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various partners

DA, SIDC, PCIC, LGU

DA, SIDC, LGU

BFAR

DA, Agricultural
Training Institute, LGUBarangay
LGU-Barangay
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j. Crops and Livestock

Leyte

11 associations and individual households in Brgy.
Aguiting benefited; Php736,551.34 gross income
generated

k. Rubber Nursery

North Cotabato

Budded 20,000 pcs rubber seedlings

l. Vegetable Production

Negros Oriental

2 associations;
PhP129,255 gross income generated

Leyte

3 associations;
PhP542,119 income generated

Sorsogon, Leyte,
Negros Occidental,
Negros Oriental

3 associations, 1 federation, 1 cooperative;
22.8 hectares demo farms established; protocols
on production installed; marketing system for corn
and banana established; financial system to be
installed

1. Sweet Corn Production

Negros Occidental

1 federation (MIMAFFI); 6.7 hectares established;
system on production and marketing installed;
financial system to be installed

2. Rice Production using new
Technology

Negros Occidental,
Albay, Sorsogon

3 associations; (TIFA, IMFA & BAFA); 5 hectares
established; protocols on production installed;
financial system to be installed

3. Sweet Corn Production and
Banana Plantation

Negros Oriental

1 cooperative (SONEGCO); 2 hectares sweet corn
and 2 hectares banana production established;
protocols on production installed; financial system to
be installed

4. Sweet Corn, High Value Crops,
and Squash Production

Leyte

2 associations (ACA & LADCA); 5 hectares squash
production, 1,000 m2 high value crops, and 2
hectares sweet corn protocols on production
installed; financial system to be installed

Negros Oriental, Leyte

37 associations, 1 cooperative
PhP2,779,376 gross income generated from
various projects

1. Banana Trading

Negros Oriental

SONEGCO funded project: PhP470,000 investment
PhP200,000 net income

2. Consumer Store

Leyte

14 associations; PhP936,559 income generated
from consumer store

3. Other Livelihood Projects

Leyte

23 associations; PhP3,538,401 investment;
PhP1,642,817 gross income generated from 40
projects

Sorsogon, Albay, Leyte,
Negros Occidental

1,953 labor contracts awarded

DOLE, COA, DTI, Land
Bank

Bicol, Leyte, North
Cotabato, Negros
Occidental and Negros
Oriental

3,351 members of the associations trained in
various technical, financial and values formation
skills training;

various partners

Leyte, Negros Oriental

Facilitated a total of PhP5.5M loan from Land
Bank of the Philippines to support small scale
contracting and livelihood projects; received
PhP1.9M grant from FIDA for abaca post harvest
facilities

Land Bank, FIDA

Sorsogon, Negros
Occidental,
Negros Oriental

Prepared business proposal for palay trading (for
FEDBAHC) and banana trading (for Sonegco and
Mimaffi)

5 Project Sites

Completed financial evaluation of 11 livelihood
projects of 5 federations and 2 livelihood projects
of 2 federations/cooperatives

Negros Oriental

6 units satellite stockroom constructed

3. Other Income Generating Livelihood
Projects
C. Establishment and Management
of Demo Farms (Pilot projects
handled by CSRD)
PhP4,826,890.00

D. Other livelihood projects of the
Associations (fund source of the
projects are from the income of
EDC-funded livelihood projects)

E. Small and Large Scale Contracts
PhP178,501,399.04
G. Technical Skills and Trainings
PhP550,051.00
H. Cost Savings Opportunity (through
funding, partnerships, and joint
venture)
PhP550,051.00
I. Development of Business Proposals
PhP481,800.00
J. Livelihood Project Monitoring and
Evaluation
PhP555,900.00
K. Other Livelihood Project Support
PhP366,030.00

DA - Department of Agriculture
SIDC - Sorosoro Ibaba Development Cooperative
PCIC - Philippine Crop Insurance Corporation
LGU - Local Government Unit
BFAR - Bureau of Fisheries and Aquatic Resources
COCOBIND - Coco Coir Business Integration and Development
DOLE - Department of Labor and Employment
COA - Commission on Audit
DTI - Department of Trade and Industry
FIDA - Fiber Industry Development Authority
VSU - Visayas State University
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2010 infrastructure investments and services
PROJECT

LOCATION

COST
(in Millions of PhP)

EDC Funded

3.7

Construction and / or Repair of
Classrooms and School Buildings /
Facilities

Negros Oriental, Leyte, Albay, North Cotabato

2.5

Construction and / or Repair of Barangay
Health Centers

Negros Oriental, Sorsogon, Albay, North Cotabato

0.6

Improvement of Water Systems

Sorsogon

0.6

Energy Regulations (ER) 1-94 Funded: Approved/Implemented 2009 through 2010 (
Road Construction / Improvement
Projects and Services

)

54.5

Sitio Tublijon, Brgy. Rizal, Sorsogon City, Sorsogon; Valencia,
Negros Oriental; Sitio Abanes, Brgy. Mahawan, Kananga;
Brgy. Tongonan, Ormoc City, Leyte; Sitio Napagasan, Brgy.
Poblacion, Kananga, Leyte; Brgy. San Isidro, Ormoc City,
Leyte

7.5

Electrification / Street Lighting Projects

Kidapawan City, North Cotabato; Eastern Visayas

Irrigation / Water System Projects

Brgys. San Vicente and Buena Vista, Ormoc City, Leyte;
Sitio Bagacay, Brgy. Bulabog, Sorsogon City, Sorsogon; Brgy.
Ticol, Sorsogon City, Sorsogon; Brgys. Cabintan and Ga-as,
Ormoc City, Leyte

31.9
6.4

Environmental Support Projects

Brgy. Tongonan, Ormoc City, Leyte

3.3

Health Support Projects

Brgy. Capuy, Sorsogon City, Sorsogon; Brgy. Caidiocan,
Valencia, Negros Oriental

1.4

Other Community Projects

Brgy. Malaunay, Valencia, Negros Oriental; Kananga, Leyte

4.0

Total

58.2

2010 environmental investments
2010 CSR Intervention
PROGRAM MENU

Beneficiaries
(individual / group)

Cost
(in Millions of Php)

BINHI: Greening Legacy

774,519 trees / 60 species planted in
1,071.0 hectares; 12 project areas

26.6

Participation in Annual Earth Day and
Environment Month

Various agencies / institutions in
44 PPBs

0.07

El Tejado Verde (Rooftop Greening Project)

1 rooftop (EDC in Fort Bonifacio)

0.2

Disaster preparedness and response

242 members in 21 organized BERT;
136 families assisted with relief goods

0.3

Development of ecotourism sites

1 site (BacMan)

TOTAL

378 individuals and 51 groups
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Building
better lives
Infrastructure investments are
an important aspect of the socioeconomic development thrust of
the company. By building public
infrastructure, we help create a
social environment in our areas of
operation that supports the needs
of our business for efficient delivery
of products and services. From the
construction or renovation of roads,
schools, and health centers, public
services such as access to health and
sanitation services, enhanced irrigation
and water systems, to street lighting
projects, we make it a point to utilize
local labor and services for every
infrastructure project. By providing
employment and enhancing access to
public services in an effort to alleviate
poverty in our areas of operation,
we upgrade the average household
income and improve the standard of
living so that they become hospitable
environments not only for the company
but for the entire community. Last
year, almost 20% of our entire budget
for Community Partnerships or PhP58
million was spent on infrastructure
investments and services. PhP54
million or 93% was contributed
as mandated financial benefits to
communities.
Because of the nature of our business,
we understand that certain areas may
be vulnerable to geologic changes
and the effects of climate change. We
avoid displacement when possible.
However, should relocation prove
exigent, we offer a resettlement
package to those affected. We provide
just compensation of affected property
and / or crops where it cannot be
avoided, and replicate or improve on
original living standards. We have a
policy and program on resettlement
based on the World Bank (WB)
and Japan Bank for International
Cooperation (JBIC) Directive on
Involuntary Resettlement, which
provides for the replacement of all lost
structures, amenities, and livelihoods.
We conduct consultation with the
affected households. Compensation for
damaged crops follows market values
determined by the local assessor’s

office. We also attend WB training on
Involuntary Resettlement, and report
to WB and JBIC on our performance
based on baseline data and regular
monitoring and surveys of new settlers.

vents in Brgy. Ticala in Valencia. We
built and completed the community on
a 18,158 sq.m land in Brgy. Malaunay,
Valencia that our company donated.
The Geothermal-GK Village can
accommodate a total of 32 houses.

For instance, at the start of our
operations in Leyte in 1983, we turned
over to affected settlers 80 residential
lots and 29 farm lots. They continue to
benefit from our livelihood programs
through direct employment, smallscale contracts, lending, agriculture,
and individual businesses such as
piggeries and sari-sari stores. We assist
relocated settlers in the development
of sustainable projects and financial
management systems, and facilitate
their attendance in trainings and their
linkages with buyers and customers.
In 2010, we established a Geothermal
GK Village in Valencia, Negros Oriental,
and built 20 core shelter units. When
the residents of Brgy. Caidiocan in
Valencia, Negros Oriental lost their
homes due to typhoon Butchoy in
2008, our company worked with
Gawad Kalinga on a housing project
for those affected by the calamity.
Among the relocatees were eight
families living near the natural steam

Our executives and employees volunteered to help
build the Geothermal GK village in Valencia, Negros Oriental
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PROTECTING
OUR

INDIGENOUS

PEOPLES

Among our host communities are
the Manobos, an indigenous group
that lives in the surroundings of
our Mindanao geothermal facilities.
Indigenous Peoples (IPs) are
considered one of the most vulnerable
sectors of society, and we seek to
protect their rights and promote
their welfare with our interactions
with them. We recognize the need to
integrate them into the mainstream
of society so that they have access
to important social services, while
protecting and respecting their culture.
We facilitate the prosperity of our IP
communities so that they can keep
pace with the progress of our project.
Last year, we paid the amount of
PhP7.8 million to the Indigenous
Peoples Projects from the electricity
sales generated by our Mindanao
power plants. Almost PhP5.3 million
was used last year to fund Mt. Apo
Foundation, Inc. (MAFI), which
manages the Environmental Tribal
Welfare Trust Fund (ETWTF) and
oversees our programs concerning the
Manobos. Eighty-six percent of the
fund for the year went to educational
programs, which covered college
scholarships and technical-vocational
scholarships to 43 and 17 IP youths,
respectively; financial assistance to
14 high school students; and the
monthly honorarium of 16 volunteer
teachers under the Teachers-to-theBarangays Project. We also supported
the law studies of one qualified IP
scholar training to become an IP
lawyer, and the graduate studies of
another qualified IP youth taking up a
master’s degree in education. Due to
our education, skills development, and
capability-building investments, we
have been able to hire 16 members
of the IP community as regular
employees in our MGPF.
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Ten percent of the ETWTF went to the
Tribal Capability Program, designed
to assist in the eradication of illiteracy
among the IPs; and to provide
financial, administrative, technical,
and logistical support to the local
IP organization for the effective and
efficient implementation of its projects.
We also invested in environmental
programs to help preserve and protect
Mount Apo National Park, which
is part of their ancestral domain. A
3.1-hectare agricultural land was
also developed into a sustainable
agro-forestry farm for productive
agriculture-based projects that provide
additional revenues to MAFI and
serves as laboratory for MAFI scholars.
We are sensitive to cultural
differences. Thus, we work closely
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with the National Commission on
Indigenous Peoples, the Cotabato
Tribal Consultative Council for
Development, OBO-Manobo Active
Language Resource and Community
Development, and the LGUs. Last
year, we participated in the Ancestral
Domain Sustainable Management
planning. We attended tribal federation
meetings and consulted the IP
communities during MAFI meetings,
and included them in our regular
social acceptability surveys. We are
proud to say that because of these
efforts, there were no
incidences of violations
of IP rights in 2010.
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Education for
Empowerment
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To Soar Higher:
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EMPOWERMENT
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It is summer—school’s out. Spic and span, no bell nor laughter rings in the halls.
Today, the place is stripped of the studious shuffling of the last 10 months and seems
more a workshop than a school. In fact, with its scattered sprawl of low structures
and a backdrop of gently rolling hills of Kananga, the place bears little resemblance
to its previous incarnation as an old airstrip. And yet, everyday, something bigger and
more precious than airplanes takes off from here.
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A widening gap
For a long time, the people of Kananga, Leyte had much to fear about the future. It’s hard not to be timid about one’s
dreams—the facts were dismal. Leyte, the site of the world’s largest wet steamfield that is owned by EDC, is found along a
typhoon-belt area. As such, it experiences limited industrialization and economic development. Most upland communities
also earn a meager average annual household income ranging from PhP10,000 to PhP15,000 annually, making education
practically impossible to a large majority. To 15-year-old Lorelie Mae Alao, whose father is a security guard and mother is a
plain housewife, the lack of means for her education is a bitter pill to swallow. She has, after all, been a scholar since her
freshman year at Dolores National High School in Leyte. But only 25% of Leyte’s high school graduates have the resources
to pursue college, and with two younger siblings to see through school, Lorelie’s plans to pursue college seem extravagant.
At 15% unemployment rate, it also seems foolish.
It’s not so much that there are no jobs in Leyte. Being a key member of the local community, EDC has projects that uplift
the economic status of our host communities through small-scale contracts for the company’s operational and maintenance
requirements. While Leyte’s industries can accommodate the additional labor force, sometimes the graduates do not have
sufficient skills to satisfy the job requirement. Local skills are very limited as these communities have long been dependent
on subsistence farming. So the gap between opportunity and availability, dreams and reality remained, and Lorelie and the
youth of Kananga faced this chasm of incapacity. Dispirited by dreams that might plummet down the valley of defeat, their
vision of a bright future could not take flight.

Incubating
excellence in
education
To address this obstacle to
development, EDC invests heavily in
educational programs. We consider
education a major aspect of our CSR
programs in areas where we operate,
one of which is Leyte. The benefits of
quality education to society are hard to
dispute and can prove exponential in
the long term. But, for various reasons,
access to quality education in the
provinces largely remains a hit-andmiss affair despite aggressive public
and private investment. Its full range of
benefits is untapped when the broader
social context is afflicted with a lack
of public infrastructure, employment
opportunities, basic social services and
the like that can support and retain
productive citizens.
Together with the municipality of
Kananga and the national agency
Technical Education and Skills
Development Authority (TESDA), we
set up one of our most ambitious
CSR investments: Kananga-EDC
Institute of Technology (KEITECH) in
Kananga, Leyte in 2009. KEITECH
was established to help high school
graduates who have no means to
pursue higher education to become
highly skilled and be employable in
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“I’ve seen a lot of changes
with Johnnidel since
he started his training
at KEITECH. Now he is
focused on his studies,
rarely goes out with
his friends, and always
helps me in the household
chores.”
Lilia Suazo, mother of
trainee Johnnidel Suazo

the global market. Complementing
KEITECH is a strong focus on primary
and high school education for
children of the upland communities
where access to knowledge is truly
a challenge. We hope to energize
the education pipeline of our rural
communities by providing excellent
opportunities at every stage, with
full consideration of the realities that
afflict the remote countryside. These
include hunger, lack of resources,
and the unemployment of parents.
We address these challenges so we
can boost the students’ performance
and productivity.

productive, and empowered citizens.
At the same time, we seek to develop
educational models and ecosystems
that are better attuned to Philippine
social realities so that we can respond
with potency and effectiveness.

A safe landing
KEITECH sets the bar for the
alternative education program that
seeks to transform the countryside’s
unskilled workers into one of the most
highly sought retooled, responsible,
and creative builders. Located at
Brgys. Rizal and Hiluctugan, our
campus houses topnotch training
facilities on courses based on the
top 30 job qualifications of local and
overseas job vacancies.
The tech-voc program, open to
qualified high school graduates with
no resources for college education,
offers courses that strongly adhere
to competency-based training of
technical and safety skills utilizing
modern machineries for instruction,
and on-the-job internship.
Emphasizing proper values and proper
work attitude is a key differentiating
factor among our graduates, and our

values formation component focuses
on self-discipline and excellence,
among others.
We are extremely proud to report that
everyone’s hard work has paid off. We
have closed the gap, dreams have
taken off, and made safe landings.
In 2010, KEITECH has set a record
for two achievements: it is the only
technical-vocational education and
training institution in Region 8 to
successfully graduate 100% (117
scholars) of its trainees, and with all
117 earning five certifications from
TESDA when typically trainees would
earn from one up to three certifications
only. These feats we achieved after
only a year of operations and a training
duration of 10.3 months. On top of
these achievements is the immediate
employment of 109 of the 117
graduates. Five of the remaining eight
graduates pursued higher education
and the last three had yet to reach the
statutory age for employment as of
data gathering.
This very high employment rate of
our graduates affirms our strategy to
develop a training curriculum that is
tailored to current work opportunities
and the demands of the job market
and then to provide assistance in their

Career guidance is another important
component of our education program,
targeting the top students from
different high schools in our host areas
through EDC’s College Admission
Review and Readiness (CAREERS)
project. These bright students have
a greater chance of fulfilling their
dreams if they can channel their
unique individual capabilities to
college courses and careers that they
have the enthusiasm and aptitude for.
Our education initiatives go beyond
the conventional and into the heart of
a more comprehensive approach. We
incubate excellence in all our schools
and training centers in two ways.
Through their unique curricula and
improved school facilities, we seek to
create a world-class pool of capable,

Female students also excel in KEITECH’s Shield Arc Metal classes
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job placements. Our job placement
office does labor-market mapping
and intelligence reports. While finding
employment abroad is an option to
all our graduates, boosting the local
economy through local placements is
an equal priority.

Energizing
our education
pipeline
Our model Schools for Excellence
(SFE) in the upland communities of
Tongonan, Ormoc City and Tongonan,
Kananga in Leyte are seven-year
cooperation projects that offer a
template for enhanced education
right at the crucial formative years.
The goal is for its graduates to be on
a par with those of Manila’s private
schools. Now on its fifth year, SFE
has benefited 716 students and 20
teachers. We are proud to report that
the students’ performance over the
last five years, marked by zero nonreaders since 2006, show encouraging
results. There was 9% increase in
student’s retention and 13.1% increase
in class participation rate. In terms of
national exams, there was a 25.7%
increase in the National Aptitude Test
(NAT) score among the third graders
and a 18.9% increase in NAT score
among the sixth graders. Because our
students’ performance is tied intimately
to their physical well being, a health
component is part of our SFE program
template. We continued our feeding
program in 2010, which increased the
children’s weight by 15%. This led to
an increase in attendance by 7.4%.

“When we started hiring KEITECH graduates through
their placement linkages, we got interested with
them because they showed exemplary technical and
interpersonal skills. Trainees are very patient, diligent,
hard working, team players, versatile, and can deliver
the result as instructed. We hired female KEITECH
graduates and two of them were promoted as project
supervisors: one is supervising our Cebu projects and
the other one is based in Manila.”
Cebu Sky Rise Builders

course at the UP Los Baños campus.
We seek to improve on the success
rate of our CAREERS project in the
coming years. A total of 1,939 high
school students also participated in
the career guidance fairs conducted
at all partner schools in our host
communities throughout 2010.
Alternative learning modules such
as on-the-job trainings and skills
improvement were also offered to 239
students. This was done in partnership
with TESDA, DOLE, and Philippine
Emerging Startups Open, which seeks
to catalyze technology and innovation
businesses in the country.

Through EDC’s CAREERS project,
we supported the college entrance
examination review of 154 top
students from 20 partner high schools,
including Lorelie, who were interested
in being admitted into the University
of the Philippines (UP), considered
the country’s national university and
leading research institution. We are
proud to note that Lorelie and 10
other examinees passed the rigorous
and highly competitive UP College
Admission Test. Lorelie was accepted
into the Bachelor of Science in
Mathematics and Science Teaching
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It takes a village…
So goes the saying when it comes
to raising children, and which may
be applied to their education as
well. A child’s school performance is
often only as good as the quality of
education and the support system he
receives from his teachers and his
parents.
We make it a point to get the parents
involved in the school activities. As
the schoolchildren develop new
habits, their parents need to be
better reinforcing agents and to be

EDUCATION FOR EMPOWERMENT

as equally invested in their children’s
future. Parents participate in the
school feeding program as well as
income generating projects, which
help promote economic sufficiency
in the participating households and
ensure against dropouts due to a lack
of resources. Apart from livelihood
programs in our host communities,
a parental intervention program
was mounted last year in our North
Cotabato host communities. The
program consisted of eight income
generating projects in cooperation
with 14 schools in Kidapawan.
We continuously upgrade the skills
and enhance the capability of our
teachers by providing them with yearround training on math and science
education from the Philippine Science
High School–Eastern Visayas Campus.
Excellence in these two subjects
has been tied to global competitive
rankings of various countries, and it
remains a challenge for the Philippine
public education curriculum and our
schoolchildren. The Philippine Science
High School is reputed to be one of
the most competitive schools in the

country, hence our joint undertaking
with them, which started in 2008. A
partnership has also been signed with
the Ateneo Center for Educational
Development to complement this by
strengthening the overall curriculum.
Last year, 185 teachers from public

schools in Sorsogon, Leyte, Negros
Oriental, Negros Occidental, and North
Cotabato benefited from this program.

THE EXCELLENCE INCENTIVE
Providing an excellent incentive
for our high school scholars in our
communities is our company’s
award-winning Energy Camp. While
competitive, the camp ensures fun
and experiential learning for our
scholars and creates a unique learning
experience while teaching them about
the value of geothermal energy and the
need to protect our environment
A total of 261 scholars with excellent
academic standing became eligible
to be energy campers last year, with
a special camp for honor students
attending a special geothermal
101 course. Students were taught
leadership skills that would help them
maximize their full potential to expand
their horizon. It also boosted their
confidence and personality through
a series of activities designed to

challenge them. The campers were
taught outdoor survival skills like map
reading and basic first aid. They also
had career orientation with EDC’s
pool of engineers and scientists as
resource persons.
Energy Camp is now on its seventh
year and has benefited a total of 1,794
student and teacher campers. It has
received several Anvil awards from
the Public Relations Society of the
Philippines and the Gold Quill awards
from the International Association of
Business Communicators. Moreover,
it has won the praise and endorsement
of the participants, their parents,
schools, and LGUs since the program
started. The Energy Camp has
become a sustainable program that
promotes growth and maturity among
our campers long after they have left
the camp premises.
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Better, broader
horizon
Our education projects seek to provide
the youth in our communities with a
stronger foundation upon which they
can build better lives and explore new
horizons. Part of our goal is to create
the most positive impact to as many
people as possible, hence our focus
on a continuous cycle of improvement.
By developing training and education
models, we are able to scale up our
programs and replicate them for
greater significance.
Despite our successes, we took
2010 as a period to further review
the KEITECH model of alternative
education. Given our lessons and
experience from last year, we effected
changes and additional trainings to
respond to external considerations
such as length of time needed to
master industry-level standards and
inputs from industrial partners. We
also reviewed our admission process,
such as age requirements, and made
additional provisions to ensure that
all our graduates would meet the
requirements of the recruitment
processes of partners and future
employers.

Students learn about kitchen management in KEITECH’s Tourism module

In the coming years we look forward to
continuously closing the gap between
our rural communities and the chance
for a better life through education,
and attracting the participation of as
many partners as possible. TESDA
has expressed interest in replicating
KEITECH in other regions due to
its success. In a recent TESDA
assessment feedback, the assessors
who evaluated the venue, trainees,
and trainers in all qualifications gave a
rating between “very good” and “very
excellent.” One even commented that
KEITECH is “unbeatable.”

Given too the success of the SFE
model, we hope to offer it to the top
Philippine businesses as their social
investment by adopting any of the
56,000 public elementary schools in
the country.
But to us, the most heartening of
all is the response of our KEITECH
graduates to our scholarship program.
Five graduates who have already
obtained gainful employment are now
making contributions to the school to
help our next batch of trainees reach
their goals as the graduates now work
to fulfill their own dreams.

THE OSCAR M. LOPEZ PROFESSORIAL CHAIR:

REWARDING RESEARCH EXCELLENCE
Research excellence is one of the
linchpins of our leadership position in
the industry, and we wish to encourage
its pursuit outside the advanced learning
systems we offer our employees. We
work closely with academe because
university research is one of the most
inclusive ways of promoting quality
education in the country.
Our company together with Negros
Oriental’s Silliman University, which
is one of the leading universities in
the country, established the Oscar M.
Lopez Distinguished Professorial Chair
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Educational intervention summary
2010 CSR INTERVENTION
PROGRAM MENU

BENEFICIARIES
(individual/group)

COST
(in Thousands of PhP)

School construction, repair, and equipment

19 schools

3,857.4

Teachers training and incentives

235 teachers

1,819.7

Scholarship grants and miscellaneous fees subsidies

20,124 students

7,777.5

Schools / students supplies and incentives

20,851 students

3,701.5

De-worming and feeding program

1,719 students

College Admission Review and Readiness Project for
high school seniors to enter prestigious universities

154 examinees;

Extra-curricular activities and students’ trainings

1,939 students

Parents’ intervention program

14 schools

509.8
901.0

11 passed

323.8
99.2

On-the-job training, special program for the
employment of students, and Kasanayan sa

239 students

1,192.3

Energy Camp for high school students

261 students

2,367.8

Special project: Leyte Schools for Excellence (primary

716 students;

education)

20 teachers

Special project: Kananga-EDC Institute of Technology

121 trainees;

(technical-vocational training)

25 trainers / staff

Other educational support projects / activities

11 schools

Hanapbuhay

TOTAL

5,301.7

17,256.7
1,095.2

22,812 individuals*

44,364.4

& 44 groups

* Individual count: elementary, high school, college, and tech-voc students, teachers / trainers

in Energy Engineering last year. The
prestigious professorial chair, funded
through the PhP3 million donation
by EDC and its parent firm First
Gen Corporation, will be awarded to
qualified faculty of Silliman University
doing research on geothermal and
renewable energy.
The Lopez professorial chair is a way
of boosting research and scholarship
outside Metro Manila. Many of
EDC’s current and former employees
graduated from Silliman, and they
have contributed to the company’s

growth and reputation as a worldclass geothermal and renewable
energy firm. We see this investment
in Silliman University as a way of
sending a signal to other companies
to invest in the development of
other centers of excellence. Silliman
University President Dr. Ben Malayang
is optimistic that the professorial
chair “will enable Silliman University’s
College of Engineering to improve
its instructional system and promote
the welfare and development of the
educators to carry out their mission.”
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FAIRNESS @ work
Treating each person with respect regardless of individual differences.
Equal opportunity and the protection of human rights are foundations
of our corporate culture and people development. We recognize the
diversity of talent in our workplace and the unique perspectives they
bring to the business. Thus, we work hard to foster an environment
where each individual can flourish to the best of his/her ability.
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Our Infinitely
Expansible Resource
Adding value to our business through our
employees’ expertise.
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There is a resource that defies economic principles of scarcity: while
often used, it never gets used up. Rather, it can be reused, growing more
valuable and contributing to everyone’s development as it is shared. While
it sounds a bit like geothermal energy, what we refer to here is knowledge.
At EDC, our human capital’s high level of expertise and productivity sets
us apart and propels our company to the next level of excellence. EDC
seeks to be an employer of choice. We surpass our goals and add value to
our business because of our people.
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Ave. Age of
Employees

42.7

Ave. Tenure

No. of
Training Hours

14.76 64,996
years

No. of
IP Employees

16

Our employees are our most valuable resource.
We care for our employees’ welfare so that we can build our “next in line leaders” who will propel the company to sustained
growth, profitability, and operational excellence in the coming years. We promote a results-oriented workplace and provide
our employees with training and education so that they can be the best in their fields of expertise. We believe only a
highly trained and motivated workforce can fortify the company’s geothermal leadership position and reputation for global
excellence. We seek to be the best employer and we uphold equal opportunity in the workplace to attract and retain the
most skilled personnel in the industry. We also work with partner local government units in terms of employing qualified
local residents and members of indigenous peoples. Given the level of expertise required of our employees, we ensure
rewards and remuneration are in compliance with existing legal and statutory wage requirements nationwide, internally
equitable, and market competitive. A leadership development program supports succession planning and management,
and we make it a point to monitor the career development of each staff.
Good management-employee relations are further contributory factors to our goals of workplace productivity and industrial
harmony. Ensuring occupational health and safety not only for all employees, but even among contractors and various
stakeholders, is our priority.

We shall protect human rights in all aspects of our business.
We employ people based on their qualifications without regard to sex, race, color, creed, religion, or political affiliation, and we
ensure against discrimination, child labor, and forced and compulsory labor. We accord all employees their rights in all aspects
of their employment with the company, including the right to form organizations in accordance with labor laws. We regard
the labor-management council as a partner in institutionalizing the protection of human rights into our supply chain and in
promoting responsible branding to protect our customers. Our suppliers, vendors, and contractors are also ensured of fairness
in all transactions, and it is a future objective to include human rights–specific requirements in our procurement policy and
accreditation system for commercial contracts.
We are especially cognizant of the presence of Indigenous Peoples (IPs) in some of our project areas and work to facilitate
the IPs’ prosperity so that it keeps in pace with the progress of our company. We are sensitive to the protection of their culture
and way of life as we conduct our business and interact with them. The principles and policies of the National Commission
of Indigenous Peoples on the protection of IP rights guide our actions, and we make sure to participate in Ancestral Domain
Sustainable Management planning and tribal federation meetings. Our entry into IP areas is always preceded by free and prior
informed consent.

We uphold truth in advertising and ethical public relations.
Guided by our core values of excellence and integrity, all our communication materials are geared towards reflecting our
status as a responsible corporation and the biggest pure play company in the world. In the interest of improved awareness
and customer satisfaction, we make it a point to utilize local networks and translate our informational materials to local
languages, and to maintain open communication lines with both media and non-media networks.
While we are not involved in the direct distribution of electricity, we still seek to address relevant issues on privacy, health,
and safety that may affect our customers, contractors, distribution facilities, and communities. Our Power and Steam Sales
team works in tandem with the Public Relations group in protecting the privacy of our customers. To ensure quality and
accuracy, we centralize all communication materials at the Public Relations Department and refer them to concerned
departments and sectors. They are approved by our President and Chief Operating Officer and, for special cases, elevated
to the Chief Executive Officer.
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A

bright, strapping young
man, armed with a
stellar academic record
from Silliman University
and barely half a year’s
worth of experience as a heavyequipment mechanic, finds himself
working as a well test aide at our
Southern Negros Geothermal Plant
in 1980. Of humble roots, the young
mechanical engineer’s story is one
of determination, of sheer hard work
both inside the classroom and out on
the field to sharpen his knowledge and
sense of purpose within the company.
Patiently and persistently, he rose
through the ranks as he was given,
and would surpass, more and more
challenging assignments in our other
geothermal sites. Three decades later,
in 2010, Danilo “Danny” C. Catigtig
is promoted to the position of senior
vice president of the Power Generation
Sector of EDC.
The story of Danny Catigtig is a
testament both to the quality of the
people of EDC and the support our
company gives them so that they
may improve their quality of life. Our
investment in our employees is one
that goes beyond conventional HR
development programs. To us at EDC,

convention, like mere compliance, just
won’t do. When EDC was created out
of the oil crisis in the 1970s, we knew
that solutions went beyond the realm
of traditional capital investments and
into our knowledge workforce. The
company, and the country, needed
people that would regard crisis not as
a threat but as an opportunity. Hard
working, highly productive employees
like Danny Catigtig were the kind
of people that we looked for and
attracted when we went into operation
in 1976.

The same can still be said today.
Technology, no matter how breakthrough,
and capital expenditures, no matter
how generous, are only as good as the
people who steer the course. It is our
people’s expertise that helped push the
geothermal option to the forefront of the
country’s energy, social, and environment
agenda. Three decades later, the
Philippines enjoys the stature of being
the second largest geothermal producer
in the world because of our long tradition
of high-level performers.

LOCALTALENT

GLOBALCLASS
Many people long to leave the
provinces for the big city, and
their migration often inhibits the
development in these rural parts of
the Philippines. EDC’s programs on
community development rest on the
belief that a great potential lies in the
countryside: a pool of workers ready
and willing to be trained and to excel.
SVP Danny Catigtig is but one example
of the numerous local hires that have
grown with the company, and his is
an account that serves to inspire.
Coming from a big family of 11
children where funding for education
becomes a competition rather than a
norm, Danny knew his only recourse
is to do it on his own. He took and

passed scholarship examinations to
get free education while doing menial
works to support his other needs.
He excelled in his studies, earning
academic awards and accolades
from his elementary days to postgraduate studies in Dumaguete. He
also believes that education is the
best equalizer, that rich and poor are
co-equal in the work place, and that
promotion is given to the worker who
performs well.
Local employment is a crucial
component of our company’s goal to
raise the standard of living in our host
communities. We believe that as we
grow in success, our communities
must grow in prosperity with us.

Where we are able to see our company
values at work in the individual, we do
not hesitate to support their growth
in the company, both in terms of
advanced training as well as more
challenging assignments.
As Danny stayed in the company,
he would find himself receiving
training and education on
geothermal technology in Iceland
and management in Washington
DC. We believe that as we hone our
employees’ proficiency to turn EDC
into the hub of geothermal excellence
in the world, what we are truly doing
is benefitting them, their families,
communities, and ultimately the
country. By promoting our people’s
well being, we are retaining the best
here in the Philippines.
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Pillar of success

Manpower distribution by company

History, so goes the saying, tends
to repeat itself. It is again a critical
time for our company but of a
different sort. Our company already
acquired the Palinpinon, Tongonan,
and BacMan power plants, finally
completing our acquisition targets
to expand total installed capacity in
2010, and rehabilitation is almost
complete. During the year, we also
started surface explorations for new
geothermal concessions and ventured
into the international market that may
avail of the company’s diverse portfolio
of expertise. Then we undertook a
rigorous Risk Management Program.
The time to capitalize on these
investments and actions is upon us;
leveraging our company’s 2,390-strong
human capital has become more
important than ever.
During transition periods, one’s
knowledge workforce is crucial not
only in terms of their technical and
professional expertise, for which EDC

195

94

2,390
2,585
No. of
Employees

EDC

GCGI

48%
base pay equivalent of benefits provided

74%
locally hired employees

43%
employees covered by CBAs

Temporary
(EDC and BGI)

organization. It is a priority and one we
do well.
We are proud of the fact that EDC has
been tapped by other organizations,
some in other countries, to serve as
consultants in geothermal development.

EDC MANPOWER COUNT PER SECTOR
Office of the Chairman /
President

64

2.7%

Business Development

9

0.4%

Finance

94

3.9%

HR Management

45

1.9%

Supply Chain Management

102

4.3%

Environment and External
Relations

98

4.1%

Steamfield Operations

995

41.6%

Power Generation

393

16.4%

Technical Services

246

10.3%

Engineering and
Construction

79

3.3%

Well Construction

265

11.1%

2,390

100%

TOTAL
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449

No. of
Employees

Regular
(EDC and GCGI)

BGI

is well known, but also in terms of
their understanding of the essential
values that will drive the company to
realize its vision. Thus, Human Capital
is the first of the six key pillars of
EDC’s strategy to help take us to the
next level. Briefly, the Human Capital
(Organization) pillar aims to rebuild the
company’s key technical core while
pushing for efficiencies throughout the
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Manpower count per employment status
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PAMAHEP MANPOWER COUNT PER SECTOR
Office of the Plant Manager

Company

5

8.3%

Operations Department

23

38.3%

Maintenance Department

13

21.7%

Technical Services Department

3

5.0%

Quality, Environment, Safety, and
Health Department

4

6.7%

12

20%

Support Services Department
TOTAL

60

100%

Location

EDC

Fort Bonifacio
Leyte
Southern Negros
Bicol
Mindanao
Northern Negros

763
773
223
219
253
159

GCCI

Palinpinon
Tongonan

121
74

BGI

Bicol

PAMAHEP

Temporary
73
55
38
194
5
-

-

Nueva Ecija

EDC employee breakdown by job class
20 64 69

Regular

94

60

EDC employee
breakdown by gender
Executive

267

Manager

1,037

Total

Senior Supervisor
933
No. of
Employees

2,390

Supervisor
Professional and Technical
Rank and File
Total: 2,390

322

2,068

Training our next
line of leaders
In a highly technical, specialized
business such as ours, there is only
one standard to aim for: Excellence.
We believe that competitive advantage
lies in continuously enhancing the
capability of our employees and
strengthening expertise in their
respective disciplines.
Given the skill and level of expertise
required of our employees to maintain
our leadership position, training is the
locus on which we build excellence.
This is how we prepare our next line
of leaders. To ensure availability of a
skilled workforce, long-term objectives
have been put in place as we invest
heavily in competency building and
learning solutions for them. This
enables EDC to employ more of
the best scientists, engineers, and
specialists in the global industry.

Mentoring and training through our
Energy Academy allow our employees
to achieve the highest possible level of
proficiency in their work. The academy
offers a three-tiered program (basic,
generalist, and advanced levels)
conducted by a pool of in-house
mentors who are well-known experts

with skills and training obtained from
geothermal institutes in Iceland, New
Zealand, United States, and Italy.
Three hundred eighteen employees
who completed a total number of
7,184 training hours are well on their
way to becoming experts in their own
field under this program.
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We finance training and education
both here and abroad, whether in
specialized non-degree courses or
relevant post-graduate studies. The
latter we encourage and subsidize
to build geothermal expertise in the
company so that EDC becomes the
hub of geothermal excellence in the
world. In five years’ time, we plan to
have 12 employees with doctorate
degrees in various geosciences
courses and 35 with master’s degrees,
and 48 with short-course certifications.
In 10 years, we target a strong pool
of 20 PhDs, 51 MSDs, and 52 with
short-course certifications. We also
have a succession planning and
management program geared towards
building the leadership capabilities
of our employees and aligning
them with our long-term corporate
goals, as well as training courses to
support this program. In 2010, we
offered three courses that focused on
leadership and strategy and mentoring
competencies to select managers and
all executives.
Our senior management supports the
upgrading of the capability of each
employee and the level of knowledge,
skills, and technical expertise.
Training covers a wide range of topics:
functional training, which focuses on
job-related competencies and skills;
management and supervisory skills
training to develop further managerial
and team leadership ability; staff
development training which focuses
on work productivity and personality
development. Overall, each employee
of EDC received, in 2010, an average
of 28.26 training hours. Employees of
PAMAHEP received 40 training hours
each. Both figures are better than the
industry standard of 24 hours.
Specialized non-degree courses
offered last year included “Corrosion
Failure Analysis” and “Water Rock
Interaction” which were offered to our
professional and technical personnel
who received an average of 50 training
hours. Managers received the most
number of training hours in 2010, at
an average of 93 hours, followed by
our executives, who each received
an average of 51 hours. In terms of
health and safety training, 18 different
courses were conducted for the entire
year with a total of 2,390 employees
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Number of employees trained in 2010
3,973

4,000
3,000
2,000
1,000

318

90

0
Enterprise-Wide

Energy Academy

LSPP

Number of training hours
55,044

60,000
50,000
40,000
30,000
20,000

7,184

10,000

2,768

0
Enterprise-Wide

Energy Academy

LSPP

Training hours to employees ratio
64,996

70,000
60,000
50,000
40,000
30,000
20,000
10,000

2,390

0
Total Number of Training Hours

trained across all sites and an average
of 12 training hours per participant.
All employees, especially our retirees
who most needed it in their time of
transition, attended a seminar on
financial management. PAMAHEP
employees and retirees received
training on skills management and
lifelong learning as part of their annual
training program.
We want our employees to take
charge of their career development.
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Total Number of EDC Employees

While they receive information on the
available courses through internal
communication mechanisms and we
give them proper guidance, they are
also encouraged to approach us with
recommendations. These courses are
subject to monitoring and auditing
of the Internal Audit Department,
and status and achievements are
regularly reported to the Management
Committee.

OUR INFINITELY EXPANSIBLE RESOURCE

To monitor their career development,
all EDC and PAMAHEP employees
received regular performance and
career development reviews at the
end of the year. Employees with
sterling achievements were rewarded
with spot cash and other incentives
or were promoted to the next level of
employment. Last year, we completed
the revision of the performance
evaluation ratings and calibration to
make performance appraisals more
objective. Towards the latter part of
2010, the company released the
modified position structure. For the
first time, this was disclosed to the
employees for them to know their
position, rank, and grade with total
clarity and transparency.

Fostering
harmony,
protecting human
rights
At EDC, it is important to create a work
environment that allows our employees
to put their best thinking forward.
We make sure to foster harmonious
working conditions hospitable to highlevel, results-driven performance, and
we respect the rights of employees
to form organizations in accordance
with the law. Protecting the rights and
freedoms of our employees is vital to
achieving this objective.
Human rights and labor protection
contribute greatly to the stability
of our workplace and areas of
operation. With fairness as core
value, the protection of human
rights is paramount in our business,
and this encompasses internal and
external stakeholders. We make
sure that all agency-based security
personnel and augmentation forces
have been trained on our policies and
procedures, including human rights,
as part of their orientation. Should
issues and disputes concerning
human rights arise, we have an
internal communication mechanism,
and employee consultation fora and
sessions to address them.

A direct channel facilitating dialogue
between employees and management
is always available at the company.
In 2010, there were 14 labor unions
across five geothermal production
sites and our head office (there
was no union at PAMAHEP) with
43% of the total number of regular
EDC employees (2,390) covered by
collective bargaining agreements
(CBAs), from 59% in 2009. The
labor unions enter into regular CBAs
concerning number of working hours,
compensation, employee benefits,
and other employee entitlements
as provided under Philippine labor
laws. In 2010, all 11 CBAs due for
renewal were concluded. Five of
the 2010 total were extended from
the 2009 list of CBAs. While the
company is involved in arbitrations
with our employees’ labor unions, the
conclusion of these CBAs showed the
openness of the parties involved and
the growing maturity of our unions
during the negotiations. We have not
experienced any strikes, lock-outs or
work stoppages as a result of labor
disagreements in the last 10 years.
This was made possible through a
more collaborative and non-adversarial
interaction among management panel
and union members.

Last year, our BacMan plant received
the Most Outstanding LaborManagement Cooperation for Industrial
Peace award from the National
Conciliation and Mediation Board
(NCMB) and the Philippine League
of Labor-Management Cooperation
Practitioners, Inc., and with judges
from the Department of Labor and
Employment, the Regional Tripartite
Wages and Productivity Board, and
NCMB. The award served to fortify our
company’s determination to always
work with all our unions as a proactive
mechanism for the protection of
employee welfare. We also sponsor
their attendance to conventions and
trainings that promote labor and
management relations, and increase
awareness through CBA Management
Panel workshops. We have a grievance
mechanism and provisions for the
creation of a labor-management
council found in all CBAs for a
professional and balanced approach to
grievance resolution.
We uphold equal opportunity in the
workplace, and employees are given
the same opportunities to excel.
Employees are amenable to their
job description, work conditions,
and work location as evidenced by
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their employment contract, which
they signed upon employment in the
company. We consistently accord
employees their rights in all aspect of
employment. All work rendered are
justly compensated, and we provide
overtime and hazard / hardship pay
to employees whenever applicable. At
EDC, no employee is forced to work
without his consent. Our policy manual
also ensures against discrimination
and hiring applicants below the
allowed hiring age of 18 years old.
PAMAHEP recently organized a
Committee on Sexual Harrassment
and Decorum.
Programs are undertaken with
different LGUs so that we can provide
employment opportunities to local
residents and cultural minorities,
apart from the livelihood programs
under our social development
programs. IP welfare and protection is
a top priority, thus, we adhere to the
policies and principles of the National
Commission of Indigenous Peoples
and foster dialogues with the group
during tribal federation meetings.
We also participated in the Ancestral
Domain Sustainable Management
planning of our host IP communities
to guide our actions. We are happy to
report that our training and education
program in North Cotabato helped
upgrade the knowledge and skills
of the IPs, and we have been able
to hire 16 regular employees from
the Manobo group in our Mindanao
Geothermal Production Field.
In 2010, there were zero incidences
of child labor, discrimination,
and violations involving the rights
of employees and our external
stakeholders, including the IPs found
in the communities hosting our
production fields.

Retaining and
attracting the best
Given that our business attracts the
best and the brightest in the industry,
EDC works hard at retaining them. Our
company Compensation Philosophy
ensures our Total Compensation and
Benefits package is above existing
legal and statutory wage requirement
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COVERAGE

For regular employees

For regular employees,
dependents, and beneficiaries

BENEFIT
Outpatient Benefit

Free

Leaves: Vacation / Sick

Free

Annual Physical Exam

Free

Medical Clinic

Free

10-day Maintenance
Medicines

Free

Corporate Business Travel
Insurance

Free

Maternity and Paternity
Benefit

Free

Group Hospitalization
Insurance

P45.95 to
P362.60

Group Life and Accident
Insurance

P0.23 / P1,000
Base Pay

nationwide, internally equitable, and
market competitive. Personal and
emergency loans, educational support
funds, and hazard pays are some
of the benefits we offer our regular
employees. Health and medical
benefits that extend to their families
and beneficiaries are also included.
Entry level wage for our rank and
file employees is higher than the
local minimum wage in our areas
of operation. Benefits provided are
equivalent to 48% of the regular
employees’ base pay to provide them
security and stability. This empowers
our workforce to upgrade their living
conditions and grow in success with
the company. Very tellingly, many
employees have “grown” with EDC
as our average number of years in
service of employees is 14.76, while
the average age of employees is 42.7
years. Attrition rate for 2010 was 2%.
More than 90% of our workforce
are men. This can be attributed to
the fact that geothermal scientists
and engineers continue to be
predominantly male. This fact
notwithstanding, EDC is an equal-
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EMPLOYEE COST

opportunity employer. Salary offers
are based on function, education,
and experience. Merit increases and
promotions are based on performance.
None of the forms of compensation are
based on gender.

Working with
steam
EDC President Richard B. Tantoco
described the year that was and the
challenge ahead of us succinctly.
“We are a company in transition.
Our focus is execution.” Just as
EDC strives to maintain a healthy
reservoir, we work to keep the steam
that powers the drive for excellence
in our people. Providing a workplace
that enables high productivity, a
sense of achievement, and fulfillment
optimizes the steam that propels the
company forward.
Much as our renewable resource
must be maintained and nourished in
our geothermal sites, our people and
local communities in Leyte, Southern
Negros, Northern Negros, Bicol,

OUR INFINITELY EXPANSIBLE RESOURCE

Benefits provided to full-time employees
Savings and Land Home Ownership Plan (SLHOP)

Uniforms

Personal Loan

Local Travel and Hazard / Hardship Pay

Cash Withdrawal

Rice Allowance

Retirement Benefit

Perfect Attendance Award

Company Loan

Service Awards

Bereavement Loan

Engagement Activities

Company Bereavement Assistance

Maternity Assistance (for both female and male
employees)

Education Refund Plan
Educational Leave
Company Emergency Loan

Critical Disease Leaves
Dreaded Disease Coverage (on top of Group
Hospitalization Insurance Plan)

Personal Leaves

North Cotabato, and Taguig must
be protected as well. A meaningful
indicator of our true value has to
do with how we contribute to local
economic development, and local
employment is one of the most
effective ways of achieving this goal.
By enhancing the economic well
being and uplifting the standard of
living of our employees, they are able
to contribute to the growth of the
surrounding economies. A flourishing

community, in turn, infuses our
company with skilled workers of better
morale and higher productivity.
We see in our every employee the
same drive and determination we
saw in that wide-eyed mechanical
engineering graduate from a small,
quiet town in Negros Oriental, and
invest heavily in turning everyone into
his or her own brand of leader while
working towards the same vision.

We are proud of the fact that five
out of the 20 members of our senior
management team are from the local
communities in our areas of operation,
and 74% of all employees are also
hired locally. We intend to improve on
these numbers as we grow stronger
during this period of opportunity and
transition, powered and inspired by
the story of a young well-test aide of 30
years ago who now stands for what our
people can truly accomplish.
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New beginnings for career endings
In 2010, EDC offered a generous early retirement program (ERP) to employees who were at least 50 years old and had at
least 10 years’ worth of service. Three hundred thirty one employees availed of the program and chose to move on and
start a new life, but not without the help of the company. Our company has a funded, non-contributory defined benefit
retirement plan for permanent employees and which is administered by a trustee bank. Also among their benefits is a
savings, loan, and home ownership plan that has been funded with both employee and company share.
In five years’ time, 1.2% of our entire workforce will be eligible for retirement while 3.3% more will be entitled to it in 10
years’ time. To prepare those eligible for this eventuality, training programs on lifelong learning and managing personal
finances are conducted to enable them to still have a productive life. A livelihood startup fund is part of our ERP package,
and we also provide post-retirement medical and life insurance benefits. We are confident that our standard retirement
package can prepare our retirees for rewarding days ahead as a result of the valuable portion of their life spent in EDC.

Employee turnover (Total: 331)

by Location

by Age

by Gender

15

53

38

66

51
50

No. of
Employees

43

57

No. of
Employees

221

306

No. of
Employees

25

68

Fort Bonifacio

Mindanao

23-30

40-50

Bicol

Northern Negros

30-40

50-60

Leyte

Southern Negros

Men

Women

Percentage of employees eligible to retire in the next 5 and 10 years

4.0%
3.5%
3.0%
2.5%
2.0%
1.5%
1.0%
0.5%
0%
2011
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2012

2013

2014
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2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021
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EDC table of organization
Chairman / CEO
Compliance

Internal Audit
President / COO
Executive Vice President

Investor Relations

Security

Safety

Legal

Strategic Mgt. Division
Strategic Planning
Contracts Administration
Risk Management
Management Systems

Technical Services
Senior Vice President

Well Construction
Vice President

Resource Mgt. Div.
-LGPF
-MGPF
-BGPF
-SNGPF
-NNGPF
Resource Technology Div.
-Reservoir Engineering
-Geosciences

-Well Construction Eng’g
-Well Construction
Services

Env’t. & Ext. Relations
Senior Vice President

Chief Financial Officer
Senior Vice President

-Environmental Mgt.
-Watershed Mgt.
-ERDD
-CSR
-Public Relations

-Treasury
-Accounting
-PMD
-BPMD

Engineering & Const’n
Asst. Vice President

Steamfield Operations
Senior Vice President

-Eng’g Design
-Construction

LGPF / BGPF / MGPF /
SNGPF / NNGPF
-CPD
-Admin. Services
-Civil Works
-Maintenance
-Production

Business Development
Vice President

Power Generation
Senior Vice President

Power & Sales Div.
-Power
-Electricity & Steam Sales
Power Plants Op’ns. Div.
-UMPP
-Malitbog
-Mahanagdong
-Central Maint. (LGPF)
-Admin Services (LGPF)
-T&D
-NNGP PP
-M1/M2 PP

HR Management
Vice President

-HR Operations
-HROD
-Compensation and
Benefits
-Employee Relations
-Medical

Supply Chain
Vice President

-ISD
Supply Chains Div.
-P2P Operations
Supply Chain Strategic Div.
-CMSS
-Business Mgt.

*Boxes with the same color indicate the same rank.
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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

RESULTS-DRIVEN
TEAMWORK @ work
Working harmoniously with colleagues and partners towards a common goal.
EDC enjoys its stature in the global renewable energy industry because of the
shared vision of a society sustained by clean, affordable power sources. We
work with different individuals and institutions because only by concerted effort
can we realize our vision immediately and make the benefits available to a
broader base of stakeholders.
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12

b a ra ng ay

health centers
constructed and repaired

2,390 participating

employees

83 b a r a n g ay

zero

health centers
equipped
l o s t t i m e i n j u r i e s i n PA M A H E P s i n c e N o v e m b e r 2 0 0 6

1,721,935.86 safe man-hours in PAMAHEP
15,454,797 safe man-hours across 4 sectors
from October 28, 2008 to December 31, 2010
PhP4.6 million invested in health, sanitation and wellness programs in host communities

18

courses on
occupational
health and safety

228 barangay
health
center
workers trained
& incentivized

40

trainings
and safety

d is cu ss ion s
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SAFE

CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

ETY FIRST
Educating and empowering our employees, contractors, and communities
to promote a nourishing and safe workplace.
Accidents and disaster know neither class nor boundaries. Generally speaking, the reach and extent of
the harm and damage show little regard for whether one is rich or poor, a farmer or a professional.
The difference, crucial to safety and survival, lies in how one is able to respond. Guided by this
conviction and our core values of fairness and stewardship, we empower our employees, contractors,
and communities by education and training on occupational health and safety and disasterpreparedness, believing that individual differences should never be a hindrance to the universal right to
health and safety.
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The participation
factor
Captured in EDC’s Corporate Safety
and Health Policy is the determination
to create a culture that prioritizes
health and safety in the workplace
and our areas of operation. We believe
that a healthful workforce and a safe
workplace result in higher productivity,
and participation is key to successfully
fostering such a culture. We do this
by increasing individual capabilities
through education and training under
our Occupational Health Program
and then harnessing these individual
competencies through teamwork.
Apart from giving employees proper
health information and medical
services, including first aid and
medical emergency services, EDC’s
Occupational Health Program
was organized with the following
objectives in mind: to facilitate the
proper placement of employees and
ensure job suitability according to
their capacities, mental abilities, and

Safety awards
and milestones
Our entire workforce is represented
in management-worker health and
safety committees to make sure that
our entire value chain is analyzed
for potential hazards. Developing
awareness among our employees for
these potential workplace hazards
allows us to be more proactive about
improving occupational health and
safety. The committee meets regularly
to create and monitor programs that
promote competencies among our
employees and their adherence to
our corporate policy of preventing
occupational accidents and injuries
while protecting and preserving our
company assets.

emotional make-up; and to protect
employees against health hazards
in their working environment and
prevent occupational as well as nonoccupational diseases.
Last year, the company offered 18
different courses on occupational
health and safety and a total of 2,390
employees participated across all
sites, with an average of 12 training
hours per participant. We see these
courses as crucial to the long-term
management of health care costs
of our employees and the business.
We hosted more than 40 safety
discussions and trainings on the
technical aspect of our operations,
especially those involving machinery
and equipment, and hazardous
chemicals and toxic materials. We
also hosted more than 50 in-house
lay fora and classes that included
screening and lectures on serious
diseases and health issues such as
stress and hypertension, HIV / AIDS,
hypercholesterolemia, influenza,
hepatitis B, cervical cancer, smoking,
and basic first aid. Programs in
place include weight management,

drilling, steamfield operations, and
hydropower accumulated from
October 28, 2008 to December 31,
2010. PAMAHEP posted accumulated
total safe man-hours of 1,721,935.86.
It has zero lost time injuries since
November 2006 and received both
its Occupational Health and Safety
Advisory Services (OHSAS) 18001

We strictly adhere to occupational
safety standards, with a total of
15,454,797 safe man-hours (regular
employees and contractors) posted
across four sectors (power generation,
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flu vaccination, cancer prevention;
and cover lectures, screenings, and
individual counseling. All vaccination
programs were also extended to
employees’ family members at a
discounted rate.

certification and a safety recognition
award from the Bureau of Working
Conditions last year.
Our painstaking efforts to enforce
safety policies have garnered
several citations in 2010, starting
with the Department of Labor and
Employment’s most prestigious

SAFETY FIRST

bi-annual Gawad Kaligtasan at
Kalusugan (GKK) Labor Secretary
Award, which was given to our power
plants in Leyte. It is GKK’s highest
award and recognizes the outstanding
safety and health achievements
and best practices of companies
and individuals. The GKK is also a
component of the Zero Accident
Program, one of DOLE’s flagship
programs that is being spearheaded
by the Philippine Occupational Safety
and Health Center. Also from DOLE
were a GKK institutional award to
BacMan Geothermal Production Field,
and, specifically from DOLE’s Bureau
of Working Conditions, the No Lost
Time Award to Upper Mahiao and
Mahanagdong Power Plants in Leyte
as well as to PAMAHEP.
Apart from DOLE, the Safety and
Health Association of the Philippines
Energy Sector (SHAPES) also
recognized a number of our facilities
for their No Lost Time record for
a period of two straight years, an
equivalent of at least two million

Near-miss
incidents and
other areas for
improvement
Regular and contractual employees
across five sites posted lost time injury
rates of 0.33 and 0.32, respectively,
and total recordable injury rates
of 2.5 and 4.4, respectively. We
seek to improve these figures in the
coming years. There were five cases
of lost time injuries among regular
employees and contractors.A total
of 10 Lost work days were recorded
among regular employees and a total
of 71 lost work days for contractors
across site. The overall severity rate
of contractual employees was 7.5
compared to that of regular employees
at 1.7.

accumulated safe man-hours. The
geothermal production fields cited
were LGPF, SNGPF, BGPF, and MGPF.
Our geothermal power plants—
specifically the Upper Mahiao Power
Plant, Mahanagdong Geothermal
Power Plant, and Northern Negros
Geothermal Power Plant—and
our drilling operations were also
recognized by SHAPES. We made all
reasonable efforts to comply with all
government regulations pertaining to
health and safety, including the H2S
ambient air quality regulatory standard
of 0.07ppm of the Department of
Environment and Natural Resources
and DOLE working standard of 10ppm
H2S for eight-hour exposure.
We regularly undertook calibration of
the H2S monitoring instruments based
on manufacturer’s recommendation
and implemented maintenance of
major plant and facility equipment
based on recommended frequency
established in the operations and
maintenance manual. A Multipartite
Sectoral Monitoring Team and

various regulatory agencies including
the Department of Energy (DOE),
DOLE, Department of Health (DOH),
Bureau of Fire Protection, and
local government units, monitor our
company’s compliance to various
statutory requirements concerning
safety and health in the workplace.
We measure our occupational health
and safety practices against standards
issued by the DOLE, DOE, and the
DOH, and submit medical, work
accident, and medical surveillance
reports on a regular basis. When the
DOE sent a report regarding some
facilities in our Mahanagdong A and
B power plants in Leyte that needed
to be repaired for safety purposes,
we immediately took action to have
them repaired. We received neither
sanctions nor monetary fines for
non-compliance to ambient air quality
standards last year.

Overall occupational safety statistics
PARTICULARS
Total Man-hours

REGULAR

Contractual

5,998,820.2

9,455,976.8

0

0

Lost Work Days

10

71

Lost Time Injury

2

3

39

48

0.33

0.32

Total Recordable Injury Rate2

2.50

4.44

Severity Rate3

1.67

7.51

Vehicle Transport Accidents
and Incidents

37

28

Near-miss

11

10

Fatality

First Aid (FAC)-NLTA
Lost Time Injury Rate of
Frequency Rate1

No. of lost time incidents * 1M / total man-hours
Total of recordable accidents * 1M / total man-hours
3
No. of lost work days * 1M / total man-hours
1
2
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Wellness in the
workplace
We consider the psychological well
being of our employees a contributory
factor to our company’s health and
safety records. We believe that the
positive state of our employees’
morale fosters mindfulness and
consideration in the workplace.
Through recreational activities that
come in the form of sports activities
and opportunities for employee
volunteerism, we promote physical
fitness and feelings of fulfillment, and
mental and spiritual wellness.
Specifically, we held regular fivekilometer “Walk the Talk” walkathons,
dance classes, and chorale group
performances. A fitness center that was
built exclusively for EDC employees
in 2009 is still free and open to them
before and after office hours.

Upping the uptake,
upping the ante
We believe that the health and
safety issues of our contractors and
communities can have a big impact
on business continuity. Hence,
implementing programs on health,
safety, and disaster preparedness at
the community level is of paramount
importance to us. When faced with
a situation that might compromise
one’s physical well being, knowing
what to do and doing it at the right
time can spell survival. We take steps
in training and education and make
infrastructure investments to this end
when absolutely necessary.
Last year, we invested PhP4.6
million in health, sanitation, and
wellness programs in all our host
communities, benefitting more than
11,000 individuals. These programs
covered capability enhancement of
health workers through skills training
and infrastructure, additional support
to health requirements and existing
services available to the community
through donations and outreach, and
awareness campaigns on issues that
may affect the development efforts of
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Chairman Emeritus Oscar M. Lopez walks the talk
and leads all wellness activities

the community such as responsible
parenthood and substance abuse.
Partners included local health
agencies and the LGUs who provided
counterpart labor to ensure the
success of the programs. A total of
12 barangay health centers (BHC)
were constructed and repaired, 33
BHCs received medical supplies and
equipment, and 228 BHC workers
received trainings and incentives. Our
corporate headquarters sponsored
the additional training of nurses,
specifically in basic life support,
advanced cardiac life support, and
ECG interpretation.
Heightened awareness on climate
change and natural disasters
demonstrate the need to capacitate
our mountain communities that by
their remoteness are rendered more
vulnerable. Because members of
our host communities are among
the first-liners during emergency
situations, it is important that they
are able to respond. Through our
Barangay Emergency Response Team
(BERT), a project in partnership with
the Natural Disaster Risk Reduction
and Management Council (NDRRMC)
and Philippine National Red
Cross, we are able to work with our
communities in protecting lives while
preserving company assets. We gave
five trainings on various emergency
response techniques to 21 BERTs
across all five geothermal sites,
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and provided equipment to BERT
members, which totaled 242 last year.
We worked towards the international
certification of our emergency first
responders in our production sites
and BERT members underwent
training for this certification. We
also started drafting a policy on the
formation and training of BERT as
part of community empowerment.
BERTs in our production sites
are patterned after and work with
counterpart teams within the company,
both at the production site and the
corporate headquarters. The Project
Emergency Team (PET) is a group
of key personnel in the fields who
are responsible for the management
of emergency situations. The team
is activated once the emergency
situation becomes severe and requires
immediate project management
decision and direction based on the
initial assessments. Supporting PET
during major emergency situations is
the Special Advisory Group at head
office, which discusses and evaluates
emergencies to provide all possible
professional, technical, administrative,
financial, and logistical assistance at
the soonest possible time. Both teams
provide guidance and decision making
for the purpose of safeguarding life,
property, environment, and company
interest. They follow a set of safety
response guidelines that details the
steps that should be taken in times of
emergency, disaster, or a crisis.

Sick leave profile*
MANPOWER SICK POP

NO. OF SL FILED

DAYS LOST

TOTAL WORKDAYS / YEAR

SEVERITY RATE

% OF DAYS LOST

(SICK POP. X 251 DAYS)

(DAYS LOST / SL FILED)

(DAYS LOST VS TOTAL WORK
DAYS OF ABSENTEES)

FB

763

293

1,912

2,462

73,543

1.29

3.35

LGPF

773

593

2,806

4,019

148,843

1.43

2.70

SNGPF

223

129

426

972

32,379

2.28

3.00

MGPF

253

185

674

921

46,435

1.37

1.98

BGPF

219

134

610

785

33,634

1.29

2.33

NNGP

159

121

323

486

30,371

1.50

1.60

TOTAL

2390

1455

6751

9645

365205

1.43

2.64

* Case classification: respiratory, musculoskeletal, gastrointestinal, EENT, dental, metabolic, infectious, cardiac, skin and soft tissues, endocrine,
reproductive / genitourinary, neuro, etc.

EDC has an Emergency Response Team in all its sites to provide assistance to our community in times of natural disasters
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MEMBERSHIPS IN ASSOCIATIONS
Association of Safety Practitioners of the Philippines, Inc.
Association of Structural Engineers of the Philippines
Association of the Filipinos for the Advancement of Geosciences,
Inc.

National Geothermal Association of the Philippines
North Cotabato Geothermal Airshed Board
Pollution Control Association of the Philipines, Inc.

Bicol Grievance Machinery Advocates

People Management Association of the Philippines

Bicol Region Power Industry Tripartite Council, Inc.

Philippine Council for NGO Certification

Boy Scouts of the Philippines, Cotabato Council

Philippine Eagle Foundation, Inc.

Chartered Financial Analysts Society of the Philippines

Philippine Independent Power Producers Association

Cotabato Industrial Peace Advocates

Philippine Institute of Certified Public Accountants

Geological Society of the Philippines

Philippine Institute of Chemical Engineers

Geothermal Resources Council

Philippine Institute of Civil Engineers, Inc.

Good Governance Advocates and Practitioners of the Philippines

Philippine Institute of Industrial Engineers

Information Systems and Control Association

Philippine Labor Management Cooperation

Institute of Corporate Directors

Philippine League of Labor-Management Cooperation Practitioners, Inc.

Institute of Integrated Electrical Engineers of the Philippines

Philippine Society of Mechanical Engineers

Institute of Internal Auditors

Philippine Society of Non-destructive Testing

Institute of Corporate Directors Companies’ Circle

Philippine Welding Society

Integrated Bar of the Philippines

Philippine Society of Mechanical Engineers, Inc.

Integrated Chemists of the Philippines

Project Management Institute

Integrated Institute of Electrical Engineers

Public Relations Society of the Philippines

International Association of Business Communicators

Regional Development Council

International Association of Hydrogeologists

Regional Tripartite Wages and Productivity Board Region 12

International Geohazards Society

Renewable Energy Coalition

International Geothermal Association

Renewable Energy Developers’ Council

Kananga Municipal Development Council - Kananga, Leyte

Rotary Club of Metro Kidapawan

Kapisanan ng mga Kimiko ng Pilipinas

Rotary Club of Rizal Mideast, Rotary International District 3800

Labor and Management Industrial Peace Advocates, Inc.

Safety and Health Association of the Philippine Energy Sector, Inc.

Labor Management Cooperation Practitioners Association Cotabato

Small Grants Programme under the United Nations Development
Programme

League of Corporate Foundations

Tax Managers Association of the Philippines

Mt. Apo Foundation, Inc.

Toast Masters Club

Mt. Apo Natural Park Protected Area Management Board

University of Asia & the Pacific - Business Economic Club

Mt. Kanlaon Protected Area Management Board

Wind Energy Developers Association of the Philippines

Multi-sectoral Monitoring Team
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2010
SUSTAINABILITY CHAMPIONS
CHIEF
Richard B. Tantoco.
President and Chief Operating Officer
STEERING COMMITTEE
Chair
Ms. Agnes C. de Jesus,
Senior Vice President - Environment & External Relations
and Compliance Officer

TECHNICAL WORKING GROUP
Lead Group
Public Relations Department
Ma. Antonia D. Nieva
Frances L. Ariola
Compliance
Maria Jasmine Medina-Almogino

Vice Chair
Marcelino M. Tongco
Senior Vice President - Steamfield Operations

Corporate Social Responsibility Department
Teresa P. Peralta
Jun Prosini S. Anave

Ernesto G. Espinosa
Vice President - Human Resource Management Department

Environmental & Watershed Management Departments
Marianne J. Paje
Ronald S. Pahunang

Liberato S. Virata
Vice President - BacMan Geothermal Production Field
Manuel C. Paete
Vice President - Leyte Geothermal Production Field
Dwight A. Maxino
Vice President - Southern and Northern Negros Geothermal
Production Fields

Finance
Jhunar B. Abbot
Human Resources Management Sector
Noelle I. Gozo
Internal Audit
Glenn L. Tee

Alejandro V. Catacutan
Asst. Vice President - Mindanao Geothermal Production Field

Policy Advocacy and Government Relations
Ann Christine T. Rojo

Members
Raymond H. Quiroz
Strategic Management Division

Power Generation
Anaflor L. Candelaria (Head Office)
Venancio V. Baltazar (PAMAHEP)
Rene G. Astorga (Leyte)
Michael Dan V. Balan (Head Office)

Fernando B. Diaz de Rivera
Public Relations Department
Regina Victoria J. Pascual
Environmental Management Department
Maribel A. Manlapaz
Finance
Angelita N. Dimzon
Power Generation Sector
Miguel V. de Jesus
Power Generation Sector
Rhoda D. Cruz
Supply Chain Management Sector
Justino C. Alcantara
Steamfield Operations

Safety
Eliseo L. Bacus
Steamfield Operations
Edbert A. Zenit (BacMan)
Romeo Rex B. Radaza (Leyte)
Elmo Valentino F. Butardo (Mindanao)
Rene V. Bolo/Jomelyn Alimpolo (Northern Negros)
Gil R. Moncal, Jr. (Southern Negros)
Strategic Management Department
Vilma P. del Rosario
Supply Chain Management Sector
Eugene O. Pasa
Adviser
Prof. Colin L. Hubo
GRI-elected Stakeholder Council Member 2007-2012
University of Asia and the Pacific
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24th Floor, Yuchengco Tower, RCBC Plaza
6819 Ayala Avenue, Makati City, Philippines
Tel (63 2) 884 1494/ 884 1498; Telefax (63 2) 884 1493

MESSAGE
We congratulate the Energy Development Corporation (EDC) for achieving Gold in the 2010 Corporate Governance
(CG) Scorecard as a result of its exemplary adherence to the international standard of good corporate governance practices
for Publicly Listed Companies (PLCs).
EDC has been consistently performing well in the CG scorecard and has received the same recognition in the
previous year. Beyond integrating the governance principles into its manuals and company policies, the company has
notably put them into practice in its day-to-day operation and business undertakings.
EDC has excelled in the following key areas:
1. Disclosure of shareholder rights and allowing them to exercise these rights
2. Equal treatment of all shareholders
3. Proper protection of the minority shareholders
4. Policies for proper treatment of other stakeholders which includes employees, suppliers,
business partners, customers and the environment
5. Disclosure/transparency on the Audit Process and other material information
6. Board Committees and Board composition
7. Conduct of the Board of Directors in discharging their duties and responsibilities
In 2010, EDC garnered a CG Score of 98.5%. The Institute of Corporate Directors is very glad to note that EDC
has been taking the CG Scorecard project seriously as shown in its consistently increasing CG Scores: 84% in 2007, 91%
in 2008 and 95.4% in 2009.
The CG Scorecard for PLCs initiative was launched by the ICD in 2005 with the aim of raising standards of
corporate governance practices not only by ensuring compliance to minimum regulatory requirements, but also by
encouraging the adoption of recognized best practices in corporate governance. In 2007, it became a joint undertaking
with the Securities and Exchange Commission, the Philippine Stock Exchange, the Ateneo de Manila University School of
Law and the Institute of Internal Auditors of the Philippines.

DR. JESUS P. ESTANISLAO
Chairman
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Members of the External
Review Committee

OVERVIEW
The Energy Development Corporation published its first Integrated and Annual
Sustainability Report last year (2009), a self-declared C-level report following the
Global Reporting Initiative’s (GRI) G3 Guidelines. The publication of this report
established EDC as the first Philippine renewable energy company to issue a
sustainability report using an international reporting standard.
For its 2010 Integrated Annual and Sustainability Report, EDC strove to meet higher
reporting standards by (a) expanding report coverage sufficient for a B-level GRI
report, (b) using a more stringent reporting template, GRI’s Sector Supplement for
Electric Utilities, and (c) inviting an External Review Committee (ERC) to review the
report’s content.
To reinforce the objectivity of the assurance process, EDC undertook a partnership
with the University of Asia and the Pacific (UA&P), which agreed to serve as the
lead coordinator and host of the External Review Committee.

DR. WINSTON B. PADOJINOG
Dean, School of Management,
University of Asia and the
Pacific

The ERC members consisted of three experts selected jointly by UA&P and EDC.
These experts were compensated individually by UA&P for the time and expertise
they invested in the external review process. For its part, EDC shouldered all
professional fees and out-of-pocket expenses related to the ERC’s work.
As part of the terms of their engagement, the ERC members submitted individual
recommendations to EDC as well as the consolidated assurance statement
published below. Because they were engaged at the same time that the current
report was being written, the ERC also provided observations and recommendations
that helped inform the writing of the 2010 IASR.
The following statement reflects the ERC’s consolidated assessment, which
expresses the views of the committee as individual experts and not on behalf of their
respective organizations.

Consolidated Statement of the External Review Committee
Sec. Mary Ann L. Sering
Vice Chairperson, Climate
Change Commission

Our Method
We made use of GRI’s Principles for Defining Report Content and Principles for
Ensuring Report Quality as a framework for assessing the content of EDC’s 2010
Integrated and Annual Sustainability Report.
To conduct its assurance of the 2010 Report, the ERC members visited two of the
company’s geothermal sites representative of EDC’s core business operations—
specifically its biggest geothermal production fields in Valencia, Negros Oriental
and Kananga, Leyte—and conducted interviews with key data owners and key
stakeholders at each site. We also interviewed members of EDC’s Technical Working
Group responsible for producing the report on several occasions. The Committee
also met twice in person and collaborated via email.
In our capacity as individual experts, we submitted individual reports to EDC
containing the detailed recommendations summarized in the present statement.
Furthermore, since we began our review work at the same time that EDC’s report
was being written, we also had the opportunity to provide feedback that helped
shape the report’s final outcome.

Ms. MARILOU G. ERNI
GRI Elected Stakeholder
Council Member, 2007-2012
Executive Director, Petron
Foundation

EDC provided the committee with working drafts of the articles contained in its 2010
report. EDC also provided supporting material in the form of quantitative data, audiovisual presentations, and written material as well as open and detailed answers
during our interviews with key data owners and company officers.
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General Observations
When it released its self-declared C-level report last year, EDC became the first electric utility and renewable energy firm
in the Philippines to produce a GRI-based report. In the current report, we recognize EDC’s laudable efforts to improve
its sustainability reporting through (a) a broader B-level report covering 70 indicators (compared to last year’s 13) and
(b) a now-articulated Disclosure on Management Approach (DMA), (c) the use of the GRI Sector Supplement for Electric
Utilities, which is a more stringent reporting template compared to the general G3 Guidelines, and (d) the engagement
of an ERC for external validation. As we understand it, EDC is also one of only two Philippine firms that have undergone
external assurance thus far.
Beyond these improvements, we also understand that EDC will submit its 2010 report to the GRI for compliance checking,
as an extra measure of validation. All of the aforementioned are indicative of how much further the company has gone in its
second year of sustainability reporting and demonstrate its commitment to pursue sustainability in the long term.
Overall, we find that EDC’s 2010 report adheres to GRI’s Principles for Defining Report Content and Principles for Ensuring
Report Quality. Most, if not all, of the protocols were adequately observed and substantiated by solid data coming from all
of EDC’s five project areas and its head office. We also find that the process by which EDC mapped its stakeholders and
established the indicators most material to its business operations quite robust.
EDC’s Disclosure(s) on Management Approach, on the whole, was also extensively written. The DMA clearly expresses the
company’s vision and understanding of its sustainability impacts and captures its sustainability approach to “triple bottom
line” performance. We are pleased to note, for instance, EDC’s statement on transparency and accountability. We also
noted mention of EDC’s engagement with local government in the areas where it operates, but nevertheless recommend for
future reports that the company further describe dealings with government, particularly how EDC contributes to enhancing
public and private partnerships. We also wish to see in future reporting how EDC goes beyond emergency preparedness
towards the broader goal of reducing people’s vulnerability from climate change via climate change adaptation, and disaster
risk reduction and management. We also think EDC can detail further its pursuit of continuous research and development
when it comes to product responsibility.
Economic Performance
We laud the company’s strategy of pursuing the twin goals of sustaining growth and ensuring equity. Many business firms
often pursue one without the other and the creation of wealth does not necessarily translate into an actual sharing of its
fruits, particularly with the communities from which economic value was generated. In EDC’s case, we can see that the
selection of EDC’s economic indicators and the manner by which these were disclosed show the company’s commitment
not only to sustaining its own economic growth but also to sharing it with as wide a stakeholder base as possible.
While the report shows that EDC monitors the value it generates by geographical area and how much it is giving back to
these localities in return—reflecting the company’s palpable resolve to pursue inclusive and equitable economic growth—
we nevertheless suggest that it enrich these economic indicators to better capture and manage its impact on the local
communities, particularly those where there is a significant company presence. More specifically, we recommend that
EDC enrich its definition of local suppliers to delineate more precisely between local and non-local purchases as well as
develop external indicators that provide more concrete feedback of EDC’s direct and indirect economic impacts on the local
community.
Social Investment
EDC management’s long-term commitment to improving its social performance is strongly evident in its 2010 report. The
company’s efforts to further hone the expertise of its workforce indicates its commitment to employ the best technical
people in the industry, which is instrumental to achieving its corporate mission. On top of that, the sizeable amount
that EDC pours into social investment clearly manifests the resolve of its social agenda. Moreover, the company’s
comprehensive and robust social programs can serve as instructive best-practice models for the business sector,
particularly its community engagement practices and its programs on health and safety, education, skills training, livelihood
and disaster management, as captured by its comprehensive health, education, livelihood, environment (HELEn) program.
We wish to particularly highlight the Kananga-EDC Institute of Technology (KEITECH), which is an admirable project
seeking to open more doors of opportunity to the youth who have no means of getting a college degree by training them to
become skilled workers with good character. The positive feedback given by employers of its first batch of graduates (as
indicated in the report) show the project’s great potential to further boost the local economy.
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EDC’s report on the significant income generated by its community federations confirms that aside from providing them
with the necessary training and tools for their livelihood—which may be seen as eco-jobs with multiplier effects—the
company seeks to instill the value of self-sufficiency among them, key to any company’s sustainable CSR program.
Aside from discussing highlights of its social acceptance monitoring efforts in its next report, EDC can benefit from
comprehensive social impact assessment to measure the extent by which the company’s programs help uplift the quality
of lives of its primary partner barangays. Its current effort to undertake an impact evaluation of its livelihood programs is a
laudable step in the right direction and we hope future reports can also show a comparison of its indicators on a year-onyear basis, to allow for better reporting on social performance over time. As a helpful improvement, EDC can also report
further on how its programs have contributed to improving the poverty index in its fenceline communities, referenced
against the Human Development Index, and have contributed to the Millennium Development Goals and UN Global
Compact principles.
Environmental Initiatives
We commend EDC’s long-standing environmental programs in biodiversity, watershed management, as well as in energy
efficiency and conservation. We recognize that EDC’s environmental interventions, which go beyond compliance, directly
address global warming and climate change by reducing greenhouse gas and ozone-depleting emissions and are also very
much in keeping with the current global emphasis on payment for ecological services (PES).
Worth noting is the fact that EDC has been pursuing social forestry well before PES became a widespread term. For that
matter, we recognize EDC’s watershed management efforts, particularly through its BINHI and Biodiversity Conservation
Management Program (BCMP), which demonstrate a strategic and meaningful reforestation program that lowers the
company’s carbon footprint and preserves biodiversity in its areas of operation. These laudable reforestation and forest
protection efforts carry multiple benefits: they not only address biodiversity and create livelihood opportunities within the
local community but also increase the carbon sink.
We are glad to see that EDC’s 2010 report highlights its substantive environmental efforts, including the company’s
partnerships with various organizations for research and development, because these set the baseline for other firms in the
same or similar industries, incentivizing the private sector into properly managing and conserving the natural environment.
In this regard, we encourage EDC to continue documenting these efforts in future reports, specifically by describing their
best PES practices, the “green jobs” they generate by employing people from their fenceline communities, and their
continuing search for innovative technologies that reduce environmental risk and vulnerability and enhance the use of
natural resources in a sustainable manner.
The Road Ahead
Beyond the other findings cited above, the committee hopes that EDC can capture two broad challenges in future
sustainability reports: ensuring that the distributive impacts of its economic, social, and environmental investments are
effectively tracked and pushing forward the adoption of sustainability as a management perspective throughout the
company.
With EDC’s two-pronged strategy of pursuing sustained growth while at the same time ensuring equity, we look forward to
the company reporting further on how the fruits of such growth are returned to the fenceline communities in its project
sites, which are located in impoverished rural areas. The challenge here is that economic, social, and environmental
interventions are difficult to sustain unless these are linked directly to enhancing of the local community’s quality of
life. Hence, the committee looks forward to EDC developing impact assessment mechanisms that can fully capture the
beneficial effects of various company programs on the local communities in order to provide feedback on how better to
improve its efforts to meet community needs.
The other important challenge for EDC is to see how sustainability as a management system can be adopted throughout
the company, cascading down to the lowest employee levels and its external stakeholders. For one thing, we suggest that
provisions be made for future reports to be accessible, in an appropriate form and language, to all stakeholders, particularly
local officials, farmers’ cooperatives, and residents of its fenceline communities.
Meeting both challenges will help EDC facilitate the creation of “meaningful change among the least of our fellowmen”
which forms part of the company’s philosophy and strategy. With this, EDC can very well venture into a roadmap for
sustainable wealth creation as its thrust for strategic CSR and sustainable development.
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GRI INDEX

GRI Index
EUSS Indicator

Reference

IFC Performance
Standards (PS)

1. Strategy and Analysis
1.1

Statement from senior decision-makers

8-21

1.2

Description of key impacts, risks, and opportunities

8-21

2. Organizational Profile
2.1

Name of organization

Front Cover, 22, Inside
Back Cover

2.2

Primary brands, products, and / or services

42

2.3

Operational structure of the organization

42, 137

2.4

Location of organization’s headquarters

Inside Back Cover

2.5

Countries of operation

42

2.6

Nature of ownership and legal form

42

2.7

Markets served including geographic breakdown, sectors served, and types of
customers / beneficiaries

46

2.8

Scale of organization

7, 30, 42, 43, 46, 47,
165-173

2.9

Significant changes during the reporting period regarding size, structure, or
ownership

14, 43

2.10

Awards received in the reporting period

48-49, 57

3. Report Parameters
Report Profile
3.1

Reporting period for information provided

22

3.2

Date of most recent previous report

22

3.3

Reporting cycle

22

3.4

Contact point for questions regarding the report or its contents

Inside Back Cover

Report Scope and Boundary
3.5

Process for defining report content

22

PS1

3.6

Boundary of the report

22

PS1, PS2

3.7

Limitations on the scope or boundary of the report

22, 23

PS1, PS2

3.8

Basis for reporting on joint ventures

22

PS1

3.9

Data measurement techniques and the bases of calculations

22

PS1

3.10

Explanation of the effect of any re-statements of information provided in earlier
reports, and the reasons for such re-statement

22

3.11

Significant changes from previous reporting periods in the scope, boundary, or
measurement methods applied in the report

22

GRI Content Index
3.12

Table identifying the location of the Standard Disclosures in the report

153-157

Policy and current practice with regard to seeking external assurance for the report

22-23, 149-151

Assurance
3.13

4. GOVERNANCE, COMMITMENTS AND ENGAGEMENT
Governance
4.1

Governance structure of the organization

52-53
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GRI INDEX

EUSS Indicators

Reference

4.2

Indicate whether the Chair of the highest governance body is also an executive
officer

52

4.3

For organizations that have a unitary board structure, state the number of members
of the highest governance body that are independent and / or non-executive
members

52

4.4

Mechanisms for shareholders and employees to provide recommendations or
direction to the highest governance body

53

4.5

Linkage between compensation for members of the highest governance body, senior
managers, and executives

53

4.6

Processes in place for the highest governance body to ensure conflicts of interest are
avoided

52

4.7

Process for determining the qualifications and expertise of the members of the
highest governance body for guiding the organization’s strategy on economic,
environmental, and social topics

53

4.8

Internally developed statements of mission or values, codes of conduct, and
principles relevant to economic, environmental, and social performance and the
status of their implementation

3, 50, 64

4.9

Procedures of the highest governance body for overseeing the organization’s
identification and management of economic, environmental, and social performance

53

4.10

Processes for evaluating the highest governance body’s own performance

53

IFC Performance
Standards (PS)

Commitments to External Initiatives
4.11

Explanation of whether and how the precautionary approach or principle is
addressed by the organization

51, 53, 92, 93

4.12

Externally developed economic, environmental, and social charters, principles, or
other initiatives to which the organization subscribes or endorses

50

4.13

Memberships in associations

146

PS1, PS4

Stakeholder Engagement
4.14

List of stakeholder groups engaged by the organization

23

PS1, PS5, PS7

4.15

Basis for identification and selection of stakeholders with whom to engage

23

PS1, PS5, PS7

4.16

Approaches to stakeholder engagement, including frequency of engagement by type
and by stakeholder group

23

PS1, PS5, PS7

4.17

Key topics and concerns that have been raised through stakeholder engagement,
and how the organization has responded to those key topics and concerns, including
through its reporting

91-95, 106-122, 107

A. ECONOMIC RESPONSIBILITY
EC1

Direct economic value generated and distributed including revenues, operating
costs, employee compensation, donations and other community investments,
retained earnings, and payments to capital providers and governments CORE

38-39

EC3

Coverage of the organization’s defined benefit plan obligations CORE

135

EC4

Significant financial assistance received from government CORE

38

EC5

Range of ratios of standard entry level wage compared to local minimum wage at
significant locations of operation CORE

40, 134

EC6

Policy, practices, and proportion of spending on locally based suppliers at significant
locations of operation CORE

39-40

EC7

Procedures for local hiring and proportion of senior management hired from the local
community at significant locations of operation CORE

40, 135

EC8

Development and impact of infrastructure investments and services provided
primarily for public benefit through commercial, in-kind, or pro-bono engagement
CORE

110, 111

PS1

EC9

Understanding and describing significant indirect economic impacts, including the
extent of impacts ADD

104, 121

PS1
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GRI INDEX

EUSS Indicator

Reference

EU6

Management approach to ensure short- and long-term electricity availability and
reliability CORE

28, 34, 36

EU8

R&D activity and expenditure aimed at providing reliable electricity and promoting
sustainable development CORE

28, 34

EU10

Planned capacity against projected electricity demand over long term, broken down
by energy source and regulatory regime CORE

33

EU11

Average generation efficiency of thermal plants by energy source and by regulatory
regime CORE

36

EU12

Transmission and distribution losses as a percentage of total energy CORE

34

IFC Performance
Standards (PS)

B. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY
EN3

Direct energy consumption by primary energy source CORE

95

PS3

EN4

Indirect energy consumption by primary energy source CORE

95

PS3

EN8

Total water withdrawal by source CORE

95

PS3

EN11

Location and size of land owned, leased, managed in, or adjacent to protected areas
and areas of high biodiversity value outside protected areas CORE

89-90

PS3, PS6

EN12

Description of significant impacts of activities, products, and services on biodiversity
in protected areas and areas of high biodiversity value outside protected areas CORE

91

PS3, PS6

EN13

Habitats protected or restored ADD

82, 83, 85-88, 91

PS3, PS6

EN14

Strategies, current actions, and future plans for managing impacts on biodiversity
ADD

96-99

PS1, PS3, PS6

EN15

Number of IUCN Red List species and national conservation list species with
habitats in areas affected by operations, by level of extinction risk ADD

96-100

PS3, PS6

EN16

Total direct and indirect greenhouse gas emissions by weight CORE

94

PS3

EN19

Emissions of ozone-depleting substances by weight CORE

92, 94

PS3

EN20

Nox, Sox, and other significant air emissions by type and weight CORE

94

PS3

EN21

Total water discharge by quality and destination CORE

94

PS3

EN22

Total weight of waste by type and disposal method CORE

95

PS3

EN23

Total number and volume of significant spills CORE

92

PS3

EN24

Weight of transported, imported, exported, or treated waste deemed hazardous
under the terms of the Basel Convention Annex I, II, III, and VIII, and percentage of
transported waste shipped internationally ADD

92

PS3

EN28

Monetary value of significant fines and total number of non-monetary sanctions for
non-compliance with environmental laws and regulations CORE

92

EN30

Total environmental protection expenditures and investments by type ADD

95

EU13

Biodiversity of offset habitats compared to the biodiversity of the affected areas
CORE

96-99

C. LABOR PRACTICES
LA1

Total workforce by employment type, employment contract, and region CORE

130-131

PS2

LA2

Total number and rate of employee turnover, by age group, gender, region CORE

15, 136

PS2

LA3

Benefits provided to full-time employees that are not provided to temporary or parttime employees by major operations ADD

134-135

PS2

LA4

Percentage of employees covered by collective bargaining agreements CORE

133

PS2

LA6

Percentage of total workforce represented in formal joint management-worker health
and safety committees that help monitor and advise on occupational health and
safety programs ADD

142

PS2

LA7

Rates of injury, occupational diseases, lost days and absenteeism, and total number
of work-related fatalities by region CORE

143, 145

PS2
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GRI INDEX

EUSS Indicators

Reference

LA8

142, 144

Education, training, counseling, prevention, and risk control program in place to
assist workforce members, their families, or community members regarding serious
diseases CORE

IFC Performance
Standards (PS)
PS2

LA9

Health and safety topics covered in formal agreements with trade unions ADD

142

PS2

LA10

Average hours of training per year per employee by employee category CORE

132, 142

PS2

LA11

Programs for skills mangement and lifelong learning that support the continued
employability of employees and assist them in managing career endings ADD

130, 132, 136

PS2

LA12

Percentage of employees receiving regular performance and career development
reviews ADD

133

PS2

LA13

Composition of governance bodies and breakdown of employees per category
according to gender, age group, minority group membership, and other indicators or
diversity CORE

130-131

LA14

Ratio of basic salary of men to women by employee category CORE

134

EU14

Programs and processes to ensure the availability of a skilled workforce CORE

130-132

EU15

Percentage of employees eligible to retire in the next five and 10 years broken down
by job category and by region CORE

136

EU16

Policies and requirements regarding health and safety of employees and employees
of contractors and sub-contractors CORE

142

PS2

D. HUMAN RIGHTS
HR4

Total number of incidents of discriminations and actions taken CORE

134

HR5

Operations identified in which the right to exercise freedom of association or
collective bargaining may be at significant risk, and actions taken to support these
rights CORE

133

PS2

HR6

Operations identified as having significant risk for incidents of child labor, and measures taken to contribute to the elimination of child labor CORE

134

PS2

HR7

Operations identified as having significant risk for incidents of forced or compulsory
labor, and measures taken to contribute to the elimination of forced or compulsory
labor CORE

134

PS2

HR8

Percentage of security personnel trained in the organization’s policies or procedures
concerning aspects of human rights that are relevant to operations ADD

133

PS4

HR9

Total number of incidence of violations involving rights of indigenous people and
actions taken ADD

114, 134

PS7, PS9

SO1

Nature, scope and effectiveness of any programs and practices that assess and
manage the impacts of operations on communities including entering, operating and
exiting CORE

39, 40, 104-114,
116-123

PS1, PS4, PS5, PS7,
PS8, PS9

SO2

Percentage and total number of business units analysed for risks related to
corruption CORE

51

SO3

Percentage of employees trained in organization’s anti-corruption policies and
procedures CORE

52

SO4

Actions taken in response to incidents of corruption CORE

52

SO5

Public policy positions and participation in public policy development and lobbying
CORE

51

SO6

Total value of financial and in-kind contributions to political parties, politicians, and
related institutions by country ADD

51

SO8

Monetary value of significant fines and total number of non-monetary sanctions for
non-compliance with laws and regulations CORE

51

EU20

Approach to managing the impacts of displacement CORE

113

EU21

Contingency planning measures, disasters / emergency development plans and
training programs, and recovery restoration plans CORE

144

E. SOCIAL

156

EDC 2010 Integrated Annual and Sustainability Report

GRI INDEX

EUSS Indicator

IFC Performance
Standards (PS)

Reference

F. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY
PR2

Total number of incidents of non-compliance with regulations and voluntary codes
concerning health and safety impacts of products and services, by type of outcomes
ADD

143

PR6

Programs for adherence to laws, standards, and voluntary codes related to marketing
communications, including advertising, promotion, and sponsorship CORE

49

PR7

Total number of incidents of non-compliance with regulations and voluntary codes
concerning marketing communication, including advertising, promotion, and
sponsorship by type of outcome CORE

128

EU24

Practices to address language, cultural, low literacy, and disability related barriers to
access and safely use electricity and customer support services CORE

48-49, 50-53

EU25

Number of injuries and fatalities to the public involving company assets including
legal judgments, settlements, and pending legal cases of diseases CORE

143

EU30

Average plant availability factor by energy source and by regulatory regime CORE

43-44

G. PROFILE DISCLOSURE
5, 44

EU2

Net energy output broken down by primary energy source and by regulatory regime

5, 45

EU3

Number of residential, industrial, institutional, and commercial customer accounts

5, 46

EU4

Length of above and underground transmission and distribution lines by regulatory
regime

5, 47

EU5

Allocation of CO2e emissions allowances or equivalent, broken down by carbon
trading framework

5, 36, 44

OUTPUT

Report on:
1.1
2.1-2.10
3.1-3.8, 3.10-3.12
4.1-4.4, 4.14-4.15

G3 Management
Approach Disclosures

OUTPUT

Not Required

G3 and Electric Utilities
Sector Supplement
Performance Indicators

OUTPUT

Standard Disclosures

G3 Profile
Disclosure

Report on a minimum of
10 Performance Indicators
& Sector Supplement
Performance Indicators

C+

Report Externally Approved

C

Report Application Level

B
Report on all criteria listed for
Level C plus:
1.2
3.9, 3.13
4.5-4.13, 4.16-4.17

Management Approach
Disclosures for each Indicator
Category

Report on a minimum of 20
Performance Indicators, at
least from each of: economic,
environment, human rights,
labor, society, product
responsibility

B+

A

A+

Same as requirement for
Level B

Management Approach
disclosed for each Indicator
Category

Report on each core G3 and
Sector Supplement* indicator with due regard to the
materiality principle by either:
a) reporting on the indicator
or b) explaining the reason for
its omission

Report Externally Approved

Installed capacity, broken down by primary energy source and by regulatory regime

Report Externally Approved

EU1

* Sector Supplement in final version

KEY DESCRIPTION: INTERNATIONAL FINANCE CORPORATION PERFORMANCE STANDARDS
Description
PS1

Social and Environmental Assessment and Management Systems

PS2

Labor and Working Conditions

PS3

Pollution Prevention and Abatement

PS4

Community Health, Safety, and Security

PS5

Land Acquisition and Involuntary Resettlement

PS6

Biodiversity Conservation and Sustainable Natural Resource Management

PS7

Indigenous Peoples

PS8

Cultural Heritage

PS9

Social and Environmental Management System
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SOCIAL PERFORMANCE
In 1961, Eugenio H. Lopez, Sr. founded First Philippine Holdings
Corporation (then known as Meralco Securities Corporation) as
the vehicle for a group of Filipino investors to buy Manila Electric
Company (Meralco) from its American owners. The First Holdings
portfolio grew, aligned with the needs of the nation, as the
company invested heavily in power plants, pipeline operations,
distribution transformer manufacturing, and construction.
Stripped of its power generation assets during Martial Rule, First
Holdings re-entered the power generation business in the 1990s

1961
Don Eugenio Lopez Sr. and other leading
Filipino businessmen formed Meralco
Securities Corporation (MSC), forerunner of
First Holdings. MSC was the corporate vehicle
which acquired Meralco from its American
owners. From managing Meralco, MSC
diversified into other pioneering ventures
– building the country’s first commercial
pipeline, manufacturing distribution and
power transformers, and exploring design and
construction of power generation stations.

1972

The Philippines was confronted with
economic and political crises that lasted for
25 years. When the entire country was placed
under Martial Law in 1972, Meralco, then
MSC’s cornerstone, was one of the hardest
hit. Shortly after midnight of September 22,
the military entered the Meralco compound
and took over the power company.

1986

The dark days had ended and democracy
was reborn. Filipinos from all walks of life
gathered and gave birth to the historic EDSA
Revolution. The chain of events pulled the
Lopezes back into business. In 1986, Oscar M.
Lopez took the helm of a battered company,
nearly bankrupt and bleeding with debt. But
with an undaunted leadership and team, he
led the company’s stunning recovery to where
it is today.

1994
1989
The new decade marked the company’s entry
into infrastructure with the development
of the North Luzon Expressway (NLEX), an
84-kilometer world-class highway and the
longest toll road in the country in terms of
lane-kilometers. Another pioneering venture
in the industry is the group’s construction
and engineering company - First Balfour.
Created in1969, First Balfour widened its
market leadership from construction and
design of power plants to infrastructure
construction such as the St. Luke’s Medical
Center in Bonifacio Global City with Makati
Development Corporation and the sixkilometer LRT 1 North Extension Project with
DMCI.
EDC 2010 Integrated Annual and Sustainability Report

Pushing the frontiers of technology is one
of the company’s early advocacies From
a transformer manufacturer in the 1970’s,
Philippine Electric Corporation (Philec) grew
and was put back on its feet in 1989. Today,
First Holdings grows its investments in
manufacturing through First Philec, - bringing
its core competencies in the service of the
Filipino. It houses the country’s pioneer
manufacturer of high quality flexible-printed
circuits and the first silicon wafer-slicing
company in the Philippines.
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Energy is the future. First Holdings saw this
opportunity before others had seen it. It
re-entered the power generation business
through Bauang Power and took part in
developing the Malampaya Project, the
largest industrial investment in Philippine
history - signaling the birth of the country’s
natural gas industry. By 1994, First Gas Power
Corporation forged an alliance with British
Gas and Siemens to build two new plants in
Batangas producing 1,500 MW.

1998

in response to the government’s urgent call to power the Philippines’ recovering commercial and industrial sectors.
Over the last two decades, it has successfully refocused its main investment from power distribution to power
generation. At the same time, it has maintained its competitiveness in manufacturing, property development,
construction, and infrastructure among other pursuits.
For the next 50 years, First Holdings commits to strengthen the strategic position of all its businesses; integrate
sustainability in all its endeavors; and enhance financial performance by adhering to global best practices, achieving
operational excellence and building brand value. An environment of openness, a culture of learning and innovation,
and a spirit of unity enables First Holdings to believe in, partner with, and share the Filipino vision of development
and true progress.

2000

The Lopez Group had a vision of a mixeduse community where one can live, work,
play, and learn. For a company completely
unfamiliar with real estate, the vision was
neither cheap nor quick to achieve. But with
an undaunted spirit, seasoned management,
and dedicated people, that dream came into
fruition – Rockwell Land.

2003

Business Excellence is the foundation on which organizations are built to last. First
Holdings journeys toward excellence every day. The challenge lies in consistently
doing the right things right. By this discipline embedded in its people, processes, and
policies, First Holdings can successfully adjust to the perpetually changing business
landscape.
More than a tradition, CSR is a way of life. It is a
defining characteristic of First Holdings and its
people, believing that value should be grown
responsibly. Our projects are aligned with
the United Nations Millennium Development
Goals, particularly education, environment,
health and poverty alleviation. We believe that
in engaging the community, we empower
people and do our share in uplifting the
nation’s quality of life.

1999

2007

2005
2008

First Holdings opened the First Philippine Industrial Park (FPIP) through a joint venture with Sumitomo Corporation. FPIP is a 300-hectare estate in
Batangas, with world-class facilities designed to have minimum impact on the environment. Today, it has grown to become the country’s premier
industrial park hosting prominent multinational companies in consumer, electronics and technology industries.
We build where opportunities are great. In 2007, another global leader in renewable energy became part of the company – Energy Development
Corporation (EDC). As the second largest geothermal producer in the world, EDC strengthens the company’s thrust in providing clean, renewable,
and reliable energy here and abroad.
Recognizing the opportunities in the fast-growing solar energy industry, another defining moment came in 2008. The first large-scale silicon
wafer-slicing plant was inaugurated in the Philippines – First Philec Solar Corp. This subsidiary, a joint venture between First Philec and the
Sunpower Manufacturing Ltd. of the United States, aims to develop the country’s potential for this global industry.

2010

As First Holdings turns 50, we witness the
passing of the torch from Oscar M. Lopez to
Federico R. Lopez – marking brave new worlds
in changing times. This decade marks two
significant milestones – First Holdings’ growth
from managing the country’s largest power
company to growing a portfolio of clean and
renewable energy and the new leadership.
This is our warm welcome to a broader vision
and an exciting future.
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Energy Development
Corporation and Subsidiaries
[Formerly Energy Development (EDC) Corporation] and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Financial Statements December 31, 2010 and 2009
and Years Ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008
and
Independent Auditors’ Report
SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2010 Audit and Governance Committee Report
The Board of Directors
Energy Development Corporation
The Audit and Governance Committee (AGC) assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibility as regards the Company's: a)
integrity of financial reporting process; b) effectiveness and soundness of internal control environment; c) adequacy of audit functions,
both external and internal audits; and d) compliance with rules, policies, laws, regulations, contracts and the code of conduct.
In fulfilling our responsibilities as stated in the AGC Charter, we confirm that:
Financial Reporting
•
We have reviewed with management and the external auditor (SGV & Co.) the annual audited financial statements and endorsed
these to the Board for approval and release to regulatory bodies, stockholders and lenders. We have discussed with the external
auditor the key accounting issues and the results of their examinations.
•
We have reviewed with management the quarterly unaudited financial statements and endorsed these to the Board for approval
and release to appropriate regulatory bodies.
Internal Control Environment
•
We have monitored the effectiveness of the internal control environment through various measures such as: the review of the
results of the external audit; exercising functional responsibility over Internal Audit and Compliance Office and receiving reports
on work done in assessing key control components; discussion with management on major control issues and recommendations
to improve policies and processes; and promoting a culture of integrity and ethical values in the company.
External and Internal Audit
•
We have reviewed the overall scope and audit plan of the external auditor. We have also reviewed and affirmed the management
evaluation on the performance of the external auditor (for the 2007 - 2009 contract) and approved the re-engagement of SGV &
Co. for another year (2010 audit).
•
We have approved the Internal Audit annual plan and ensured that independence is maintained, the scope of work is sufficient
and resources are adequate.
Compliance
•
We have monitored the Company's compliance to laws, regulations and policies.
•
We have approved the annual plans and programs of the Compliance Office.
•
We have taken steps to strengthen the governance framework such as: endorsement of changes to the Corporate Governance
Manual to align it with regulatory requirements, corporate policies and best practices; ensuring smooth monitoring and
implementation of recommendations to improve corporate governance as contained in the study made by the Asian Institute of
of
Management
Management;
; ensuring
ensuring
that
that
allall
directors
directors
and
and
senior
senior
executives
executives
comply
comply
with
with
the
the
corporate
corporate
governance
governance
training
training
requirements;
requirements;
endorsing the conduct of the annual evaluation of the Board and President's performance; and, providing continued support to
the company's participation in the Corporate Governance Scorecard project which won for the company the 'Gold Awardee' rank
as recognized by ICD/SEC/PSE in May 2010.
Committee Meetings
•
We conducted six meetings in 2010. Almost all the Committee members were able to attend at least a majority of the meetings.
February 22, 2011

Edgar O. Chua
Chairman
(September 2010 to present)

Francis Ed.
Lim
E. Lim
Member
(July 2010 to present)

Francis Giles B. Puno
Member
(July 2008 to present)

Ernesto B. Pantangco
Member
(July 2009 to present)

* Independent director Cesar V. Purisima was AGC chairman from September 2009 up until his resignation from the Board effective June 29, 2010;
Independent director Vincent S. Perez, Jr. was AGC chairman
chairmanfrom
fromJune
June2007
2007to
toAugust
August2009
2009and
andAGC
AGCmember
memberfrom
fromSeptember
September2009
2009lip
upuntil
untilhis
hisresignation
resignationfrom
fromthe
theBoard
Boardeffective
effectiveJuly
July29,
29,2010;
2010;
Independent director Francis G. Estrada was AGC member from February
Feb11 2008
11, up
2008
until
uphis
until
resignation
his resignation
from the
from
Board
the Board
effective
effective
July 29,
July
2010;
29, 2010;
and and
Independent director John A. Prasetio was AGC member from July 2010 up until his resignation from the Board effective February 1, 2011.
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Energy Center, Merritt Road, Fort Bonifacio
1201 Taguig City Philippines
Tel:
+63 (2) 893-6001 to 47; 893-1320 to 64
Fax:
+63 (2) 840-1575

Management's Responsibility for Financial Statements

March 15, 2011
Securities and Exchange Commission
SEC Building, EDSA Greenhills
Mandaluyong, Metro Manila
The management of Energy Development Corporation is responsible for all information and representations contained in the
consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2010 and 2009 and the consolidated statements of income,
consolidated statements of comprehensive income, consolidated statements of changes in equity and consolidated statements of cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2010. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in conformity with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards and reflect amounts that are based on the best estimates and informed
judgment of management with an appropriate consideration to materiality.
In this regard, management maintains a system of accounting and reporting which provides for the necessary internal controls to
ensure that transactions are properly authorized and recorded, assets are safeguarded against unauthorized use or disposition and
liabilities are recognized. The management likewise discloses to the Company's audit committee and to its external auditors: (i) all
significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls that could adversely affect its ability to record, process, and
report financial data; (ii) material weaknesses in the internal controls; and (iii) any fraud that involves management or other employees
who exercise significant roles in internal controls.
The Board of Directors reviews the financial statements before such statements are approved and submitted to the stockholders of the
Company.
SyCip, Gorres, Velayo & Co., the independent auditors appointed by the Board of Directors and Stockholders, has audited the
consolidated financial statements of the Company in accordance with the Philippine Standards on Auditing and has expressed
their opinion on the fairness of presentation upon completion of such examination, in their report to the Board of Directors and
Stockholders.

Federico R.
M. Lopez
Lopez
Chairman

Richard B. Tantoco
President/COO

Nestor H. Vasay
Senior Vice-President/CFO
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Energy Development Corporation
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Energy Development Corporation [formerly Energy Development (EDC)
Corporation] and Subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as at December 31, 2010 and
2009, and the consolidated statements of income, consolidated statements of comprehensive income, consolidated statements of
changes in equity and consolidated statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2010,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
OPINION
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Energy Development Corporation and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and their financial performance and
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2010, in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards.
SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

Martin C. Guantes
Partner
CPA Certificate No. 88494
SEC Accreditation No. 0325-AR-1
Tax Identification No. 152-884-272
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-52-2009,
June 1, 2009, Valid until May 31, 2012
PTR No. 2641530, January 3, 2011, Makati City
March 15, 2011
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ENERGY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
[Formerly Energy Development (EDC) Corporation] AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
December 31
2010

2009
(Restated, Note 5)

P6,157,925,132

P11,220,897,157

4,602,047,375

5,487,246,002

707,524,992

734,811,000

2,577,442,827

1,946,879,650

733,797,284

140,998,551

14,778,737,610

19,530,832,360

56,679,162,602

56,980,708,681

4,543,041,926

4,639,233,083

893,702,182

1,209,613,615

1,170,407,115

1,038,052,272

–

9,611,022

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 7 and 35)
Trade and other receivables (Notes 8, 15, 25, 29 and 35)
Available-for-sale (AFS) investments (Notes 3, 9, 30 and 35)
Parts and supplies inventories (Notes 3, 10, 24 and 25)
Other current assets (Notes 11, 15 and 30)
		

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets
Property, plant and equipment (Notes 3, 5 and 12)
Goodwill and water rights (Notes 3, 5 and 13)
Deferred tax assets - net (Note 32)
Exploration and evaluation assets (Notes 3, 14, and 30)
Derivative assets (Note 35)
Other noncurrent assets (Notes 8, 9, 15, 25, 29, 30 and 35)
Total Noncurrent Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

3,238,541,427

1,355,560,188

66,524,855,252

65,232,778,861

P81,303,592,862

P84,763,611,221

P175,000,000

P–

5,123,491,686

3,985,053,445

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Loan payable (Notes 16 and 35)
Trade and other payables (Notes 3, 17, 19 and 35)
Income tax payable
Due to related parties (Notes 22 and 35)

71,247,509

66,400,060

335,650,484

537,020,209

1,527,248,370

16,930,776,636

254,155,199

244,306,963

7,486,793,248

21,763,557,313

39,678,699,478

30,533,721,755

300,628,373

566,697,746

–

17,340,023

1,307,137,045

1,237,097,147

Current portion of:
Long-term debts (Notes 19, 22, 27 and 35)
Royalty fee payable (Notes 18, 27, 35 and 38)
Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities
Long-term debts - net of current portion (Notes 19, 22, 27 and 35)
Royalty fee payable - net of current portion (Notes 18, 27, 35 and 38)
Deferred tax liabilities - net (Note 32)
Net retirement and other post-employment benefits (Notes 3 and 31)

291,353,661

324,661,737

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

41,577,818,557

32,679,518,408

Total Liabilities

49,064,611,805

54,443,075,721

Other long-term liabilities (Note 20)

(Forward)
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December 31
2010

2009
(Restated, Note 5)

Preferred stock (Note 21)

P93,750,000

P93,750,000

Common stock (Note 21)

18,750,000,000

18,750,000,000

(379,219,785)

(391,643,364)

Equity
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company:

Common shares in employee trust account (Notes 21 and 34)
Additional paid-in capital (Note 34)
Equity reserve (Notes 4 and 5)
Net accumulated unrealized gain on AFS investments
(Notes 9 and 30)
Cumulative translation adjustment (Note 4)
Retained earnings (Note 21)
Non-controlling interest
Total Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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6,266,099,283

6,262,027,052

(3,706,430,769)

(3,706,430,769)

119,718,797

113,177,323

1,370,000

–

9,524,603,810

7,669,894,141

30,669,891,336

28,790,774,383

1,569,089,721

1,529,761,117

32,238,981,057

30,320,535,500

P81,303,592,862

P84,763,611,221

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ENERGY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
[Formerly Energy Development (EDC) Corporation] AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Years Ended December 31
2010

2009
(Restated, Note 5)

2008

P22,944,227,877

P15,245,966,218

P12,518,203,534

1,208,696,413

3,781,367,064

4,242,467,491

REVENUES
Sale of electricity (Notes 3, 40, 41, 42 and 48)
Sale of steam (Notes 3 and 39)
Interest income on service concessions
(Notes 3 and 37)

–

1,650,208,827

2,107,841,224

748,691,558

847,879,359

726,145,231

–

541,458,209

932,254,227

24,901,615,848

22,066,879,677

20,526,911,707

Operations and maintenance (Notes 10, 18, 24, 26, 31 and
48)

(8,963,699,836)

(6,066,988,240)

(5,046,039,223)

Purchased services and utilities (Notes 22 and 23)

(1,510,220,483)

(2,073,123,457)

(1,523,933,710)

General and administrative (Notes 8, 10, 15,
25, 26, 31 and 48)

(4,528,933,402)

(3,498,219,579)

(1,293,989,935)

–

(467,262,081)

(803,667,437)

(3,445,004,630)

(1,211,412,390)

(675,803,008)

(18,447,858,351)

(13,317,005,747)

(9,343,433,313)

Revenue from drilling services
Construction revenue (Notes 3 and 37)

OPERATING EXPENSES

Construction costs (Notes 3 and 37)
Depreciation and amortization (Notes 12 and 13)

FINANCIAL INCOME (EXPENSE)
347,695,016

402,950,235

332,562,785

(3,708,457,266)

(2,887,155,929)

(2,152,523,656)

(3,360,762,250)

(2,484,205,694)

(1,819,960,871)

Foreign exchange gains (losses) - net (Note 28)

(13,871,472)

1,291,239,839

(9,357,131,312)

Derivatives gain (loss) - net (Note 35)

Interest income (Notes 7 and 35)
Interest expense (Notes 16, 17, 18, 19, 27 and 35)

OTHER INCOME (CHARGES)

436,998,854

(198,809,759)

420,019,743

Revenue from arbitration award (Note 29)

–

–

2,067,343,343

Miscellaneous - net (Notes 9, 11, 14, 15,
18 and 30)

1,656,137,951

(90,660,616)

159,074,890

2,079,265,333

1,001,769,464

(6,710,693,336)

5,172,260,580

7,267,437,700

2,652,824,187

(477,801,870)

(1,454,387,054)

(2,142,562,014)

–

(2,959,213,001)

–

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX
BENEFIT FROM (PROVISION FOR) INCOME TAX (Note 32)
Current
Deferred:
Effect of Renewable Energy Law (Note 47)
Others

NET INCOME

(299,382,845)

503,126,079

835,013,077

(777,184,715)

(3,910,473,976)

(1,307,548,937)

P4,395,075,865

P3,356,963,724

P1,345,275,250

P4,115,747,261

P3,311,335,906

P1,308,021,833

Net income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company
Non-controlling interest

Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share for Net Income Attributable to
Equity Holders of the Parent Company (Note 33)

279,328,604

45,627,818

37,253,417

P4,395,075,865

P3,356,963,724

P1,345,275,250

P0.219

P0.176

P0.070

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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ENERGY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
[Formerly Energy Development (EDC) Corporation] AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31
2010

2009 (Restated, Note 5)

P4,395,075,865

P3,356,963,724

P1,345,275,250

Changes in fair value of AFS investments recognized
in equity (Notes 9 and 35)

6,541,474

79,022,336

(291,399,507)

Cumulative translation adjustment

NET INCOME

2008

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(LOSS)

1,370,000

–

–

Impairment loss on AFS investments removed from
equity and recognized in profit or loss (Notes 9,
30 and 35)

–

3,328,633

–

Net unrealized gain removed from equity and
recognized in profit or loss
(Notes 9, 30 and 35)

–

–

(46,323,392)

7,911,474

82,350,969

(337,722,899)

–

–

(449,433,875)

7,911,474

82,350,969

(787,156,774)

P4,402,987,339

P3,439,314,693

P558,118,476

P4,123,658,735

P3,393,686,875

P520,865,059

279,328,604

45,627,818

37,253,417

P4,402,987,339

P3,439,314,693

P558,118,476

Adjustment of related deferred tax liability of
properties stated at appraised values and
designated at deemed cost (Note 21)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company
Non-controlling interest

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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–

–

Cash dividends (Note 21)

Cash dividends to non-controlling
interest (Note 21)

–

(Forward)

Changes in fair value
of AFS investments
recognized in equity
(Notes 9 and 35)

–

–

Purchase price allocation
adjustment (Note 5)

Net income, as restated

–

Net income, as previously reported

Total comprehensive income:

75,000,000

–

Return of deposit for future stock
subscriptions of First Gen
Hydro Power Corporation
to non-controlling interest
(Note 21)

Balances, December 31, 2008

–

Reversal of appropriations for
exploration projects (Note 21)

–

–

–

–

15,000,000,000

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

P15,000,000,000

Common
Stock

–

–

–

–

–

P75,000,000

Purchase of treasury stock
(Note 21)

Total other comprehensive loss

Adjustment of related
deferred tax liability
of properties stated at
appraised values and
designated at deemed
cost (Note 21)

Net unrealized gain
removed from equity
and recognized in
profit or loss (Notes 9
and 30)

Changes in fair value
of AFS investments
recognized in equity
(Notes 9 and 35)

Net income

Total comprehensive income:

Balances, December 31, 2007

Preferred Stock

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

P–

Common
Shares in
Employee
Trust Account

–

–

–

–

6,278,075,648

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

P6,278,075,648

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

–

–

–

–

(3,706,430,769)

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

(P3,706,430,769)

Equity
Reserve

79,022,336

–

–

–

30,826,354

–

–

–

–

–

(337,722,899)

(337,722,899)

–

(46,323,392)

(291,399,507)

–

P368,549,253

Net
Accumulated
Unrealized
Gain on AFS
Investments

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

P–

Cumulative
Translation
Adjustment

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

(1,653,315,043)

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

P1,653,315,043

Appropriated

–

3,311,335,906

(11,326,305)

3,322,662,211

9,977,933,235

–

(4,052,999,997)

–

1,653,315,043

–

858,587,958

(449,433,875)

(449,433,875)

–

–

1,308,021,833

P11,519,030,231

Unappropriated

Retained Earnings

–

–

–

–

(404,219,068)

–

–

–

–

(404,219,068)

–

–

–

–

–

–

P–

Cost of Treasury
Stock Held

Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company

Subtotal

79,022,336

3,311,335,906

(11,326,305)

3,322,662,211

27,251,185,400

–

(4,052,999,997)

–

–

(404,219,068)

520,865,059

(787,156,774)

(449,433,875)

(46,323,392)

(291,399,507)

1,308,021,833

P31,187,539,406

Non-controlling
Interest

–

45,627,818

–

45,627,818

1,484,133,299

(1,250,000,000)

–

(648,027,600)

–

–

37,253,417

–

–

–

–

37,253,417

P3,344,907,482

Total Equity

79,022,336

3,356,963,724

(11,326,305)

3,368,290,029

28,735,318,699

(1,250,000,000)

(4,052,999,997)

(648,027,600)

–

(404,219,068)

558,118,476

(787,156,774)

(449,433,875)

(46,323,392)

(291,399,507)

1,345,275,250

P34,532,446,888
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ENERGY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
[Formerly Energy Development (EDC) Corporation] AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010, 2009 AND 2008
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–

–

–

Cash dividends (Note 21)
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–

Purchase price allocation adjustment (Note 5)

–
–
–

–

–

–

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

P18,750,000,000

–

–

Cash dividends to non-controlling interest
(Note 21)

P93,750,000

–

Balances, December 31, 2010

–

–

–

–

–

Cash dividends (Note 21)

–

–

Common shares subscription

Deferred tax effect of share-based payment
(Notes 32 and 34)

–

–

Preferred shares subscription

Share-based payment (Note 34)

Documentary stamp tax on:

Total other comprehensive income

–

–

–

18,750,000,000

Cumulative translation adjustment

–

–

P18,750,000,000

P18,750,000,000

Changes in fair value of AFS
investments recognized in equity
(Notes 9 and 35)

Net income

Total comprehensive income:

93,750,000

P93,750,000

Balances, December 31, 2009, as previously
reported

Balances, December 31, 2009, as restated

P93,750,000

Balances, December 31, 2009, as restated

–

–

–
–

–

payment

–

–

–

–

Share-based payment (Note 34)

–

–

18,750,000

3,750,000,000

–

–

–

P–

–

P–

Common
Stock

Deferred tax effect of share-based
(Notes 32 and 34)

Assignment of treasury shares to
employee trust account (Note 21)

shares subscription

Documentary stamp tax on preferred

stock dividends

Documentary stamp tax on common

Preferred shares subscription (Note 21)

Stock dividend (Note 21)

Total other comprehensive income

Impairment loss on AFS investments
removed from equity and
recognized in profit or loss (Notes
9 and 30)

Preffered Stock

(P379,219,785)

–

–

–

12,423,579

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

(391,643,364)

–

P6,266,099,283

–

–

(70,000)

4,142,231

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

6,262,027,052

–

P6,262,027,052

P6,262,027,052

(P391,643,364)
(P391,643,364)

–

180,833

2,614,296

–

(93,725)

(18,750,000)

–

–

–

–

P–

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

–

–

12,575,704

(404,219,068)

–

–

–

–

–

–

P–

Common
Shares in
Employee
Trust Account

(P3,706,430,769)

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

(3,706,430,769)

–

(P3,706,430,769)

(P3,706,430,769)

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

P–

Equity
Reserve

P119,718,797

–

–

–

–

–

–

6,541,474

6,541,474

–

6,541,474

–

113,177,323

–

P113,177,323

P113,177,323

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

82,350,969

82,350,969

P3,328,633

Net
Accumulated
Unrealized
Gain on AFS
Investments

P1,370,000

–

–

–

–

–

1,370,000

1,370,000

1,370,000

–

–

–

–

P–

P–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

P–

Cumulative
Translation
Adjustment

P–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

P–

P–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

P–

Appropriated

P9,524,603,810

–

(2,256,333,333)

–

–

(4,573,009)

(131,250)

4,115,747,261

–

–

–

4,115,747,261

7,669,894,141

(11,326,305)

P7,681,220,446

P7,669,894,141

(1,869,375,000)

–

–

–

–

–

–

(3,750,000,000)

3,311,335,906

–

P–

Unappropriated

Retained Earnings

Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company

P–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

P–

P–

–

–

–

404,219,068

–

–

–

–

–

–

P–

Cost of Treasury
Stock Held

P30,669,891,336

–

(2,256,333,333)

(70,000)

16,565,810

(4,573,009)

(131,250)

4,123,658,735

7,911,474

1,370,000

6,541,474

4,115,747,261

28,790,774,383

(11,326,305)

P28,802,100,688

P28,790,774,383

(1,869,375,000)

180,833

15,190,000

–

(93,725)

(18,750,000)

18,750,000

–

3,393,686,875

82,350,969

P3,328,633

Subtotal

P1,569,089,721

(240,000,000)

–

–

–

–

–

279,328,604

–

–

–

279,328,604

1,529,761,117

–

P1,529,761,117

P1,529,761,117

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

45,627,818

–

P–

Non-controlling
Interest

P32,238,981,057

(240,000,000)

(2,256,333,333)

(70,000)

16,565,810

(4,573,009)

(131,250)

4,402,987,339

7,911,474

1,370,000

6,541,474

4,395,075,865

30,320,535,500

(11,326,305)

P30,331,861,805

P30,320,535,500

(1,869,375,000)

180,833

15,190,000

–

(93,725)

(18,750,000)

18,750,000

–

3,439,314,693

82,350,969

P3,328,633

Total Equity
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ENERGY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
[Formerly Energy Development (EDC) Corporation] AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31
2010

2009 (Restated,
Notes 2 and 5)

2008 (Restated,
Note 2)

P5,172,260,580

P7,267,437,700

P2,652,824,187

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax
Adjustments for:
Interest expense (Note 27)

3,708,457,266

2,887,155,929

2,152,523,656

Depreciation and amortization (Notes 12 and 13)

3,445,004,630

1,211,412,390

675,803,008

Impairment loss on:
Property, plant and equipment of Northern
Negros Geothermal Project
(Notes 12 and 24)

3,390,000,000

349,000,000

–

–

3,328,633

–

(1,638,884,447)

–

–

398,927,321

273,575,293

–

2,460,681

92,041

–

Sale of noncurrent assets held for sale (Note 30)

–

129,867,348

–

Unused tax credit certificates

–

12,207,982

–

386,578,060

396,716,593

231,125,943

15,601,571

15,190,000

–

Interest income (Notes 7 and 35)

(347,695,016)

(402,950,235)

(332,562,785)

Unrealized foreign exchange losses (gains) - net

(168,978,452)

(815,455,990)

8,815,719,940

9,598,487

198,809,759

(420,019,743)

Noncurrent AFS investments (Notes 9, 30 and 35)
Recovery of impairment loss on input value-added tax
(VAT) claims (Notes 11, 15 and 30)
Loss on:
Disposal of property, plant and equipment of
a subsidiary (Notes 12 and 24)
Retirement of property, plant and equipment

Provision for:
Retirement and other post-employment benefits
(Note 31)
Share-based benefit cost (Note 34)

Derivatives loss (gain) - net (Note 35)
Interest income on service concessions (Notes 3 and 37)

–

(1,650,208,827)

(2,107,841,224)

Additions to intangible assets arising from service
concessions (Note 13)

–

(541,458,209)

(932,254,227)

Write-off of input VAT claims (Note 30)

–

178,639,119

–

“Day 1” gain on deferred royalties (Notes 18, 30
and 35)

–

(168,284,986)

–

Write-down of exploration and evaluation assets
(Notes 14 and 30)

–

83,531,992

–

Income from receipt of parts and supplies inventories
from power plant contractor (Note 30)

–

(53,992,600)

(260,614,700)

“Day 1” loss on NPC receivable (Notes 15 and 30)

–

–

189,790,628

Gain on sale of AFS investments (Notes 9, 30 and 35)
Operating income before working capital changes

–

–

(46,323,392)

14,373,330,681

9,374,613,932

10,618,171,291

280,053,478

(579,131,374)

(758,735,419)

–

3,356,946,305

4,307,827,550

(605,220,377)

63,473,496

(161,884,316)

Decrease (increase) in:
Trade and other receivables
Service concession receivables
Parts and supplies inventories
(Forward)
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Years Ended December 31
2010

2009 (Restated,
Notes 2 and 5)

2008 (Restated,
Note 2)

(P142,186,723)

P93,241,853

(P745,659,204)

Trade and other payables

1,645,853,895

1,317,258,253

(861,715,447)

Royalty fee payable

(312,323,998)

(842,909,314)

(738,431,448)

Other current assets
Increase (decrease) in:

(172,553,945)

(14,943,535)

47,213,065

Cash generated from operations

15,066,953,011

12,768,549,616

11,706,786,072

Interest and other financing charges paid

Due to related parties

(3,592,715,769)

(2,700,414,973)

(1,824,642,785)

Income tax paid

(199,551,244)

(701,657,001)

(1,731,066,639)

Retirement and other post-employment benefits contributions
(Note 31)

(327,566,659)

(174,169,047)

(134,153,008)

10,947,119,339

9,192,308,595

8,016,923,640

(5,815,310,918)

(3,221,380,750)

(1,072,520,719)

–

Net cash flows from operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (Note 12)
Payments for acquisition of:
Bacon-Manito Geothermal Power Plants
(Notes 5 and 12)

(1,279,725,000)

–

Palinpinon-Tongonan Geothermal Power Plants
(Notes 5 and 12)

–

(10,165,337,657)

–

First Gen Hydro Power Corporation (Note 5)

–

–

(4,114,597,818)

346,163,528

330,024,062

222,740,387

–

1,402,330,152

–

Interest received
Proceeds from sale of noncurrent assets held for sale
Decrease (increase) in:
AFS investments

–

–

298,122,708

Amounts due from related parties

–

(648,237,396)

(96,365,150)

Exploration and evaluation assets

(132,354,844)

29,963,765

264,098,324

Other noncurrent assets

(551,749,880)

(97,999,704)

1,114,834,803

–

–

537,690

(7,432,977,114)

(12,370,637,528)

(3,383,149,775)

(19,255,755,199)

(8,806,243,829)

(2,528,459,825)

(452,950,000)

(4,030,376,500)

–

(2,496,333,333)

(1,869,375,000)

(5,302,999,997)

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Net cash flows used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments of:
Long-term debts (Note 19)
Short-term loans
Cash dividends (Note 21)

(4,704,259)

(18,843,725)

–

–

(112,187,446)

(245,241,580)

Long-term debts (Note 19)

13,058,750,000

25,100,000,000

–

Short-term loans (Note 16)

638,840,000

2,033,113,100

2,000,000,000

–

18,750,000

–

Documentary stamp tax
Obligations to a power plant contractor
Proceeds from:

Subscription to preferred shares of stock
(Note 21)

(33,308,076)

–

–

Increase in amounts due to related parties

–

1,134,854,786

153,386,379

Return to non-controlling interest of deposit for future stock
subscriptions (Note 21)

–

–

(648,027,600)

Increase in other long-term liabilities

(Forward)
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Years Ended December 31
2010

2009 (Restated,
Notes 2 and 5)

2008 (Restated,
Note 2)

P–

P–

(P404,219,068)

Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities

(8,545,460,867)

13,449,691,386

(6,975,561,691)

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(5,031,318,642)

10,271,362,453

(2,341,787,826)

Purchase of treasury stock (Note 21)

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(31,653,383)

(7,553,556)

2,299,136

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

11,220,897,157

957,088,260

3,296,576,950

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR (Note 7)

P6,157,925,132

P11,220,897,157

P957,088,260

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

ENERGY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
[Formerly Energy Development (EDC) Corporation] AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

Corporate Information
Energy Development Corporation [formerly Energy Development (EDC) Corporation] (the “Parent Company” or “EDC”)
is a subsidiary of Red Vulcan Holdings Corporation (Red Vulcan). The Parent Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
hereinafter referred to as the “Company”), were separately incorporated and registered with the Philippine Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) except for Energy Development (EDC) Corporation Chile Limitada (EDC Chile Limitada) which was
incorporated in Santiago, Chile. Below are the Parent Company’s ownership interests in its subsidiaries:

Percentage of Ownership
2010
First Luzon Geothermal Energy Corporation (FL Geothermal)

2009

Direct

Indirect

100.00%

–

100.00%

Green Core Geothermal Inc. (GCGI)

–

100.00%

100.00%

Bac-Man Geothermal Inc. (BGI) *

–

100.00%

–

–

100.00%

–

Unified Leyte Geothermal Energy Inc. (ULGEI)
EDC Chile Limitada

*

*

EDC Drillco Corporation (EDC Drillco) **
First Gen Hydro Power Corporation (FG Hydro)
EDC Wind Energy Holdings Inc. (EWEHI) *
EDC Burgos Wind Power Corporation (EBWPC)

*

99.99%

0.01%

–

100.00%

–

100.00%

60.00%

–

60.00%

100.00%

–

–

33.33%

66.67%

–

*Incorporated in 2010 and has not yet started commercial operations.
**Incorporated in 2009 and has not started commercial operations.

Beginning December 13, 2006, the common shares of EDC were listed and traded on the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE). Up
to November 2007, EDC was controlled by the Philippine National Oil Company (PNOC), a government-owned and controlled
corporation, and the PNOC EDC Retirement Fund.
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On November 29, 2007, PNOC and PNOC EDC Retirement Fund sold their combined interests in EDC to Red Vulcan (a
Philippine corporation). Red Vulcan was then a wholly owned subsidiary of First Gen Corporation (First Gen, a publicly listed
Philippine corporation) through Prime Terracota Holdings Corporation (Prime Terracota). First Gen’s indirect interest in EDC
consists of P6.0 billion common shares and P7.5 billion preferred shares. Control was then established through First Gen’s 60%
indirect voting interest in EDC. Meanwhile, First Philippine Holdings Corporation (First Holdings) directly owns 66.2% of the
common shares of First Gen. Accordingly, First Holdings became then the ultimate parent of the Company.
On May 12, 2009, First Gen’s indirect voting interest in Red Vulcan was reduced to 45% with the balance taken up by Lopez
Inc. Retirement Fund (40%) and Quialex Realty Corporation (15%) through the issuance of preferred shares by Prime Terracota.
As a result of this transaction, Prime Terracota replaced First Holdings as the ultimate parent of EDC effective May 12, 2009.
The Parent Company operates 12 geothermal projects in five geothermal service contract areas, namely Tongonan Geothermal
Project (TGP), Southern Negros Geothermal Project (SNGP), Bacon-Manito Geothermal Project (BMGP), Mt. Apo Geothermal
Project (MAGP) and Northern Negros Geothermal Project (NNGP) under the Geothermal Service Contracts (GSCs, see Note 38)
entered into with the Department of Energy (DOE) pursuant to the provisions of Presidential Decree (P.D.) 1442. These GSCs
were replaced by Geothermal Renewable Energy Service Contracts (GRESCs, see Note 38) on October 23, 2009. Geothermal
steam produced is sold to the National Power Corporation (NPC) or is fed to the Parent Company’s and GCGI’s power plants
to produce electricity. EDC sells steam and power to NPC under the Steam Sales Agreements (SSAs) and Power Purchase
Agreements (PPAs), respectively (see Notes 39 and 40). EDC sells steam to GCGI under the Geothermal Resources Service
Contracts (GRSCs, see Note 39). EDC also sells electricity to Iloilo 1 Electric Cooperative (ILECO) under the Electricity Sales
Agreement (see Note 41). Separately, it also has drilling activities in Papua New Guinea.
On the July 29, 2010 annual stockholders meeting, the stockholders approved the amendment of the Parent Company’s name
from Energy Development (EDC) Corporation to Energy Development Corporation. The SEC approved the change of the Parent
Company’s name on November 5, 2010.
On October 20 and November 17, 2008, in line with its objective of focusing on renewable energy, the Parent Company acquired
a total of 60% interest in FG Hydro from First Gen. FG Hydro operates the 112 Megawatt (MW) Pantabangan and Masiway
Hydro-Electric Power Plants (PAHEP/MAHEP) located in Nueva Ecija, Philippines. FG Hydro buys from and sells electricity to
the Wholesale Electricity Spot Market (WESM) and to various distribution utilities under the Transition Power Supply Contracts
(TPSCs, see Note 48).
FL Geothermal is a special-purpose company incorporated on April 9, 2008 to participate in the bid for another local power
plant. The bid was won by and awarded to another local entity. Thereafter, there has been no business activity yet as far as FL
Geothermal is concerned other than being the investment holding company of its wholly owned subsidiaries, namely GCGI, BGI
and ULGEI. It also has a 0.01% stake in EDC Chile Limitada.
GCGI is a special-purpose company incorporated on June 22, 2009 that participated in the bid for another local power plant.
The bid was successfully awarded to GCGI on September 2, 2009 as discussed in Note 5.
EDC Drillco is a company incorporated on September 28, 2009 to act as an independent service contractor, consultant,
specialized technical adviser for well construction and drilling and other allied activities.
BGI is a special-purpose company incorporated on April 7, 2010 to participate in the bid for another local power plant. BGI won
the bid by submitting the highest offer price on May 5, 2010 as discussed in Note 5.
EWEHI is a holding company incorporated on April 15, 2010.
EBWPC is a company incorporated on April 13, 2010 to carry on the general business of generating, transmitting, and/or
distributing energy.
ULGEI is a company incorporated on June 23, 2010 to carry on the general business of generating, transmitting, and/or
distributing energy.
EDC Chile Limitada is a limited liability company incorporated on February 11, 2010 in Santiago, Chile with the purpose of
exploring, evaluating and extracting any mineral or substance to generate geothermal energy.
The registered office address of the Parent Company is Merritt Road, Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City.
The consolidated financial statements were reviewed and recommended for approval by the Audit and Governance Committee
to the Board of Directors (BOD) on February 22, 2011. The same consolidated financial statements were also approved and
authorized for issuance by the BOD on March 15, 2011.
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2.

Basis of Preparation
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for parts and supplies inventories
that have been measured at lower of cost or net realizable value and derivative instruments and AFS investments that have been
measured at fair value. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine peso (Peso), which is the Parent
Company’s functional currency. All values are rounded to the nearest peso, except when otherwise indicated.
Statement of Compliance
The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards (PFRS) issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council.
Changes in Accounting Policies
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except for the adoption of the following
new and amended accounting standards that became effective beginning January 1, 2010.
•

PFRS 3, Business Combinations (Revised), and Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) 27, Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements (Amended)
The revised standards are effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2009. PFRS 3 (Revised) introduces
significant changes in the accounting for business combinations occurring after this date. Changes affect the valuation
of non-controlling interest, the accounting for transaction costs, the initial recognition and subsequent measurement of a
contingent consideration and business combinations achieved in stages. These changes will impact the amount of goodwill
recognized, the reported results in the period that an acquisition occurs and future reported results.
PAS 27 (Amended) requires that a change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary (without loss of control) is accounted for
as a transaction with owners in their capacity as owners. Therefore, such transactions will no longer give rise to goodwill,
nor will it give rise to a gain or loss. Furthermore, the amended standard changes the accounting for losses incurred by
the subsidiary as well as the loss of control of a subsidiary. PFRS 3 (Revised) will be applied prospectively while PAS 27
(Amended) will be applied retrospectively with a few exceptions. The Company’s acquisition of Bacon-Manito (Bac-Man)
Geothermal Power Plants in 2010 was accounted for using PFRS 3 (Revised) (see Note 5).

Adoption of the following changes in standards and Philippine Interpretation based on International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) interpretations did not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.
•
•
•

PFRS 2, Share-based Payment (Amendment) - Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions
PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (Amendment) - Eligible Hedged Items
Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 17, Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners

Improvements to PFRS
In May 2008 and April 2009, the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) issued omnibus amendments to the
following standards, primarily with a view of removing inconsistencies and clarify wording. The adoption of the following
amendments resulted in changes to accounting policies but did not have significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Company.
•

PFRS 8, Operating Segments, clarifies that segment assets and liabilities need only be reported when those assets and
liabilities are included in measures that are used by the chief operating decision maker. As the Company’s chief operating
decision maker does review segment assets and liabilities, the Company has continued to disclose this information in
Note 6.

•

PAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows, states that only expenditure that results in recognizing an asset can be classified as
a cash flow from investing activities. Certain items related to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 12, Service Concession
Arrangements (IFRIC 12), in the consolidated statements of cash flows have been restated to conform to this improvement
in PAS 7. The restatement resulted in the decrease in net cash flows from operating activities by P541.46 million and
P932.25 million in 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Other amendments resulting from the Improvements to PFRS to the following standards did not have any impact on the
accounting policies, financial position or performance of the Company.
Issued in May 2008
•
PFRS 5, Noncurrent Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
Issued in April 2009
•
PFRS 2, Share-based Payment
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•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
3.

PFRS 5, Noncurrent Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements
PAS 17, Leases
PAS 36, Impairment of Assets
PAS 38, Intangible Assets
PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 9, Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives
Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 16, Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at
the reporting date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could require
material adjustments to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities in the future.
Judgments
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgment, apart from those
involving estimates, which has the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements:
Functional Currency
The Parent Company’s transactions are denominated or settled in various currencies such as the Peso, United States dollar
(US$), and Japanese yen (JPY). The Parent Company has determined that its functional currency is the Philippine peso, which
is the currency that most faithfully represents the economic substance of its underlying transactions, events and conditions.
Service Concession Arrangements
In applying IFRIC 12 up to October 22, 2009, the Company had made a judgment that its GSCs (see Notes 37 and 38) were
within the scope of IFRIC 12 primarily because the grantor controls the significant residual interest over the steam fields, power
plants and related facilities at the end of the concession period.
The Company also made a judgment that the GSCs for Tongonan, Leyte; Palinpinon, Negros Oriental; Bacon-Manito in Albay and
Sorsogon; and Mt. Apo in North Cotabato qualified under the financial asset model; meanwhile, its GSCs for Northern Negros
and the expansion development of Tanawon project in Bacon-Manito service contract area qualified under the intangible asset
model. Under the financial asset model, the Company had recognized the consideration received or receivable in exchange for
its infrastructure construction services or its acquisition of infrastructure to be used in the arrangements as a financial asset to
the extent that the Company has an unconditional contractual right to receive cash or other financial asset for its construction
services from or at the direction of the grantor. Under the intangible asset model, the Company had recognized an intangible
asset for the right to charge users of the public service.
Starting October 23, 2009, with the conversion of its GSCs to GRESCs (see Notes 37 and 38), the Company has made a
judgment that its GRESCs are no longer within the scope of IFRIC 12 since the Company already has control over any significant
residual interest over the steam fields, power plants and related facilities throughout the concession period and even after the
concession period.
The Company accounted for its service concession arrangements as follows:
Prior to October 23, 2009:
•
Recognized the consideration received or receivable in exchange for its infrastructure construction services or its acquisition
of infrastructure to be used in the arrangements as either a financial asset (financial asset model) to the extent that the
Company has an unconditional right to receive cash or other financial asset for its construction services from or at the
direction of the grantor (recorded as “Concession receivables”), or an intangible asset (intangible asset model) for the right
to charge users of the public service (recorded as “Intangible assets arising from service concessions”);
•
Recognized interest income on service concession under the financial asset model;
•
Recognized construction revenue and construction expenses in accordance with PAS 11, Construction Contracts;
•
Amortized intangible assets arising from the service concession over the concession period under the intangible asset
model;
•
Recognized revenue from sale of electricity and steam, net of the portion of the billings representing collection of
concession receivables and related interest charges; and
•
Expensed subsequent capital expenditures as incurred under the financial asset model and intangible asset model, unless
proven that the upgrades will be able to generate revenues by charging the users of the public service.
Starting October 23, 2009:
•
Derecognized the concession receivables and intangible assets arising from service concessions, with their carrying amounts
of P32.99 billion and P9.69 billion, respectively, as of October 22, 2009; and
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•

Recognized the property, plant and equipment items corresponding to the steam fields, power plants and related
facilities using the total carrying value of the related concession receivables and intangible assets arising from the service
concessions of P42.68 billion as of October 23, 2009 (see Note 12).

Subsequent to October 23, 2009:
•
Depreciated the property, plant and equipment items over their estimated remaining useful lives;
•
Recognized revenue from sale of electricity and steam at full invoice price (no deduction for billings representing collection
of concession receivables and related interest charges); and
•
Capitalized subsequent capital expenditures as part of property, plant and equipment.
Implementation of Renewable Energy Act
On January 30, 2009, Republic Act (R.A.) No. 9513, “An Act Promoting the Development, Utilization and Commercialization
of Renewable Energy Resources and for Other Purposes” also known as the “Renewable Energy Act of 2008”, became effective.
As early as May 20, 2009, the Parent Company submitted its letter of intent to register with the DOE as an Renewable Energy
(RE) Developer. The DOE Circular No. 2009-07-0011, which took effect on August 10, 2009, provided the guidelines for the
registration process of RE Developers. On September 10, 2009, the Parent Company was granted the Provisional Certificate of
Registration as an RE Developer for its existing projects. Upon receipt of the Provisional Certificate of Registration, the Parent
Company has made a judgment to recognize the applicable benefits as an RE Developer retroactive from February 1, 2009,
which is the effective date of the RE Law. On October 23, 2009, EDC received the GRESCs, which replaced the GSCs, and
the corresponding DOE Certificate of Registration for EDC’s geothermal production fields (see Notes 37 and 38). The Parent
Company wrote down P2,959.2 million worth of deferred tax assets in view of the change in the applicable corporate tax rate
from 30% to 10%, which is one of the fiscal incentives of the RE Law (see Note 47).
Deferred Revenue on Stored Energy
Under its addendum agreements with NPC, the Parent Company has a commitment to NPC with respect to certain volume of
stored energy that NPC may lift for a specified period, provided that the Parent Company is able to generate such energy over
and above the nominated energy for each given year in accordance with the related PPAs. The Company has made a judgment
based on historical information that the probability of future liftings by NPC from the stored energy is remote and accordingly
has not deferred any portion of the collected revenues. The stored energy commitments are, however, disclosed in Note 44 to
the consolidated financial statements.
Classification of Financial Instruments
On initial recognition, the financial instruments, or its component parts, are classified as either a financial asset, a financial
liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the definition of a financial
asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument. The substance of a financial instrument, rather than its legal form, governs its
classification in the consolidated statement of financial position.
In addition, the Company classifies financial assets by evaluating among others, whether the asset is quoted or not in an active
market. Included in the evaluation on whether a financial asset is quoted in an active market is the determination on whether
quoted prices are readily and regularly available, and whether those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s-length basis.
The classification of financial assets and financial liabilities of the Company are presented in Note 35.
Operating Leases
The PPAs and SSAs of the Company qualify as a lease on the basis that the Company sells all its outputs to NPC/PSALM and,
in the case of the SSAs, the agreement calls for a take-or-pay arrangement where payment is made principally on the basis of
the availability of the steam field facilities and not on actual steam deliveries. This type of arrangements is determined to be an
operating lease where a significant portion of the risks and benefits of ownership of the assets are retained by the Company since
it does not include transfer of the Company’s assets. Accordingly, the steam field facilities and power plant assets are recorded
as part of the cost of property, plant and equipment and the capacity fees billed to NPC/PSALM are recorded as operating
revenue based on the terms of the PPAs and SSAs.
The Company has also entered into commercial property leases where it has determined that the lessor retains all the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of these properties and has classified the leases as operating leases (see Note 44).
Estimates and Assumptions
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at reporting date that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are discussed below:
Impairment of Receivables
The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts at a level that management considers adequate to provide for
potential uncollectibility of its trade and other receivables, and its receivables arising from service concession arrangements.
The Company evaluates specific balances where management has information that certain amounts may not be collectible. In
these cases, the Company uses judgment, based on available facts and circumstances, and based on a review of the factors that
affect the collectibility of the accounts including, but not limited to, the age and status of the receivables, collection experience,
past loss experience and, in the case of the receivables arising from service concession arrangements, the expected net cash
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inflows from the concession. The review is made by management on a continuing basis to identify accounts to be provided
with allowance. The specific allowance are re-evaluated and adjusted as additional information received affects the amount
estimated.
In addition to specific allowance against individually significant receivables, the Company also makes a collective impairment
allowance against exposures, which, although not specifically identified as requiring a specific allowance, have a greater risk of
default than when originally granted. This collective allowance is based on historical default experience.
The carrying amounts of current and noncurrent trade and other receivables are P4,603.05 million as of December 31, 2010
and P5,487.25 million as of December 31, 2009. The total amount of impairment losses recognized in 2010, 2009 and 2008
amounted to P23.41 million, P0.19 million and P15.62 million, respectively (see Notes 8, 15 and 25).
Estimating Useful Lives of Intangible Assets Arising from Service Concession Arrangement, Water Rights and Property, Plant and
Equipment
The Company estimates the useful lives of intangible assets arising from service concession arrangement, property, plant and
equipment and water rights based on the period over which each asset is expected to be available for use and on the collective
assessment of industry practices, internal evaluation and experience with similar arrangements. For purposes of determining
the estimated useful life of each intangible asset arising from a service concession arrangement, the Company included the
renewal period on the basis of the constitutional and contractual provisions and the Company’s historical experience of obtaining
approvals of such renewals at no significant cost. The estimated useful life is revisited at the end of each reporting period and
updated if expectations differ materially from previous estimates.
Starting October 23, 2009, the GSCs (now converted to GRESCs, see Notes 37 and 38) were no longer accounted for under
IFRIC 12. Accordingly, the Company recognized the steam fields, power plants and related infrastructure assets that were
previously accounted for as concession receivables and intangible assets arising from service concession arrangements, and their
estimated useful lives are as follows:
Number of Years
Power plants								

15–30

Production wells

10–40

Fluid Collection and Recycling System (FCRS)

13–20

Buildings, improvements and other structures

5–35

Exploration, machinery and equipment

2–25

Transportation equipment

5–10

Furniture, fixtures and equipment

3–10

Laboratory equipment

5–10

There is no change in the estimated useful lives of intangible assets arising from water rights.
The carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment amounted to P56,679.16 million and P56,980.71 million as of
December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively (see Note 12). The carrying amount of water rights amounted to P2,007.99 million
and P2,104.18 million as of December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, respectively (see Note 13).
Estimating Net Realizable Value of Parts and Supplies Inventories
The Company carries inventories at net realizable value when such value is lower than cost due to damage, physical
deterioration, obsolescence, changes in price levels or other causes. The carrying amounts of parts and supplies inventories as
of December 31, 2010 and 2009 amounted to P2,577.44 million and P1,946.88 million, respectively (see Note 10). Parts
and supplies for disposal amounting to P106.21 million were written down to zero net realizable value in 2009
(see Notes 10 and 25).
Exploration and Evaluation Assets
Exploration and evaluation costs are recognized as assets in accordance with PFRS 6, Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral
Resources. Capitalization of these costs is based, to a certain extent, on management’s judgment of the degree to which the
expenditure may be associated with finding specific geothermal reserve. The Company determines impairment of projects based
on the technical assessment of its resident scientists in various disciplines or based on management’s decision not to pursue
any further commercial development of its exploration projects. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the carrying amount of
capitalized exploration and evaluation costs amounted to P1,170.41 million and P1,038.05 million, respectively (see Note 14).
The Company has written off P83.53 million exploration and evaluation assets in 2009 (see Notes 14 and 30).
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Acquisition of Power Plants and Estimation of Fair Value of Identifiable Net Assets of an Acquiree in a Business Combination
On September 2, 2009, GCGI acquired the Palinpinon and Tongonan power plants and accounted for the acquisition in
accordance with PFRS 3 which was the applicable standard for business combination before the adoption of PFRS 3 (Revised)
in 2010; and on May 5, 2010, BGI acquired Bac-Man power plants which were accounted for in accordance with PFRS 3
(Revised), under which these acquisitions fall within the definition of a business combination.
In accounting for business combinations, the purchase consideration is allocated to the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities (identifiable net assets) on the basis of fair value at the date of acquisition. The determination of fair
values requires estimates of economic conditions and other factors. Transactions qualified as business combinations are
discussed in Note 5.
Retirement and Other Post-employment Benefits
The cost of defined benefit retirement plan and other post-employment medical and life insurance benefits is determined
using the projected unit credit method of actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about
discount rates, expected rates of return on assets, future salary increases, medical trend rate, mortality and disability rates and
employee turnover rates. Due to the long-term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty. The
net retirement and other post-employment benefits liability as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 was P1,307.14 million and
P1,237.10 million, respectively. The detailed information with respect to the Company’s retirement and other post-employment
benefits is presented in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.
Provision for Dismantlement, Removal and Restoration Costs
In 2009, with the conversion of its GSCs to GRESCs, the Company has made a judgment that the GRESCs are subject to the
provision for dismantlement, removal and restoration costs. In determining the amount of provisions for dismantlement, removal
and restoration costs, assumptions and estimates are required in relation to the expected cost to dismantle, remove or restore
sites and infrastructure when such obligation exists. The Company has made an assessment that such costs are not significant
and, accordingly, has not recognized any provision as of December 31, 2010 and 2009.
Provision for Liabilities on Regulatory Assessments and Other Contingencies
There are pending assessments from various regulatory agencies on the Company and certain legal cases. The Company’s
estimate of the probable costs for the resolution of these assessments and legal cases has been developed in consultation with
in-house and outside counsels and is based upon the analysis of the potential outcomes. It is possible, however, that future
results of operations could be materially affected by changes in the estimates or in the effectiveness of strategies relating
to these proceedings. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, provision for these liabilities, included under “Trade and other
payables” account, amounted to P805.11 million and P406.02 million, respectively (see Notes 17 and 44).
Impairment of AFS Investments
The Company classifies certain financial assets as AFS investments and recognizes movements in their fair value in equity.
When the fair value declines, management makes assumptions about the decline in value to determine whether it is an
impairment that should be recognized in the consolidated statement of income.
A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment in an equity instrument below its cost is also being
considered by the Company as an objective evidence of impairment.. The determination of what is “significant” and “prolonged”
requires judgment. The Company considers a decline significant or prolonged whenever it reaches 20% or more and lasts longer
than six months, respectively. The Company further evaluates other factors, such as volatility in share price for quoted equities
and the discounted cash flows for unquoted equities in determining the amount to be impaired.
Impairment loss on AFS investments amounting to P3.33 million was recognized in 2009 and nil in 2010 and 2008 (see Notes
9, 30 and 35). The total carrying amount of current and noncurrent AFS investments was P725.69 million and P750.20 million
as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively (see Notes 9, 15 and 35).
Impairment of Non-financial Assets other than Goodwill
The Company assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for all non-financial assets, other than goodwill, at each
reporting date. These non-financial assets (property, plant and equipment, intangible assets arising from service concession
arrangements, water rights and input VAT claims for refund) are tested for impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. Where the collection of tax claims is uncertain based on the assessment of management and
Company’s legal counsel, the Company provides an allowance for impairment. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management estimates the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit (CGU) and discounts such cash
flows using the sensitivity analysis of key assumptions to calculate the present value as of the reporting date.
The recoverable amount of NNGP is determined based on a value in use calculation using the expected cash flow projections.
The five-year cash flow projections of the Company used for impairment testing were based on the budget approved by the senior
management. The Company uses the Perpetuity Growth Model to determine the terminal value, which accounts for the value
of free cash flows that continue in perpetuity beyond the five-year period projection, growing at an assumed constant rate. The
assumed growth rate were 4% and 5% in 2010 and 2009, respectively, which do not exceed the average annual demand growth
of 5% and 6% in 2010 and 2009, respectively, for the Visayas power industry market where the unit operates. The pre-tax
discount rate used were 10.24% in 2010 and 10.28% in 2009 computed based on the CGU’s weighted average cost of capital.
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Based on the foregoing, the Company recorded an impairment loss of P3,390.0 million in 2010, P349.0 million in 2009
and nil in 2008 for NNGP’s property, plant and equipment. The impairment loss in 2010 and 2009 were recorded under the
“Operations and maintenance expenses” account in the consolidated statements of income (see Notes 12 and 24).
The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 was P56,679.16 million and
P56,980.71 million, respectively (see Note 12). The carrying amount of water rights as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 was
P2,007.99 million and P2,104.18 million, respectively (see Note 13). The carrying amount of input VAT claims for refund as of
December 31, 2010 and 2009 was P603.01 million and P489.59 million, respectively (see Note 15).
Impairment of Goodwill
The Company performs impairment review on goodwill, annually or more frequently, if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the CGUs to which goodwill
is allocated. Estimating value in use requires the Company to estimate the expected future cash flows from the CGUs and
discounts such cash flows using weighted average cost of capital to calculate the present value of those future cash flows.
The recoverable amounts have been determined based on value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by senior management of FG Hydro and GCGI covering a five-year period. The pre-tax discount rate applied
to cash flow projections is 10.65% in 2010 and 9.78% in 2009 for FG Hydro and 10.79% for GCGI. The cash flows beyond
the remaining term of the existing agreements are extrapolated using growth rates of 4.20% and 4.70% for the years ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, for FG Hydro and 4% for GCGI.
Following are the key assumptions used:
•

Budgeted Gross Margin
Budgeted gross margin is the average gross margin achieved in the year immediately before the budgeted year, increased for
expected efficiency improvements.

•

Discount Rate
Discount rate reflects the current market assessment of the risk specific to each CGU. The discount rate is based on the
average percentage of the weighted average cost of capital for the industry. This rate is further adjusted to reflect the
market assessment of any risk specific to the CGU for which future estimates of cash flows have not been adjusted.

No impairment loss on goodwill was recognized in the consolidated financial statements in 2010, 2009 and 2008. The carrying
value of goodwill as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 amounted to P2,535.05 million (see Note 13).
Deferred Tax Assets
Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that sufficient future taxable profit will be available against
which the assets can be utilized. Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets
that can be recognized. This includes the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying value of recognized deferred tax assets amounted to P2,024.93 million and P2,400.50 million as of
December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively (see Note 32).
Construction Revenue Recognition
The Company’s revenue from construction services in relation to its service concession arrangement is recognized using the
percentage-of-completion method and measured by reference to the percentage of costs incurred to date to estimated total costs
for each contract.
An authority for expenditure is issued to cover the work program for the development of the concession area. When the costs
incurred to date exceed the authorized amount, an assessment is conducted to determine the cause of the cost overrun. Cost
overruns arising from uncontrollable factors such as oil price, wage increases and changes in technical work programs due to
unforeseen geological conditions are capitalized while all other cost overruns are treated as period costs.
The Company’s construction revenue amounted to nil in 2010, P541.46 million in 2009 and P932.25 million in 2008.
Fair Values of Financial Instruments
The fair values of financial instruments that are not quoted in active markets are determined using valuation techniques.
Where valuation techniques are used to determine fair values, fair values are validated and periodically reviewed by qualified
personnel independent of the area that created them. All models are reviewed before they are used, and models are calibrated
to ensure that outputs reflect actual data and comparative market prices. To the extent practicable, models use only observable
data; however, areas such as credit risk (both own and counterparty), volatilities and correlations require management to make
estimates. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect reported fair value of financial instruments (see Note 35).
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Consolidation
Basis of consolidation starting January 1, 2010
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries as of
December 31 of each year.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date control is transferred to the Parent Company and cease to be consolidated from
the date control is transferred out of the Parent Company. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting year as the Parent Company using consistent accounting policies. All intercompany balances, transactions, income
and expenses and profits and losses resulting from intercompany transactions are eliminated in full.
Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-controlling interest even if that results in a deficit balance.
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction. If the
Company loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes the carrying amounts of the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of
the subsidiary, carrying amount of any non-controlling interest (including any attributable components of other comprehensive
income recorded in equity), and recognizes the fair value of the consideration received, fair value of any investment retained, and
any surplus or deficit recognized in the consolidated statement of income. The Company also reclassifies the Parent Company’s
share of components previously recognized in other comprehensive income to profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate.
Basis of consolidation prior to January 1, 2010
The above-mentioned requirements were applied on a prospective basis. The difference, however, is carried forward in certain
instances from the previous basis of consolidation. Losses incurred by the Company were attributed to the non-controlling
interest until the balance was reduced to nil. Any further excess losses were attributed to the Parent Company, unless the
non-controlling interest had a binding obligation to cover these. Losses prior to January 1, 2010 were not reallocated between
non-controlling interests and the equity holders of the Parent Company.
The accounts of FG Hydro have been included in the consolidated financial statements using the pooling-of-interests method
beginning November 29, 2007, the date the Parent Company and FG Hydro came under common control of First Gen (see Note 1).
Non-controlling interest represents the portion of profit or loss and net assets in FG Hydro not held by the Parent Company and
is presented in the consolidated statement of income, consolidated statement of comprehensive income and within equity in
the consolidated statement of financial position, separate from equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company.
Acquisitions of non-controlling interests are accounted for as an equity transaction.
Business Combinations and Goodwill
Business combinations starting January 1, 2010
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree. For each business combination, the acquirer measures the non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value
or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed and
included in general and administrative expenses.
When the Company acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and financial liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at
the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree.
If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date and any gain or loss on remeasurement is recognized in the
consolidated statement of income.
Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognized at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration which is deemed to be an asset or liability, will be
recognized in accordance with PAS 39 either in the consolidated statement of income or as a change to other comprehensive
income. If the contingent consideration is classified as equity, it should not be remeasured until it is finally settled within
equity.
Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and the amount
recognized for non-controlling interest over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If this consideration is
lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognized in the consolidated statement
of income.
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After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Company’s CGUs that
are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to
those units.
Where goodwill forms part of a CGU and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the
operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on the relative values of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the CGU retained.
Business combinations prior to January 1, 2010
Business combinations were accounted for using the purchase method. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
formed part of the acquisition costs. The non-controlling interest (formerly known as minority interest) was measured at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. This involved recognizing identifiable assets and liabilities of the
acquired business initially at fair value. If the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
exceeds the cost of the business combination, the acquirer shall (a) reassess the identification and measurement of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities and the measurement of the cost of the combination; and (b) recognize immediately
in the consolidated statement of income any excess remaining after that reassessment.
When a business combination involves more than one exchange transaction, each exchange transaction shall be treated
separately using the cost of the transaction and fair value information at the date of each exchange transaction to determine the
amount of any goodwill associated with that transaction. This results in a step-by-step comparison of the cost of the individual
investments with the Company’s interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
at each exchange transaction. The fair values of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities may be
different on the date of each exchange transaction. Any adjustments to those fair values relating to previously held interests
of the Company is a revaluation to be accounted for as such and presented separately as part of equity. If the revaluation
relates directly to an identifiable fixed asset, the revaluation will be transferred directly to retained earnings when the asset is
derecognized in whole through disposal or as the asset concerned is depreciated or amortized.
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Company’s share in the net identifiable
assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is recognized separately as a
noncurrent asset.
Foreign Currency Translation of Foreign Operations
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is the Parent Company’s functional currency.
Each entity or subsidiary in the Company determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the
functional currency prevailing at the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the closing rate of exchange prevailing at reporting date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the
fair value was determined. Foreign exchange differences between the rate at transaction date and the rate at settlement date or
reporting date are credited to or charged against current operations.
The functional currencies of the Company’s subsidiaries are Peso except for EDC Chile Limitada which is in Chilean peso. For
subsidiaries whose functional currency is different from the presentation currency, the Company translates the results of their
operations and financial position into the presentation currency. As at the reporting date, the assets and liabilities presented
(including comparatives) are translated into the presentation currency at the closing rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting
date while the capital stock and other equity balances are translated at historical rates of exchange. The income and expenses
for the consolidated statement of income presented (including comparatives) are translated at the exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions, where determinable, or at the weighted average rate of exchange during the year. The exchange differences
arising on the retranslation to the presentation currency are recognized as a separate component of equity under the “Cumulative
translation adjustment” account in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Foreign Currency-Denominated Transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate at the date of the transaction. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated using the functional currency rate of exchange as at
financial reporting date. All differences are taken to the consolidated statement of income under “Foreign exchange gains
(losses)” account. Nonmonetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rate as at the date of the transactions. Nonmonetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of financial position comprise cash in banks and on hand and shortterm deposits with original maturities of three months or less from dates of acquisition and that are subject to insignificant risk
of changes in value.
Prepayments
Prepayments are expenses paid in advance and recorded as asset before these are utilized. This account comprises prepaid
rentals and insurance premiums, creditable withholding taxes and advances to contractors. The prepaid rentals and insurance
premiums are apportioned over the period covered by the payment and charged to the appropriate accounts in the consolidated
statement of income when incurred; creditable withholding taxes are deducted from income tax payable on the same year the
revenue was recognized; and the advances to contractors are reclassified to the proper asset or expense account and deducted
from the contractor’s billings as specified on the provision of the contract. Prepayments that are expected to be realized for a
period of no more than 12 months after the reporting period are classified as current asset; otherwise, these are classified as
other noncurrent asset.
Parts and Supplies Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes the invoice amount, net of trade and cash
discounts. Cost is calculated using the moving average method. Net realizable value represents the current replacement cost.
Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment, except land, is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment in value, if any.
Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment when that cost is incurred, if the recognition
criteria are met. All other repairs and maintenance costs are recognized in the consolidated statement of income as incurred.
Land is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the economic life of the assets as follows:
Prior to

Starting

October 23, 2009

October 23, 2009

(in years)
Power plants

–

15-30

Production wells

–

10-40

FCRS

–

13-20

Buildings, improvements and other structures

5-20

5-35

Exploration, machinery and equipment

2-20

2-25

5

5-10

Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Transportation equipment

3-10

3-10

Laboratory equipment

5-10

5-10

Depreciation of an item of property, plant and equipment begins when it becomes available for use, i.e., when it is in the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Depreciation ceases
at the earlier of the date that the item is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale) in accordance with PFRS 5, and the date the asset is derecognized.
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the consolidated statement of income in the year the asset is
derecognized. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed, and adjusted, if appropriate, at each
financial year-end.
Property, plant and equipment are recognized based on their significant parts. Each part of an item of property, plant and
equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated separately.
Construction in progress and major spares and others are stated at cost and is not depreciated until such time that the assets are
put into operational use.
Service Concession Arrangements under IFRIC 12
Public-to-private service concession arrangements where: (a) the grantor controls or regulates what services the Company
must provide with the infrastructure, to whom it must provide them, and at what price; and (b) the grantor controls, through
ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise, any significant residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the term
of the arrangement are accounted for under the provisions of IFRIC 12. Infrastructures used in a public-to-private service
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concession arrangement for its entire useful life (whole-of-life assets) are within the scope of this interpretation if the
conditions in (a) are met.
IFRIC 12 applies to both: (a) infrastructure that the Company constructs or acquires from a third party for the purpose of the
service arrangement; and (b) existing infrastructure to which the grantor gives the Company access for the purpose of the service
arrangement.
Infrastructures within the scope of this interpretation are not recognized as property, plant and equipment of the Company.
Under the terms of contractual arrangements within the scope of interpretation, the Company acts as a service provider. The
Company constructs or upgrades infrastructure (construction or upgrade services) used to provide a public service and operates
and maintains that infrastructure (operation services) for a specified period of time.
The Company recognizes and measures revenue in accordance with PAS 11 and PAS 18, Revenue, for the construction services
it performs. If the Company performs more than one service (i.e., construction or upgrade services and operation services) under
a single contract or arrangement, consideration received or receivable shall be allocated by reference to the relative fair values of
the services delivered, when the amounts are separately identifiable.

When the Company provides construction or upgrade services, the consideration received or receivable by the Company is
recognized at its fair value. The Company accounts for revenue and costs relating to construction or upgrade services in
accordance with PAS 11. Revenue from construction contract is recognized based on the percentage-of-completion method,
measured by reference to the percentage of costs incurred to date to estimated total costs for each contract. The Company
accounts for revenue and costs relating to operation services in accordance with PAS 18.
The Company recognizes a financial asset to the extent that it has an unconditional contractual right to receive cash or another
financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the construction services. The Company recognizes an intangible asset
to the extent that it receives a right (a license) to charge users of the public service.
When the Company has contractual obligations it must fulfill as a condition of its license (a) to maintain the infrastructure to a
specified level of serviceability or (b) to restore the infrastructure to a specified condition before it is handed over to the grantor
at the end of the service arrangement, it recognizes and measures these contractual obligations in accordance with PAS 37,
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, at the best estimate of the expenditure that would be required to settle
the present obligation at the reporting date.
In accordance with PAS 23, Borrowing Costs, borrowing costs attributable to the arrangement are recognized as an expense in
the period in which they are incurred under the financial asset model and are capitalized during the construction phase of the
arrangement under the intangible asset model.
Intangible Assets
The Company’s intangible assets arising from service concessions pertain to its right to charge users of the public service in
connection with the service concession and related arrangements. This is recognized initially at the fair value of the construction
services until October 22, 2009 (see Note 3).
The cost of water rights of FG Hydro is measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of water rights acquired in a business
combination is the fair value as of the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, the intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are expensed and
reflected in the consolidated statement of income in the year the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized
over the economic useful life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The intangible assets arising from service concession arrangements are amortized using the straight-line method over
the estimated useful economic life which is the service concession period. Water rights are amortized using the straight-line
method over 25 years, which is the term of the Agreement with the National Irrigation Administration (NIA).
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The amortization periods and method are reviewed at least at each reporting date. Changes in the expected useful life or
the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the
amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense
on intangible assets arising from service concession arrangements and on water rights is recognized under depreciation and
amortization in the consolidated statement of income.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the consolidated statement of income when the
asset is derecognized.
Exploration and Evaluation Assets
All costs incurred in the geological and geophysical activities such as costs of topographical, geological and geophysical studies;
rights of access to properties to conduct those studies; salaries and other expenses of geologists, geophysical crews, or others
conducting those studies are charged to expense in the year such are incurred.
If the results of initial geological and geophysical activities reveal the presence of geothermal resource that will require further
exploration and drilling, subsequent exploration and drilling costs are accumulated and deferred under the “Exploration and
evaluation assets” account in the consolidated statement of financial position.
These costs include the following:
a.

costs associated with the construction of temporary facilities;

b.

costs of drilling exploratory and exploratory-type stratigraphic test wells, pending determination of whether the wells can
produce proved reserves; and

c.

costs of local administration, finance, general and security services, surface facilities and other local costs in preparing for
and supporting the drilling activities, etc. incurred during the drilling of exploratory wells.

If tests conducted on the drilled exploratory wells reveal that these wells cannot produce proved reserves, the capitalized costs
are charged to expense except when management decides to use the unproductive wells, for recycling or waste disposal.

Once the technical feasibility and commercial viability of the project to produce proved reserves are established, the exploration
and evaluation assets shall be reclassified to property, plant and equipment starting October 23, 2009 and to either intangible
asset or concession receivable at its fair value at the date of reclassification prior to October 23, 2009.
Impairment of Non-financial Assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that a non-financial asset may be impaired. Nonfinancial assets include property, plant and equipment, intangible assets arising from service concession arrangements, water
rights and input VAT claims for refund. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or CGU’s fair value
less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell,
an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples or other available fair value
indicators.
Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognized in the consolidated statement of income in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.
For non-financial assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication
that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company
makes an estimate of recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. In such
instance, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. However, that increased amount cannot
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for
the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the consolidated statement of income.
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Goodwill is reviewed for impairment, annually or more frequently, if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of the CGU or group of CGUs
to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the CGU or group of CGUs is less than the carrying amount of the
CGU or group of CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated, an impairment loss is recognized immediately in the consolidated
statement of income. Impairment loss relating to goodwill cannot be reversed for subsequent increases in its recoverable amount
in future periods. The Company performs its annual impairment test of goodwill every December 31 of each year.
Financial Instruments
Financial instruments are recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position, when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on the trade
date, which is the date that the Company commits to purchase the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by regulation or convention in the market
place. Derivatives are also recognized on a trade date basis.
Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value. Except for financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
(FVPL), the initial measurement of financial instruments includes transaction costs. The Company classifies its financial assets
into the following categories: financial assets at FVPL, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, AFS investments, and loans and
receivables. For financial liabilities, the Company classifies them into financial liabilities at FVPL and other financial liabilities.
The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired and whether they are quoted in an active
market. Management determines the classification of its investments at initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate,
re-evaluates such designation at every reporting date.
Financial instruments are classified as liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.
Interest, dividends, gains and losses relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability, are reported as
expense or income. Distributions to holders of financial instruments classified as equity are charged directly to equity, net of any
related income tax benefit.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets at reporting date is based on their quoted market price or dealer
price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask price for short positions), without deduction for transaction costs. When
current bid and ask prices are not available, the price of the most recent transaction provides evidence of the current fair value
as long as there has not been a significant change in economic circumstances since the time of the transaction.
For all other financial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined by using appropriate valuation
techniques. Valuation techniques include net present value techniques, comparison to similar instruments for which observable
market prices exist, and other relevant valuation models.
“Day 1” Differences
Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value of other observable current market transactions
in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique whose variables include only data from observable market, the
Company recognizes the difference between the transaction price and fair value (a “Day 1” difference) in the consolidated
statement of income unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of asset. In cases where use is made of data which is
not observable, the difference between the transaction price and model value is only recognized in the consolidated statement
of income when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each transaction, the Company
determines the appropriate method of recognizing the “Day 1” difference amount.
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities at FVPL
Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVPL include financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon
initial recognition as at FVPL.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in
the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments or a financial guarantee contract. Gains or losses on investments held for trading
are recognized in the consolidated statement of income.
Financial assets or financial liabilities may be designated at initial recognition as at FVPL if the following criteria are met: (a) the
designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring the assets
or recognizing gains or losses on them on a different basis; or (b) the assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial assets,
financial liabilities, or both, which are managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management strategy; or (c) the financial instrument contains an embedded derivative that would need to be
separately recorded.
Where a contract contains one or more embedded derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be designated as at FVPL, except
where the embedded derivative does not significantly modify the cash flow or it is clear that separation of the embedded
derivative is prohibited.
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Classified under this category are the Company’s derivative assets and derivative liabilities (see Note 35).
HTM Investments
HTM investments are quoted non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities for which
the Company has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. Where the Company sells other than an insignificant
amount of HTM investments, the entire category would be tainted and would have to be reclassified as AFS investments.
Furthermore, the Company would be prohibited to classify any financial assets as HTM investments for the following two years.
After initial measurement, HTM investments are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Amortized
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are integral parts of the
effective interest rate. Gains and losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of income when the HTM investments
are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization process. The effect of restatement of foreign-currency
denominated HTM investments are also recognized in the consolidated statement of income.
The Company has no HTM investments as of December 31, 2010 and 2009.
Loans and Receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, loans and receivables are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method less
any allowance for impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in the consolidated statement of income when the loans and
receivables are derecognized or impaired, as well as through the amortization process.
Loans and receivables are classified as current assets if maturity is within 12 months from the reporting date. Otherwise, these
are classified as noncurrent assets.
Classified under loans and receivables are cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, and long-term receivables
(see Notes 7, 8, 15 and 35).
AFS Investments
AFS investments are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as such or are not classified as financial assets
designated at FVPL, HTM investments or loans and receivables. They are purchased and held indefinitely, and may be sold in
response to liquidity requirements or changes in market conditions.
After initial measurement, AFS investments are subsequently measured at fair value with unrealized gains and losses being
recognized as a separate component of equity until the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in equity are recognized in the consolidated statement of income.
The Company uses the specific identification method in determining the cost of securities sold. Unquoted equity securities are
carried at cost, net of impairment. Interest earned or paid on the investments is reported as interest income or expense using
the effective interest rate. Dividends earned on investment are recognized in the consolidated statement of income when the
right of payment has been established.
AFS investments are classified as current if these are expected to be realized within 12 months from the reporting date.
Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets.
AFS investments include quoted and unquoted investments in government securities, proprietary and equity shares (see Notes 9
and 35).
Other Financial Liabilities
This category pertains to financial liabilities that are not held for trading or not designated as at FVPL upon the inception of the
liability. Other financial liabilities, which include loan payable, trade and other payables, due to related parties, long-term debts
and royalty fee payable (see Notes 16, 17, 18, 19, 22 and 35) are initially recognized at fair value of the consideration received
less directly attributable transaction costs. After initial recognition, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any related issue costs, discount or premium. Gains and losses are
recognized in the consolidated statement of income when the liabilities are derecognized, as well as through the amortization
process.
Derivative Financial Instruments
Derivative instruments, including bifurcated embedded derivatives, are initially recognized at fair value on the date that a
derivative transaction is entered into or bifurcated, and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Changes in fair value
of derivative instruments not accounted as hedges are recognized immediately in the consolidated statement of income.
Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.
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The Company assesses whether embedded derivatives are required to be separated from the host contracts when the Company
first becomes party to the contract. An embedded derivative is separated from the hybrid or combined contract if all the
following conditions are met: (a) the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not clearly and closely
related to the economic characteristics and risks of the host contract; (b) a separate instrument with the same terms as the
embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and (c) the hybrid instrument is not recognized at FVPL.
Subsequent reassessment is prohibited unless there is a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash
flows that otherwise would be required under the contract, in which case reassessment is required. The Company determines
whether a modification to cash flows is significant by considering the extent to which the expected future cash flows associated
with the embedded derivative, the host contract or both have changed and whether the change is significant relative to the
previously expected cash flows on the contract.
Impairment of Financial Assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired, if and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred loss event) and that loss event has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or a group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Objective evidence of impairment may include indications that the borrower or a group of borrowers is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganization and where observable data indicate that there is measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
Assets Carried at Amortized Cost
For assets carried at amortized cost, the Company first assesses whether an objective evidence of impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are individually and not individually
significant. If the Company determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses for impairment. Those characteristics are relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of
such assets by being indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the assets
being evaluated. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be,
recognized are not included in a collective assessment for impairment.
If there is an objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying value and the present value of the estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial assets’ original effective interest rate which is the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition. The carrying value of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the
amount of loss is charged to the consolidated statement of income. If in case the receivable has proven to have no realistic
prospect of future recovery, any allowance provided for such receivable is written off against the carrying value of the impaired
receivable. If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss decreases because of an event occurring after
the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reduced by adjusting the allowance account. Any
subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in the consolidated statement of income, to the extent that the carrying
value of the asset does not exceed its amortized cost at reversal date.
AFS Investments
For AFS Investments, the Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired.
In the case of equity investments classified as AFS, impairment indicators would include a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of the investments below its cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss, measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognized in the consolidated statement of income, is removed from equity and recognized in the consolidated statement of
income. Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through the consolidated statement of income. Increases in
fair value after impairment are recognized directly in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
In the case of debt instruments classified as AFS investments, impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial
assets carried at amortized cost. Future interest income is based on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued based on the
rate of interest used to discount future cash flows for the purpose of measuring impairment loss. Such accrual is recorded as
part of “Interest income” in the consolidated statement of income. If, in a subsequent year, the fair value of a debt instrument
increases and that increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in the
consolidated statement of income, the impairment loss is reversed through the consolidated statement of income.
AFS Investments Carried at Cost
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried
at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such unquoted equity instrument, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset.
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Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities
Financial Asset
A financial asset (or where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized
when:
•

the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired;

•

the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed as obligation to them in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass through” arrangement; or

•

the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset and either
(a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset but has transferred the control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a “pass-through”
arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control
of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement
that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.
Financial Liabilities
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the consolidated statement of income.
Offsetting Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset with the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master
netting agreements, and the related assets and liabilities are presented at gross in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
Retirement and Other Post-employment Benefits
The Company maintains a funded, non-contributory defined benefit retirement plan. The Company also provides postemployment medical and life insurance benefits which are unfunded. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit
plan is determined using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized as income or expense
when the net cumulative unrecognized actuarial gains and losses at the end of the previous reporting period exceeded 10% of
the higher of the defined benefit obligations and the fair value of plan assets at that date. These gains or losses are recognized
over the expected average remaining working lives of the employees participating in the plan. Past service cost is recognized as
an expense on a straight-line basis over the average period until the benefits become vested. If the benefits are already vested
immediately following the introduction of, or changes to, the retirement plan, past service cost is recognized immediately. The
defined benefit asset or liability comprises the present value of the defined benefit obligation less past service cost not yet
recognized and less the fair value of plan assets out of which the obligations are to be settled directly. The value of any asset is
restricted to the sum of any past service cost not yet recognized and the present value of any economic benefits available in the
form of refunds from the plan or reductions in the future contributions to the plan.
Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Where the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed,
for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement
is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the consolidated statement of income, net of any
reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a pre-tax rate that reflects,
where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage
of time is recognized as “Interest expense” in the consolidated statement of income.
Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. These are disclosed unless the possibility
of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the consolidated
financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
Capital Stock
Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued. When the Company issues more than one class of stock, a separate
account is maintained for each class of stock and the number of shares issued. Capital stock includes common stock and
preferred stock.
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When the shares are sold at premium, the difference between the proceeds and the par value is credited to the “Additional
paid-in capital” account. When shares are issued for a consideration other than cash, the proceeds are measured by the fair
value of the consideration received. In case the shares are issued to extinguish or settled the liability of the Company, the shares
shall be measured either at the fair value of the shares issued or fair value of the liability settled, whichever is more reliably
determinable.
Direct costs incurred related to equity issuance, such as underwriting, accounting and legal fees, printing costs and taxes are
debited to the “Additional paid-in capital” account. If additional paid-in capital is not sufficient, the excess is charged against
an equity reserve account.
Equity Reserve
Equity reserve is the difference between the acquisition cost of an entity under common control and the Company’s share in the
paid-in capital of the entity acquired (See accounting policy for business combinations of entities under common control).
Cost of Treasury Stock Held
Acquisition of treasury shares by the Company is recorded at purchase cost and shown as a deduction in the equity section of
the consolidated statement of financial position. Upon reissuance of treasury shares, the “Cost of treasury stock held” account
is credited at cost. The excess of proceeds from reissuance over the cost of treasury shares is credited to “Additional paid-in
capital” account. The excess of cost of treasury shares over the proceeds from reissuance is debited to the “Additional paid-in
capital” account but only to the extent of previously set-up additional paid-in capital for the same class of stock. Otherwise, this
is debited against the “Retained earnings” account.
Common Shares in Employee Trust Account
Common shares in the employee trust account, which consist of common shares irrevocably assigned to the Banco de Oro Trust
and Investment Group (BDO Trust) account, are recognized at the amount at which such common shares were reacquired by the
Company for the purpose of its executive/employee stock option or such similar plans, and proportionately reduced upon vesting
of the benefit to the executive/employee grantee of the related number of common shares. This account is shown as a separate
line item in the equity section of the consolidated statement of financial position.
Employee Stock Ownership Plan
Equity-settled transactions with executives/employees are measured at fair value at grant date, which is the date at which
the employee and the Company agree to a share-based payment arrangement. Where an award of share-based payment vests
immediately, the cost of the equity instrument granted is expensed in full at grant date. However, where the award is subject
to vesting conditions, the expense is recognized over the vesting period. Should the employee’s employment with the Company
terminate during the vesting period, the unvested grants shall immediately be cancelled and the employee shall forfeit any rights
or interest with respect to such award.
Retained Earnings
Retained earnings represent the cumulative balance of periodic net income or loss, dividend contributions, prior period
adjustments, effect of changes in accounting policy and other capital adjustments.
Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at inception
date of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement
conveys a right to use the asset.
Operating lease payments are recognized as expense in the consolidated statement of income on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.
Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can
be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts,
rebates, and other sales taxes or duty. The Company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria in order to
determine if it is acting as principal or agent. The Company has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all its revenue
arrangements. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:
Sale of Electricity and Steam
Sale of electricity using geothermal energy is consummated whenever the electricity generated by the Company is transmitted
through the transmission line designated by the buyer, for a consideration. Sale of steam is recognized when the steam
generated by the Company or its by-product passes to the flowmeters installed at the interface point for conversion by the buyer
into power.
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Until October 22, 2009, revenues from sale of electricity and steam are based on sales price, net of the portion of the billings
representing collection of concession receivable and related interest charges. Starting October 23, 2009, revenues from sale of
electricity and steam are based on sales price (see Note 3).
Sale of electricity using hydroelectric power is composed of generation fees from spot sales to the WESM and TPSC with various
electric companies and is recognized monthly based on the actual energy delivered.
Construction Revenue
Construction revenue is recognized by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the reporting date.
When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognized as an expense
immediately.
Drilling Services
Revenue is recognized as drilling services are rendered.
Interest Income
Revenue is recognized as interest accrues, using the effective interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
Purchased Services and Utilities and Operations and Maintenance Expenses
These include expenses incurred by the departments directly responsible for the generation of revenues from steam, electricity
and drilling services (i.e., Plant Operations, Production, Maintenance, Transmission and Dispatch, Wells Drilling and
Maintenance Department) at operating project locations. Purchased services and utilities and operations and maintenance
expenses are expensed as incurred.
General and Administrative Expenses
General and administrative expenses constitute cost of administering the business and normally include the expenses incurred
by the departments in the Head Office (i.e., Management and Services, and Project Location’s Administrative Services
Department). General and administrative expenses are expensed as incurred.
Construction Costs
In conjunction with the policy on Service Concession Arrangements, the Company accounts and measures construction costs in
accordance with PAS 11 and IFRIC 12. This includes costs that relate directly to the construction of the infrastructure project
that the Company incurs for the purpose of the service concession arrangement with the Philippine Government. These costs
include costs that are related directly to the specific contract such as well drilling costs and costs incurred by departments
directly responsible for the infrastructure project and costs that are attributable to the contract activity in general and can be
allocated to the contract. This also includes accumulated exploration and evaluation costs incurred by the project once the
technical, commercial and economic viability of the project are established.
Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, are added to the cost
of the assets, until such time that the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale, which necessarily take
a substantial period of time. Income earned on temporary investment of specific borrowings, pending the expenditure on
qualifying assets, is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. Borrowing costs include interest charges and
other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds, as well as exchange differences arising from foreign currency
borrowings used to finance the project to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs. All other
borrowing costs are recognized in the consolidated statement of income in the period in which they are incurred.
Taxes
Current Tax
Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authority. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted as at the reporting date.
Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized
for all taxable temporary differences, except:
•

where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and
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•

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint
ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward benefits of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward benefits of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized except:
•

where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

•

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and sufficient taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized.
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become
probable that sufficient future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is realized
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted as at the reporting
date.
Deferred tax relating to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income is recognized in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and not in the consolidated statement of income. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate
to the same taxable entity and the same tax authority.
Value-Added Tax (VAT)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized, net of the amount of VAT except:
•

where the VAT incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the tax authority, in which case the VAT
is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable; and

•

receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of VAT included.

The net amount of VAT recoverable from the tax authority is included as part of “Other noncurrent assets” account in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
Earnings Per Share (EPS)
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income for the year attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company
by the weighted average number of common shares issued and outstanding during the year, after giving retroactive effect to any
stock dividends or stock splits, if any, declared during the year.
Diluted earnings per share is computed in the same manner, with the net income for the year attributable to equity holders of the
Parent Company and the weighted average number of common shares issued and outstanding during the year, adjusted for the
effect of all dilutive potential common shares.
As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company does not have any dilutive potential common shares. Hence, diluted EPS is
the same as basic EPS.
Segment Reporting
The Company’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of the products and services
provided (see Note 6).
Events After the Financial Reporting Period
Events after the financial reporting period that provide additional information about the Company’s position at the financial
reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Events after the financial reporting
period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements, when material.
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Future Changes in Accounting Policies
The Company will adopt the following standards and interpretations and assess their impact when these become effective.
Except as otherwise indicated, the Company does not expect the adoption of these standards and interpretations to have
significant impact on its financial statements.
Effective in 2011
•

PAS 24, Related Party Disclosures (Amended)
The amended standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2011. It clarified the definition of
a related party to simplify the identification of such relationships and to eliminate inconsistencies in its application. The
revised standard introduces a partial exemption of disclosure requirements for government-related entities. The Company
does not expect any impact on its financial position or performance. Early adoption is permitted for either the partial
exemption for government-related entities or for the entire standard.

•

PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation (Amendment) - Classification of Rights Issues
The amendment to PAS 32 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after February 1, 2010 and amended the
definition of a financial liability in order to classify rights issues (and certain options or warrants) as equity instruments in
cases where such rights are given pro rata to all of the existing owners of the same class of an entity’s non-derivative equity
instruments, or to acquire a fixed number of the entity’s own equity instruments for a fixed amount in any currency.

•

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 14 (Amendment) - Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement
The amendment to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 14 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2011,
with retrospective application. The amendment provides guidance on assessing the recoverable amount of a net pension
asset. The amendment permits an entity to treat the prepayment of a minimum funding requirement as an asset.

•

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 19 - Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments
Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 19 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2010. The interpretation
clarifies that equity instruments issued to a creditor to extinguish a financial liability qualify as consideration paid. The
equity instruments issued are measured at their fair value. In case that this cannot be reliably measured, the instruments
are measured at the fair value of the liability extinguished. Any gain or loss is recognized immediately in consolidated
statement of income.

Effective in 2012
•

PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures (Amendments) - Disclosures - Transfers of Financial Assets
The amendments to PFRS 7 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2011. The amendments will
allow users of financial statements to improve their understanding of transfer transactions of financial assets (for example,
securitizations), including understanding the possible effects of any risks that may remain with the entity that transferred
the assets. The amendments also require additional disclosures if a disproportionate amount of transfer transactions are
undertaken around the end of a reporting period.

•

PAS 12, Income Taxes (Amendment) - Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets
The amendment to PAS 12 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2012, provides a practical
solution to the problem of assessing whether recovery of an asset will be through use or sale. It introduces a presumption
that recovery of the carrying amount of an asset will, normally, be through sale.

•

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 15, Agreement for Construction of Real Estate
This Interpretation, effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2012, covers accounting for revenue
and associated expenses by entities that undertake the construction of real estate directly or through subcontractors. The
Interpretation requires that revenue on construction of real estate be recognized only upon completion, except when such
contract qualifies as construction contract to be accounted for under PAS 11, or involves rendering of services in which
case revenue is recognized based on stage of completion. Contracts involving provision of services with the construction
materials and where the risks and reward of ownership are transferred to the buyer on a continuous basis will also be
accounted for based on stage of completion.

Effective in 2013
•

PFRS 9, Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement
PFRS 9, as issued in 2010, reflects the first phase of the work on the replacement of PAS 39 and applies to classification
and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities as defined in PAS 39. The standard is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013. In subsequent phases, hedge accounting and derecognition will be
addressed. The completion of this project is expected in middle of 2011. The adoption of the first phase of PFRS 9 will
have an effect on the classification and measurement of the Company’s financial assets. The Company will quantify the
effect in conjunction with the other phases, when issued, to present a comprehensive picture.
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Improvements to PFRS (issued in May 2010)
Improvements to IFRS is an omnibus of amendments to PFRS. The amendments have not been adopted as they become
effective for annual periods on or after either July 1, 2010 or January 1, 2011. The Company expects no impact on the
consolidated financial statements from the adoption of the following amendments:
•
•
•
•
•
5.

PFRS 3, Business Combinations
PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures
PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements
PAS 27, Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 13, Customer Loyalty Programmes

Business Combinations
Acquisition of Bac-Man Geothermal Power Plants
On May 5, 2010, BGI submitted the highest offer price of US$28.25 million for the 150 MW Bac-Man Geothermal Power Plants
in a competitive bidding conducted by Power Sector Assets and Liabilities Management Corporation (PSALM).
Located in Bacon, Sorsogon City and Manito, Albay in the Bicol region, the Bac-Man plant package consists of two steam plant
complexes. The Bac-Man I geothermal facility comprises two 55 MW turbines, which were both commissioned in 1993. BacMan II, on the other hand, consists of two 20 MW units namely, the Cawayan located in Barangay Basud and the Botong in
Osiao, Sorsogon City. The Cawayan unit was commissioned in 1994 and the Botong unit in 1998. EDC supplies the steam that
fuels these plants.
On September 3, 2010, BGI remitted to PSALM the amount of P1,279.73 million representing the full payment of the Bac-Man
power plants acquisition. This acquisition was accounted for using PFRS 3 (Revised).
The provisional fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities that were recognized on acquisition date are as follows:
Property, plant and equipment

P1,279,725,000

Liabilities

–

Net assets

1,279,725,000

Percentage of ownership acquired
Share in the net assets acquired

100%
1,279,725,000

Provisional goodwill arising from acquisition
Total acquisition cost

–
P1,279,725,000

The net assets recognized in the December 31, 2010 financial statements were based on a provisional assessment of fair values
since the valuation of the identifiable net assets acquired was not yet completed as of such date, including the identification and
valuation of any intangible asset and contingent liability. The carrying values of the identifiable assets immediately before the
acquisition cannot be reasonably and practicably determined since the Company has no access to PSALM’s records. Thus, fair
values recognized on acquisition date were based on the actual purchase price.
The net loss of BGI from the acquisition date until December 31, 2010 amounted to P32.47 million, which has been included
in the Company’s results of operations in 2010. The net income (loss) of Bac-Man Geothermal Power Plants for the year
ended December 31, 2010, as though the acquisition date for the business combination had been as of January 1, 2010, is
impracticable to determine since the Company has no access to PSALM’s records.
The Bac-Man Geothermal Power Plants are currently under rehabilitation to restore capacity and reliability.
Acquisition of Palinpinon and Tongonan Geothermal Power Plants
On September 2, 2009, GCGI acquired the 192.5 MW Palinpinon and 112.5 MW Tongonan 1 geothermal power plants in an
auction conducted by PSALM where GCGI submitted the highest complying financial bid of US$220 million. This acquisition
was accounted for using PFRS 3 which was the applicable standard for business combination before the adoption of PFRS 3
(Revised) in 2010.
The newly acquired power plants, located in Negros Oriental and Leyte, were turned over to GCGI on October 23, 2009 after
paying PSALM P3.84 billion (US$82.55 million) representing 40% of the purchase price plus P0.33 billion (US$6.9 million)
for the purchase orders, rental, option price, performance security deposit on land lease, and industrial all-risks insurance policy
and comprehensive general liability. For the remaining balance of P5.82 billion (US$123.80 million), GCGI initially tapped
PSALM’s staple financing scheme allowing for deferred payments of up to seven years in 14 equal semi-annual installments.
On October 12, 2009, the Company has reduced the financial bid of US$220 million by US$6.7 million as PSALM agreed that
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the Company will directly assume the obligations to procure the equipment/services indicated in the Purchase Requisitions (PRs)
being processed by NPC under Schedule R-Purchase Orders (POs) in the Asset Purchase Agreement (APA).
On November 27, 2009, GCGI formally notified PSALM of its intention to prepay all deferred payments on December 29, 2009.
This was consistent with the provision in the APA that GCGI shall have the option to prepay the Deferred Payments at anytime,
subject to the delivery of a written notice of such intent at least 20 business days prior to any such prepayment.
Actual prepayment was made on December 15, 2009 when the PSALM Board has ratified the waiver of the 20-day prepayment
notification period and accepted GCGI’s request to settle in Peso. GCGI has remitted to PSALM the total amount of P5.8 billion
representing the Peso equivalent of the outstanding principal and accrued interest of the loan.
The provisional and final fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities that were recognized on acquisition date are as
follows:
Provisional Fair Values

Final Fair Values

Property, plant and equipment

P10,160,105,505

P7,281,444,330

Parts and supplies inventories

–

393,076,163

–

249,081,716

5,232,152

–

Deferred tax assets
Prepaid expenses
Liabilities

–

–

Net assets

10,165,337,657

7,923,602,209

100%

100%

Share in the net assets acquired

10,165,337,657

7,923,602,209

Goodwill arising from acquisition

–

2,241,735,448

P10,165,337,657

P10,165,337,657

Percentage of ownership acquired

Total acquisition cost

The valuation of the Palinpinon and Tongonan Geothermal Power Plants, which were acquired by GCGI, including the
identification and valuation of any other identifiable assets was finalized in September 2010. Thus, the consolidated financial
statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2009 were restated to reflect the final fair values of the net assets
acquired based on the purchase price allocation. Accordingly, the effects on the depreciation expense and related deferred
income tax resulted to a reduction in the retained earnings as of December 31, 2009 by P11.3 million.
The net income of GCGI from the acquisition date until December 31, 2009 amounted to P48.18 million, which has been
included in the Company’s results of operations in 2009. The revenue and net income (loss) of Palinpinon and Tongonan
Geothermal Power Plants for the year ended December 31, 2009, as though the acquisition date for the business combination
effected during the year had been as of January 1, 2009, is impracticable to determine since the Company has no access to
PSALM’s records.
The cash outflow related to the acquisition amounted to P10.17 billion which includes the P9.99 billion acquisition cost and
P0.18 billion direct transaction costs.
Acquisition of FG Hydro
On October 16, 2008, EDC, First Gen and FG Hydro entered into a Share Purchase and Investment Agreement (SPIA), whereby
EDC shall own 60% of the outstanding equity of FG Hydro, which was a wholly owned subsidiary of First Gen prior to the SPIA.
The acquisition by EDC was through a combination of primary issuance by FG Hydro of up to 17% interest and sale of secondary
shares by First Gen of up to 43% interest in FG Hydro. FG Hydro and EDC were subsidiaries of First Gen at that time and were,
therefore, under common control of First Gen. FG Hydro operates the 112 MW Pantabangan-Masiway hydroelectric power plants
in Nueva Ecija, Philippines.
Consistent with the SPIA, on October 20, 2008, FG Hydro issued 101,281,942 shares of its common stock to EDC for a total
subscription price of P1,648.03 million. Thereafter, on November 17, 2008, EDC acquired 249,287,223 common shares held
by First Gen for US$85.22 million (P4,114.59 million). Total direct cost related to the transaction amounted to P73.44 million.
The total cost of the acquisition of FG Hydro amounted to P5,836.06 million. The acquisition was funded through internally
generated cash flows.
On October 20, 2008, the Parties executed a First Supplement to the SPIA in which it was agreed that the issuance of the
Preferred Shares to First Gen shall be deferred pending finalization of the features of the Preferred Shares. As of March
15, 2011, the BOD of EDC and FG Hydro have agreed to amend the features of the Preferred Shares covered by the First
Supplement to the SPIA. With this amendment, FG Hydro has yet to submit its application to amend its Articles of Incorporation
to the Philippine SEC.
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The transaction was accounted for similar to a pooling-of-interests method since First Gen controlled FG Hydro and EDC before
and after the execution of the transaction in the SPIA. Accordingly, the 2007 consolidated financial statements of EDC were
restated to reflect the acquisition as if it occurred on November 29, 2007, the date when First Gen acquired and controlled EDC
(see Note 1). This also resulted to recognition of equity reserve amounting to P3,706.43 million as of December 31, 2007.
6.

Operating Segment Information
The Company’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of the products and services
provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different products and serves different markets.
The Company’s identified operating segments below are consistent with the segments reported to the BOD, which is the Chief
Operating Decision Maker of the Company.
a.

Electricity segment - These are EDC’s power plants covered mainly by long-term PPAs with NPC and FG Hydro’s spot sales
to and buying from the WESM and with various distribution utilities covered by TPSCs and GCGI’s sales to various NPCassigned and new customers covered by Power Supply Contracts.

b.

Steam segment - These relate to sale of steam to NPC plants covered by SSAs.

c.

All other segments - These relate to segment performing drilling services for Lihir Gold Ltd. and construction services
accounted for under IFRIC 12 up to October 22, 2009.

The Company has one geographical segment since it derives principally all its revenues from domestic operations. Revenue from
drilling services outside the Philippines is not material.Management monitors the operating results of the business segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources to be allocated and of assessing performance. Finance costs,
finance income, income taxes and other charges and income are managed on a group basis. All of the Company’s operations are
in the Philippines and revenues generated are from domestic operations except for revenue from drilling services, included in
“All Other Segments” category, which is from foreign services rendered to Lihir Gold Ltd.
Segment performance is evaluated based on net income (loss) for the year and earnings before interest, taxes, and depreciation
and amortization (EBITDA). Net income (loss) for the year is measured consistent with consolidated net income (loss) in the
consolidated financial statements. EBITDA is calculated as total revenues minus total operating expenses except non-cash items
such as depreciation and amortization, impairment loss on property, plant and equipment of NNGP, and loss on disposal of
property, plant and equipment of a subsidiary among others.
NPC is the main customer for the electricity segment which comprised 59.78% of the total electricity revenue in 2010 and the
only external customer for the steam segment. Central Negros Electric Cooperative, Inc. (CENECO) is also an external customer
for the electricity segment which comprised 9.95% of the total electricity revenue in 2010.
Financial information on the operating segments are summarized as follows:
Electricity

Steam

All Others

Eliminations

Total

P24,901,615,848

Year Ended
December 31, 2010
Segment revenue from
external
customers
Intersegment revenue
Total segment revenue
Segment expenses
Segment results

P22,944,227,877

P1,208,696,413

P748,691,558

P–

243,331,926

5,297,367,214

–

(5,540,699,140)

–

23,187,559,803

6,506,063,627

748,691,558

(5,540,699,140)

24,901,615,848

(20,043,936,340)

(3,424,191,753)

(502,931,313)

5,540,699,140

(18,430,360,266)

P3,143,623,463

P3,081,871,874

P245,760,245

P–

6,471,255,582

Unallocated segment
expenses

(17,498,085)

Unallocated interest
income

347,695,016

Unallocated interest
expense

(3,708,457,266)

(Forward)
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Electricity

Steam

All Others

Eliminations

Total

Year Ended
December 31, 2010
Unallocated other income
- net

P2,079,265,333

Unallocated income taxes

(777,184,715)

Net income
EBITDA

P4,395,075,865
P10,142,991,914

P3,372,419,841

P249,971,521

P–

P13,765,383,276
(17,475,297)

Unallocated expenses

P13,747,907,979
Electricity

Steam

All Others

Eliminations

Total

P16,713,988,665

P3,963,553,444

21,382,627

779,011,141

P1,389,337,568

P–

P22,066,879,677

–

(800,393,768)

Total segment revenue*

16,735,371,292

–

4,742,564,585

1,389,337,568

(800,393,768)

22,066,879,677

Segment expenses
Segment results

(9,460,016,440)

(3,369,878,868)

(1,273,503,000)

800,393,768

(13,303,004,540)

P7,275,354,852

P1,372,685,717

P115,834,568

P–

8,763,875,137

Year Ended
December 31, 2009
Segment revenue from
external
customers
Intersegment revenue

Unallocated segment
expenses

(14,001,207)

Unallocated interest
income

402,950,235

Unallocated interest
expense

(2,887,155,929)

Unallocated other income
- net

1,001,769,464

Unallocated income taxes

(3,910,473,976)

Net income

P3,356,963,724

EBITDA

P9,018,305,160

P1,528,102,828

P179,407,867

P–

P10,725,815,855

Unallocated expenses

(13,965,090)
P10,711,850,765
Electricity

Steam

All Others

Eliminations

Total

P14,361,157,358

P4,507,354,891

P1,658,399,458

P–

–

–

–

–

–

Total segment revenue*

14,361,157,358

4,507,354,891

1,658,399,458

–

20,526,911,707

Segment expenses

(5,292,743,008)

(2,626,391,450)

(1,412,789,310)

–

Segment results

P9,068,414,350

P1,880,963,441

P245,610,148

P–

Year Ended
December 31, 2008
Segment revenue from
external customers
Intersegment revenue

P20,526,911,707

(9,331,923,768)
11,194,987,939

Unallocated segment
expenses

(11,509,545)

Unallocated interest
income

332,562,785

Unallocated interest
expense

(2,152,523,656)

(Forward)
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Electricity

Steam

All Others

Eliminations

Unallocated other
charges - net

(P6,710,693,336)

Unallocated income
taxes

(1,307,548,937)

Net income

EBITDA

Total

P1,345,275,250

P9,111,719,785

P1,397,098,529

P261,395,317

P–

Unallocated expenses

P10,770,213,631
(11,500,941)
P10,758,712,690

*Interest income on service concession was allocated between the electricity and steam segments using the equivalent steam and electricity base price as basis since this
pertains to income from the receivables arising from GSCs.

Electricity

Steam

All Others

Eliminations

Total

P61,887,182,131

P8,739,317,275

P1,477,083,683

P–

P72,103,583,089

As of and for the year
ended December 31, 2010
Segment assets
Unallocated corporate
assets

9,200,009,773

Total assets
Segment liabilities

P81,303,592,862
P29,974,801,728

P14,735,627,501

P1,375,234,436

P–

Unallocated corporate
liabilities
Total liabilities
Capital expenditure

2,978,948,140
P49,064,611,805

`
P4,960,911,113

P1,916,413,339

P125,180,894

P–

Unallocated capital
expenditure

P7,093,710,616
(P3,165,734,160)

(P275,082,901)

(P4,164,781)

P–

Unallocated depreciation
and amortization

Other non-cash items

(P3,444,981,842)
(22,788)

Total depreciation and
amortization
Impairment loss

P7,002,505,346
91,205,270

Total capital expenditure
Depreciation and
amortization

P46,085,663,665

(P3,445,004,630)
P3,390,000,000

P–

P–

P–

P3,390,000,000

(P3,640,935,233)

(P181,051,208)

(P4,297,625)

P–

(P3,826,284,066)

Unallocated non-cash
items

1,689,402,806

Total other non-cash
items

(P2,136,881,260)

Electricity

Steam

All Others

Eliminations

Total

P69,975,632,763

P1,027,087,909

P3,899,590,505

P–

P74,902,311,177

As of and for the year
ended December 31, 2009
Segment assets
Unallocated corporate
assets

9,861,300,044

Total assets
Segment liabilities

P84,763,611,221
P19,252,234,997

P8,337,130,134

Unallocated corporate
liabilities
Total liabilities

(Forward)
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Capital expenditure

Electricity

Steam

All Others

Eliminations

Total

P8,321,548,001

P793,544,660

P1,279,879,950

P–

P10,394,972,611

Unallocated capital
expenditure

107,852,469

Total capital expenditure
Depreciation and
amortization

P10,502,825,080
(P1,092,040,155)

(P64,668,917)

(P54,667,201)

–

(P1,211,376,273)

Unallocated depreciation
and amortization

(36,117)

Total depreciation and
amortization

(P1,211,412,390)

Impairment loss

(P349,000,000)

P–

P–

P–

(P349,000,000)

Other non-cash items

(P203,241,825)

(P272,667,303)

(P36,782,689)

P–

(P512,691,817)

Unallocated non-cash
items

217,148,644

Total other non-cash
items

(P295,543,173)

The following table shows the Company’s reconciliation of EBITDA to the consolidated net income for the years ended December
31, 2010, 2009 and 2008.
2010
EBITDA

2009

2008

P13,747,907,979

P10,711,850,765

P10,758,712,690

Add (Deduct):
(3,445,004,630)

(1,211,412,390)

(675,803,008)

Impairment loss on property, plant and
		
equipment of NNGP

(3,390,000,000)

(349,000,000)

–

Loss on disposal of property, plant and
		
equipment of a subsidiary

(398,927,321)

(273,575,293)

–

(75,257,592)

(21,782,506)

1,100,568,712

Depreciation and amortization

Net reduction in allowance (provision) for 			
doubtful accounts
Reduction in allowance for/write-off of (provision 		
for) impairment of parts and supplies 		
		 inventories
Interest income

15,039,061

(106,206,646)

–

347,695,016

402,950,235

332,562,785

(3,708,457,266)

(2,887,155,929)

(2,152,523,656)

Foreign exchange gains (losses) - net

(13,871,472)

1,291,239,839

(9,357,131,312)

Derivatives gain (loss) - net

436,998,854

(198,809,759)

420,019,743

Interest expense

Revenue from arbitration award
Provision for income tax
Miscellaneous - net
Consolidated net income

–

–

2,067,343,343

(777,184,715)

(3,910,473,976)

(1,307,548,937)

1,656,137,951

(90,660,616)

159,074,890

P4,395,075,865

P3,356,963,724

P1,345,275,250

The Parent Company has intersegment revenue from/to GCGI for the sale of steam/electricity. Intersegment revenues are all
eliminated in consolidation. Segment information is measured in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing
and presenting the consolidated financial statements. Intersegment revenue are made at normal commercial terms and
conditions.
Unallocated expenses pertain to expenses of the corporate, technical and administrative support groups while unallocated
corporate assets and liabilities which include among others certain cash and cash equivalents, property, plant and equipment,
parts and supplies inventories, trade and other payables and retirement and post-retirement benefits, pertain to the Head Office
and are managed on a group basis.
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7.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash on hand and in banks
Cash equivalents

2010

2009

P425,895,226

P259,974,540

5,732,029,906

10,960,922,617

P6,157,925,132

P11,220,897,157

Cash in banks earns interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Cash equivalents consist of money market placements, which
are made for varying periods of up to three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Company. Total
interest earned, net of final tax, amounted to P318.28 million in 2010, P324.39 million in 2009 and P220.97 million in 2008
(see Note 35).
8.

Trade and Other Receivablets
2010

2009

P4,449,033,196

P5,316,014,965

Non-trade accounts receivable

73,070,811

77,268,776

Loans and notes receivables

61,297,851

67,573,603

Advances to employees

30,389,460

20,826,816

Employee receivables

18,728,878

14,998,506

133,971

161,218

Trade (Note 15)
Others:

Claims receivables
Total other receivables
Less allowance for doubtful accounts

183,620,971

180,828,919

4,632,654,167

5,496,843,884

30,606,792

9,597,882

P4,602,047,375

P5,487,246,002

Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing and are generally collectible in 30 to 60 days.
Majority of the Company’s trade receivables are collectible from NPC. All revenues from sale of steam and majority of the
revenues from sale of electricity were derived from NPC.
The rollforward analysis of allowance for doubtful accounts on trade receivables as presented below is based on specific
impairment.
2010

2009

Balance at beginning of year

P9,597,882

P11,780,063

Provision for doubtful accounts (Note 25)

21,008,910

–

–

(2,182,181)

P30,606,792

P9,597,882

2010

2009

P707,524,992

P734,811,000

P18,091,803

P15,313,878

74,550

74,550

P18,166,353

P15,388,428

Recoveries (Note 25)
Balance at end of year

9.

AFS Investments

Current:
Quoted government debt securities
Noncurrent (Note 35):
Quoted equity securities
Unquoted equity securities
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The current AFS investments consist of government debt securities, specifically Republic of the Philippines (ROP) bonds with
maturities between 2013 to 2016 as of December 31, 2010 and 2009. Such bonds were acquired at a discount and bear
interest between 7.25% to 9% in 2010 and 2009.
The noncurrent AFS investments amounting to P18.17 million and P15.39 million as of December 31, 2010 and 2009,
respectively, are included under the “Other noncurrent assets - others” account in the consolidated statements of financial
position (see Note 15).
The movements of gain or loss related to the foregoing investments are presented in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income with details as follows:

Net accumulated unrealized gain on AFS
investments at beginning of year

2010

2009

2008

P113,177,323

P30,826,354

P368,549,253

Changes in fair value recognized in equity
(Note 35)

6,541,474

79,022,336

(291,399,507)

Impairment loss on AFS investments removed from
equity and recognized in profit or loss
(Notes 30 and 35)

–

3,328,633

–

Net unrealized gain removed from equity and
recognized in profit or loss (Notes 30 and 35)

–

–

(46,323,392)

6,541,474

82,350,969

(337,722,899)

P119,718,797

P113,177,323

P30,826,354

Net accumulated unrealized gain on AFS
investments at end of year

Changes in fair value recognized in consolidated statement of comprehensive income refer to unrealized gains and losses during
the years brought about by the temporary increase or decrease in the fair value of the debt and equity instruments.
The Company records unrealized gains and losses on AFS investments directly in equity, presented under the “Net accumulated
unrealized gain on AFS investments” account. If the investment is sold or assessed to be impaired, the cumulative losses or
gains recognized in equity are transferred to the consolidated statement of income.
10. Parts and Supplies Inventories

2010

2009
(Restated, Note 5)

P784,091,559

P632,635,671

Power plant spares

434,541,821

480,925,825

Chemical, chemical products, gases and catalyst

378,798,354

265,694,829

Pump, production/steam gathering system, steam turbine, valves
and valve spares

378,024,500

135,793,178

Electrical, cable, wire product and compressor spares

102,394,673

87,011,228

Automotive, mechanical, bearing, seals, v-belt, gasket, tires and
batteries

92,344,107

94,907,958

Heavy equipment spares

51,758,570

54,416,254

Measuring instruments, indicators and tools, safety equipment
and supplies

50,870,815

71,243,316

Construction and hardware supplies, stationeries and office
supplies, hoses, communication and other spares and
supplies

29,463,704

22,741,436

2,302,288,103

1,845,369,695

275,154,724

101,509,955

P2,577,442,827

P1,946,879,650

On hand:
Drilling tubular products and equipment spares

In transit
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Inventories in transit include items not yet received but ownership or title to the goods have already passed to the Company.
Other than parts and supplies for disposal which are carried at zero net realizable value with cost amounting to P91.01 million
and P106.21 million as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, the other parts and supplies inventories are carried at
cost, which is lower than their net realizable values as of December 31, 2010 and 2009. The amount of inventory charged to
expense amounted to P894.75 million in 2010, P1,327.01 million in 2009 and P1,128.77 million in 2008
(see Notes 24 and 25).
11. Other Current Assets
2010

2009

P300,000,000

P–

Withholding tax certificates

254,743,755

53,645,782

Prepaid expenses

122,179,796

69,309,011

33,178,432

16,422,345

Tax credit certificates (Notes 15 and 30)

Advances to contractors
Others
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23,695,301

1,621,413

P733,797,284

P140,998,551
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Net Book Value

Balances at December 31, 2009

Reclassifications

P32,366,026,898

453,898,777

–

–

121,867,405

Impairment - NNGP (Notes 3 and 24)

Retirements/Write-off (Note 24)

332,031,372

Depreciation for the year

Balances at January 1, 2009

–

32,819,925,675

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment

Balances at December 31, 2009

–

Reclassifications

26,035,065,500

–

Retirements/Write-off (Note 24)

Impact of conversion of GSCs to GRESCs (Note 3)

–

6,784,860,175

P14,081,310,091

326,670,521

–

–

227,132,595

99,537,926

–

14,407,980,612

14,407,980,612

–

–

–

–

P3,680,335,875

597,267,399

122,630

(50,662,092)

–

203,279,096

444,527,765

4,277,603,274

624,500,115

(8,664,749)

(324,237,384)

74,855,254

54,487,003

P3,856,663,035

P2,571,012,213

1,044,814,617

(11,231,567)

(1,590,250)

–

201,549,629

856,086,805

3,615,826,830

836,458,432

201,513,627

(1,590,259)

1,273,742,920

107,298,526

P1,198,403,584

FCRS and
Production Wells

Power Plants
P–

Exploration,
Machinery and
Equipment

Buildings,
Improvements
and Other
Structures

P–

P2,341,211,773

1,462,628,729

157,034,864

(15,826,915)

–

276,606,163

1,044,814,617

(1,958,690)

1,046,773,307

P1,510,965,274

287,626,673

(381,686,981)

(26,841,654)

–

98,887,909

597,267,399

(4,105,168)

601,372,567

3,803,840,502

(42,376,907)

(16,453,349)

246,843,928

–

3,615,826,830

(36,829,233)

P3,652,656,063

P14,135,520,447

3,256,620,699

–

–

2,284,849,465

645,100,713

326,670,521

–

1,798,591,947

(2,489,827,076)

(66,310,776)

77,126,525

–

4,277,603,274

(260,474,935)

P4,538,078,209

Exploration,
Machinery and
Equipment

P32,552,696,371

4,054,656,188

373,635,711

(90,905,093)

1,105,150,535

2,212,876,258

453,898,777

24,679,917

326,670,521

17,392,141,146

36,607,352,559

429,218,860

2,984,160,534

–

–

–

14,407,980,612

–

P14,407,980,612

FCRS and
Production Wells

4,118,020,678

(451,492,400)

120,898,606

–

32,819,925,675

(2,371,304,218)

P35,191,229,893

Additions

Acquisition through business combination (Note 5)

Balances at January 1, 2009

Cost

Net Book Value

Balances at December 31, 2010

Reclassifications

Retirements/Write-off (Note 24)

Impairment - NNGP (Notes 3 and 24)

Depreciation for the year

Balances at January 1, as restated

Purchase Price Allocation Adjustment (Note 5)

Balances at January 1, as previously reported

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment

Balances at December 31, 2010

Reclassifications

Retirements/Write-off (Note 24)

Additions

Acquisition through business combination (Note 5)

Balances at January 1, 2010, as restated

Purchase Price Allocation Adjustment (Note 5)

Balances at January 1, 2010, as previously reported

Cost

Power Plants

Buildings,
Improvements
and Other
Structures

P262,586,007

233,098,900

554,650

(14,871,292)

–

68,386,772

179,028,770

206,003

178,822,767

495,684,907

3,360,326

(18,700,917)

88,905,171

–

422,120,327

3,594,776

P418,525,551

Furniture,
Fixtures and
Equipment

P21,695,516

56,220,762

1,310,169

(3,927,292)

–

7,589,441

51,248,444

77,916,278

7,103,609

1,057,740

(3,927,300)

700,000

137,700

P72,844,529

Transportation
Equipment

P243,091,557

179,028,770

11,270,946

(5,206,754)

–

27,944,914

145,019,664

422,120,327

191,363,191

(1,712,361)

(5,284,918)

26,127,652

3,594,776

P208,031,987

Furniture,
Fixtures and
Equipment

2009 (Restated, Note 5)

P24,581,548

42,658,867

1,128,785

(20,893,155)

–

6,202,475

56,220,762

7,650

56,213,112

67,240,415

(2,915,952)

(21,174,438)

13,414,527

–

77,916,278

137,700

P77,778,578

Transportation
Equipment

2010

P147,616,541

53,812,263

20,462

–

–

8,373,886

45,417,915

201,428,804

106,008,577

(97,299)

–

25,671,715

10,945,660

P58,900,151

Laboratory
Equipment

P366,919,264

89,502,206

(5,644)

(5,057,596)

–

40,753,183

53,812,263

(6,244,929)

60,057,192

456,421,470

206,880,245

(5,057,652)

53,170,073

–

201,428,804

(219,017,417)

P420,446,221

Laboratory
Equipment

P333,082,705

–

–

–

–

–

–

333,082,705

–

–

–

285,682

–

P332,797,023

Land

P333,924,551

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

333,924,551

–

–

841,846

–

333,082,705

–

P333,082,705

Land

P86,852,124

–

–

–

–

–

–

86,852,124

–

32,480,432

(13,861)

33,297,159

–

P21,088,394

Major Spares
and Others

P53,030,079

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

53,030,079

(68,086,300)

3,405,825

30,858,430

–

86,852,124

–

P86,852,124

Major Spares
and Others

P3,449,685,161

–

–

–

–

–

–

3,449,685,161

475,953,015

(206,810,143)

–

1,786,700,368

320,120,490

P1,073,721,431

Construction
in Progress

P5,097,727,288

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

5,097,727,288

(4,814,934,685)

–

5,183,251,812

1,279,725,000

3,449,685,161

–

P3,449,685,161

Construction
in Progress

P56,980,708,681

2,711,713,109

1,492,640

(61,386,388)

349,000,000

880,306,264

1,542,300,593

59,692,421,790

42,684,433,051

17,767,247

(335,053,722)

3,221,380,750

7,281,444,330

P6,822,450,134

Total

P56,679,162,602

9,426,792,262

150,661,385

(174,395,705)

3,390,000,000

3,348,813,473

2,711,713,109

12,584,783

2,699,128,326

66,105,954,864

(105,719,137)

(575,783,707)

5,815,310,918

1,279,725,000

59,692,421,790

(2,883,893,327)

P62,576,315,117

Total

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. Property, Plant and Equipment

203

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

With the Parent Company’s conversion of its GSCs to GRESCs on October 23, 2009, the Parent Company’s GRESCs are no
longer accounted for as service concession agreements under IFRIC 12. Accordingly, the corresponding steam fields, power
plants and related facilities were initially recognized based on the outstanding balances of the related concession receivables
and intangible assets as of October 22, 2009 as part of property, plant and equipment (see Note 3).
In 2010, the Parent Company engaged third party experts to perform parallel independent assessments of the Northern Negros
steam resource development plan and long-term viability and sustainability of the Northern Negros Geothermal Project’s steam
field. On November 22, 2010, the Parent Company temporary shutdown the power plant and steam field of NNGP while
technical studies are being conducted as the survey will need zero disturbance of the reservoir.
The Parent Company evaluates the assets on a CGU basis for any indication of impairment at each reporting date. The Parent
Company assessed that there continues to be an indication of impairment for NNGP and, based on its impairment testing,
recognized an estimated impairment loss of P3,390.0 million in 2010 and P349.0 million in 2009 (see Notes 3 and 24). The
impairment loss is included under the electricity segment (see Note 6).
In accordance with the Pantabangan Refurbishment and Upgrade Project Contract (PRUP), FG Hydro completed the
refurbishment and upgrade of Unit 1 of PAHEP in 2009 and Unit 2 in 2010 (see Note 48). The PRUP provides for the
replacement and upgrade of significant parts and equipment of PAHEP. For the years ended December 31, 2010 and
2009, the cost and related accumulated depreciation of the property, plant and equipment that was replaced amounting to
P398.93 million and P273.58 million, respectively, were derecognized and the net book value included in the “Operations
and maintenance expense” account in the consolidated statements of income (see Note 24).
There are no property, plant and equipment used as collaterals for loans (see Note 19).
Details of depreciation and amortization charges recognized in the statements of income are shown below:

Property, plant and equipment

2010

2009

2008

P3,348,813,473

P880,306,264

P297,713,889

96,191,157

331,106,126

378,089,119

P3,445,004,630

P1,211,412,390

P675,803,008

P3,236,938,415

P1,162,079,964

P657,075,338

Intangible assets (Note 13)
Operations and maintenance

208,066,215

49,332,426

18,727,670

P3,445,004,630

P1,211,412,390

P675,803,008

General and administrative expenses

The reclassifications in the accumulated depreciation and amortization include the capitalized depreciation charges amounting
to P146.69 million in 2010 under construction in progress which relates to ongoing drilling of wells as of December 31, 2010.
13. Goodwill and Water Rights

2010
Water Rights

Goodwill

Total

P2,404,778,918

P293,316,082

P2,698,095,000

Purchase price allocation adjustment (Note 5)

–

2,241,735,448

2,241,735,448

Balances at January 1, 2010, as restated and
December 31, 2010

2,404,778,918

2,535,051,530

4,939,830,448

300,597,365

–

300,597,365

96,191,157

–

96,191,157

Cost
Balances at January 1, 2010, as previously reported

Accumulated Amortization
Balances at January 1, 2010
Amortization (Note 12)
Balances at December 31, 2010
Net Book Value
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396,788,522

–

396,788,522

P2,007,990,396

P2,535,051,530

P4,543,041,926
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2009 (Restated, Note 5)
Intangible
Assets Arising
from Service
Concessions

Water Rights

Goodwill

Total

P9,835,385,122

P2,404,778,918

P293,316,082

P12,533,480,122

541,458,209

–

2,241,735,448

2,783,193,657

Cost
Balances at January 1, 2009
Additions (Note 5)
Reversal arising from conversion
of GSCs to GRESCs
(Notes 3 and 12)

(10,376,843,331)

–

–

–

2,404,778,918

2,535,051,530

4,939,830,448

Balances at January 1, 2009

446,192,031

204,406,208

–

650,598,239

Amortization (Note 12)

234,914,969

96,191,157

–

331,106,126

(681,107,000)

–

–

(681,107,000)

–

300,597,365

–

300,597,365

P–

P2,104,181,553

P2,535,051,530

P4,639,233,083

Balances at December 31, 2009

(10,376,843,331)

Accumulated Amortization

Reversal arising from conversion
of GSCs to GRESCs
(Notes 3 and 12)
Balances at December 31, 2009
Net Book Value

Water rights are amortized using the straight-line method over 25 years, which is the term of the Agreement with NIA. The
remaining amortization period of water rights is 20.9 years and 21.9 years as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
Management believes that the intangible assets are not impaired in 2010 and 2009 based on the assessments performed.
With the Parent Company’s conversion of its GSCs to GRESCs on October 23, 2009, the Parent Company’s GRESCs are no
longer accounted for as service concession agreements under IFRIC 12. Accordingly, the Parent Company derecognized the
intangible assets arising from service concessions and their carrying values as of October 22, 2009 became the beginning
balance of property, plant and equipment (see Note 12).
14. Exploration and Evaluation Assets

Balances at beginning of year
Additions
Write-off (Notes 3 and 30)
Balances at end of year

2010

2009

P1,038,052,272

P999,757,259

132,354,843

121,827,005
–

P1,170,407,115

(83,531,992)
P1,038,052,272
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Exploration and evaluation assets are intangible and consist of deferred costs pertaining to the following project areas:
2010

2009

P574,378,601

P571,460,625

Mindanao

285,883,658

284,727,369

Ilocos Norte

198,656,370

81,379,857

Dauin, Southern Negros

54,443,822

52,387,892

Bac-Man-Rangas/Kayabon

35,136,713

35,824,216

Other areas

21,907,951

12,272,313

P1,170,407,115

P1,038,052,272

Cabalian, Southern Leyte

Write-off pertains to plugged and abandoned well which was determined to be unproductive and can no longer be utilized in
future activities.
15. Other Noncurrent Assets
2010
Tax credit certificates (Note 30)

2009

P1,338,884,446

P–

1,105,783,755

657,733,453

Input VAT claims for refund

681,799,381

2,408,505,632

Special deposits and funds

112,373,475

48,361,874

Long-term receivables

36,567,506

35,576,619

Prepaid expenses

15,532,903

58,530,604

Input VAT

Others (Note 9)
Less allowance for doubtful accounts

61,956,464

101,340,545

3,352,897,930

3,310,048,727

114,356,503

1,954,488,539

P3,238,541,427

P1,355,560,188

Tax credit certificates
The P1,338.88 million tax credit certificates (TCC) issued by the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) from May to June 2010
pertains to the Company’s input VAT claims on Build-Operate-Transfer (BOT) fees for 1998 and 1999 amounting to
P1,894.72 million. Such TCCs shall be utilized over a period of four (4) years starting 2012 to 2015 with a cap of
P300.0 million per year, except in 2015 where the remaining balance will be fully applied. The current portion of tax credit
certificates amounting to P300.0 million included under “Other current assets” account shall be utilized starting 2011
(see Note 11). The remaining balance of P255.84 million which was disallowed by the BIR was written off.
Input VAT claims for refund
The outstanding input VAT claims of P681.80 million as of December 31, 2010, pertained to input VAT claims for 2009
(P168.02 million), 2008 (P131.62 million), 2007(P89.10 million) and 2006 (P293.06 million) which are still pending with
the BIR/Court of Tax Appeals (CTA) as of December 31, 2010.
Special deposits and funds
The special deposits and funds mainly consist of escrow account in favor of terminated employees, sinking fund required by the
Department of Finance and security deposit of the Company’s new office in Ortigas Center, Mandaluyong City (see Note 44).
Long-term receivables
Long-term receivables consist of NPC accounts and other receivables. As discussed in Note 29, on April 24, 2008, an arbitral
settlement award was concluded with NPC liable to the Parent Company for P2,894.93 million covering the long-standing
issue related to the SSAs and PPAs of EDC with NPC. A payment schedule as agreed upon among the parties called for NPC’s
settlement of the arbitral award over three years at zero interest. Consistent with the provisions of PAS 39, the net amount of
receivables was presented at fair value, discounted using 7.99% to 8.11%. As of the award date, the difference between the
nominal value and fair value of P189.79 million was recognized as a “Day 1” loss and presented under the “Miscellaneous net” account in the consolidated statement of income (see Note 30). Subsequent to the initial recognition, the receivable is
accreted to its maturity value based on its effective interest rate. The accretion recognized in 2010, 2009 and 2008 amounted
to P6.01 million, P75.67 million and P108.11 million, respectively, and is included under “Interest income” account in the
consolidated statements of income.
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The movement of the NPC receivables covered by the arbitration is as follows:
2010

2009

Balance at beginning of year

P888,922,358

P1,813,252,839

Collection during the year

(894,930,272)

(1,000,000,000)

6,007,914

75,669,519

Balance at end of year

–

888,922,358

Less current portion

–

888,922,358

P–

P–

Accretion

Noncurrent portion

Allowance for doubtful accounts
The rollforward analysis of the allowance for doubtful accounts pertaining to input VAT claims for refund and long-term
receivables is presented below.
2010
Input VAT claims for
Refund

NPC

P1,918,911,920

P3,087,482

P32,489,137

P1,954,488,539

(255,835,548)

–

–

(255,835,548)

54,597,072

–

2,396,749

56,993,821

(1,638,884,447)

–

(2,405,862)

(1,641,290,309)

Balances at end of year

P78,788,997

P3,087,482

P32,480,024

P114,356,503

Specific impairment

P78,788,997

P3,087,482

P–

P81,876,480

–

–

32,480,024

32,480,023

P78,788,997

P3,087,482

P32,480,024

P114,356,503

Balances at beginning of year
Write-off of uncollectible accounts
Provision for doubtful accounts
(Note 25)
Recoveries (Note 25 and 30)

Collective impairment
Total

Others

Total

2009
Input VAT claims for
Refund

NPC

Others

Total

P1,894,719,994

P3,500,052

P62,803,527

P1,961,023,573

–

–

(30,499,721)

(30,499,721)

24,191,926

–

185,331

24,377,257

–

(412,570)

–

(412,570)

Balances at end of year

P1,918,911,920

P3,087,482

P32,489,137

P1,954,488,539

Specific impairment

P1,918,911,920

P3,087,482

P–

P1,921,999,402

Balances at beginning of year
Write-off of uncollectible accounts
Provision for doubtful accounts
(Note 25)
Recoveries (Notes 25)

Collective impairment
Total

–

–

32,489,137

32,489,137

P1,918,911,920

P3,087,482

P32,489,137

P1,954,488,539

16. Loan Payable
Loan payable as of December 31, 2010 consists of an unsecured short-term borrowing amounting to P175.0 million at
2.20% interest rate per annum obtained from a local bank on December 21, 2010 for the Parent Company’s working capital
requirements. The loan matured on January 20, 2011and was rolled over for another 29 days, with new maturity date on
February 18, 2011, at 2.30% interest rate per annum.
On February 18, 2011, a partial payment was made on the principal amounting to P85.0 million and the balance of
P90.0 million was rolled over for 31 days to mature on March 21, 2011 at 2.30% interest rate per annum.
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17. Trade and Other Payables
2010

2009

P3,931,068,832

P2,832,923,865

Accrued interest and guarantee fees (Note 19)

889,806,777

923,147,531

Withholding and other taxes payable

257,346,704

194,692,777

6,446,576

17,304,418

Accounts payable

Deferred credits
SSS and other contributions payable
Other payables

2,722,658

8,768,580

36,100,139

8,216,274

P5,123,491,686

P3,985,053,445

Accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on a 30 to 60 days payment term.
The accrued interest represents interest accrual on outstanding loans reckoning from the last payment date up to the financial
reporting date. Guarantee fees are accruals of amounts due to the Philippine Government reckoning from the last payment
date up to the financial reporting date. Details of the guarantee fees are discussed in Note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements.
As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company has P6.0 billion and P5.77 billion of unused credit facilities from various
local banks, respectively, which may be available for future operating activities.

18. Royalty Fee Payable

Due to DOE and Local Government Units (LGUs) (Note 38)
Less current portion
Noncurrent portion

2010

2009

P554,783,572

P811,004,709

254,155,199

244,306,963

P300,628,373

P566,697,746

A rollforward analysis of the recognized “Day 1” gain and accretion on the deferred royalty fee due to the DOE is shown below:
2010

2009

Balance at beginning of year

P98,380,719

P–

Accretion (Notes 27 and 35)

(56,102,861)

Additions (Notes 30 and 35)

–

168,284,986

P42,277,858

P98,380,719

Balance at end of year

(69,904,267)

As discussed in Note 38, by virtue of P.D. 1442, the Parent Company entered into seven service contracts with the DOE, which
granted the Company the right to explore, develop, and utilize the country’s geothermal resources subject to sharing of net
proceeds with the Philippine Government. The Parent Company pays royalty fees to the DOE and LGUs under the agreements.
Royalty fees due to the DOE are payable based on a pre-agreed payment schedule and are noninterest-bearing. In accordance
with PAS 39, “Day 1” gain was recognized for the difference between the nominal/maturity value and present value of the
royalty fee payable, which ranged from 1.05% to 2.94% in 2010 and 7.63% to 8.09% in 2009. “Day 1” gain recognized is
nil in 2010 and P168.28 million in 2009, for the difference between the maturity value and present value of additional royalty
fee recorded in each year. The amount of “Day 1” gain is included in the “Miscellaneous - net” account in the consolidated
statements of income (see Note 30). Subsequent to initial recognition, royalty fee payable is accreted to its maturity value
based on its effective interest rate determined on Day 1.
Royalty fees due to the LGUs are payable within 60 days after the end of each quarter to DOE, which in turn remits the said
payments to the Department of Budget and Management (DBM). The DBM releases on a quarterly basis the preceding year’s
royalty fees due to the LGUs within five days after the end of each quarter. This procedure is in accordance with Article 390 of
the Implementing Rules and Regulations (IRR) of the Local Government Code of 1991.
On July 8, 2009, the Parent Company negotiated with the DOE for the payment of deferred royalty due to DOE amounting to
P1.4 billion for a period of five years with a quarterly amortization of P87.5 million or an annual payment of P350.0 million.
Beginning 2009, royalty fee due shall be paid as it becomes due.
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Accretion recognized in 2010, 2009 and 2008 amounted to P56.10 million, P69.90 million and P225.59 million, respectively.
These were included under the “Interest expense” account in the consolidated statements of income (see Notes 27 and 35).
Royalty fee expense decreased due to the fiscal incentives availed pursuant to the RE Law which was implemented starting
February 1, 2009 retroactive to the effective date of the RE Law on January 30, 2009.
19. Long-term Debts
The Company’s foreign-currency denominated long-term loans were translated into Philippine peso based on the prevailing
foreign exchange rates as at financial reporting date (US$1=JP¥81.659: US$1=PHP43.840 as of December 31, 2010) and
(US$1=JP¥91.634: US$1=PHP46.200 as of December 31, 2009).
The details of the Company’s long-term debts are as follows:

2010

2009

½ of 1% over cost of
qualified borrowings

P–

P339,700,832

½ of 1% over cost of
qualified borrowings

–

1,012,141,577

½ of 1% over cost of

–

1,189,036,548

–

927,908,710

Creditor/Project

Maturities

Interest Rate

3164 PH Energy Sector Loan
 US$118 million

1995 to 2010

3702 PH Geothermal Exploration Project
 US$64 million

1999 to 2013

3747 PH Geothermal Exploration Project
 US$114 million


JPY12.4 billion

1999 to 2014
1999 to 2014

qualified
borrowings/3.5%

Overseas Economic Cooperation Fund (OECF)
8th Yen Tongonan I Geothermal Power Plant
(share in OECF-NPC loan)
 JPY5.8 billion
 JPY1.5 billion (Restructured)

1990 to 2010

3.0%
3.2%

–
57,968,291

71,833,988
90,731,741

9th Yen Palinpinon I Geothermal Power Plant
 JPY8.5 billion

1991 to 2011

3.0%

111,514,839

314,177,620

15th Yen Palinpinon I Geothermal
Power Plant
 JPY4.0 billion

1999 to 2019

5.7%

–

743,394,119

18th Yen Palinpinon II Geothermal
Power Plant
 JPY77.4 million

2003 to 2023

5.5%

25,329,677

25,690,629

19th Yen Mt. Labo Geothermal Project
 JPY320 million

2004 to 2024

4.9%

117,356,463

118,084,138

21st Yen NNGP
 JPY14.5 billion, of which JPY5.9 billion
was drawn in 2007

2007 to 2027

2.7%/2.3%

4,505,119,490

4,487,265,321

Miyazawa II
 JPY22.0 billion

June 26, 2010

2.37%

–

11,009,849,524

International Finance Corporation (IFC)
 P4.1 billion

2012-2033

7.4% per annum for the
first five years subject to
repricing for another five
to ten years

4,034,266,907

4,026,880,578

(Forward)
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Creditor/Project

2010

2009

8.3729%

P2,357,049,582

P2,611,270,810

2010-2016

9.4042%

4,563,263,831

4,792,814,858

2010-2014

8.4321%

1,336,158,514

1,480,136,400

Maturities

Interest Rate

P2.6 billion

2010-2014



P4.9 billion



P1.5 billion

Fixed Rate Corporate Note (FRCN)


Peso Public Bond


P8.5 billion

June 4, 2015

8.6418%

8,397,293,756

8,382,949,034



P3.5 billion

December 4, 2016

9.3327%

3,455,439,211

3,451,657,688

LIBOR plus a margin of
325 points

7,427,718,353

–

Philippine National Bank (PNB) Peso Loan

9.025%

3,372,228,254

–

Allied Bank Peso Loan

9.025%

1,445,240,680

–

–

2,388,974,276

41,205,947,848

47,464,498,391

1,527,248,370

16,930,776,636

P39,678,699,478

P30,533,721,755

Syndicated Term Loan
 US$175.0 million

Deferred payment facility with PSALM
Total
Less current portion
Noncurrent portion

The long-term debts are presented net of unamortized transaction costs. A rollforward analysis of unamortized transactions costs
follows:
2010
Balance at beginning of year
Addition
Amortization (Notes 27 and 35)
Foreign exchange loss (gain) - net
Balance at end of year

P436,414,307

2009
P174,928,940

406,519,971

376,360,871

(203,086,285)

(109,852,266)

(13,707,081)

(5,023,238)

P626,140,912

P436,414,307

Amortization during the year is included under the “Interest expense” account in the consolidated statements of income
(see Note 27).
Parent Company Loans
The Parent Company entered into long-term loan arrangements with domestic and international financial institutions for its
various development projects and working capital requirements. PNOC, the then parent company of EDC, is the primary
borrower of the loans from IBRD with sub-lending arrangements with EDC. NPC is the primary borrower of certain loans from
OECF with sub-lending arrangements with EDC. For the other loans, EDC is the direct borrower with the obligations guaranteed
by the Philippine Government. The Company pays a guarantee fee of 1.00% per annum to the Philippine Government based
on the outstanding balance of the guaranteed loans. Starting January 1, 2008, the guarantee fee increased to 2% per annum.
Beginning January 2011, the guarantee fee shall increase by 0.25% per annum up to a maximum of 3.00% per annum.
The Parent Company entered into a loan agreement with the IFC on November 27, 2008 for US$100.0 million or its peso
equivalent of P4.1 billion. On January 7, 2009, the Parent Company opted to draw the loan in peso and received the proceeds
amounting to P4,048.75 million, net of P51.25 million front-end fee. The loan is payable in 24 equal semi-annual installments
after a three-year grace period at an interest rate of 7.4% per annum for the first five years subject to repricing for another five
to 10 years. Under the loan agreement, the Parent Company is restricted from creating liens and is subject to certain financial
covenants.
On June 1, 2009, the Parent Company has fully settled its Miyazawa I loan amounting to P6,270.4 million.
On July 3, 2009, the Parent Company received P7,500.0 million proceeds from the issuance of FRCN split into two tranches.
The first tranche of P2,644.0 million will mature after 5 years plus 1 day and the second tranche of P4,856.0 million will mature
after 7 years with a coupon rate of 8.3729% and 9.4042% respectively. On September 3, 2009, the Parent Company received
P1,500.0 million proceeds from the additional issuance of FRCN, a 5-year plus 1 day series paying a coupon of 8.4321%.
On December 4, 2009, the Parent Company received P12,000.0 million proceeds from the issuance of fixed rate Peso public
bonds - split into two tranches - P8,500.0 million, due after 5 years and 6 months and P3,500.0 million, due after 7 years,
paying a coupon of 8.6418% and 9.3327%, respectively.
In May 2010, the Parent Company fully settled the PNOC on-lent loans (IBRD and 5th yen loans) amounting to P4,212.2 million.
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In June 2010, the Parent Company signed a three-year US$175.0 million (P8,058.7 million) syndicated term loan facility with
Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited (ANZ) Manila Branch, Credit Agricole Corporate and Investment Bank, and
Standard Chartered Bank as Mandated Lead Arrangers and Bookrunners. The loan carries an interest of LIBOR plus a margin of
325 basis points.
On June 28, 2010, the Parent Company fully settled its JPY22.0 billion Miyazawa II loan (P11,091.97 million).
The loan covenants covering its outstanding debts include, among others, maintenance of certain level of current, debt-to-equity
and debt-service ratios. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Parent Company is in compliance with the loan covenants of
all its outstanding debts except for the prohibition in issuing any guarantee by the Parent Company and the Financial Debt to
EBITDA ratio required by IFC for which the Parent Company has obtained a waiver as discussed below. The Parent Company
had satisfactorily met the required Financial Debt to EBITDA ratio of not more than 3.6 in the second quarter of 2010, and,
therefore, ends the Temporary Waiver Period of the first waivers.
Waivers and temporary amendment of IFC Loan Agreement (Loan Agreement)
On September 30, 2009, the IFC has approved the Parent Company’s requests for waivers and temporary amendments to the
provisions of the Loan Agreement which prohibit EDC from issuing any guarantees and for EDC to maintain at all times on an
Unconsolidated Basis, a Financial Debt to EBITDA Ratio of not more than 3.6, such temporary waiver to be effective for the
period from September 30, 2009 to earlier of (a) December 31, 2010 or (b) the date falling at the end of any quarter ending
prior to December 31, 2010 on which EDC has submitted evidence satisfactory to IFC that EDC’s Financial Debt to EBITDA on a
unconsolidated basis for such quarter is not more than 3.6 (“Temporary Waiver Period”).
The temporary waivers and amendments to the Loan Agreement are granted subject to the following conditions:
1.

Parent Company’s issuance of a guarantee to the lenders of FG Hydro Loan for up to US$72.0 million shall cover only:
a.

The punctual and complete payment when due and payable of scheduled payments under the FG Hydro Loan and
specifically exclude coverage of all payments under the FG Hydro Loan due upon prepayment.

b.

The FG Hydro Loan will have a tenor of 10 years with a two-year grace period for principal repayments and the
repayments of principal shall occur in equal semi-annual installments and payments of interest shall be made semiannually.

2.

The Financial Debt to EBITDA ratio was changed to not more than 6.5 effective September 30, 2009 and until the
expiration of the Temporary Waiver Period; and the definition Spread under the Loan Agreement was changed to three point
thirty-five percent (3.35%) per annum.

3.

A waiver processing fee of twenty thousand Dollars ($20,000), payable no later than November 9, 2009. Failure to pay
the waiver processing fee for a period of 30 days after the date on which IFC notified the Borrower of such failure, shall
constitute an event of default under the Loan Agreement.

On the December 21, 2010 letter from the IFC, the IFC has approved the Parent Company’s requests for waivers in relation to
the issuance of the Regulation-S Unrated US Dollar Bonds. The IFC granted, subject to the terms and conditions, the following
waivers on a temporary basis until March 30, 2011:
a.

with respect to Section 5.01 (n) (ii) (Financial Ratios) of the Loan Agreement, the USD Bonds shall not be included
in the calculation of Financial Debt to EBITDA Ratio; and

b.

with respect to Section 5.02 (c) (iii) (C) (Permitted Financial Debt) of the Loan Agreement, the USD Bonds shall not
be included in the calculation of Peak Debt Service Coverage Ratio.

The waivers granted are subject to the condition that the USD Bonds shall be in a total amount not exceeding US$300.0 million.
The temporary waivers granted shall expire automatically on March 30, 2011 and shall have no further effect thereafter, unless
such waivers are superseded in the meantime by written amendments entered into by IFC and the Parent Company of the
aforesaid provisions of the Loan Agreement. For the avoidance of doubt, upon the expiration of the waivers, the USD Bonds
shall henceforth be included in the calculation of Financial Debt to EBITDA Ratio and Peak Debt Service Coverage Ratio.
In connection with processing the waivers requested, the Parent Company shall pay to IFC no later than April 15, 2011, an
administrative fee of US$0.05 million.
FG Hydro Loan
On October 5, 2006, FG Hydro entered into an APA with PSALM for the purchase of PAHEP/MAHEP. Under the APA, 40%
of the total consideration was paid up-front to PSALM on November 17, 2006 and the remaining 60% (the Deferred Payment
Facility) will be paid in 14 semi-annual installments including 12% interest per annum compounded semi-annually. FG Hydro
has the option to prepay the Deferred Payment Facility.
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On May 7, 2010, FG Hydro fully paid the balance of the Deferred Payment Facility with part of the proceeds of the PNB and
Allied Bank loan.
Details of the deferred payment facility with PSALM are as follows:
2010

2009
Peso
Equivalent

US Dollar

Peso
Equivalent

US Dollar

(In Thousands)
Balance at beginning of year

$51,709

P2,388,974

$61,288

P2,912,405

Payments during the year

(51,709)

(2,299,000)

(9,579)

(478,795)

Foreign exchange adjustments

–

(89,974)

–

(44,636)

Balance at end of year

–

–

51,709

2,388,974

Less current portion

–

–

10,762

497,227

$–

P–

$40,947

P1,891,747

Noncurrent portion

On May 7, 2010, FG Hydro signed a loan agreement for a 10-year P5,000.0 million Peso loan with PNB and Allied Bank. The
loan is secured by a Real Estate and Chattel mortgages on all present and future mortgageable assets of FG Hydro. The loan
carries an interest rate of 9.025% subject to re-pricing after five years. Loan repayment is semi-annual based on increasing
percentages yearly as set forth in Schedule 3 of the loan agreement with the first payment made on November 8, 2010. The
loan proceeds was used to finance the full payment of the Deferred Payment Facility and the PRUP, and fund general corporate
and working capital requirements of FG Hydro.
FG Hydro has been compliant to the covenants of its existing loans as of December 31, 2010.
20. Other Long-term Liabilities
This account consists of accrued vacation and sick leave entitlement of active employees. The accruals pertain to the unused
vacation and sick leaves at the end of the calendar year up to the maximum allowed leave credits for accrual. Vacation and sick
leave credits exceeding the maximum allowed for accrual are forfeited.

21. Equity
Capital Stock
As required under the Philippine Constitution, the Parent Company is subject to the nationality requirement that at least sixty
percent (60%) of its capital stock must be owned by Filipino citizens since it is engaged in the exploration and exploitation of
the country’s energy resources. The Parent Company is compliant with the said nationality requirement.
The common shares are majority held by Filipinos, with Red Vulcan holding six billion shares or an equivalent of 40% interest.
The ownership of the Parent Company’s preferred shares is limited to Filipino citizens. The preferred shares have voting rights
and subject to 8% cumulative interest. Red Vulcan holds the entire P9.4 billion preferred shares equivalent to 20% voting
interest in EDC. The combined interest of Red Vulcan entitles it to 60% voting interest and 40% economic interest in EDC.
The Parent Company had 715 common stockholders and one preferred stockholder as of December 31, 2010, 662 common
stockholders and one preferred stockholder as of December 31, 2009 and 635 common stockholders and one preferred
stockholder as of December 31, 2008.
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The movements of common and preferred shares are as follows:
Number of Shares
Preferred stock - P0.01 par value per share
Authorized

2010

2009

2008

15,000,000,000

15,000,000,000

7,500,000,000

9,375,000,000

7,500,000,000

7,500,000,000

Issued and outstanding:
		

Balance at beginning of year
Additional subscriptions

Balance at end of year

–

1,875,000,000

–

9,375,000,000

9,375,000,000

7,500,000,000

30,000,000,000

30,000,000,000

15,000,000,000

18,750,000,000

15,000,000,000

15,000,000,000

Common stock - P1 par value per share
Authorized
Issued:
		

Balance at beginning of year

		

Stock dividends - 25%

–

3,750,000,000

–

		

Balance at end of year

18,750,000,000

18,750,000,000

15,000,000,000

18,750,000,000

14,907,000,000

15,000,000,000

Stock dividends - 25%

–

3,750,000,000

–

Issuances

–

93,000,000

–

Common shares held in treasury

–

–

(93,000,000)

18,750,000,000

18,750,000,000

14,907,000,000

Outstanding:
Balance at beginning of year

Balance at end of year

Common Shares Held in Treasury
On March 25, 2008, the BOD of the Parent Company approved a share buyback program involving up to P4.0 billion worth of
the Parent Company’s common shares, representing approximately four percent of the Parent Company’s market capitalization as
of the date of the approval. The buyback program will be carried out within a two-year period which commenced on
March 26, 2008 and ended on March 25, 2010. The Parent Company intended to implement an executive/employee stock
option ownership plan through options, grants, purchases, or such other equivalent methods. In 2008, the Parent Company
acquired a total of 93,000,000 common shares for a total cost of P404.22 million.
Common Shares in Employee Trust Account
In 2009, a total of 93,000,000 common shares held in treasury that were acquired in 2008 at the cost of P404.22 million,
have been issued irrevocably by the Parent Company to BDO Trust for the benefit of the executive/employee grantees under
the Parent Company’s Employee Stock Grant Plan (ESGP). The BDO Trust is an independent and separate legal entity. EDC
has neither control nor discretion over the administration and investment activity on the common shares in executive/employee
benefit trust held by BDO Trust. These shares are part of the issued and outstanding common shares and are entitled to vote
and receive dividend. These shares will not revert to EDC even if the planned stock grant plan or other such plan is terminated.
Any fruits or interests of these shares shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the officers and employees of EDC who are
identified grantees of such stock plans. Any capital appreciation or decline in value, dividends, or other benefits declared on
these shares shall accrue to the trust account and EDC shall not have any claim thereon. The issuance of the common shares
to BDO Trust was initially recognized at P404.22 million under the “Common shares in employee trust account” account in the
equity section of the 2009 consolidated statement of financial position (see Note 34).
Retained Earnings
a.

Dividend declarations
Stock dividends
On May 19, 2009 and June 30, 2009, the BOD and the stockholders during the annual stockholders’ meeting,
respectively, approved the increase in authorized capital stock of the Parent Company. The increase in authorized capital
stock from P15.075 billion to P30.15 billion divided into 30 billion common shares with a par value of P1.00 and
15.0 billion preferred shares with a par value of P0.01 per share, shall be effected through the declaration of a 25% stock
dividend in the outstanding common shares, and the subscription by the current preferred stockholders to P18.75 million,
representing 25% of the increase in the preferred shares.
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On October 12, 2009, the SEC approved the increase in the Parent Company’s authorized capital stock from
P15.075 billion to P30.15 billion divided into 30 billion common shares with a par value of P1.00 per share and
P15.0 billion preferred shares with a par value of P0.01 per share by way of common stock dividends (totaling 3.75 billion
common shares with any fractional shares being subscribed by the EDC Retirement Fund and/or Trust for the EDC Executive/
Employee Stock Ownership Plan) and the subscription by the current preferred stockholders to 1.875 billion preferred shares,
representing 25% of the increase in the preferred shares at par value.
The stock dividends were distributed on November 23, 2009 to stockholders as of the record date of October 27, 2009.
Cash dividends
On May 7, 2010, FG Hydro paid cash dividend to the Company’s non-controlling interest amounting to P240.0 million.
On March 25, 2010, the BOD of the Parent Company approved the following cash dividends in favor of all stockholders of
record as of April 13, 2010 and payable on or before April 30, 2010:
•
•

cash dividend of P0.0008 per share on the preferred shares
regular cash dividend of P0.12 per share on the common shares

On March 30, 2009, the BOD of the Parent Company approved the following cash dividends in favor of all stockholders of
record as of April 16, 2009, which were paid on May 11, 2009:
•
•

cash dividend of P0.0008 per share on the preferred shares totaling P6.0 million
regular cash dividend of P0.125 per share on the common shares totaling P1,863.38 million

On February 19, 2008, the BOD of the Parent Company declared the following cash dividends in favor of all stockholders of
record as of March 5, 2008, which were paid on March 17, 2008:
•
•
•
b.

cash dividend of P0.0004 per share on the preferred shares totaling P3.0 million
regular cash dividend of P0.125 per share on the common shares totaling P1,875.0 million
special cash dividend of P0.145 per share on the common shares totaling P2,175.0 million

Reversal of appropriations
On December 16, 2008, the BOD of the Parent Company approved the reversal of previously appropriated retained earnings
totaling P1,653.32 million, which was earmarked to undertake exploration activities and acquisition and refurbishment of
exploration equipment. The intended activities and acquisitions have been completed in 2008.

c.

Adjustment on appraisal increase
In 2008, the Parent Company adjusted the related deferred tax liabilities on appraisal increase on property, plant and
equipment recorded upon adoption of PFRS on January 1, 2005. The appraised values of property, plant and equipment
were recognized as fair value deemed cost consistent with the provisions of PFRS 1.

Non-controlling interest
On March 24, 2008 and October 10, 2008, the BOD of FG Hydro authorized the declaration of cash dividends in favor of its
then parent company, First Gen. Total cash dividends paid to FirstGen amounted to P1,250.0 million (P2.59 per share) in
2008. The said cash dividends are presented as a reduction of non-controlling interest in the 2008 consolidated statement of
changes in equity in accordance with the pooling-of-interests method.
22. Related Party Transactions
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if
they are subject to common control or common significant influence.
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The following are the transactions that the Company had with related parties in 2010 and 2009:
a.

First Balfour, Inc. (First Balfour)
Following the usual bidding process in 2010, the Company awarded to First Balfour procurement contracts amounting to
P217.67 million for various works such as Palinpinon 1 zero condensate disposal system, Civil, Structural and Mechanical/
Piping Works in Leyte and Bac-Man and refurbishment of BGI’s geothermal power plants.
As of December 31, 2010, the outstanding balance of P59.88 million recorded under “Due to related parties” account
pertained to the accrued progress billings of P55.74 million and payment retention of P4.14 million until such time the
work acceptance certificate is issued.
First Balfour is a wholly owned subsidiary of First Holdings.

b.

First Gen
First Gen provides financial consultancy, business development and other related services to the Parent Company under a
consultancy agreement beginning September 1, 2008. Such agreement is for a period of three years up to
August 31, 2011. Under the terms of the agreement, billings for consultancy services shall be P8.70 million per month
plus applicable taxes. This was increased to P11.80 million per month plus applicable taxes effective September 2009 to
cover the cost of additional officers and staff assigned to the Parent Company. Total consultancy services amounted to
P170.75 million and P130.66 million for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, and were included
in the “Purchased services and utilities” account (see Note 23). In addition, First Gen charged P236.40 million in 2010
for the reimbursement of the employee costs of its seconded personnel to the Company and was included in the general
and administrative expenses under “Business and related expenses” account (see Note 25). There were no similar charges
in 2009 and 2008.
In 2009, FG Hydro availed of unsecured, interest-bearing and US dollar-denominated cash advances from First Gen. Said
advances are due and demandable and bear interest of 5.29%. The outstanding balance of P504.14 million under the
“Due to related parties” account as of December 31, 2009 was fully settled from April to July 2010.

c.

IFC
The Parent Company entered into a loan agreement with the IFC, a shareholder of the Parent Company, on
November 27, 2008 for US$100.0 million or its peso equivalent of P4.1 billion. IFC has approximately 5% ownership
interest in the Parent Company. On January 7, 2009, the Parent Company opted to draw the loan in peso and received the
proceeds amounting to P4,048.75 million, net of P51.25 million front-end fee. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the
outstanding loan amounted to P4,034.27 million and P4,026.88 million, respectively, net of unamortized transaction costs
of P65.73 million and P73.12 million, respectively, and included under the “Long-term debts” account in the consolidated
statements of financial position (see Note 19).
The loan is payable in 24 equal semi-annual installments after a three-year grace period at an interest rate of 7.4% per
annum for the first five years subject to repricing for another five to 10 years. Under the loan agreement, the Parent
Company is restricted from creating liens and is subject to certain financial covenants.

d.

Other Related Parties
In the ordinary course of business, the Company avails of or grants advances from/to its related parties for working capital
requirements. Such advances are payable/collectible within 12 months and are non-interest bearing.
Bauang Private Power Corporation is a subsidiary of First Private Power Corporation, an associate of First Gen. First Gas
Holdings Corporation and First Gas Power Corporation are subsidiaries of First Gen. First Holdings, parent company of First
Gen, is an associate of Lopez Holdings Corporation (formerly Benpres Holdings Corporation).
Bayan Telecommunications Inc. (Bayantel) is 97.3%-owned by Bayantel Holdings on which Lopez Holdings Corporation has
47.3% ownership.
Sky Cable Corporation (Sky Cable) is 80.72%-owned by ABS-CBN Corp. on which Lopez Holdings Corporation has 57.3%
interest.
First Philippine Realty Corp. (FPRC), formerly known as INAEC Development Corp, is a wholly owned subsidiary of First
Holdings.
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Following are the amounts of transactions and outstanding balances as of and for the years ended December 31, 2010 and
2009:
Transactions for the
years ended December 31
Related Party

Nature of Transaction

First Gen

Interest-bearing advances
(payment)

Net amount due to related parties
as of December 31

2010

2009

2010

2009

(P504,141,759)

P440,660,560

P–

P504,135,656

Consultancy fee

170,752,941

130,656,470

23,600,000

–

Interest-free advances

254,398,672

6,639,905

247,744,841

2,709,905

First Balfour, Inc.

Steam augmentation and
other contracts

141,279,058

356,753,986

59,883,402

29,438,812

Bauang Private
Power Corporation

Acquisition of one unit MVA
transformer

37,641,428

–

–

–

–

(150,286)

–

–

625,750

491,800

1,199,850

574,100

4,461

40,924

45,385

150,677

Interest-free advances
(payment)
First Gas Holdings
Corporation

Interest-free advances

First Gas Power
Corporation

Interest-free advances

First Private Power
Corporation

Acquisition of one unit 1980
CESSNA 340A

8,000,000

–

–

–

FPRC

Purchase of services and
utilities

5,161,713

–

–

–

Bayantel

Purchase of services and
utilities

5,728,590

–

3,169,012

–

2,403,000

2,400,000

–

–

–

7,239,765

–

–

10,322,515

6,384,283

–

–

7,994

11,059

7,994

11,059

59,400

–

–

–

Eugenio Lopez
Foundation, Inc.

Donation to Lopez Museum

Lopez Group Foundation,
Inc.

Donation to support Group's
Corporate Social
Responsibility efforts

Lopez Holdings
Corporation

Budget expense allocation

Red Vulcan

Interest-free advances

Sky Cable

Purchase of services and
utilities

IFC (Note 19)

Interest-bearing loans

132,243,763

951,128,466

335,650,484

537,020,209

7,386,328

4,170,132,778

4,034,266,907

4,026,880,578

P139,630,091

P5,121,261,244

P4,369,917,391

P4,563,900,787

EDC’s subsidiary in Chile is participating in the bids for geothermal concession areas by the Chilean government. The bid rules
call for the provision of proof of EDC Chile Limitada’s financial capability to participate in said bids or evidence of financial
support from its Parent Company. Letters of credit amounting to US$80.0 million were issued by EDC in favor of EDC Chile
Limitada as evidence of its financial support. There were no guarantees received from any related party.
The purchases from related parties are made at normal commercial terms and conditions. The amounts outstanding are
unsecured and will be settled in cash. Except for the US$80.0 million letters of credit issued by the Parent Company in favor of
EDC Chile Limitada as mentioned above, there were no guarantees that have been given to or and received from any related party
in 2010 and 2009.
The Company has not recognized any impairment losses on receivables from related parties as of December 31, 2010 and 2009.
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e.

Remuneration of Key Management Personnel

The remuneration of the directors and other members of key management personnel by benefit type are as follows:

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits (Note 31)
Share-based payments (Note 34)

2010

2009

2008

P126,184,215

P75,170,646

P79,192,591

192,690,000

90,670,000

82,218,181

15,684,375

15,190,000

–

P334,558,590

P181,030,646

P161,410,772

23. Purchased Services and Utilities

2010

2009

2008

P595,954,627

P981,264,759

P684,647,336

Purchased services

550,763,684

364,411,435

247,672,243

Purchased utilities

Professional and technical services

166,009,837

21,373,651

17,619,911

Contractual personnel costs

92,276,009

103,150,460

19,254,749

Hauling and handling costs

60,477,365

166,221,695

75,159,487

Rig mobilization charges

32,664,335

241,587,531

76,685,866

–

183,224,477

393,981,872

BOT fees
Others

12,074,626

11,889,449

8,912,246

P1,510,220,483

P2,073,123,457

P1,523,933,710

24. Operations and Maintenance Expenses

2010
Impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment of NNGP
(Notes 3 and 12)

P3,390,000,000

2009

2008

P349,000,000

P–

Personnel costs (Notes 26, 31
and 34)

1,782,408,107

1,786,563,040

1,388,397,780

Repairs and maintenance (Note 48)

1,557,986,675

1,273,202,012

1,894,545,092

Rental, insurance and taxes

922,718,338

934,178,837

271,786,514

Parts and supplies issued
(Note 10)

721,165,159

1,166,397,599

969,116,159

Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment of a subsidiary (Note 12)

398,927,321

273,575,293

–

Royalty fees (Note 18)
Proceeds from insurance claims
Business and related expenses

222,831,401

214,373,965

590,120,392

(129,005,463)

(89,259,730)

(205,157,285)

96,668,298

158,957,224

137,230,571

P8,963,699,836

P6,066,988,240

P5,046,039,223

Proceeds from insurance claims are shown as a separate line item under the operations and maintenance expenses. The Parent
Company charges to expense outright any cost incurred relating to restoring or rehabilitating facilities or land improvements
damaged by typhoons or by other factors. Insurance proceeds from the insurance claims are subsequently recognized upon
receipt.
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Business and related expenses covers the expenses incurred by the Company for local and foreign travel, membership,
contribution and donations, company meeting expenses and advertising, among other business expenses.
25. General and Administrative Expenses
2010

2009

2008

P1,790,137,643

P1,110,060,984

P958,409,776

1,095,072,764

858,569,171

579,832,277

Rental, insurance and taxes

776,907,951

808,686,176

408,948,862

Business and related expenses

552,613,600

313,712,652

229,617,376

Parts and supplies issued
(Note 10)

173,585,849

160,616,956

159,656,358

Repairs and maintenance

80,444,752

118,584,488

58,093,998

Provision for doubtful accounts
(Notes 8 and 15)

77,575,943

24,377,257

15,617,282

(14,999,238)

–

–

(2,405,862)

(2,594,751)

(1,116,185,994)

–

106,206,646

–

P4,528,933,402

P3,498,219,579

P1,293,989,935

Personnel costs (Notes 26, 31
and 34)
Purchased services and utilities

Reduction in allowance for impairment of
parts and supplies
Credit adjustment on allowance
for doubtful accounts
(Notes 8, 15 and 29)
Write-down of parts and supplies inventories
(Notes 3 and 10)

The credit adjustment on allowance for doubtful accounts in 2008 was the result of the arbitral settlement award related to
receivables from NPC (see Notes 15 and 29).
26. Personnel Costs

Salaries and other benefits
(Note 34)
Retirement benefit costs (Note 31)
Social security costs

2010

2009

2008

P3,322,197,742

P2,596,430,527

P2,360,519,581

397,606,557

384,871,712

240,719,196

38,791,600

44,623,404

44,480,804

P3,758,595,899

P3,025,925,643

P2,645,719,581

Personnel costs amounting to P186.05 million, P129.30 million and P298.91 million were capitalized under property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
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27. Interest Expense

Interest on long-term debts including
amortization of transaction costs (Notes
19 and 35)

2010

2009

2008

P3,643,864,967

P2,541,047,618

P1,892,397,374

304,361

164,255,636

34,535,508

56,102,861

69,904,267

225,590,774

8,185,077

111,948,408

–

P3,708,457,266

P2,887,155,929

P2,152,523,656

Interest on loans payable (Note 35)
Interest accretion of “Day 1” gain (Notes 18
and 35)
Interest on liability from litigation

Interest accretion of “Day 1” gain pertains to deferred royalty fee payable while interest on liability from litigation pertains to
expropriation cases.
28. Foreign Exchange Gains (Losses)
2010

2009

Foreign exchange gains (losses) on long-term
debts

P61,516,336

P1,338,780,330

(P9,229,710,609)

Foreign exchange losses on other accounts

(75,387,808)

(47,540,491)

(127,420,703)

(P13,871,472)

P1,291,239,839

(P9,357,131,312)

Net foreign exchange gains (losses)

2008

This account pertains to foreign exchange adjustments realized on repayment of loans and unrealized on restatement of
outstanding balances of foreign currency-denominated loans, short-term placements and cash in banks. Following are the
exchange rates used to restate outstanding balances at reporting date:
Equivalent to US$1.00
2010

2009

2008

Japanese yen

¥81.66

¥91.63

¥90.94

Philippine peso

P43.84

P46.20

P47.52

Currency

29. Revenue from Arbitration Award
On April 24, 2008, the Parent Company and NPC signed a Joint Manifestation and Undertaking (JMU) to abide by the arbitral
decision on March 25, 2008. The arbitral decision covered the longstanding issue related to the SSAs and PPAs of EDC and
NPC.
In the execution of the arbitral decision, both the Parent Company and NPC agreed that the amount of P2,894.93 million shall
be paid by NPC to the Parent Company, without further interest, in accordance with the following schedule:

Tranche
First
Second
Third
Fourth

Settlement Amount

Payment Term

Actual Date of Settlement

P500.00 million

30 days from submission of JMU to the
Office of the Voluntary Arbitrator

July 15, 2008

500.00 million

60 days from submission of JMU to the
Office of the Voluntary Arbitrator

July 15, 2008

1,000.00 million

January 2009

February 2, 2009

894.93 million

January 2010

August 2010

P2,894.93 million
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Full payment of the foregoing amounts shall constitute full and complete settlement of all the claims each party has against the
other as detailed in the November 5, 2007 arbitration agreement.
The remaining amount of P894.93 million included in trade receivables as of December 31, 2009 was fully settled in August
2010 (see Note 8).
30. Miscellaneous Income (Charges)
2010
Recovery of impairment loss on input VAT
claims (Notes 11 and 15)

2009

2008

P1,638,884,447

P–

P–

Write-off of input VAT claims

–

(178,639,119)

–

“Day 1” gain on deferred royalties (Notes 18
and 35)

–

168,284,986

–

Loss on sale of noncurrent assets held for sale

–

(129,867,348)

–

Write-off of exploration and evaluation assets
(Notes 3 and 14)

–

(83,531,992)

–

Income from receipt of parts and supplies
inventories from power plant contractor

–

53,992,600

260,614,700

Waste disposal fees

–

17,836,715

16,525,517

Impairment loss on AFS investments
(Notes 3, 9 and 35)

–

(3,328,633)

–

Gain on sale of AFS investments (Notes 9
and 35)

–

–

46,323,392

“Day 1” loss on NPC receivable (Note 15)

–

–

(189,790,628)

17,253,504

64,592,175

25,401,909

P1,656,137,951

(P90,660,616)

P159,074,890

Others - net

The Parent Company recognized recovery of impairment loss on input VAT claims amounting to P1,638.88 million on account of
the tax credit certificates issued by the BIR in May and June 2010 (see Notes 11 and 15).
In 2009, the Parent Company has written off its input VAT pertaining to 2007 and 2008 amounting to P77.55 million
and P101.09 million, respectively, which could no longer be claimed as part of the input VAT refund due to the absence of
supporting documents and the receipt of a Letter of Authority (LOA) for 2008 barring the amendments of VAT returns for 2008.
The “Day 1” loss of P189.79 million in 2008 pertained to the difference between the present value of the third and fourth
tranches of the scheduled collections of the arbitration award and the maturity values (see Notes 15 and 29).
31. Retirement and Other Post-employment Benefits Plans
The Parent Company has a funded, non-contributory, defined benefit retirement plan. The plan covers all permanent employees
and is administered by trustee bank. The Parent Company also provides post-employment medical and life insurance benefits
which are unfunded.
In 2010, FG Hydro has set up an unfunded, non-contributory, defined benefit retirement plan which was included in the
consolidated financial statements.
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The following tables summarize the components of net benefit expense recognized in the consolidated statements of income and
the funded status and amounts recognized in the consolidated statements of financial position:

Current service cost

2010

2009

P187,139,907

P196,844,916

2008
P165,734,850

273,393,511

310,284,773

188,497,828

(142,453,424)

(125,493,939)

(113,828,988)

86,988,383

3,235,962

315,506

Past service cost

7,214,400

–

–

Curtailment gain

(14,676,220)

–

–

Net retirement expense (Note 26)

P397,606,557

P384,871,712

P240,719,196

Actual return on plan assets

P324,216,027

P215,043,596

P65,258,618

Interest cost on benefit obligation
Expected return on plan assets
Net actuarial loss recognized

2010

2009

Present value of defined benefit obligations

P3,434,199,212

P3,265,217,548

Fair value of plan assets

(1,877,950,146)

(2,035,048,917)

1,556,249,066

1,230,168,631

(249,112,021)

6,928,516

P1,307,137,045

P1,237,097,147

2010

2009

P3,265,217,548

P3,179,147,273

187,139,907

196,844,916

Net unrecognized actuarial gains (losses)
Net retirement and other post-employment benefits
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Defined benefit obligation at beginning of year
Current service cost
Interest cost
Benefits paid
Actuarial losses (gains) on obligation

273,393,511

310,284,773

(808,881,457)

(146,934,285)

524,791,523

(274,125,129)

Past service cost

7,214,400

–

Curtailment gain

(14,676,220)

–

P3,434,199,212

P3,265,217,548

Defined benefit obligation at end of year
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year
Expected return or plan assets
Contributions by employer
Benefits paid
Actuarial gains on plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at end of year

2010

2009

P2,035,048,917

P1,792,770,559

142,453,424

125,493,939

327,566,659

174,169,047

(808,881,457)

(146,934,285)

181,762,603

89,549,657

P1,877,950,146

P2,035,048,917

The Parent Company expects to contribute P325.17 million to its defined benefit retirement plan in 2011.
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The major categories of the Parent Company’s plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

Fixed income
Equities

2010

2009

88.62%

89.85%

8.62%

7.82%

Real properties

1.12%

1.37%

Others

1.64%

0.96%

100.00%

100.00%

The principal actuarial assumptions used in determining retirement and other post-employment benefits as of December 31 of
each year are as follows:
2010

2009

EDC

FG Hydro

EDC

Discount rate

6.25%

8.61%

8.74%

Expected rate of return on assets

7.00%

7.00%

7.00%

2010

2009

EDC

FG Hydro

EDC

Future salary increase rate

6.00%

12.00%

8.00%

Medical trend rate

7.00%

–

7.00%

The assumption on the discount rate is based on the long-term government bond rates approximating the expected average
remaining working life of the employees. The assumption on the expected rate of return on plan assets is based on the asset
allocation. The expected rate of salary increases is around 3.00% - 4.00% more than the long-term inflation rate of about
5.00% - 7.00% for the Parent Company, while the expected rate of salary increases is around 12% to 14% for FG Hydro.
Amounts for the current and previous four years are as follows:
2010

2009

2008

2007

2006

Defined benefit
obligation

P3,434,199,212

P3,265,217,548

P3,179,147,273

P2,692,826,116

P2,187,879,669

Plan assets

(1,877,950,146)

(2,035,048,917)

(1,792,770,559)

(1,626,128,399)

(1,468,777,785)

Deficit

P1,556,249,066

P1,230,168,631

P1,386,376,714

P1,066,697,717

P719,101,884

The experience adjustments on plan liabilities amounted to P293.92 million in 2010, P10.31 million in 2009, P62.11 million
in 2008 and P143.64 million in 2007.
A one percentage point change in the assumed rate of increase in medical costs of the Parent Company would have the following
effects:
2009

2010
Increase
Effect on the aggregate current service cost and interest cost

13.90%

Effect on the defined benefit obligation

12.50%
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Decrease

Increase

Decrease

11.90%

43.14%

28.85%

10.90%

37.45%

26.33%
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32. Income Tax
The deferred tax assets and liabilities are presented in the consolidated statements of financial position as follows:

Deferred tax assets - net

2010

2009

P893,702,182

P1,209,613,615
–

Deferred tax liabilities - net

(17,340,023)

The deferred tax assets consist mainly of the undepreciated balance of foreign exchange losses on payment and realignment of
the payable to contractors capitalized under BIR reporting, unrealized foreign exchange losses on foreign loans and allowance
for doubtful accounts. The account is net of deferred tax liability on the increase in the value of Parent Company’s properties
recognized based on the value of concession receivables and intangible assets resulting from scoping out the GRESCs from
IFRIC 12 starting October 23, 2009.

The components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities follow:
Deferred Tax Assets
Foreign Exchange
Losses
BOT Power
Plants

Unrealized
Foreign
Exchange
Losses

Allowance For
Doubtful
Accounts

P1,229,428,727

P477,420,442

–

–

At January 1, 2010, as
restated

1,229,428,727

Charged to income
for the year

At January 1, 2010,
as previously
reported
Restatement (Note 5)

Charged to equity
At December 31, 2010

IFRIC 12
Adjustments

Impairment
Loss on
Property, Plant
and Equipment

Others

Total

P198,560,823

P–

P34,900,000

P209,849,740

P2,150,159,732

–

–

–

250,340,194

250,340,194

477,420,442

198,560,823

–

34,900,000

460,189,934

2,400,499,926

(105,320,740)

(431,336,284)

(181,905,156)

–

339,000,000

3,176,622

(376,385,558)

–

–

–

–

–

811,435

811,435

P1,124,107,987

P46,084,158

P16,655,667

P–

P373,900,000

P464,177,991

P2,024,925,803

Foreign Exchange
Losses (Gains)
BOT Power
Plants

Unrealized
Foreign
Exchange
Losses (Gains)

Allowance For
Doubtful
Accounts

IFRIC 12
Adjustments

Impairment
Loss on
Property,
Plant and
Equipment

Others

Total

At January 1, 2009

P4,003,828,394

P2,551,134,895

P588,823,244

P13,722,968,794

P–

P546,505,975

P21,413,261,302

Effect of RE Law
(Note 47)

(2,651,696,048)

(1,687,654,297)

(394,591,773)

(10,355,359,669)

–

(346,865,652)

(15,436,167,439)

Charged to equity

–

–

–

–

–

180,833

180,833

Business combination
fair value
adjustments on
property, plant
and equipment
(Note 5)

–

–

–

–

–

249,081,716

249,081,716

(122,703,619)

(386,060,156)

4,329,352

(3,367,609,125)

34,900,000

11,287,062

(3,825,856,486)

P1,229,428,727

P477,420,442

P198,560,823

P–

P34,900,000

P460,189,934

P2,400,499,926

Charged to income
for the year
At December 31, 2009,
as restated

As of December 31, 2010, “Others” pertain to the difference in the acquisition cost and fair value of Palinpinon and Tongonan
Geothermal Power Plants, NOLCO, unamortized pension costs, allowance for impairment of inventories for disposal and interest
charges on liability for litigation.
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Deferred Tax Liabilities
IFRIC 12
Adjustments
(P1,152,912,850)

At January 1, 2010

82,472,364

Charged to income for the year

Deductible
Expenses
Under P.D. 1442
(P3,681,358,648)

Effect of RE Law (Note 47)
Charged to income for the year

(P1,208,226,334)
77,002,713

(P60,783,135)

(P1,131,223,621)

Others

(P13,225,388,187)

(P1,107,416,502)

8,789,688,420

168,102,211

3,282,786,917
(P1,152,912,850)

P–

(P55,313,484)

IFRIC 12
Adjustments

3,513,256,437

At December 31, 2009

Total

(5,469,651)

(P1,070,440,486)

At December 31, 2010

At January 1, 2009

Others

Total
(P18,014,163,337)

174,009,581

12,476,954,438

878,093,437

4,328,982,565

(P55,313,484)

(P1,208,226,334)

The following tables summarize the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities:

At January 1, 2010, as previously reported

Deferred
Tax Assets

Deferred Tax
Liabilities

Net

P2,150,159,732

(P1,208,226,334)

P941,933,398

250,340,194

–

250,340,194

At January 1, 2010, as restated

2,400,499,926

(1,208,226,334)

1,192,273,592

Charged to income for the year

(376,385,558)

77,002,713

(299,382,845)

811,435

–

811,435

P2,024,925,803

(P1,131,223,621)

P893,702,182

Restatement (Note 5)

Charged to equity
At December 31, 2010

Deferred
Tax Assets
At January 1, 2009
Effect of RE Law (Note 47)

P21,413,261,302
(15,436,167,439)

Charged to equity
Business combination fair value adjustments on property, plant and equipment (Note 5)
Charged to income for the year
At December 31, 2009, as restated

180,833
249,081,716
(3,825,856,486)
P2,400,499,926

* This includes FG Hydro’s net deferred tax liabilities amounting to P17.34 million.
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Deferred
Tax Liabilities

Net*

(P18,014,163,337)

P3,399,097,965

12,476,954,438

(2,959,213,001)

–

180,833

–

249,081,716

4,328,982,565

503,126,079

(P1,208,226,334)

P1,192,273,592
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A numerical reconciliation between provision for income tax and the product of accounting income multiplied by the tax rates of
10%/30%/35% follows:

Accounting income
Income tax at statutory tax rate

2010

2009
(Restated, Note5)

2008

P5,172,260,580

P7,267,437,700

P2,652,824,187

P614,035,636

P702,539,342

P928,488,465

342,902,265

260,464,301

1,602,816

(281,870,518)

(19,562,230)

(164,525,410)

Effect of Renewable Energy Law and effect of
change in tax rate

109,954,650

2,961,729,957

491,089,744

Interest income net of final tax

Non-deductible provisions
Income tax holiday (ITH) incentives

(95,440,903)

(104,149,985)

(77,787,866)

Non-deductible temporary differences

77,949,479

–

–

Tax effect of non-deductible interest expense

15,477,353

41,576,237

41,242,350

Non-taxable foreign exchange loss (gains)/discount
amortization in ROP bonds

9,635,830

–

–

Excess amortization of debt issuance costs under
effective interest method over straight line
method

1,809,430

–

–

Income tax on sale of Fort Bonifacio land and
building (zonal value minus selling price)

–

377,853,900

–

Tax effect of third and fourth tranches arbitration
income

–

(311,373,702)

–

Non-deductible foreign contractor’s tax - excess

–

4,416,423

403,557

Non-deductible/(taxable) losses/(gains) on ROP
bonds

–

3,024,741

(27,612,838)

Movement of unrecognized net deferred
tax assets

–

–

141,654,925

Additional expenses (50%) on Adopt-A-School Act
of 1998
Others
Provision for income tax

–

–

(913,963)

(17,268,507)

(6,045,008)

(26,092,843)

P777,184,715

P3,910,473,976

P1,307,548,937

Under Republic Act No. 9337, which amended certain provisions of the Tax Code, the new Regular Corporate Income Tax (RCIT) rate
shall be 30% effective January 1, 2009.
On December 18, 2008, the BIR issued Revenue Regulations (RR) No. 16-2008 which implemented the provisions of Section 34(L)
of the Tax Code, as amended by Section 3 of R.A. No. 9504, which allows individuals and corporations who are subject to the 30%
RCIT rate to adopt the Optional Standard Deduction (OSD) in computing their taxable income. Under RR 16-2008, corporations may
claim OSD equivalent to 40% of gross income, excluding passive income subjected to final tax, in lieu of the itemized deductions. A
corporate taxpayer who elected to avail of the OSD shall signify such in the income tax return. Otherwise, it shall be considered as
having availed of the itemized deductions allowed under Section 34 of the National Internal Revenue Code. Election is done on an
annual basis.
In 2008, the Company computed their income tax based on itemized deductions for their income subject to 35% RCIT rate. For
2009 and 2010, the Company computed their income tax based on itemized deductions for their income subject to either 10% or
30% income tax rate.
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33. Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS)
The basic/diluted EPS amounts were computed as follows:

(a)

2010

2009
(Restated, Note5)

2008

P4,115,747,261

P3,311,335,906

P1,308,021,833

7,500,000

7,500,000

6,000,000

Net income attributable to common
shareholders of the Parent Company

P4,108,247,261

P3,303,835,906

P1,302,021,833

Weighted average number
of common shares outstanding

18,750,000,000

18,750,000,000

18,715,918,555

P0.219

P0.176

P0.070

Net income attributable to equity holders of
the Parent Company
Less dividends on preferred shares (Note 21)

(b)
(c)

Basic/Diluted EPS (b/c)
The Company does not have dilutive common stock equivalents.

The 2008 EPS were adjusted for the effect of the 3.75 billion shares (25%) stock dividends declared in 2009 (see Note 21).
34. Share-Based Payment
On January 23, 2009, the BOD of the Parent Company approved the ESGP. The ESGP is an integral part of the Parent
Company’s total rewards program for its officers and employees and is intended to provide an opportunity for participants to have
real and personal direct interest in the Parent Company.
On December 1, 2009, the Nomination and Compensation Committee (the Committee) granted 7,000,000 shares representing
the Parent Company common shares authorized under the ESGP which were transferred to the BDO Trust. These shares were
part of the 93,000,000 common shares issued to the BDO Trust and recorded under “Common shares in employee trust
account”. BDO Trust will administer the issuance of the common shares to the employee grantees under the Parent Company’s
ESGP (see Note 21).
The stock grants are given in lieu of cash incentives and bonuses. The grant of shares under the ESGP does not require an
exercise price to be paid by the awardees. The awarded shares will vest over a three-year period: 20% will vest after the first
anniversary of the Grant date or January 1, 2010, whichever is earlier; 30% will vest after the second anniversary of the Grant
date and the remaining 50% will vest after the third anniversary of the Grant date. Awardees that resign or are terminated will
lose any right to unvested shares. There are no cash settlement alternatives.
The ESGP covers employees of the Parent Company or other individuals whom the Committee may decide to include. The
Committee shall maintain the sole discretion over the selection of individuals to whom awards may be granted for any given
calendar year.
Stock awards granted by the Committee to officers and employees of EDC are shown below:

Number of Shares
Granted

Fair Value Per Share
at Grant Date

December 1, 2009

7,000,000

P4.20

June 18, 2010

2,625,000

4.70

Grant Date

The fair value per share was determined based on the market price of the stock at the date of grant. Out of the 7,000,000
shares granted on December 1, 2009, 3,616,667 shares vested on January 1, 2010. There were no stock awards cancelled in
2010 and 2009.
Total compensation expense recognized on the vesting of the fair value of stock awards in 2010 and 2009 amounted to
P15.68 million and P15.19 million, respectively (see Note 22). A corresponding decrease in the “Common shares in
employee trust account” amounting to P12.42 million and P12.58 million and increase in “Additional paid-in capital” account
amounting to P4.14 million and P2.61 million was recorded for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
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35. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
The Company’s financial instruments consist mainly of cash and cash equivalents, AFS investments and long-term debts. The
main purpose of these financial instruments is to finance the Company’s operations and accordingly manage its exposure to
financial risks. The Company has various financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables, trade payables and other
liabilities, which arise directly from operations.
Overview of the Company’s Risk Management
The Company has an Enterprise Wide Risk Management (EWRM) process in place covering all areas of its organization. EWRM
is a process, approved by the Company’s BOD, and is applied in strategy setting and across the enterprise, designed to identify
potential events that may affect the Company and manage risks to be within its risk appetite and to provide reasonable assurance
with respect to the achievement of Company objectives. In addition, EWRM is a holistic approach to the protection of assets,
revenues, liabilities, personnel and reputation against predictable and unpredictable losses to achieve maximum efficiency at
minimum costs.
The implementation of the Company’s EWRM Program provides the following benefits and advantages:
1)
2)
3)
4)
5)
6)
7)

Provides balance in the management of risks;
Identifies and manages the key exposures of the company proactively;
Establishes the accountability of the proper risk owner(s) in the management of the risks;
Ensures that efforts are well-coordinated so that the Company does not manage risks in silo.
Monitors the effectiveness of the mitigation strategies;
Ensures compliance with the policies and processes that are established to manage risks;
Provides a systematic approach to the management of risks in terms of fortuitous events or accidental losses happening,
as well as the attainment of incremental economic benefits that can be derived from the effective management of the
Company’s risks;
8) Aims to protect corporate assets and profits by identifying and preventing risks before they occur;
9) It is designed to avoid losses which can impair the operations or financial position of the Company in case of the occurrence
of fortuitous events; and
10) Reduces the reliance on increasingly expensive insurance protection. Insurance may provide the financial relief in case of
loss. However, certain risks are not insurable, while some though insurable, may be too costly and uneconomical to insure.
Risk Management Oversight Structure
The Risk Management Oversight Structure of the Company has been created based on the current organization set-up. The
salient points regarding the said oversight structure as follows:


The Risk Management Committee (RMC) is a sub-committee of the BOD to whom it reports directly. The RMC plays a vital
oversight role in the implementation of the Company’s EWRM Program and is also an important liaison to the BOD. The
RMC shall assist the BOD of the Company in its oversight responsibility of managing risks involving physical, financial,
operational, labor, legal, security, environmental and other risks of the corporation.



The Risk Management Executive Committee (RMEC) is comprised of the President, who is the Chairman of the RMEC, the
Vice-President (VP) for Operations, VP for Corporate Services, VP for Environmental and External Relations, VP for Technical
Services and VP for Power Generation. The RMEC shall ensure the effective and efficient implementation of
the Company’s EWRM Program and provides appropriate actions, solutions and recommendations in line with the
requirements of the RMC.



The Risk Management Group (RMG) is composed of the Property Management Department, the over-all coordinator of the
RMG, and the Risk Management Units (RMU), i.e., the different divisions/departments and project sites of the Company.
Each RMU is represented in the Company’s EWRM Program through their respective Risk Management Coordinators. One
of the senior managers of the supply chain sector is the head of RMG. The RMG shall develop, implement and manage
the Risk Management Program of the Company in accordance with the risk management policies and standards set by the
Company. The RMG, as the technical working group, shall also assist the RMEC and the RMC attain and perform their
missions and functions.

Risk Management Process
The Company’s Risk Management Process is the general guideline that the Company follows in the implementation of its EWRM
Program. This involves the following:
1)
2)
3)
4)
5)

Identification of the risk exposures;
Formulation of the customized definitions of all risks;
Validation of the customized risk;
Facilitation of the initial prioritization of the risks and the risk voting to identify top risks;
Determination of the risk owners of the top risks;
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6) Validation of the existence of the top risks;
7) Endorsement of top risks to the RMEC for approval;
8) Determination of the risk drivers of the top risks including the development of risk management strategies and assessment
of EDC’s risk management capability;
9) Secure approval of the RMEC for the proposed strategies;
10) Develop action plans for the approved risk management strategies;
11) Implementation of the risk management strategies; and
12) Continuous monitoring of the risk management performance.
Risk Measurement
Another major step in the Company’s Risk Management Process is the Risk Measurement where quantitative or qualitative
impact of the risk is determined.
Risk Measurement is the process used to quantitatively or qualitatively determine the consequences (including financial impact)
of possible outcomes or events over a given time horizon under alternative scenarios. The risk measurement process provides
information for more informed decision-making.
Risk Management Strategy
The Company uses the risk management option model in its Risk Management Strategy formulation. This model involves
whether to accept or reject the risk identified based on the risk management process. When the risk is accepted, the Company
chooses the following alternatives: retain, reduce, exploit, modify time and wait and see. When the risk is rejected, the
Company may opt to avoid or transfer the risk.
Financial Risk Management Policy
The main financial risks arising from the Company’s financial instruments are credit risk, foreign currency risk, interest rate risk
and liquidity risk. The Company’s policies for managing the aforementioned risks are summarized hereinafter below.
Credit Risk
The Company’s geothermal and power generation business trades with only one major customer, NPC, a government-ownedand-controlled corporation. Any failure on the part of NPC to pay its obligations to the Company would significantly affect the
Company’s business operations. As a practice, the Company monitors closely its collection from NPC and charges interest on
delayed payments following the provision of its respective SSAs and PPAs. Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis to ensure that the Company’s exposure to bad debts is not significant. The maximum exposure of trade receivable is equal
to its carrying amount.
With respect to credit risk arising from other financial assets of the Company, which comprise cash and cash equivalents
excluding cash on hand, other receivables, AFS investments and derivatives assets, the Company’s exposure to credit risk arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments before taking into
account any collateral and other credit enhancements.
2010

2009

P6,152,532,452

P11,216,297,117

4,418,426,404

5,306,417,083

Non-trade accounts receivables

73,070,811

77,268,776

Loans and notes receivables

61,297,851

67,573,603

Employee receivables*

37,757,241

38,346,612

Advances to employees

30,389,460

20,826,816

1,000,000

–

707,524,992

734,811,000

18,166,353

15,388,428

–

9,611,022

P11,500,165,564

P17,486,540,457

Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding
cash on hand)
Trade receivables

Long-term receivables
AFS investments:
Debt investments
Equity investments
Financial assets at FVPL:
Derivative assets
*Includes noncurrent portion of employee receivables included under other noncurrent assets - others.
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The following tables show the Company’s aging analysis of past due but not impaired financial assets as of December 31, 2010
and 2009:
2010
Past Due but Not Impaired
Neither Past
Due nor
Impaired

Less than
30 Days

Over 1 Year
up to
3 Years

31 Days
to 1 Year

Past
Due and
Impaired

Over
3 Years

Total

(In Thousand Pesos)
Loans and receivables:
P6,152,532

P–

P–

P–

P–

P–

P6,152,532

4,078,000

1,684

221,256

117,486

–

30,607

4,449,033

Non-trade receivables

49,827

–

7,831

15,413

–

–

73,071

Loans and notes receivables

61,298

–

–

–

–

–

61,298

Employee receivables

37,757

–

–

–

–

–

37,757

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables

–

–

10,219

19,910

260

–

30,389

1,000

–

–

–

–

35,568

36,568

707,525

–

–

–

–

–

707,525

18,166

–

–

–

–

–

18,166

P11,106,105

P1,684

P239,306

P152,809

P260

P66,175

P11,566,339

Advances to employees
Long-term receivables
AFS investments:
Debt investments
Equity investments
Total

2009
Past Due but Not Impaired
Neither Past
Due nor
Impaired

Less than
30 Days

Over 1 Year
up to
3 Years

31 Days
to 1 Year

Past
Due and
Impaired

Over
3 Years

Total

(In Thousand Pesos)
Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash
equivalents

P11,220,897

P–

P–

P–

P–

P–

P11,220,897

5,280,994

–

25,423

–

–

9,598

5,316,015

Non-trade receivables

59,803

5,050

12,223

193

–

–

77,269

Loans and notes
receivables

49,196

11

7,009

10,393

965

–

67,574

Employee receivables

38,347

–

–

–

–

–

38,347

Advances to employees

14,722

197

1,130

4,768

10

–

20,827

–

–

–

–

–

35,577

35,577

734,811

–

–

–

–

–

734,811

15,388

–

–

–

–

–

15,388

Trade receivables

Long-term receivables
AFS investments:
Debt investments
Equity investments
Financial assets at FVPL:
Derivative assets
Total

9,611

–

–

–

–

–

9,611

P17,423,769

P5,258

P45,785

P15,354

P975

P45,175

P17,536,316
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Credit Quality of Neither Past due nor Impaired Financial Assets
Financial assets are classified as high grade if the counterparties are not expected to default in settling their obligations. Thus,
the credit risk exposure is minimal. These counterparties normally include customers, banks and related parties who pay on or
before due date. Financial assets are classified as a standard grade if the counterparties settle their obligation with the Company
with tolerable delays. Low grade accounts are accounts, which have probability of impairment based on historical trend. These
accounts show propensity of default in payment despite regular follow-up actions and extended payment terms.
As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, financial assets categorized as neither past due nor impaired are viewed by management
as high grade, considering the collectability of the receivables and the credit history of the counterparties.
Foreign Currency Risk
The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk is mainly from the financial assets and liabilities that are denominated in
US dollar and Japanese yen. This primarily arises from future payments of foreign-currency denominated loans and other
commercial transactions and the Company’s investment in ROP Bonds.
The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk to some degree is mitigated by some provisions in the Company’s GRESCs
(formerly GSC), SSAs and PPAs. The service contracts allow full cost recovery while the sales contracts include billing
adjustments covering the movements in Philippine peso and the US dollar rates, US Price and Consumer Indices, and other
inflation factors.
To mitigate further the effects of foreign currency risk, the Company will prepay, refinance or hedge its foreign currency
denominated loans, whenever deemed feasible. During 2008, the Company entered into derivative contracts with various
counterparties to hedge its JPY12 billion Miyazawa 1 loan. The derivatives contracts had already matured on May 26, 2009 and
were settled on May 28, 2009.
The Company’s foreign currency-denominated financial assets and liabilities (translated into Philippine peso) as of
December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009 are as follows:
2010

2009

Original Currency

Original Currency

Yen

US Dollar

Sweden
Kroner
(SEK)

Peso
Equivalent1

Yen

US Dollar

Peso
Equivalent2

Cash equivalents

−

3,340,000

−

146,425,600

−

35,882,643

1,657,778,096

Cash on hand and in banks

−

3,644,584

−

159,778,563

−

2,176,322

100,546,084

Trade and other receivables

−

4,279,825

−

187,627,528

−

4,946,733

228,539,071

−

16,138,800

−

707,524,992

−

15,905,000

734,811,000

Financial Assets
Loans and receivables:

AFS investments:
Government debt securities
Financial assets at FVPL:
Derivative assets

−

−

−

−

−

208,031

9,611,022

Total financial assets

−

27,403,209

−

1,201,356,683

−

59,118,729

2,731,285,273

11,589,841

12,443,772

3,976,330

578,828,344

2,153,900

3,195,225

148,705,325

807,664,660

−

−

433,606,597

26,309,860,127

65,759,866

16,303,002,458

−

−

−

−

−

10,912,094

504,138,756

Current Financial Liabilities
Liabilities at amortized cost:
Trade and other payables
Current portion of
long-term debts
Due to related Parties
Accrued interest on long term debts
Total current financial liabilities

457,836,928

1,559,537

−

314,166,560

500,091,989

3,510,193

414,307,135

1,277,091,429

14,003,309

3,976,330

1,326,601,501

26,812,106,016

83,377,378

17,370,153,674

Noncurrent Financial Liabilities
Liabilities at amortized cost:
Long-term debts - net of
current portion
Total financial liabilities

8,165,339,709

169,427,882

−

11,811,400,510

8,973,004,364

40,946,914

6,415,753,795

9,442,431,138

183,431,191

3,976,330

13,138,002,011

35,785,110,380

124,324,292

23,785,907,469

USD1=JPY81.659 as of December 31, 2010, USD1=SEK6.81 and USD1= P43.840 as of December 31, 2010

1

USD1=JPY91.634 as of December 29, 2009 and USD1= P46.200 as of December 29, 2009

1
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The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the US dollar and Japanese yen exchange
rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Company’s profit before tax as at December 31, 2010 and 2009 (arising from
revaluation of monetary assets and liabilities and derivative instruments.)
2010
Foreign Currency
Appreciates (Depreciates) By
USD

10% or PHP4.38

JPY

10% or PHP0.05965

Effect on Income
Before Income Tax
(P796,663,382)

(10% or PHP4.38)

SSEK

796,663,382
(566,012,566)

(10% or PHP0.04881)

463,101,190

10% or PHP0.70957

(2,821,471)

(10% or PHP0.58055)

2,308,476
2009

Foreign Currency
Appreciates (Depreciates) By

Effect on Income
Before Income Tax

USD

10% or PHP4.62

(P293,611,227)

JPY

10% or PHP0.05602

(2,004,680,577)

(10% or PHP0.04583)

1,640,193,199

(10% or PHP4.62)

EURO(a)

268,296,414

10% against USD

33,122,515

(10% against USD)
(a)

(7,807,701)

This pertains to fair valuation of FG Hydro’s derivative asset which is a currency option.

Equity Price Risk
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of traded equity instruments decrease as the result of the changes in the levels of
equity indices and the value of the individual stocks.
As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company’s exposure to equity price risk is minimal.
Interest Rate Risk
The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt
obligations with floating interest rates, derivative assets and AFS debt investments.
The interest rates of some of the Company’s long-term borrowings and AFS debt investments are fixed at the inception of the
loan agreement.
The Company regularly evaluates its interest rate risk by taking into account the cost of qualified borrowings being charged
by its creditors. Prepayment, refinancing or hedging the risks are undertaken when deemed feasible and advantageous to the
Company.
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Interest Rate Risk Table
The following tables provide for the effective interest rates and interest payments by period of maturity of the Company’s longterm debts:

Within 1 Year

More than 1 year
but less than 4
years

4–5 Years

More than
5 Years

Total

3%–5.7%

P10,371,578

P18,488,771

P4,992,596

P21,212,798

P55,065,743

Interest
Rates
2010 Fixed Rate
OECF
JBIC(b) 21st yen

2.3% & 2.7%

119,136,041

313,725,243

89,806,538

506,205,123

1,028,872,945

PNB and Allied Bank

9.03%

442,550,903

1,135,576,892

295,004,688

670,476,024

2,543,608,507

IFC

7.40%

328,398,611

875,164,931

224,284,236

872,275,000

2,300,122,778

FRCN Series 1

8.37%

196,443,538

320,569,780

–

–

517,013,318

FRCN Series 2

9.40%

434,119,972

985,419,672

162,243,975

69,768,715

1,651,552,334

FRCN Series 3

8.43%

112,234,764

183,152,239

–

–

295,387,003

Series 1

8.64%

734,553,000

2,570,935,500

–

–

3,305,488,500

Series 2

9.33%

326,644,500

1,143,255,750

326,644,500

163,322,250

1,959,867,000

3.25% + Libor

306,846,243

460,269,365

–

–

Interest
Rates

Within 1 Year

More than 1 year
but less than 4
years

4–5 Years

More than
5 Years

Total

3%–5.7%

P60,537,010

P16,188,372

P10,868,953

P24,610,024

P112,204,359

Peso Public Bonds

2010 Floating Rate
USD 175.0
Syndicated Term Loan

767,115,608

2009 Fixed Rate
OECF

3.5%

30,638,316

–

–

–

30,638,316

2.3% & 2.7%

118,769,086

217,172,635

189,336,278

559,726,781

1,085,004,780

2.37%

131,440,868

–

–

–

131,440,868

12.00%

272,194,577

352,421,315

64,095,628

–

688,711,520

JEXIM(a) 3747
JBIC(b) 21st yen
Miyazawa II
PSALM Loan
IFC

7.40%

307,613,889

609,644,375

525,471,944

1,096,559,236

2,539,289,444

FRCN Series 1

8.37%

223,804,477

361,530,309

166,418,714

–

751,753,500

FRCN Series 2

9.4%

454,720,695

841,997,994

600,585,714

237,855,729

2,135,160,132

FRCN Series 3

8.43%

108,088,982

209,168,781

96,284,042

–

413,541,805

Series 1

8.64%

734,553,000

1,469,106,000

1,469,106,000

367,276,500

4,040,041,500

Series 2

9.33%

326,644,500

653,289,000

653,289,000

653,289,000

2,286,511,500

7.54%

169,684,783

–

–

–

169,684,783

Peso Public Bonds

2009 Floating Rate
IBRD
(a)

The Export - Import Bank of Japan

(b)

Japan Bank for International Cooperation

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Company’s profit before tax in 2010 and 2009 and equity as of December 31, 2010 and 2009. The effect also
includes impact of changes in interest rates on derivatives.
2010
Increase/Decrease
in Basis Points
USD

+100
-100
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Effect on Income
Before Income Tax
(P76,720,000)
76,720,000

Effect on Equity Excluding
Income
(P19,027,873)
22,130,588
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2009
Increase/Decrease
in Basis Points

Effect on Income
Before Income Tax

Effect on Equity Excluding
Income

USD

+100

(P23,935,811)

(P19,438,385)

-100

24,897,799

33,746,396

EURO

+100

(574,657)

–

-100

1,552,248

–

Liquidity Risk
The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and sourcing flexibility through the use
of available financial instruments. The Company manages its liquidity profile to meet its working and capital expenditure
requirements and service debt obligations. As part of the liquidity risk management program, the Company regularly evaluates
and considers the maturity of both its financial investments and financial assets (e.g. trade receivables, other financial assets)
and resorts to short-term borrowings whenever its available cash or matured placements is not enough to meet its daily working
capital requirements. To ensure immediate availability of short-term borrowings, the Company maintains credit lines with banks
on a continuing basis.
Liquidity risk arises primarily when the Company has difficulty collecting its receivables from its major customer, NPC. Other
instances that contribute to its exposure to liquidity risk are when the company finances long-term projects with internal cash
generation and when there is credit crunch especially at times when the company has temporary funding gaps.
The tables below show the maturity profile of the Company’s financial assets used for liquidity purposes based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows as of December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009.

December 31, 2010
On Demand

31 to 60
Days

Within 30 Days

61 to 180
Days

181 to 360
Days

Over
360 Days

Total

(In Thousand Pesos)
AFS investments Debt investments

P707,525

P–

P–

P–

P–

P–

P707,525

Loans and receivables –

5,732,030

–

–

–

–

5,732,030

P707,525

P5,732,030

P–

P–

P–

P–

P6,439,555

Cash equivalents

December 31, 2009
On Demand

Within 30 Days

31 to 60
Days

61 to 180
Days

181 to 360
Days

Over
360 Days

Total

(In Thousand Pesos)
AFS investments Debt investments

P734,811

P−

P−

P−

P−

P−

P734,811

Loans and receivables Cash equivalents

–

2,792,341

2,536,712

5,631,870

–

–

10,960,923

P734,811

P2,792,341

P2,536,712

P5,631,870

P−

P−

P11,695,734
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The table below summarizes the maturity analysis of the Company’s financial liabilities as of December 31, 2010 and 2009
based on contractual undiscounted payments:

2010
On
Demand

Less than
3 Months

3 to
6 Months

>6 to
12 Months

>1 to
5 Years

More than
5 Years

Total

(In Thousand Pesos)
Liabilities at amortized
cost:
Accounts payable
Accrued interest and
guarantee fees

P−

P3,156,018

P−

P−

P−

P−

P3,156,018

271,584

476,394

141,829

−

−

−

889,807

Other current
liabilities

−

853

−

−

−

−

853

Short-term loan
payable

−

175,000

−

−

−

−

175,000

Due to related parties

335,650

−

−

−

−

−

335,650

−

87,500

87,500

175,000

311,573

−

661,573

Royalty fee payable

−

516,272

1,084,786

2,365,026

35,945,189

15,726,688

55,637,961

P607,234

P4,412,037

P1,314,115

P2,540,026

P36,256,762

P15,726,688

P60,856,862

Long-term debts
Total

2009
On
Demand

Less than
3 Months

3 to
6 Months

>6 to
12 Months

>1 to
5 Years

More than
5 Years

Total

(In Thousand Pesos)
Liabilities at amortized
cost:
Accounts payable
Accrued interest and
guarantee fees
Other current
liabilities
Due to related
parties

P−

P2,202,141

P−

P−

P−

P−

P2,202,141

252,201

462,241

208,706

−

−

−

923,148

−

8,066

−

−

−

−

8,066

537,020

−

−

−

−

−

537,020

Royalty fee payable

−

87,500

87,500

175,000

693,011

−

1,043,011

Long-term debts

−

1,224,743

13,059,012

5,697,286

30,299,838

12,004,016

62,284,895

P789,221

P3,984,691

P13,355,218

P5,872,286

P30,992,849

P12,004,016

P66,998,281

Total
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Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Set out below is a comparison of carrying amounts and fair values of the Company’s financial instruments as of December 31,
2010 and 2009.

2010
Carrying
Amount

2009
Fair Value

Carrying
Amount

Fair Value

P6,157,925,132

P6,157,925,132

P11,220,897,157

P11,220,897,157

4,418,426,404

4,418,426,404

5,306,417,083

5,306,417,083

Non-trade receivables

73,070,811

73,070,811

77,268,776

77,268,776

Loans and notes receivables

61,297,851

61,297,851

67,573,603

67,573,603

Employee receivables

37,757,241

37,757,241

38,346,612

38,346,612

Advances to employees

30,389,460

30,389,460

20,826,816

20,826,816

1,000,000

942,912

−

−

707,524,992

707,524,992

734,811,000

734,811,000

18,166,353

18,166,353

15,388,428

15,388,428

−

−

9,611,022

9,611,022

P11,505,558,244

P11,505,501,156

P17,491,140,497

P17,491,140,497

P3,156,017,521

P3,156,017,521

P2,202,140,914

P2,202,140,914

889,806,777

889,806,777

923,147,531

923,147,531

852,593

852,593

8,066,092

8,066,092

Short term loan payable

175,000,000

175,000,000

−

−

Due to related parties

335,650,484

335,650,484

537,020,209

537,020,209

Royalty fee payable

554,783,572

568,334,506

811,004,709

808,848,102

Financial Assets
Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables

Long-term receivables
AFS investments:
Debt investments
Equity investments
Financial assets at FVPL:
Derivative assets
Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortized cost:
Accounts payable
Accrued interest and guarantee
fees
Other current liabilities

Long-term debts

41,205,947,848

45,500,550,049

47,464,498,391

49,044,197,906

P46,318,058,795

P50,626,211,930

P51,945,877,846

P53,523,420,754

The methods and assumptions used by the Company in estimating the fair value of financial instruments are:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Carrying amounts approximate fair values due to its short-term nature.
Trade and Other Receivables, Due to Related Parties, Trade and Other Payables and Short-term Loan Payable
These are instruments with relatively short maturity ranging from 1 to 3 months. Carrying amounts approximate fair values.
Long-term Receivables
The fair value of long-term receivables was computed by discounting the expected cash flow using the applicable rate of 2.94%
in 2010 (nil in 2009).
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AFS Investments
Fair values of quoted debt and equity securities are based on quoted market prices. For equity investments that are not quoted,
the investments are carried at cost less allowance for impairment losses due to the unpredictable nature of future cash flows and
the lack of suitable methods of arriving at a reliable fair value.
Derivative Assets
The fair value of currency forwards was determined by reference to market values provided by counterparty banks. The currency
options were valued using Garman- Kohlhagen option pricing model that takes into account such factors as the risk-free US
Dollar and Euro interest rates and historical volatility.
Long-term Debts and Royalty Fee Payable
The fair values for the Company’s long-term debts are estimated using the discounted cash flow methodology with the applicable
rates ranging from 2.18% to 9.73% in 2010 and 6.54% to 12.25% in 2009.
Fair values of royalty fee payable are determined using discount rates ranging from 3.05% to 4.94% in 2010 and 6.54% to
7.17 % in 2009.
The following tables show the fair value information of financial instruments classified under FVPL and AFS investments
analyzed by source of inputs on fair valuation as follows:
•
•
•

Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1);
Those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices) (Level 2); and
Those with inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs) (Level 3).
December 31, 2010

Level 1

P707,524,992

P707,524,992

18,166,353

Level 2

Level 3

At Cost

P−

P−

P−

18,091,803

−

−

74,550

December 31, 2009

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

At Cost

P9,611,022

P−

P9,611,022

P−

P−

734,811,000

734,811,000

−

−

−

15,388,428

15,313,878

−

−

74,550

AFS investments:
Debt investments
Equity investments

Financial assets at FVPLderivative assets
AFS investments:
Debt investments
Equity investments

During 2010 and 2009, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements and no transfers into and
out of Level 3 fair value measurements.
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The Company classifies its financial instruments in the following categories.
2010
Loans and
Receivables

Liabilities at
Amortized
Cost

AFS
Investments

Total

(In Thousand Pesos)
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables

P6,157,925

P−

P−

P6,157,925

4,418,426

−

−

4,418,426

Non-trade receivables

73,071

−

−

73,071

Loans and notes receivables

61,298

−

−

61,298

Employee receivables

37,757

−

−

37,757

Advances to employees

30,389

−

−

30,389

1,000

−

−

1,000

AFS - debt investments

−

707,525

−

707,525

AFS - equity investments

−

18,166

−

18,166

Accounts payable

−

−

3,156,018

3,156,018

Accrued interest and guarantee fees

−

−

889,807

889,807

Other long-term receivables

Financial Liabilities

Other current liabilities

−

−

853

853

Short-term loan payable

−

−

175,000

175,000

Due to related parties

−

−

335,650

335,650

Royalty fee payable

−

−

554,784

554,784

Long-term debts

−

−

41,205,948

41,205,948

P10,779,866

P725,691

P46,318,060

P57,823,617

Total

2009
Loans and
Receivables

AFS
Investments

Financial
Assets at
FVPL

Liabilities at
Amortized
Cost

Total

(In Thousand Pesos)
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

P11,220,897

P−

P−

P−

P11,220,897

5,306,417

−

−

−

5,306,417

Non-trade receivables

77,269

−

−

−

77,269

Loans and notes receivables

67,574

−

−

−

67,574

Employee receivables

38,347

−

−

−

38,347

Advances to employees

20,827

−

−

−

20,827

AFS - debt investments

−

734,811

−

−

734,811

AFS - equity investments

−

15,388

−

−

15,388

Derivative Assets

−

−

9,611

−

9,611

Accounts payable

−

−

−

2,202,141

2,202,141

Accrued interest and guarantee fees

−

−

−

923,148

923,148

Other current liabilities

−

−

−

8,066

8,066

Due to related parties

−

−

−

537,020

537,020

Royalty fee payable

−

−

−

811,005

811,005

Trade receivables

Financial Liabilities

Long-term debts
Total

−

−

−

47,464,498

47,464,498

P16,731,331

P750,199

P9,611

P51,945,878

P69,437,019
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The following table demonstrates the income, expense, gains or losses of the Company’s financial instruments for the years ended
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008:
2010

2008

2009

Effect on
Profit or Loss

Effect
on Equity

Effect on
Profit or Loss

Effect
on Equity

Effect on
Profit or Loss

Effect
on Equity

Increase
(Decrease)

Increase
(Decrease)

Increase
(Decrease)

Increase
(Decrease)

Increase
(Decrease)

Increase
(Decrease)

Loans and receivables
Interest income on cash in
banks

P6,336,497

P–

P1,742,901

P–

P1,917,865

P–

Interest income on cash
equivalents

311,947,757

–

322,651,978

–

219,049,172

–

Interest income on trade
receivables

6,007,914

–

75,669,519

–

108,113,195

–

Interest income on employee
receivables

1,063,286

–

1,104,060

–

381,892

–

Interest income on due from
related parties

–

–

–

–

261,069

–

Interest income on concession
receivables

–

–

1,650,208,827

–

2,107,841,224

“Day 1” loss on NPC receivable

–

–

–

–

21,265,870

–

723,946

–

1,996,895

–

1,791,090

–

–

–

–

Interest income on other
receivables

(189,790,628)

–
–
–

AFS investments
Equity investments:
Net gain (loss) recognized
		 in equity

–

2,777,926

Impairment loss on AFS
investments

–

–

Provision for impairment
		 loss removed from equity

–

–

–

3,328,633

–

–

Gain on sale of AFS 		
		investments

–

–

–

–

46,323,392

–

Net gain removed from
equity

–

–

–

–

–

(46,323,392)

Net gain (loss) recognized
in equity

–

3,763,548

–

77,231,146

–

(288,586,089)

1,073,692

–

1,057,831

–

842,697

–

446,597,342

–

(175,648,625)

–

384,715,411

–

(9,598,488)

–

(23,161,134)

–

35,304,332

–

–

–

–

–

–

(3,440,778,682)

–

(2,431,195,352)

–

(1,771,562,904)

–

(56,102,861)

–

(69,904,267)

–

(225,590,774)

–

(304,361)

–

(164,255,636)

–

(34,535,508)

–

(203,086,285)

–

(109,852,266)

–

(120,834,470)

–

168,284,986

–

–

P82,350,869

P564,432,860

(3,328,633)

(2,813,418)

Debt investments:

Interest income on
ROP Bonds
Derivative Financial Instruments
at FVPL
Fair value changes and premium
on forward contracts
Unrealized gain (loss) on
fair value on changes on
currency options
Financial liabilities at amortized
cost
Interest expense on longterm debts
Interest expense on royalty
payable
Interest expense on shortterm loans
Amortizations of transactions
costs on loans
“Day 1” gain on royalty fee

–
(P2,915,578,319)
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Capital Management
The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a healthy capital ratio in order to
comply with its financial loan covenants and support its business operations.
The Company manages and makes adjustment to its capital structure as it deems necessary.
To maintain or adjust its capital structure, the Company may increase the levels of capital contributions from its creditors and
owners/shareholders through debt and new shares issuance, respectively.
The Company monitors capital using the debt ratio, which is long-term liabilities divided by long-term liabilities plus equity.
The Company’s policy is to keep the debt ratio not more than 70:30. The Company’s long-term liabilities include both the
current and long-term portions of long-term debts. Equity includes capital stock attributable to common and preferred shares,
unrealized gains reserve and retained earnings.
Table below shows the Company’s debt ratio as of December 31, 2010 and 2009.

Long-term liabilities
Equity
Total
Debt ratio

2010

2009

P41,205,947,848

P47,464,498,391

32,238,981,057

30,320,535,500

P73,444,928,905

P77,785,033,891

56.1%

61.02%

Derivative Financial Instruments
The Company’s derivative financial instruments are accounted for as financial instruments at FVPL.
Freestanding Derivatives. The Company enters into derivative transactions to hedge the foreign currency exposure arising from
its foreign currency denominated loan contracts. In 2010 and 2009, the Company had positions in the following types of
freestanding derivatives to protect itself against foreign currency risk arising from the changes on the exchange rate of the Peso
in relation to the foreign currency.
Foreign Currency Forward Contracts. Foreign currency forward contracts are contractual agreements to buy or sell a foreign
currency at an agreed rate on a future date. These are contracts that are customized and transacted with a bank or financial
institution.
In 2010, the Company instituted a total of 16 foreign currency forward contracts which all matured on June 24, 2010. These
contracts which include two non-deliverable buy yen - sell dollar, 13 deliverable buy yen - sell dollar and a deliverable buy
dollar - sell peso forward contracts, have notional amounts and average rates of JP¥3,107 million and JP¥93.5,
JP¥22,261 million and JP¥93.43 and US$12.0 million and P46.29, respectively. The total net mark-to-market gain
recognized in the 2010 statement of comprehensive income relative to these forward contracts is P446.60 million, with
P12.47 million and P434.10 million attributable to non-deliverable and deliverable contracts, respectively.
In 2009, the Company had a total of 14 foreign currency forward contracts with various counterparty banks. While all contracts
had same maturity date on May 28, 2009, five of these were entered in 2009. As of December 31, 2009, the Company’s
deliverable buy yen - sell dollar and deliverable buy dollar - sell peso forward contracts had aggregate notional amounts and
weighted average forward rates of JP¥4,000 million and US$118 million and JP¥98.6 and P48.59, respectively. The net markto-market loss recognized in the 2009 statement of comprehensive income relative to the forward contracts was P10.6 million.
Range Bonus Forward Contract. A range bonus forward contract is an agreement that provides protection against unfavorable
exchange rate movement by setting an agreed rate at which an entity can exchange one currency for another. At the same time,
it provides that for each day during the fixing period that the spot rate is outside the predetermined range, the Company will
accrue a premium based on a specified formula, which is payable at maturity.
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The following table shows the relevant data with the corresponding realized gain pertaining to the two range bonus forward
contracts entered into by the Company for the Miyazawa 1 loan due on June 1, 2009:

Notional amount

JP¥ 5 Billion

JP¥ 3 Billion

Trade date

April 30, 2008

May 2, 2008

Expiry date

May 26, 2009

May 26, 2009

Delivery date

May 28, 2009

May 28, 2009

Agreed rate

110

110

USD47,846,890

USD28,571,428.57

x 13.40% x n/N

x 13.06% x n/N

Predetermined range

JP¥96-JP¥106

JP¥97-JP¥107

Fixing period (in days)

260

258

Net mark-to-market loss

P102,325,462

P62,757,894

Premium formula
(where n = number of days when the spot rate is
outside the predetermined range during the fixing
period and N = fixing period)

The premium paid by the Company on May 28, 2009 for the JP¥5 billion and JP¥3 billion range bonus forwards amounted to
P168.5 million and P93.4 million, respectively. As of December 31, 2008, the accrued premium for the JP¥5.0 billion and
JP¥3.0 billion range bonus forward which were represented under the “Trade and other payables” account in the consolidated
statements of financial position were P116.01 million and P59.11 million, respectively, based on the total number of days, of
99 and 86 days, that the sport rate is outside the predetermined ranges.
Embedded Derivatives. The Company has financial and non-financial contracts with derivatives embedded in them. These
embedded derivatives have the effect that some of the cash flows of the financial and non-financial contracts vary in a similar
way to a freestanding derivative.
Currency Options. The Company had embedded currency options in its Pantabangan Refurbishment and Upgrade Project
Contract with VA TECH HYDRO, Gmbh Contractor which already matured in September 2010. Under the PRUP Contract, the
Company had the option to pay the Contractor in European Euro (Euro) or in US Dollar at a strike rate of €1.4691 to US$1.00
for the original contract and €1.5549 to US$1.00 for the contract options availed during the year. As of December 31, 2010
and 2009, the embedded currency options have notional amounts of nil and €7.8 million, respectively. The net mark-to-market
loss recognized in the 2010 and 2009 statements of comprehensive income were P9.6 million and P23.16 million, respectively.
Fair Value Changes of Derivatives
The tables below summarize the net movement in fair values of the Company’s derivatives as of December 31, 2010 and
December 31, 2009.
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Freestanding Derivatives
December 31, 2010

December 31, 2009

Derivative Asset

Derivative Liability

Derivative Asset

Derivative Liability

P–

P–

P614,081,623

P–

–

–

(78,318,622)
(535,763,001)

Range Bonus Forward
Balance at beginning of year
Net changes in fair value
Settlement
Balance at end of year

–

–

P–

P–

P–

P–

P–

P–

–
–
P–

Currency Forwards
Balance at beginning of year
Net changes in fair value
Settlement

449,477,342

(2,880,000)

68,344,713

(449,477,342)

2,880,000

(68,344,713)

(P54,250,018)
(78,909,982)
133,160,000

Balance at end of year

P–

P–

P–

P–

Total

P–

P–

P–

P–

Embedded Derivatives
Derivative Assets

December 31, 2010

December 31, 2009

Balance at beginning of year

P9,611,022

P34,907,195

Net changes in fair value of derivatives

(9,598,488)

(23,161,134)

–

(1,800,163)

Fair value of settled derivatives
Foreign exchange difference
Balance at end of year

(12,534)

(334,876)

P–

P9,611,022

The net changes in fair value of the Company’s derivatives for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 amounting
to P437.0 million gain and P198.81 million loss, respectively, were taken to the “Derivatives gain (loss)” account in the
consolidated statements of income, inclusive of premium on range bonus forwards recognized for the year ended December 31,
2009 of P86.8 million (nil in 2010).
36. Wind Energy Service Contracts
On September 14, 2009, the Parent Company entered into Wind Energy Service Contract (WESC) 2009-09-004 with the DOE
granting the Parent Company the right to explore and develop the Burgos Wind Project for a period of 25 years from the effective
date. The pre-development stage under the WESC shall be two years extendible for another year if the Parent Company has
not been in default in its exploration or work commitments and has provided a work program for the extension period upon
confirmation by the DOE. Within the pre-development stage, the Parent Company shall undertake exploration, assessment and
other studies of wind resources in the contract area. Upon declaration of commerciality, as confirmed by the DOE, the WESC
shall remain in force for the balance of the 25-year period for the development/commercial stage. The DOE shall approve the
extension of the WESC for another 25 years under the same terms and conditions provided the Company is not in default of any
material obligations under the contract and has submitted a written notice to the DOE for the extension of the contract not later
than one (1) year prior to the expiration of the original 25-year period. Further, the WESC provide that all materials, equipment,
plant and other installations erected or placed on the contract area by the Parent Company shall remain the property of the
Parent Company throughout the term of the contract and after its termination.
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In 2010, the Parent Company has entered into five WESCs with the DOE for the following contract areas:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Pagudpud Wind Project,
Under DOE Certificate of
Camiguin Wind Project,
Under DOE Certificate of
Taytay Wind Project,
Under DOE Certificate of
Dinagat Wind Project,
Under DOE Certificate of
Siargao Wind Project,
Under DOE Certificate of

Registration No. WESC 2010-02-040 (expiring in 2035)
Registration No. WESC 2010-02-041 (expiring in 2035)
Registration No. WESC 2010-02-042 (expiring in 2035)
Registration No. WESC 2010-02-043 (expiring in 2035)
Registration No. WESC 2010-02-044 (expiring in 2035)

37. Description of the Service Concession and Related Arrangements
All geothermal resources in public and/or private lands in the Philippines, whether found in, on or under the surface of dry
lands, creeks, rivers, lakes, or other submerged lands within the waters of the Philippines, belong to the State, inalienable and
imprescriptible, and their exploration, development and exploitation are governed under P.D. 1442. Under P.D. 1442, the
Government may enter into service contracts for the exploration, development and exploitation of geothermal resources.
Pursuant to P.D. 1442, the Parent Company had entered into the following service contracts with the Government of the
Republic of the Philippines (Government, represented by the DOE) for the exploration, development and production of
geothermal fluid for commercial utilization:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.
f.
g.

Tongonan, Leyte, dated May 14, 1981
Southern Negros, dated October 16, 1981
Bac-Man, Sorsogon, dated October 16, 1981
Mt. Apo, Kidapawan, Cotabato, dated March 24, 1992
Mt. Labo, Camarines Norte and Sur, dated March 19, 1994
Northern Negros, dated March 24, 1994
Mt. Cabalian, Southern Leyte, dated January 13, 1997

The exploration period under the service contracts shall be five years from the effective date, renewable for another two years if
the Parent Company has not been in default in its exploration, financial and other work commitments and obligations and has
provided a work program for the extension period acceptable to the Government. Where geothermal resource in commercial
quantity is discovered during the exploration period, the service contracts shall remain in force for the remainder of the
exploration period or any extension thereof and for an additional period of 25 years thereafter, provided that, if the Parent
Company has not been in default in its obligations under the contracts, the Government may grant an additional extension of 15
to 20 years.
The Parent Company shall acquire for the geothermal operations materials, equipment, plants and other installations as are
required and necessary to carry out the geothermal operations. All materials, equipment, plants and other installations erected
or placed on the contract areas of a movable nature by the Parent Company shall remain the property of the Parent Company
unless not removed therefrom within one year after the expiration and/or termination of the related service contract in which
case, ownership shall be vested in the Government.
The service contracts provide that, among other privileges, the Parent Company shall have the right to enter into agreements
for the disposition of the geothermal resources produced from the contract areas with any party, subject to the approval of the
Government.
Pursuant to such right, the Parent Company has entered into agreements for the sale of the geothermal resources produced from
the service contract areas principally with the NPC, a government-owned and controlled corporation. These agreements are for
25 years and may be opened for renegotiation by either party after five years from the date of commercial operations or earlier
upon the mutual agreement of both parties.
Also, pursuant to such right, the Parent Company has also entered into agreements with NPC for the development, construction
and operation of a geothermal power plant by the Parent Company in its geothermal service contract areas and the sale to NPC of
the electrical energy generated from such geothermal power plants. These agreements are for 25 years of commercial operations
and may be extended upon the request of the Parent Company by notice of not less than 12 months prior to the end of the
contract period, the terms and conditions of any such extension to be agreed upon by the parties.
The Parent Company’s agreements with NPC for the sale of the geothermal resources and the sale of the electrical energy
contain certain provisions related to (i) pricing control in the form of a cap in the Parent Company’s internal rate of return for
specific contracts; and (ii) payment by NPC of minimum guaranteed monthly remuneration and nominated capacity.
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For the Northern Negros service contract area, however, the Parent Company does not have agreements with NPC for the sale of
the geothermal resources and electrical energy produced from the service contract area. The Parent Company instead enters into
contracts with distribution utilities, electric cooperatives and other third party buyers of electricity for the sale of the electrical
energy generated from the service contract area.
Revenue and profits recognized in 2010, 2009 and 2008 on exchanging construction services for a financial or an intangible
asset amounted to nil, P541.46 million and P932.25 million, respectively; and nil, P74.20 million and P128.59 million,
respectively.
The disclosures have been provided in aggregate since management believes that the service concession arrangements are
similar in nature.
On October 23, 2009, the GSCs for the following contract areas were replaced by GRESCs pursuant to R.A. 9513 as discussed
in Note 38: Leyte, Southern Negros, Bac-Man, Mindanao, and Northern Negros. Aside from the tax incentives arising from the
conversion to GRESCs as discussed in Notes 38 and 47 to the consolidated financial statements, the significant terms of the
service concessions under the GRESCs are similar to the GSCs except for the Parent Company has control over any significant
residual interest over the steam fields, power plants and related facilities throughout the concession period and even after the
concession period. As a result of these changes in the service concession arrangements, the Parent Company has made a judgment
that its service concession contracts are no longer within the scope of IFRIC 12 starting October 23, 2009 (see Note 3).
The DOE conducted bidding on the geothermal energy resources located in Labo, Camarines Norte and the contract area was
won by the Parent Company. The certificate of registration as RE Developer for this contract area was granted by the DOE on
February 19, 2010.
The remaining service contract of the Parent Company covered by P.D. 1442 as of December 31, 2010 is the Mt. Cabalian in
Southern Leyte with a term of 25 years from the effective date of the contract, January 31, 1997 and for an additional period of
25 years if the Parent Company has not been in default in its obligations under the GSC.
38. Geothermal Service Contracts/Renewable Energy Service Contracts
As discussed in Note 37, by virtue of P.D. 1442, the Parent Company entered into seven service contracts with the DOE granting
the Company the right to explore, develop, and utilize the country’s geothermal resource subject to sharing of net proceeds with
the Government. The net proceeds is what remains after deducting from the gross proceeds the allowable recoverable costs,
which include development, production and operating costs.
The allowable recoverable costs shall not exceed 90% of the gross proceeds. The Parent Company pays 60% of the net proceeds
as Government share and retains the remaining 40%.
The 60% government share is comprised of royalty fees and income taxes. The royalty fees are shared by the Government
through DOE (60%) and the LGU (40%).
On July 8, 2009, the Parent Company negotiated with the DOE for the payment of deferred royalty due to DOE as of December
31, 2008 amounting to P1.4 billion for a period of four years with a quarterly amortization of P87.5 million or an annual
payment of P350.0 million. Royalty fees beginning 2009 shall be paid as they become due.
R.A. 9513 mandates the conversion of existing service contracts under P.D. 1442 into RE Service Contracts to avail of the
incentives under the RE Law. The Parent Company submitted its letter of intent to register with the DOE as an RE Developer on
May 20, 2009 and the conversion contracts negotiation with the DOE started in August 2009.
On September 10, 2009, the Parent Company was granted the Provisional Certificate of Registration as an RE Developer for the
following existing projects: (1) GSC No. 01 - Tongonan, Leyte, (2) GSC No. 02 - Palinpinon, Negros Oriental, (3) GSC No. 03 Bacon-Manito, Sorsogon/Albay, (4) GSC No. 04 - Mt. Apo, North Cotabato, and (5) GSC No. 06 - Northern Negros.
With the receipt of the certificates of provisional registration as geothermal RE Developer, the fiscal incentives of the RE Law was
implemented by the Parent Company retroactive from the effective date of the Law. Thus, the incentives provided by P.D. 1442
is effective until January 2009. The GSCs were fully converted to GRESCs upon signing of the parties on October 23, 2009;
thereby the Parent Company is now the holder of five (5) GRESCs and the corresponding DOE Certificate of Registration for the
following geothermal projects:
(i)
(ii)

Tongonan Geothermal Project, Under DOE Certificate of Registration No. GRESC 2009-10-001
Southern Negros Geothermal Project, Under DOE Certificate of Registration No. GRESC 2009-10-002
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(iii) Bacon-Manito Geothermal Project, Under DOE Certificate of Registration No. GRESC 2009-10-003
(iv) Mt. Apo Geothermal Project, Under DOE Certificate of Registration No. GRESC 2009-10-004
(v) Northern Negros Geothermal Project, Under DOE Certificate of Registration No. GRESC 2009-10-005
On February 19, 2010, the Parent Company’s GSC in Mt. Labo, Camarines Norte and Sur was converted to GRESC 2010-02020.
On March 24, 2010, the DOE issued to the Parent Company a new GRESC of Mainit Geothermal Project under DOE Certificate
of Registration No. GRESC 2010-03-021.
Under the GRESCs, the Parent Company pays the Government an amount equivalent to 1.5% of the gross income from the
sale of geothermal steam produced and such other income incidental to and arising from generation, transmission, and sale
of electric power generated from geothermal energy within the contract areas. Under the GRESCs, gross income derived from
business is an amount equal to gross sales less sales returns, discounts and allowances, and cost of goods sold. Cost of goods
sold includes all business expenses directly incurred to produce the steam used to generate power under a GRESC.
The Government is entitled to receive 60% of the 1.5% government share in the gross income of EDC, and the remaining 40% is
allocated to the local government within the applicable contract area.
Total outstanding royalty fees due to DOE and to LGUs are shown in Note 18 of the consolidated financial statements.
39. Steam Sales Agreements and Geothermal Resources Sales Contracts
The geothermal energy currently produced by the Parent Company’s geothermal projects is supplied to the power plants owned
and operated by NPC and GCGI pursuant to the following terms of the SSA/GRSC:
Tongonan-I
Under the SSA entered in June 1984 for Tongonan I, NPC agrees to pay the Parent Company a base price per kilowatt-hour of
net generation, subject to inflation adjustments and based on a guaranteed take-or-pay rate at 75% plant factor for a period of
25 years starting December 25, 1983. NPC opted to extend this agreement until the sale and turnover of the power plant to
GCGI on October 23, 2009, at which time Tongonan-I GRSC became effective. Under the GRSC which will terminate in 2031,
GCGI agrees to pay EDC remuneration for actual net electricity generation of the plant with steam prices in U.S. dollars per
kilowatt hour tied to coal indices.
Palinpinon-I
The SSA for Palinpinon I provides, among others, that NPC shall pay the Parent Company a base price per kilowatt-hour of gross
generation, subject to inflation adjustments and based on a guaranteed take-or-pay rate at 75% plant factor. The SSA is for a
period of 25 years, which commenced on December 25, 1988. Similar to Tongonan I, NPC opted to extend this agreement until
the sale and turnover of the power plant to GCGI on October 23, 2009, at which time the Palinpinon I and II GRSC became
effective. Under the GRSC which will terminate in 2031, GCGI agrees to pay EDC remuneration for actual net electricity
generation of the plant with steam prices in U.S. dollars per kilowatt hour tied to coal indices.
Palinpinon-II
In June 1996, the Parent Company and NPC signed a SSA for Palinpinon II’s four modular plants - Nasuji, Okoy, Sogongon I and
Sogongon II. Under the terms and conditions, NPC agrees to pay the Parent Company a base price per kilowatt-hour of gross
generation, subject to inflation adjustments and based on a guaranteed take-or-pay rate commencing from the established
commercial operation period, using the following plant factors: 50% for the first year, 65% for the second year and 75% for the
third and subsequent years. The SSA is for a period of 25 years for each module, which commenced on December 13, 1993 for
Nasuji; November 28, 1994 for Okoy; January 28, 1995 for Sogongon I and March 23, 1995 for Sogongon II. Such agreement
remained effective until the turnover of the power plants to GCGI on October 23, 2009, at which time the Palinpinon I and II GRSC
became effective. Under the GRSC which will terminate in 2031, GCGI agrees to pay EDC remuneration for actual net electricity
generation of the plant with steam prices in U.S. dollars per kilowatt hour tied to coal indices.
Bacon-Manito-I
The SSA for the Bac-Man geothermal resources entered in November 1988 provides, among others, that NPC shall pay the
Parent Company a base price per kilowatt-hour of gross generation, subject to inflation adjustments and based on a guaranteed
take-or-pay rate at 75% plant factor. The SSA is for a period of 25 years, which commenced in May 1993.
Bacon-Manito-II
Bac-Man II’s SSA with NPC was signed in June 1996 for its two 20-MW capacity modular plants - Cawayan and Botong. The
terms and conditions under the contract contain, among others, NPC’s commitment to pay the Parent Company a base price
per kilowatt-hour of gross generation, subject to inflation adjustments and based on a guaranteed take-or-pay rate, commencing
from the established commercial operation period, using the following plant factors: 50% for the first year, 65% for the second
year and 75% for the third and subsequent years. The SSA is for a period of 25 years, which commenced in March 1994 for
Cawayan and December 1997 for Botong.
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The Company’s revenue from Steam Sales Agreements amounted to P1,208.70 million, P3,963.55 million and
P4,507.35 million for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
40. Power Purchase Agreements
The electricity produced by the Parent Company is sold to NPC pursuant to the following PPAs:
Leyte-Cebu, Leyte-Luzon
The PPA provides, among others, that NPC shall pay the Parent Company a base price per kilowatt-hour of electricity delivered
subject to inflation adjustments. The PPA stipulates a contracted annual energy of 1,370 GWH for Leyte-Cebu and 3,000
GWH for Leyte-Luzon throughout the cooperation period. It also stipulates a nominated energy of not lower than 90% of the
contracted annual energy.
On November 12, 1999, NPC agreed to accept from the Parent Company a combined average annual nominated energy of
4,455 GWH for the period July 25, 1999 to July 25, 2000 for both Leyte-Cebu and Leyte-Luzon PPA. The annual nominated
energy starting July 25, 2000 and onwards was contested by NPC, which was one of the issues of the arbitration with NPC
(see Notes 15 and 29). The contracts are for a period of 25 years commencing in July 1996 for Leyte-Cebu and July 1997 for
Leyte-Luzon.
47 MW Mindanao I
The PPA provides, among others, that NPC shall pay the Parent Company a base price per kilowatt-hour of electricity delivered
subject to inflation adjustments. The PPA stipulates a minimum offtake energy of 330 GWH for the first year and 390 GWH per
year for the succeeding years. The contract is for a period of 25 years, which commenced in March 1997.
48.25 MW Mindanao II
The PPA provides, among others, that NPC shall pay the Parent Company a base price per kilowatt-hour of electricity delivered
subject to inflation adjustments. The PPA stipulates a minimum offtake energy of 398 GWH per year. The contract is for a
period of 25 years, which commenced in June 1999.
Revenue from sale of electricity covered by Power Purchase Agreements amounted to P13,715.33 million, P14,182.74 million
and P12,941.02 million for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
41. Electricity Sales Agreement
In October 2006, the Parent Company entered into an ESA with ILECO. Under the agreement, which has a five-year term, the
Parent Company agreed to sell specified amount of electric energy, or contract energy, to ILECO each year from its Northern
Negros Geothermal Power Plant. As the purchaser of electric energy, ILECO agreed to pay for the energy supplied by the Parent
Company. ILECO is required to pay the Parent Company, calculated on a monthly basis, either the contract energy per month or
the actual energy metered and delivered to ILECO, whichever is higher, multiplied by the electricity price.
Revenue from sale of electricity covered by Electricity Sales Agreements amounted to P533.96 million, P238.38 million and
P36.65 million for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
42. Power Supply Contracts
With GCGI’s takeover of Palinpinon and Tongonan power plants effective October 23, 2009, Schedule X of the APA provides for
the extension to GCGI of Power Supply Contracts of NPC with the following assigned customers:

VALUES @ work

245

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Customers

Contract Expiration

Palinpinon
V.M.C. Rural Electric Service Cooperative, Inc. (VRESCO)

December 25, 2010

Central Negros Electric Cooperative, Inc. (CENECO)

December 25, 2010

Dynasty Management & Development Corp. (DMDC)

March 15, 2016

Aklan Electric Cooperative, Inc. (AKELCO)

December 25, 2009

Guimaras Electric Cooperative, Inc. (GUIMELCO)

December 25, 2012

Iloilo I Electric Cooperative, Inc. (ILECO I)

December 25, 2009

Philippine Foremost Milling Corp. (PFMC)

March 25, 2016

Iloilo Provincial Government (IPG)

December 25, 2011

Tongonan
Don Orestes Romualdez Electric Cooperative, Inc. (DORELCO)

September 25, 2010

Leyte II Electric Cooperative, Inc. (LEYECO II)

December 25, 2009

Philippine Phosphate Fertilizer Corp. (PHILPHOS)

December 25, 2011

Philippine Associated Smelting and Refining Corp. (PASAR)

September 25, 2009

At the end of 2010, five of the 12 NPC power supply contracts assigned to GCGI remain effective namely, DMDC, GUIMELCO, PFMC,
IPG and PHILPHOS. Since GCGI’s takeover of the power plants, 15 new Power Supply Agreements (PSA) have been signed as follows:
Customers

Contract Start

Contract Expiration

Don Orestes Romualdez Electric Cooperative,
Inc. (DORELCO)

December 26, 2010

December 25, 2020

Leyte II Electric Cooperative, Inc. (LEYECO II)

December 26, 2010

December 25, 2020

Leyte V Electric Cooperative, Inc. (LEYECO V)

December 26, 2010

December 25, 2020

Philippine Associated Smelting and Refining
Corp. (PASAR)

October 24, 2009

December 25, 2012

Leyte

Cebu
Visayan Electric Company, Inc. (VECO)

December 26, 2010

December 25, 2015

Balamban Enerzone Corporation (BEZ)

December 26, 2010

December 25, 2015

Negros Occidental Electric Cooperative, Inc.
(NOCECO)

December 26, 2010

December 25, 2020

Negros Oriental I Electric Cooperative, Inc.
(NORECO I)

December 26, 2010

December 25, 2020

Negros Oriental II Electric Cooperative, Inc.
(NORECO II)

December 26, 2010

December 25, 2020

V.M.C. Rural Electric Service Cooperative, Inc.
(VRESCO)

December 26, 2010

December 25, 2020

October 26, 2010

October 25, 2020

Dumaguete Coconut Mills, Inc. (DUCOM)
Panay
Aklan Electric Cooperative, Inc. (AKELCO)

March 26, 2010

December 25, 2020

Capiz Electric Cooperative, Inc. (CAPELCO

January 27, 2010

December 25, 2020

Iloilo I Electric Cooperative, Inc. (ILECO I)

March 26, 2010

December 25, 2022a

December 26, 2010

December 25, 2020

Iloilo II Electric Cooperative, Inc. (ILECO II)
a

GCGI has already submitted to ERC last November 15, 2010 the application for the approval of the PSA
between ILECO I and GCGI.

Preparations are ongoing for the filing with the ERC of the applications for the approval of the PSAs with the other distribution-utility
customers.
Under the Power Supply Contracts of GCGI, revenue from sale of electricity amounted to P6,555.40 million, P1,045.69 million and nil
for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
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43. Supplementary Disclosures of Geothermal Reserves
The Parent Company has relied on volumetric reserve estimation and numerical simulation in determining the geothermal energy
reserves of its steam fields. However, it was shown that while numerical simulation is more sophisticated than the volumetric reserve
estimation, the latter can be readily conducted in a probabilistic way that would account for uncertainties in the parameters used in the
calculations, while the former cannot.
The Parent Company engaged GeothermEX, Inc. (GeothermEX) in 2008 to provide a third-party review of the reserve estimations of its
five (5) operating steam fields. GeothermEX, in their report released in October 2008, used the same volumetric reserve estimation
method employed by the Parent Company patterned after the US Geological Survey but differ only in heat recovery
factor. GeothermEX concluded that the Parent Company’s estimation is conservative but prudent due to the low heat recovery factor
values. GeothermEX reserve estimates are about 60% higher than those of the Parent Company.
GeothermEX 2008 findings as well as those of the Parent Company’s still remain valid for the current year as the reserve estimates
apply for a 25-year period. There are no significant changes in the geothermal resources of the Parent Company’s steam fields that
would warrant recalculations of the geothermal energy reserves.
The following table shows a comparison of estimated geothermal energy reserves from the Parent Company and GeothermEX.
Estimated Geothermal Energy Reserves
Mean Reserves
Parent Company
Estimates (MWe)

Mean Reserves
GeothermEX
Estimates (MWe)

Greater Tongonan (Leyte)

686

772

Mindanao

154

456

Bacon-Manito (Luzon)

270

415

Palinpinon (Negros Oriental)

217

411

Field

Northern Negros
Total

47

103

1,374

2,157

Source: GeothermEX Report, October 2008

44. Commitments and Contingencies
Stored Energy
On various dates, the Parent Company entered into Addendum Agreements to the PPAs for the Unified Leyte and GRSC for Bac-Man
2 projects, where any excess generation above the nominated energy or take-or-pay volume will be credited against payments made by
NPC for the periods it was not able to take electricity or steam, where applicable. As of December 31, 2010, the commitments for
stored energy in gigawatt-hours are as follows:
Stored Energy
(in gigawatt-hours)

Plant
Unified Leyte

4,326.6

Bac-Man 2 - Cawayan

671.9

Lease Commitments
Future minimum lease payments under the operating leases as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 are as follows:

Within one year
After one year but not more than five years
After five years
Total

2010

2009

P106,164,134

P90,804,680

312,741,882

47,230,090

81,375,806

1,029,484

P500,281,822

P139,064,254

The Parent Company’s lease commitments pertain to the drilling rigs and various office space and warehouse rentals.
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On October 1, 2010, the Contract of Lease for the use of the new office buildings at Ortigas Center was entered into between the
Company and Amberland Corporation with the rental rate of P6.05 million per month, inclusive of VAT. The Contract of Lease covers
the use of office space from 36th to 42nd floors of the One Corporate Centre Office Condominium with a total area of 11,598.2 sq.m
and 176 parking spaces located at the basement level of the Building. This contract will commence on December 1, 2011 or upon
full occupancy of the units whichever comes earlier and will expire on December 1, 2016, subject to pre-termination as provided in
Sections 22, 23 and 24 or renewal at option of the Lessor as provided in Section 1 of the Contract of Lease.
The Contract of Lease for the use of the office buildings at Fort Bonifacio was entered into between the Parent Company and PNOC
with the rental rate of P4.18 million per month, inclusive of VAT. The Contract of Lease covers the use of office space of Building 2,
Building 3, Building 4A, Building 4B, Computer Center, Laboratory, Wellness Center/PEGEA Office, and Motorpool/Storage, with a
total area of 11,824.24 sq.m. This contract commenced on June 1, 2009 and will expire on November 30, 2011, subject to pretermination as provided in Section 17 or renewal at option of the Lessor as provided in Section 3 of the Contract of Lease.
Other lease contracts pertain to various office space and warehouse being rented by steam/electricity projects in Leyte, Northern Negros
and Mindanao with the aggregate future lease payments of P3.3 million.
Purchase Commitments
Total purchase commitments for capital items as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 amounted to P103.46 million and P82.7 million,
respectively, of which, contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment amounts to P103.36 million in
2010. These are expected to be settled in the next financial year.
Legal Claims
The Company is contingently liable for lawsuits or claims filed by third parties, including labor related cases, which are pending
decision by the courts, the outcomes of which are not presently determinable. In the opinion of management and its legal counsel, the
eventual total liability from these lawsuits or claims, if any, will not have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements
(see Note 3).
45. Events After the Financial Reporting Period
On January 13, 2011, the Parent Company has completed the international roadshow in connection with its US$ bond offering.
Following the book-building exercise, the Parent Company successfully launched its maiden US$300.0 million 10-year bond issuance.
The Notes due 2021 were priced at par at a yield of 6.5%.
On January 21, 2011, the Parent Company received the proceeds of the US$300.0 million Notes. Such Notes were listed and quoted
on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (SGX-ST) on the same day.
As of the close of business hours on February 28, 2011, the Parent Company has closed its Well Construction Group and has therefore
ceased to engage new drilling business, except only to the extent it is bound to honor its existing contractual commitments.
On March 15, 2011, the BOD of the Parent Company approved the following cash dividends in favor of all stockholders of record as of
March 29, 2011 and payable on or before April 22, 2011:
•
•

cash dividend of 0.0008 per share on the preferred shares
cash dividend of 0.16 per share on the common shares

46. Electricity Power Industry Reform Act (EPIRA)
Republic Act No. 9136, otherwise known as the EPIRA, and the covering Implementing Rules and Regulations (IRR) provide for
significant changes in the power sector, which include among others: the functional unbundling of the generation, transmission,
distribution and supply sectors; the privatization of the generating plants and other disposable assets of NPC, including its contracts
with Independent Power Producers (IPP); the unbundling of electricity rates; the creation of a WESM; and the implementation of open
and nondiscriminatory access to transmission and distribution systems.
The law also requires public listing of not less than 15% of common shares of distribution companies within five years from the
effectivity date of the EPIRA. It provides cross ownership restrictions between transmission and generation companies and between
transmission and distribution companies and a cap of 50% of its demand that a distribution utility (DU) is allowed to source from an
associated company engaged in generation, except for contracts entered into prior to the effectivity of the EPIRA.
There are also certain sections of the EPIRA, specifically relating to generation companies, which provide for a cap on the concentration
of ownership to only 30% of the installed capacity of a grid and/or 25% of the national installed generating capacity.
The implementation of reforms in the power industry mandated by the EPIRA continued to attain significant momentum.
The requirement to privatize at least 70% of the total capacity of generating assets of NPC Luzon and Visayas has been achieved with
the successful sale of the 600 MW Calaca Coal fired power plant in July 2009. The only remaining precondition for Retail Competition
and Open Access to be satisfied is the transfer of the management and control of at least 70% of the total energy output of power
plants under contract with NPC to IPP Administrators.
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With the successful bidding of the 150 MW Bacon-Manito Geothermal Power Plants, NPC has privatized approximately 92% of its total
installed generating capacity in Luzon and Visayas. With regards to the privatization of NPC IPP contracts, PSALM has commenced
bidding out agreements for IPP administration in 2009. As of October 2010, the government has turned over more than 62% of
NPC IPP contracts to IPP Administrators. However, the selection of IPP Administrators for the remaining contracts of NPC have been
postponed indefinitely. These include contracts for the 560 MW Unified Leyte Geothermal, the 630 MW Malaya, 96 MW Cebu Thermal
I & II, and the 36 MW Cebu Diesel.
Once Retail Competition and Open Access are implemented, as mandated by the EPIRA, end-users with electricity demand falling
above the thresholds set by the ERC will be allowed to source electricity from the electricity suppliers of their choice. The EPIRA also
contemplates that certain end-users will source power directly through WESM or by entering into contracts with generation companies.
This will encourage competition at the retail level.
In terms of market share limitations, no generation company is allowed to own more than 30% of the installed generating capacity of
the Luzon, Visayas or Mindanao grids, and/or 25% of the total nationwide installed generating capacity. As of October 2010, NPC/
PSALM’s share has been reduced to 11% of the total capacity nationwide. Also, no generation company associated with a DU may
supply more than 50% of the DU’s total demand, under bilateral contracts, without prejudice to the bilateral contracts entered into prior
to the enactment of EPIRA.
Pursuant to the EPIRA, NPC transferred its transmission and sub-transmission assets to TransCo, which was created to operate the
transmission systems throughout the Philippines. TransCo is also mandated to provide Open Access to all industry participants. The
EPIRA granted TransCo a monopoly over the high-voltage transmission network and subjected it to performance-based regulations.
The EPIRA also required the privatization of TransCo through an outright sale or concession contract to be carried out by PSALM.
In December 2007, Monte Oro Grid Resources Corp. (Monte Oro) won the concession contract for TransCo with a bid of $3.95 billion.
On January 14, 2009, PSALM formally turned over the 25-year concession of TransCo to National Grid Corporation of the Philippines
(NGCP), the company formed by Monte Oro. The successful grant to the NGCP of the concession to manage, operate and maintain the
transmission and subtransmission assets of TransCo is expected to lead to better efficiency and improved grid interconnectivity.
The EPIRA mandates the establishment of a wholesale market that provides the mechanism for identifying and setting the price of
actual variations from the quantities transacted under contracts between sellers and purchasers of electricity. This market, the WESM,
became operational in the Luzon Grid on June 26, 2006. The WESM has also been launched successfully in the Visayas Grid last
December 26, 2010. The Philippine Electricity Market Corporation (PEMC) acts as the market operator that governs the WESM.
In accordance with the EPIRA, the present structure of PEMC will undergo changes upon implementation of an independent market
operator set up. The WESM is envisioned to develop two main markets: energy market and reserve market. In Luzon, the reserve
market is expected to start in year 2011.
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 36 of the EPIRA, all Electric Power Industry Participants shall prepare and submit for approval of
the ERC their respective Business Separation and Unbundling Plan (BSUP) which requires all industry participants to maintain separate
accounts for, or otherwise “structurally and functionally unbundled” their business activities.
Since the Company is engaged solely in the business of power generation, to the exclusion of the other business segments of
transmission, distribution, supply and other related business activities, compliance with the BSUP requirement on maintaining separate
accounts is not reasonably practicable.
Based on the Company’s assessment, it is in full compliance with the provisions of the EPIRA and its IRR.
47. Renewable Energy Law of 2008
As early as May 20, 2009, the Parent Company submitted its letter of intent to register with the DOE as an RE Developer. The
DOE Circular No. 2009-07-0011 which took effect on August 10, 2009, provided the guidelines for the registration process of RE
Developers. In compliance with the DOE Circular, the Parent Company submitted the requirements for the issuance of provisional
registration and on August 28, 2009, paid the necessary processing fee. On September 10, 2009, the Parent Company was granted
the Provisional Certificate of Registration as an RE Developer for the following existing projects: (1) GSC No. 01 - Tongonan, Leyte, (2)
GSC No. 02 - Palinpinon, Negros Oriental, (3) GSC No. 03 - Bacon-Manito, Sorsogon/Albay, (4) GSC No. 04 - Mt. Apo, North Cotabato,
and (5) GSC No. 06 - Northern Negros.
With the receipt of the provisional certificates of registration as geothermal energy RE Developer, the Parent Company wrote down
P2,959.2 million worth of deferred tax assets in view of the change in the applicable corporate tax rate from 30% to 10%, which is
one of the fiscal incentives of the RE Law. The Parent Company implemented the RE Law retroactive February 1, 2009 resulting to the
decrease in the provision for income tax expense and related income tax payable going forward.
The GSCs were fully converted to GRESCs upon signing of the parties on October 23, 2009; thereby the Parent Company is now the
holder of five (5) GRESCs and the corresponding DOE Certificate of Registration for the following geothermal production fields: (1)
GRESC 2009-10-001 for Tongonan, Leyte; (2) GRESC 2009-10-002 for Palinpinon, Negros Oriental; (3) GRESC 2009-10-003 for
Bacon-Manito, Sorsogon/Albay; (4) GRESC 2009-10-004 for Kidapawan, North Cotabato; and (5) GRESC 2009-10-005 for Northern
Negros.
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48. FG Hydro’s Contracts and Agreements
Power Supply Contracts
In 2006, FG Hydro has existing contracts, which were originally transferred by NPC to FG Hydro as part of the acquisition of PAHEP/
MAHEP for the supply of electric energy with several customers within the vicinity of Nueva Ecija. All of these contracts had expired as
of December 31, 2010. Upon renegotiation with the customers and due process as stipulated by the ERC, the expired contracts were
renewed except for the contract with Pantabangan Municipal Electric System (PAMES).
FG Hydro shall generate and deliver to these customers the contracted energy on a monthly basis. FG Hydro is bound to service these
customers for the remainder of the stipulated terms, the range of which falls between December 2007 and December 2020.
Upon expiration, these contracts may be renewable upon renegotiation with the customers and due process as stipulated by the ERC.
As of December 31, 2010, there are five remaining power supply contracts being serviced by FG Hydro.
Revenue from sale of electricity covered by FG Hydro’s Power Supply Contracts amounted to P2,139.54 million, P1,247.18 million and
P1,383.49 million for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
Details of the existing contracts of FG Hydro are as follows:
Related Contracts

Expiry Date

Other Developments

Nueva Ecija II Electric
Cooperative, Inc., Area 2
(NEECO II - Area 2)

December 25, 2016

The ERC granted a provisional approval on the
Power Supply Agreement between FG Hydro
and NEECO II-Area 2 on August 2, 2010 with a
pending final resolution of the application for the
approval thereof.

Pantabangan Municipal Electric
System (PAMES)

December 25, 2008

There is no new agreement between FG Hydro
and PAMES yet. In the meantime, FG Hydro has
continued to supply electricity to PAMES on a
month-to-month basis.

Nueva Ecija I Electric Cooperative,
Inc. (NEECO I)

December 25, 2012

FG Hydro and NEECO I signed a new agreement
in December 2007 for the supply of electricity
for the next five years. The ERC has provisionally
approved this agreement pending final resolution
of the application for the approval thereof.

Edong Cold Storage and Ice Plant
(ECSIP)

December 25, 2020

A new agreement was signed by FG Hydro and
ECSIP in November 2010 for the supply of power
in the succeeding ten years.

NIA-Upper Pampanga River
Integrated Irrigation System
(UPRIIS)

October 25, 2020

FG Hydro and NIA-UPRIIS signed a new
agreement in October 2010 for the supply of
power in the succeeding ten years.

Operation and Maintenance Agreement (O&M Agreement)
In 2006, FG Hydro entered into an O&M Agreement with the NIA, with the conformity of the NPC. Under the O&M Agreement, NIA will
manage, operate, maintain and rehabilitate the Non-Power Components of the PAHEP/MAHEP in consideration for a service fee based
on actual cubic meter of water used by FG Hydro for power generation.
In addition, FG Hydro will provide for a Trust Fund amounting to P100.0 million within the first two years of the O&M Agreement.
The amortization for the Trust Fund is payable in 24 monthly payments starting November 2006 and is billed by NIA in addition to the
monthly service fee. The Trust Fund has been fully funded as of October 2008.
The O&M Agreement is effective for a period of 25 years commencing on November 18, 2006 and renewable for another 25 years
under the terms and conditions as may be mutually agreed upon by both parties.
Total service fees incurred, including the Trust Fund amortization in 2008, amounted to P98.4 million, P82.5 million and
P113.3 million in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively, and are included under “Operations and maintenance expenses” account in the
consolidated statements of income, specifically “Repairs and maintenance” account.
Memorandum of Agreement (MOA)
PSALM entered into a MOA with the Protected Area Management Board (PAMB). Under the MOA, PAMB granted FG Hydro the right to
use the Masiway land, where the MAHEP power plant is situated in consideration for an annual user’s fee. The MOA will be effective
for 25 years and renewable for a similar period subject to terms and conditions as may be mutually agreed upon by both parties.
FG Hydro incurred annual user’s fee amounting to P0.1 million in 2010, 2009 and 2008. The user’s fee is included under “General
and administrative expenses” account in the consolidated statements of income, specifically “Rental, insurance and taxes” account.
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PRUP Contract
On January 24, 2008, FG Hydro signed the Letter of Acceptance (LOA) for the PRUP with VA TECH HYDRO GmbH, now known as
Andritz Hydro GmbH (Contractor), an Austrian company.
The contract provides that the Contractor will undertake the engineering, procurement, installation, testing and commissioning of the
PRUP. The technical scope of the PRUP agreed upon by FG Hydro and the Contractor includes the following:
i. Refurbishment and upgrade of Pantabangan main and auxiliary plant which includes:
–
–
–
–

Turbine and wicket gate replacement; headcover modification
Draft tube repair and modification
Generator rewind and refurbishment
Replacement of key auxiliary systems

ii. Power increase from 50 MW to 59.4 MW per unit
The total updated contract price of the PRUP amounts to €30.3 million (US$44.7 million), including the Contract Options (CO)
that will be exercised by FG Hydro. The contract provides that payments to the Contractor are made in accordance with the
Milestone Schedule as provided in the Contract.
FG Hydro has the option to make any payments to the Contractor in US Dollar, at an exchange rate fixed by reference to the European
Central Bank fixing rate for converting Euro to US Dollar as at the date of the LA, plus a premium of US$0.0028 per Euro. Similarly,
with respect to the CO’s, FG Hydro also has the option to make any payments to the Contractor in US Dollar, at an exchange rate fixed
by reference to the European Central Bank fixing rate for converting Euro to US Dollar as at the date of the relevant option notice, plus a
premium of US$0.0028 per Euro.
Commissioning of the first unit commenced in December 2009 and was successfully completed in early 2010. Consequently, the final
taking over of the refurbished and upgraded plant and equipment was achieved on January 29, 2010. The power generation capacity of
the upgraded and refurbished unit was increased by 10 MW.
Commissioning of the second unit commenced in November 2010 and was successfully completed on December 8, 2010. Contract
options and variations and closure of punchlist items, however, were completed in early 2011. The completion of the refurbishment of
the second unit increased power generation capacity by another 10 MW bringing total plant capacity to 132 MW.
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS
ACA
AFS Investments
AGC
Availability Factor

Aguiting Community Association
Available-for-Sale Investments
Audit and Governance Committee
A measure (expressed as a percentage) of the available
generation of a plant over a defined period of time compared
with the maximum possible available generation of the plant
over the same period
Basud Farmers Association
Baslay Farmers Association
Bacman Geothermal Production Field

BAFA
BFA
BGPF
BIR
BOD (p.94)
BOD (p. 248)
BOT
BPMD
BPTL
BSP
CalEnergy
CBA
CB-BOL
CBU
CDM
CFSA
CG
CME
CMMS
COCOBIND
CPD
CSR
CSRC
DA
DENR
DepEd
DO
DOE
DOLE
DOT
DTI
EBITDA
ECA
ECC
EDD
EMB
EMD
EPC
EPIRA
EPS
ERC
ERDD
ERPA

Bureau of Internal Revenue
Biological Oxygen Demand
Board of Directors
Build-Operate-Transfer scheme
Budget Performance Monitoring Department
Below Poverty Threshold Level
Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas
California Energy Company, Inc
Collective Bargaining Agreement
Central Bank – Board of Liquidators
Capital build-up
Clean Development Mechanism
Community Forest Stewardship Agreement
Corporate Governance
Cocomethyl ester
Computerized Maintenance Management System
Coco Coir Business Integration and Development
Community Partnerships Department
Corporate Social Responsibility
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
Department of Agriculture
Department of Environment and Natural Resources
Department of Education
Dissolved Oxygen
Department of Energy
Department of Labor and Employment
Department of Tourism
Department of Trade and Industry
Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and
Amortization
Energy Conversion Agreement
Environmental Compliance Certificate
Energy Drilling Division
Environmental Management Bureau
Environmental Management Department
Engineering, Procurement and Construction
Electric Power Industry Reform Act of 2001
Earnings Per Share
Energy Regulatory Commission
Energy Research and Development Department
Emissions Reduction Purchase Agreement

ERT

Emergency Response Team

ESA
FCRS
FG

Electricity Sales Agreement
Fluid Collection and Recycling System
First Gen Corporation

FGHPC
FPHC
Fuji
GHG
GSC
GWh
GOCC
GRSC
GSIS
HROD
IBJ
IBRD
ICD
IFRIC
IMFA
IRR
ISD
JBIC

First Gen Hydro Power Corporation
First Philippine Holdings Corporation
Fuji Electric Co., Ltd.
Greenhouse gas
Geothermal Service Contract
Gigawatthours; 1,000,000,000 watthours; 1,000 MWh
Government Owned and Controlled Corporation
Geothermal Resources Sales Contract
Government Service Insurance System
Human Resources Organization Department
International Bank of Japan
International Bank for Reconstruction and Development
Institute of Corporate Directors
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee
Inang Maharang Farmers Association
Implementing Rules and Regulations
Information Systems Department
Japan Bank for International Cooperation

Japan Yen or JPY
Kasanayan sa Hanapbuhay
KWh
LADCA
LCF
LGPF
LGU
LMC

Japanese Yen
Livelihood Modules
Kilowatthour; 1,000 watthours
Lake Danao Community Association
League of Corporate Foundations
Leyte Geothermal Production Field
Local Government Unit
Lihir Management Co. Pty. Ltd.
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LSPP
LTA
Marubeni
MEOT
MGPF
MGPP-2
MMB
MMBFOE
Mount Kanlaon
Buffer Zone

SIDC
SNGPF
Sogongon MPP
SONEGCO

Local Seminar Participation Proposal
Lost Time Accident
Marubeni Corporation
Minimum Energy Off Take agreement
Mindanao Geothermal Production Field
Mahanagdong Geothermal Power Plant-2
Million Barrels
Million Barrels of Fuel Oil Equivalent
is an area adjacent to the Mount Kanlaon Natural Park
(Negros Occidental) that was designated for economic use
through Republic Act 9154
Megawatt
Megawatthour; one million watthours
Nasuji Modular Power Plant
Nominations and Compensation Committee
Netherlands Clean Development Mechanism Facility
National Government or the Republic of the Philippines or
the ROP
National Grid Corporation of the Philippines
Northern Negros Geothermal Production Field
National Power Corporation
New and Renewable Energy
Northern Sierra Madre Natural Park
National Transmission Company or Transco
Okoy 6 Modular Power Plant
Operations Committee
Ormat Inc.
Oxbow Power Corporation
Procure to Pay
Palinpinon 1
Palinpinon 2
Parks Administration and Management Bureau
Philippine Accounting Standards
Philippine Crop Insurance Corporation
Principal Collateralized Interest Reduction Bonds
Philippine Peso, the lawful currency of the Republic of the
Philippines
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
Palinpinon Geothermal Power Plant 1
Palinpinon Geothermal Power Plant 2
Philippine Geothermal Incorporated
Power Generation Sector
Publicly Listed Company
Property Management Department
Professional Mechanical Engineers
Philippine National Oil Company
PNOC Energy Development Corporation
Philippine National Standard/International Standardization
Organization
Power Purchase Agreement
Power Sector Assets and Liabilities Management Corporation
Philippine Stock Exchange
Professional/Technical Union
Renewable Energy Coalition
Majority Owner of PNOC EDC shares of stocks
Risk Management Committee
Republic of the Philippines or National Government
Site Emergency Response Team
Securities and Exchange Commission
Schools for Excellence
Steamfield Operation
Safety and Health Association of the Philippine Energy
Sector
Sorosoro Ibaba Development Cooperative
Southern Negros Geothermal Production Field
Sogongon Modular Power Plant
Southern Negros Geothermal Cooperative

SSA

Steam Sales Agreement

Subsidiary

PNOC EDC is a subsidiary of Red Vulcan Holdings which
owns a majority of the outstanding capital stock

TAD

Transmission and Dispatch

Tech-Voc

Technical-Vocational

TGP

Tongonan Geothermal Power Plant

TIFA

Trade and Investment Framework Agreements

Tongonan 1

112.5-MW geothermal power plant in Tongonan, Leyte

TOFA

Tongonan Farmers Association

Transco

National Transmission Company or NTC

TSS (p. 34)

Technical Services Sector

TSS (p. 94)

Total Suspended Solids

US dollar or USD

United States Dollar, the lawful currency of the United
States of America

MW
MWh
Nasuji MPP
NCC
NCDMF
NG
NGCP
NNGP
NPC
NRE
NSMNP
NTC
Okoy 6 MPP
Opscomm
Ormat
Oxbow
P2P
Pal 1
Pal 2
PAMB
PAS
PCIC
PCIRBs
Peso or PhP
PFRS
PGPP-1
PGPP-2
PGI
PGS
PLC
PMD
PME
PNOC
PNOC EDC or the Company
PNS/ISO
PPA
PSALM
PSE
PT Union
RE Coalition
Red Vulcan Holdings Corp.
RMC
ROP
SART
SEC
SFE
SFO
SHAPES

Energy Development Corporation (Corporate Headquarters)
Bldg. 5 Energy Center, Merritt Road, Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City 1201 Philippines
Tel. (+632) 6677-332
URL: www.energy.com.ph
Investor Relations Office
5/F EDC Bldg. 5
Tel. (+632) 6677 332 loc. 5508
Email: recio@energy.com.ph

Leyte Geothermal Production Field
Steamfield Operations: Tongonan
Admin. Complex, Kananga, Leyte
Tel. (+632) 6677-332 loc. 2400 /
2401 / 2402

Public Relations Department
Tel. Tel. (+632) 6677-332 loc. 5281
Email: pubrels@energy.com.ph

Power Generation Office
Milagro Admin. Complex, Ormoc
City, Leyte
Tel. (+632) 6677-332 loc. 2400 /
2401 / 2402

Southern Negros Geothermal Production Field
Ticala, Valencia, Negros Oriental
Tel. (+632) 6677-332 loc. 2403

Mindanao Geothermal Production Field
Ilomavis, Kidapawan City, Cotabato
Tel. (+632) 6677-332 loc. 2404

Northern Negros Geothermal Production Field
Bago City, Negros Occidental
Tel. (+632) 6677-332 loc. 2406
Fax: (+632) 812-8685

Pantabangan-Masiway Hydro Power Complex
Brgy. West Poblacion, Pantabangan, Nueva Ecija
Tel. (+632) 449-6520

Bacon-Manito Geothermal Production Field
Palayang Bayan, Manito, Albay
Tel. (+632) 6677-332 loc. 2405

North Luzon Wind Power Project
Brgy. Saoit, Burgos, Ilocos Norte
Mobile (+63) 9195401863 / (+63) 09195470576

